
AB 
 
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 23 MARCH 2021 
1.30 PM 
 

VENUE: Peterborough City Council Youtube page 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

 

 

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward 
Councillor 
 

 

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on: 
 

3 - 22 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on: 
 
26 January 2021; and 
23 February 2021 
 

 

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters 
 

 

 5.1 19/00347/FUL - Ferry Meadows Country Park Ham Lane Orton 
Waterville Peterborough. 
 

23 - 160 

 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. Audio-recordings of 
meetings may be published on the Council’s website. A protocol on this facility is available at:  
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: G Casey (Vice Chairman), C Harper (Chairman), P Hiller, R Brown, Warren, Hussain, 
Iqbal, Jones, B Rush, Hogg and Bond 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: N Sandford, Simons, M Jamil and E Murphy 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Karen Dunleavy on telephone 01733 
296334452233 or by email – karen.dunleavydaniel.kalley@peterborough.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBGtAD5RrYO-xJPW96UFl_Q
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


 
 
CASE OFFICERS: 
 
Planning and Development Team:  Nicholas Harding, Sylvia Bland, Janet Maclennan, David 

Jolley, Louise Simmonds,, Amanda McSherry, Matt Thomson, 
Asif Ali, Michael Freeman, Jack Gandy, Carry Murphy, Mike 
Roberts, Karen Ip, Shaheeda Montgomery and Susan 
Shenston 

 
Minerals and Waste:   Alan Jones 
 
Compliance:   Jason Grove, Amy Kelley and Alex Wood-Davis 
 
 
NOTES: 
 
1. Any queries on completeness or accuracy of reports should be raised with the Case Officer, 

Head of Planning and/or Development Management Manager as soon as possible. 
 
2. The purpose of location plans is to assist Members in identifying the location of the site.  

Location plans may not be up-to-date, and may not always show the proposed development.   
 
3. These reports take into account the Council's equal opportunities policy but have no 

implications for that policy, except where expressly stated. 
 
4. The background papers for planning applications are the application file plus any documents 

specifically referred to in the report itself. 
 
5. These reports may be updated orally at the meeting if additional relevant information is 
 received after their preparation. 
 
 
 

2



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

MEETING 

HELD AT 1:30PM, ON 
TUESDAY, 26 JANUARY 2021 

VIA ZOOM VIRTUAL CONFERENCE 
 

Committee Members Present: Harper (Chairman), Casey (Vice Chairman), Bond, Brown, Hiller, 
Hogg, Amjad Iqbal, Jamil, Jones, Rush and Warren.   

 
Officers Present: Nick Harding, Head of Planning Peterborough and Fenland 

Stephen Turnbull, Planning Solicitor 
Nick Greaves, Principal Engineer 
Daniel Kalley, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Karen Dunleavy, Democratic Services Officer 

 
34. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hussain. Councillor Jamil attended 

as substitute. 
 

35.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

36. MEMBERS’ DECLARATION OF INTENTION TO MAKE REPRESENTATIONS AS 
WARD COUNCILLOR 
 

 A declaration was declared by Councillor Harper on item 5.2 20/01141/FUL - Land To 
The South Of Buntings Lane Stanground Peterborough PE7 3DN and that he would be 
speaking as a Ward Councillor. 
 
A declaration was declared by Councillor Harper on item 5.3 20/01543/HHFUL - 68 High 
Street Fletton Peterborough PE2 8DR and that he would be speaking as a ward 
Councillor. 
 

37. PLANNING AND ENFORCEMENT MATTERS 
 

37.1 20/01260/WCPP - Masjid Ghousia 406 Gladstone Street Millfield Peterborough 
 

 The Committee received a report, which sought permission to vary condition 8 to allow the 
amplified call to prayer (The Azan) three times per day, every day (early afternoon, late 
afternoon and sunset). It is proposed that the duration of each call to prayer would be 
between three and five minutes. Four loud speakers would be located on the top of the 
minaret (tower), at the balcony level at the Springfield Rd / Gladstone St junction end of 
the building. The speakers would be hidden from view. 

 
The Head of Planning introduced the item and highlighted key information from the report. 
 

3



 Councillors Ali and Nadeem, Ward Councillors addressed the Committee and responded 
to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 The community residents were very diverse and were supportive to one another. 

 It was a sincere wish of many residents of the community residents and leaders 

that a call to prayer would be present. 

 A local committee had discussed the proposal and asked for help from the Council 

on how to successfully implement the call to prayer request. 

 The call to prayer if approved would not be loudly amplified and would only reach 

a small area to the Bourges Boulevard. 

 There was resounding support from many residents of various faiths for the 

application.  

 Consultations had taken place in the area and there had been many positive 

responses, and very few negative ones.  

 A well-known actor, Liam Neeson had recently stated in an interview that the call 

to prayer was a beautiful and melodic, sound.  

 The local plan reference within the report in relation to transport, parking standards 

and amenity prevision were not relevant to the application. All of these points had 

been addressed in the original application to build the Masjid Ghousia. If the 

application was granted, there would be no risk of overflow on capacity as the issue 

was with noise. The comments made in the report were conflicting and limited, 

however, had recommended a three-month temporary trial. 

 Under the Equalities Act 2010 and the Human Rights act 1998, the Council must 

have due regard for the need to eliminate and advance equal opportunity to 

implement the application. 

 The Pollution Team had stated within the report that the operation of a loudspeaker 

for the proposed purpose is primarily a political judgement rather than a technical 

consideration. It was felt that there should be no politics in considering such items 

in Committee. 

 There was 288 residents in support and 98 in objection to the application. 

 

 Mr Nazim Khan OBE, the Applicant addressed the Committee and responded to questions 

from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 

 When the mosque was being considered in 2002, Officers recommendations had 

been for refusal due to reasons such as being out of character to the area. The 

current officer recommendation for this planning application stated that the mosque 

was a local listed building which formed part of the streetscene and was a local 

landmark site.  

 A national award for the best building built in Peterborough was achieved following 

the construction of the mosque. 

 The applicants had always tried to work with residents, politicians and officers to 

reach the best outcome for the proposals.  Unfortunately, the proposal had not 

been agreed by officers and if it had there could have been a different 

recommendation put forward. 

 The applicants would like a temporary approval, and if any objection was raised 

during a trial period of 12 – 18 months then the applicant would not continue with 

the proposal. 

 The applicant wanted full support by residents and would not want to alienate 

anyone. 

4



 The 12-18 month trial period was necessary due to the prayer schedules during 

the different seasons. 

 The applicants wanted to prove to officers and residents that the call to prayer 

could work. 

 Objections to the proposals outside the area should not be given consideration. 

 The first call to prayer in the winter and summer would be different, but on average 

would be around 1pm, 2:30pm, 4pm and 6pm. The last call at sunset would be 

around 9:30pm in the summer. 

 Consideration had been given to shift workers as the length of time would only be 

2 – 5 minutes in duration. If there was opposition to the call to prayer, the proposals 

would be reconsidered. 

 The reasons for applying for the call to prayer was to remind people that it was time 

for prayer, just in case they were not wearing a watch. 

 The younger generation had asked whether a call to prayer could be held during 

Ramadan and the Lockdown period. Officers could not make a decision without an 

approved planning application. 

 Using an alternative such as radio or the use of applications as an alternative 

technical solution would not be suitable for all. 

 Permission had not been sought when the mosque was first built as it had been 

felt at the time not reasonable. 

 The length of time for the call to prayer was dependant on the person who would 

perform the service, which was why the timings had been estimated to last between 

two to five minutes. An average time for call to prayer would last between two to 

three minutes. 

 Two prayer times had not been applied for as they would happen around two to 

three am when the majority of people would be asleep at that time. The last call to 

prayer in the summertime would be around 11pm and it was felt too late and would 

not appropriate for the community. 

 Research was carried out in Bradford and the sound was not loud or distorted. The 

Bradford technic could be explored further by the applicant and planning officers 

and applied if necessary. 

 Current call to prayer reminders were produced by way of a paper timetable and 

on social media. However, the communication would not include the times for call 

to prayer as this was done about 10-15minutes before the actual time to pray. 

 The decibel sound noise level heard at Bradford was about the same distance 

between Gladstone Street and New England recreation ground, however only 

faintly. 

 The paper timetable could include the 10-15 minute reminder, however, most 

people would not have a copy. The physical call to prayer would act as a better 

reminder. 

 

 The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 Members were advised that the Leicester City Council (LCC) consultation involved 

speaking to the Environmental Team and obtain guidance from them. 

 The distance of noise travel could not be given as the application had not stated 

the output levels. The application only sought to have a discussion with the Council 

5



over what the maximum level of output should be to the nearest noise sensitive 

premises.  

 The report had identified the guidance from Leicester City Council. If Members 

were to agree as a matter of principle the development was acceptable, the level 

of output should be set using the LCC guidance at the nearest noise sensitive 

premises. 

 There had been no national guidance in relation to call for prayer or standard 

practice. The challenge was to ascertain the varied number of times, duration and 

tones during the day. The impact of this type of noise would also require a scientific 

assessment.  

 The political quote mentioned in the report was included as comments from 

Environmental Health. This was because the officers could not reach a scientific 

based recommendation which was why the political comment had been included 

in the report.  Members would need to consider comparisons such as noise from 

emergency vehicles and the number of times that would happen in the day.  

 Members commented that political wording should not be included in assessments, 

as all Members were independent when considering applications. 

 Members commented that a recommendation had included a temporary option 

from the Pollution Team for the call to prayer, however, the conclusion in the report 

went against that. Members were advised that because the team had not had 

guidance, methodology or evidence around what the noise levels should be and 

therefore could not reach a conclusion. If Members were minded to grant consent, 

there would be a route which conditions could be applied using the LCC guidance 

to set a maximum noise level. A noise limiter would need to be installed and that 

could be a way forward. 

 If a subsequent application was presented the team they would consider that the 

principle had been accepted however, the new application would need to be 

considered on its own merits using the impact of a similar mosque that operated a 

call to prayer and it would be a question of whether an additional call to prayer 

would have a detrimental impact. If one part of the City operated a call to prayer 

and another with quite some distance, then the cumulative impact would be less 

than a premises that was next to each other operating the same noise levels. 

 Members were advised that the application could not be considered on what 

permission had been given about the call to prayer, with other areas such as 

Leicester. 

 Members commented that although the community was diverse, the public 

speakers had stated that they would not want to impose the call to prayer on the 

whole community if it was not welcomed.  

 Members were mindful that the noise generated would be for three times a day, 

five days a week and people that worked shifts could be impacted by the noise and 

sleep deprivation. If the application was to allow call to prayer once a week or only 

on religious festivals, then Members felt that the proposal would be more 

acceptable. 

 Some Members commented that some Council departments had not raised 

objections such as Highways, Conservation Officer and Millfield association groups 

and for that reason temporary permission could be considered.  

 During the consultation 282 local residents and three ward Councillors had shown 

that they were in support of the application, with only 98 in objection. The Pollution 

6



Team had stated that temporary consent would allow proper analysis of the noise 

impact. 

 Members commented that they were mindful of the Equalities Act 2010, Human 

Rights Act 1998 and hoped that the public and applicant’s interests were properly 

protected and applied proportionately when considering the application. 

 The scheme would not set an undesirable precedent as each application was 

considered on its own merits. 

 Members commented that the Control of Pollution Act 1974 regulated the use of 

speakers and that it was not applicable in many areas of the application as the Act 

related to the noise in streets particular to what times loudspeakers should not be 

used such as from 9pm to 8am and advertising.  

 Some Members felt that a call to prayer would be advertising as it was a loud 

broadcast. People's lives would be impacted most of the year.   

 The officer's recommendation was not meant to repress religious practice.  

 All citizens should be treated as equals, and one religion should not be elevated 

above others in such a diverse community. 

 The mosque had operated successfully for 15 years or more without the need for 

a broadcast. 

 Agreeing to the planning application could set a precedent. 

 Some Members were curious as to what impact the noise omitted would create in 

a community, and for that reason temporary permission could be given. 

 Modern technology such as applications or a radio broadcasting licence could 

provide a solution for a call to prayer to operate. 

 Some Members felt that there had been some controversy when the first mosque 

was built in the City, however, there were now six buildings. It was a case of 

evolution and people got used to it. The same approach could apply for this 

application. 

 The call to prayer was not included in the original application as efforts were 

concentrated on getting a mosque built was the priority. 

 Alternative means for call to prayer such as technology, use of radio broadcast or 

setting reminder times within the paper schedule was felt by some Members not fit 

for purpose. Furthermore, the call to prayer was not an advertisement as it was not 

gaining a benefit from the broadcast. 

 Some Members felt that authorities were operating in a policy vacuum.  

 The call to prayer was about communities coming together, however, there was no 

way of knowing what impact it could cause in an area or how it would divide a 

community. 

 Residential amenity would be affected by a noise that was not currently present if 

the application was approved. It would be unacceptable, to trial a call to prayer on 

a community that had not been 100% in favour of the proposals. 

 Any temporary consent should run to 14-15 months to allow purchase and 

installation of equipment and be subject to Officers conditions where appropriate if 

the application was approved.  

 

A proposal was seconded to go against officer recommendation and approve the 

application. The vote on this motion was defeated (3 for, 8 against). 

 

At this point the committee stopped for a short 10-minute break 

 

7



RESOLVED: 
 

A second proposal was made and seconded to go with the officers recommendations and 

REFUSE the application. On a vote this was (8 for, 3 against) this motion to REFUSE the 

application was passed. 

 

 
  
 REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

 

The proposal is unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material considerations, 

including weighing against relevant policies of the development plan and for the specific 

reasons given below. 

 

At this point, Councillor Casey took over Chairing of the Committee. 

 

37.2 20/01141/FUL - Land To The South Of Buntings Lane Stanground Peterborough 
PE7 3DN 

 The Committee received a report, which sought permission for a photovoltaic solar farm 

with a generating capacity of 2.93MW and a 25-30 year lifespan, including energy storage 

containers (for 3 batteries) and ancillary facilities on approximately 4.98ha of the 12.3ha 

former Stanground landfill site.  

 

The energy generation is equivalent to generating sufficient electricity to power 

approximately 700 homes. The panels, of 'freestanding, weighted' design to ensure non-

penetration of the underlying landfill cap, will be arranged in rows to face south, along an 

east-west axis. The racks will be a maximum of 2.5m above ground floor level, with no 

earthworks required to facilitate construction. Battery storage, inverters and other ancillary 

equipment will be located at the northern end of the site behind a 3.2m acoustic fence set 

back a minimum of approximately 14m from the nearest dwelling, to provide noise 

mitigation. Security fencing and a CCTV system will also be provided.  

 

A 2.0 - 2.2m high livestock fence will be provided to enclose the panels and ancillary 

equipment, with no alterations to existing site boundary fencing. The proposals also 

include ecological surveys and monitoring to inform appropriate mitigation, and a 

comprehensive landscaping scheme.  

 

The construction period is estimated to take around 24 weeks, requiring a total of 116 HGV 

deliveries, with HGV traffic generation peaking at around 2 deliveries per day. Access to 

the site will be from the redundant A605 off slip to the north, with egress provided to the 

A605 Stanham way to the southwest. 

 

The Head of Planning introduced the item and highlighted key information from the report 

and the update report.  

 

  

 Ward Councillor Chris Harper addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 

Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 

8



 There was support for such alternative energy production initiatives. The idea of 

using an old landfill site would seem like a good idea. 

 However, it was important to consider the value residents placed on this land as 

being outweighed because of need and their other justified concerns as not being 

worthy of serious consideration and thus negating any mitigation methods that 

should be seriously considered to offset resultant undesirable effects should 

planning permission be granted. 

 In terms of policy LP17 - advised that permission should not be granted for 

development which would result in an unacceptable loss of public and/or private 

green space but this was exactly what was being proposed albeit it was accepted 

only for the life of the solar farm.   

 In terms of policy LP22 - Green Infrastructure Network advised that development 

must protect existing linear features of the green infrastructure network but this will 

effectively be lost if it was covered in solar panels at the very least for many years.  

 In terms of policy LP28 - Biodiversity and Geological Conservation advised that 

development likely to have an adverse effect would only be permitted where the 

need and benefits outweighed the loss and that habitats and species of principal 

importance should be considered in the context of the duty to promote and protect 

species and habitats.  

 Development which would have an adverse impact would only be permitted where 

the need and benefit clearly outweighed the impact. Plans showed an actual 

increase in biodiversity was promised, however it was questionable as to whether 

it should upset an already established wildlife haven whilst destroying the current 

enjoyment of the open feel of the area for local residents.  

 There was a statement within the report that advised there may be a slight 

perceived loss of green space, but the underlying landscape characteristics and 

features, such as the grassland, open character and topography, would not be 

altered however residents understandably challenged this opinion on the grounds 

of just how can a field full of solar panels possibly be considered as maintaining 

the open character of the field. 

 Views onto and across the open land at the proposal site were considered 

important from both residential and public locations. There was concern as to how 

such impacts were only assessed from first and not deemed necessary from 

second floor windows. The assessment had only been applied to principal 

habitable rooms which was in effect ground floor habitable rooms only and as such, 

there had been no assessment from second floor dwelling windows that looked out 

over the site  

 Reflection and glare were also raised as general impacts of concern and again the 

impact had only been considered for the ground floor windows of nearby 

properties. It was unfair to just dismiss the effect at first floor level to property 

owners and any possible need for mitigation as not worthy of consideration. 

 Local residents were very fond of this piece of land and that was effectively 

abandoned to the wild where wildlife had duly obliged and populated it with an 

array of species such as rabbits, foxes, deer, butterflies, birds and in nearby 

watercourses great crested newts. 

 Residents urged the committee to listen to the concerns before making any final 

decision.  

 

 

9



 At this point Councillor Harper left the Committee 

 

Mr Tom Woof, the agent addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 

Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 

 There was support for the extensive report provided to members from the planning 
case officer. The application had carefully gone through all the necessary planning 
considerations before being submitted. 

 Concerns raised by local residents had been addressed by the applicant and had 
been highlighted in the report. However, some of the concerns raised were not 
material to the planning application. 

 All statutory consultees had the opportunity to comment and none had raised any 
objections to the scheme as outlined. In addition the applicant had undertaken 
significant consultation with local residents, this included 149 visits by residents to 
the webpage and 110 responses to the survey. There was 91% support for 
Cambridgeshire’s green infrastructure plans. 

 Renewable energy systems were a key part of national and international drives to 
find more sustainable energy sources and tackle the climate emergency. 

 The plan would help the Council towards achieving its net zero carbon footprint by 
2030.  

 Planning policies were supportive of proposals that sought to tackle the climate 
emergency and this was the case of the plan in front of members. 

 Expert reports had been submitted to help address any concerns raised by 
residents or other consultees. 

 In relation to planning policy LP17 this only referred to public open space or public 
amenity space and not as suggested to private space. 

 In relation to LP 22 and LP 28 which sought the enhancement and protection of 
the local area there were a number of improvements that the scheme would make 
to the local area that outweighed the provisions of protection in the policies. 

 Well managed solar farms had shown an enhancement of local wildlife and the 
protection of certain species. The Universities of Lancaster and York had drawn on 
over 700 pieces of evidence to show that when real care was taken the farms could 
deliver tremendous benefits to wildlife, pollinators and sustainable food production. 

 Significant care had been taken during the design phase of the application to 
ensure the protection of rabbits, foxes, butterflies and other wildlife. 

 There was to be extensive woodland planting on the eastern boundary that would 
protect the views of residents. In addition this was to provide further habitation for 
wildlife in the area. 

 This application was necessary to decarbonise and to tackle the climate 
emergency that the Council faced. 

 It was confirmed that 91% of residents that responded to the survey online were in 
support of the green infrastructure proposals as a whole, which included the 
application in question but also covered a number of other projects. 

 Overall, the responses to the proposal were in general support of the application 
and the installation of solar panels on the site. 

 Members were informed that 85% of responses nationally were in favour of solar 
farms such as the one being proposed. 

 There was a variable gap that was to be provided between each row of solar 
panels, between 4m to 8m. It could be said that more than 50% of the site would 
not have any development on it. In terms of the panels the land itself was species 
rich, which extended underneath the panels, providing slightly different habitats to 
the areas that lay between the panels. 

 There was an obligation to undertake an assessment on the visual impacts of the 
development on local residents. The guidance made provision that the impact on 
visual aspects did not need to be taken into account for this sort of development. 

10



For landscaping purposes the application took into account the public views in 
relation to this. It was preferable that residents adjacent to the development 
maintained their long views and they could see across the horizon to long distance 
views. Improved planting was proposed to help hide the view of some of the panels. 

 Surveys were carried out with regards to protected species, including great crested 
newts. The results of the survey showed that the great crested newts would use 
the proposed site for foraging in the future. The fence had been specifically 
designed to allow animals to access the site. No humans would be able to access 
the site unless for maintenance.  

 The Peterborough City Council biodiversity strategy had been fully taken into 
account when assessing the application. 

 In terms of maintaining the grass levels there was a plan in place to ensure the 
grass was cut on a twice-yearly basis. 

 There were a number of layers of fencing on the site. There shouldn’t be any 
members of public walking their dogs adjacent to the site and within the palisade 
fencing. It was unlikely that a dog would be able to access the site. There would 
also be an emergency number on site if a dog did manage to get onto the site. 

 
 The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 

summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 The land in question was mainly deemed as pony paddock, it did not constitute 
land that was rich in biodiversity. There was additional planting as part of the 
scheme and was to be native planting and the formation of species rich grassland. 

 The Highways team had gone through extensive discussions with the applicant in 
terms of access to and from the site. There was confidence that the visibility from 
the access point could be achieved. Improvement works were also planned for the 
access to the site to improve visibility and safety.  

 The work carried out by the landscape institute and the empirical data submitted 
by universities showed that the area couldn’t be further development as it was an 
old refuge tip. If this site was not used, then where else could the solar panels be 
placed and it was difficult to answer this question. Residents did not need to worry 
about any future housing development on the site and the increased biodiversity 
was a positive. 

 This was not a Peterborough City Council application but a Cambridgeshire County 
application. It was important to take note of what residents of the area had said 
and they were not happy with losing some of their views. In addition there were 
concerns over developing on a green wedge site. 

 The site was currently a pony field and it was not possible to put any other form of 
development on the site. This was therefore a benefit to tackling the Council’s 
climate emergency. 

 The solar panels themselves were fairly low key and would not be too overbearing 
on the site. 

 It was positive that wildlife was still be able to access the site and that there would 
be an increase in more wildlife on the site. 

 From a biodiversity stand this application had been well presented and it was clear 
to see that this issue had been thought through. 

 The impact on the residential area was relatively small in terms of the size of the 
site and the development proposed. 

 
 RESOLVED:  

 
The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to GRANT the application. The 
Committee RESOLVED (9 for, 1 abstain) to GRANT the planning permission subject to 
relevant conditions delegated to officers.  

11



 
 REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

 

The NPPF states that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development - in 

terms of decision taking this means approving development proposals that accord with 

the development plan without delay.  

 

The application has been considered in light of the Peterborough Local Plan, the NPPF 

and accompanying Planning Practice Guidance. The proposal is not considered to 

adversely impact upon the function of the Green Wedge within which it is sited, and makes 

a positive contribution to infrastructure provision through the generation of 2.25MW of 

renewable energy; the proposal complies with policies LP14, LP26 and LP31 of the Local 

Plan.  

 

The planning application was accompanied by a comprehensive set of detailed reports 

including a Design and Access Report, Landscape and Visual Impact, a Glint and Glare 

Study, Ecological surveys and mitigation strategies, a Noise Impact Assessment, a Traffic 

Management Plan, a Flood Risk Assessment, a GeoEnvironmental Appraisal, and a 

Statement of Community Involvement.  

 

Detailed topic areas have been assessed and considered With particular regard to safety 

and technical issues, ecology, landscape and visual impact, noise, conservation, traffic 

and transport (including rights of way) and the water environment; design, safety and 

amenity impacts have been considered and the proposal is in accordance with policies 

LP16, LP17 and LP33 of the Local Plan; the proposal can be accommodated onto the 

existing open space without significant detrimental impact and will ensure the safety of 

protected species and enhance the biodiversity value of the area in accordance with 

polices LP23 and LP28; the character of the landscape and the visual impact of the 

proposals have been considered and the proposal accords with policies LP27 and LP17; 

noise impacts on nearby residential dwellings has been considered and the proposal is in 

compliance with policy LP17; consideration has been given to the transport (including 

rights of way) implications of the development, and the proposal is in accordance with 

policy LP13; and consideration has been given to impacts on the water environment and 

the proposal is in accordance with policy LP32.  

 

Comments of consultees and representations have been taken into account and suitable 

conditions attached to address any issues raised and in all other respects the proposals 

is acceptable. As such, there is no reason not to approve the application in line with 

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act. 

 

 
37.3 20/01543/HHFUL - 68 High Street Fletton Peterborough PE2 8DR 

 
 The Committee received a report, which sought permission for the construction of a single 

storey rear extension. The existing rear elevation of the property is presently staggered, 

with a part-two and part-single storey rear wing which is typical of this period of property. 

The proposal would project 3.3 metres beyond the rear-most elevation of the existing 

dwelling, with a maximum depth of 10 metres. It would have a maximum width of 4.3 

metres, matching the width of the front elevation. The proposal would, in effect, infill to the 

side of the existing rear wing and project further beyond, removing the staggered rear 

12



elevation at ground floor level. The extension would be of a flat roof design, and the eaves 

height would measure 3 metres from ground level. It should be noted that it is proposed 

for the property to change use from a single residential dwelling (Class C3) to a small-

scale house in multiple occupation (HMO) for up to 6 persons (Class C4), and for the loft 

space to be converted to habitable accommodation through the construction of a rear 

dormer window and front rooflights. Both of these elements however do not form part of 

the current planning application, and are to be undertaken in accordance with Part 3 Class 

L and Part 1 Class B of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended), respectively. 

 

The Head of Planning introduced the item and highlighted key information from the report 

and the update report. The rear extension had no negative impact on the amenity of the 

neighbouring properties. The impact on parking could not be taken into consideration as 

the application for a HMO for up to 6 people did not require planning permission in itself. 

 

 Ward Councillor Chris Harper addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 
 

 Objections raised against the application related to the proposed change of use of 

the property to a 6 person HMO and that this was in accordance with applicable 

Town and Country Planning Act and therefore did not require planning permission 

and further, because this application is for a building extension only, the objections 

raised are not a matter that can be considered. 

 As ward councillor for this part of Fletton and a city councillor, it was the ward 

councillor’s duty to bring to the attention of this committee and more widely the city 

council, the fact that there was an ever increasing problem of the uncontrolled 

expansion of HMO's due to this fall-back position permitted by the act, not just in 

Fletton but across the city.    

 Residents that have submitted their objections were not against HMO's. They were 

a useful extension to the housing offer and where consideration to the wider 

community was given, particularly with regards to concerns over parking, litter, 

ASB, noise and litter, there was no justified reason to object to them. 

 According to the HMO register there were currently 5 HMOs with 5 or more persons 

in the Fletton area with a further 15 HMOs waiting to be inspected and passported 

from a Selective Licence to a Mandatory HMO Licence, so in total there were 

currently 20 HMO's of 5 or more persons. It would be reasonable therefore to 

suggest that this was likely to lead to a large amount of additional vehicles that 

needed somewhere to park but under the act, the council was currently powerless 

to control it.  

 Fletton High Street and the side streets that lead off it were already at saturation 

point particularly in the evenings and weekends and posed a real risk to motorists, 

cyclists and pedestrians. The chicane effect being caused by the sheer number of 

vehicles parking along its length made it very difficult to navigate and for 

pedestrians to cross the road, even more so as this was a main bus route, any 

further increase in vehicle parking would only compound an already serious 

problem. The applicant has unwittingly announced the fact that this is a distinct 

possibility.  

 Members attention was drawn to the fact that in both the plans and the photographs 

submitted, the rooms were shown to have double beds. This confirmed a fear and 

13



real possibility that there was a potential for up to 12 people to reside at this 

address.  

 A new 4 person HMO had in the last couple of weeks been registered and within 

days of it being so, there were reported problems with parking and residents being 

advised by the councils PES office to contact their councillor because there was 

nothing they could do regarding the arrival of these additional cars in an already 

saturated road in the Fletton area. 

 Bin contamination was a regular problem with HMO's in the area despite the efforts 

of landlords, the bins overflowed and this led to an increase in litter on the streets. 

It was hoped the landlord would ensure the tenants were advised of their 

responsibility to the community and any breach was acted upon quickly. 

 Although it was difficult to refuse as there was no planning reason to object to the 

building extension itself it was hoped members of the committee understood the 

concerns of the local residents regarding the increase in the number of vehicles 

and that the Council needed to look at how to control the number of HMO’s across 

the city.  

 Residents in the local area had been spoken to with regards to the issue of HMO’s 

and the people living in them, however it was disappointing to hear officers from 

the public enforcement service that it was up to residents to keep an eye on the 

properties. 

 There was the potential for more than six people to be living in the property and 

this was shown in the drawings provided by the applicant. 

 

 At this point Councillor Harper left the Committee 
 
Mr Dominic Adamczyk, on behalf of the applicant addressed the Committee and 
responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 
 

 The sole purpose of the application in front of Committee was for the granting of 
the rear extension of 3.3m as outlined in the plans. There were a few areas of 
concern that needed to be addressed. 

 In terms of transport the report outlined that the application itself did not have any 
effect on parking demand. 

 It was noted that the extension did not cause any harm to the character of the local 
area. 

 Finally the proposal did not cause any harm to the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 The company prided themselves in openness and transparency in the way they 
worked and had been honest from the outset that the property was to be used as 
a HMO for a maximum of six people. 

 The developments created were of high quality and large spacious accommodation 
was created wherever possible. 

 Due to the current pandemic it was important for landlords to create the most 
spacious rooms and space as was possible. This helped reduce anxiety and aided 
the prevention of poor mental health. 

 All the regulations set out for HMO’s were to be adhered to. The licence for the 
property was for a maximum of six people living in the property. 

 The extension would provide all the rooms with their own separate and private 
bathroom. Furthermore the extension allowed for a larger communal living area 
and kitchen. 

 The beds were ¾ double bed sizes therefore providing more comfort to the 
residents. The standard of the application was to provide professional people with 
high quality living accommodation. 

14



 It was believed that the application altered the perception of what a HMO was and 
the benefits it could provide the local area. 

 The lifestyle of those in an HMO were that of a city based life and it was anticipated 
that tenants were more likely to use public transport instead of owning their own 
vehicle. Secure bike storage was also provided in the garden. The parking spaces 
required for a six person HMO was the same as a family home of three to four 
adults. 

 The managing agent provided clear guidance that was put up in the house stating 
that there was only one person allowed per room. Cleaners went round twice a 
week and would report anything that was noy being adhered to back to the 
managing agent. The licence would only allow six people and if that went over by 
one then the company would be in breach of this licence and would be liable to 
face penalties. 

 In terms of parking the average number of cars for a similar HMO was around four 
to five cars in suburbs and in the city centre this average was around two vehicles 
per HMO. 

 Although there was potential for those on higher incomes to have their own car 
there were still instances where senior managers at local distribution centres would 
stay in a HMO and walk or cycle to work. 

 If the management of HMO’s was not done properly there was a risk that the 
number of people living in a HMO would exceed the permitted number, however 
the managing agent for this property was used to running HMO’s and would 
enforce the six person maximum. 

 
 The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 

summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 From a planning point of view the Council could take enforcement action if the 
number of people living in the HMO exceeded six. There would need to be an 
investigation as to whether the increase in people had a detrimental impact on the 
property and neighbouring area. 

 As a city there was a need for good quality housing and the application in front of 
committee needed to be applauded in terms of looking to give residents and people 
the opportunity to live in and around the city. 

 The rooms were of good size and had their own bathrooms, this separated them 
out from other HMO’s in the city which were not of a good standard. 

 In terms of the application for the rear extension there did not seem to be any 
planning grounds in rejecting the proposal. 

 
 RESOLVED:  

 
The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to GRANT the application. The 
Committee RESOLVED (8 for, 2 against) to GRANT the application subject to relevant 
conditions 
 

 REASON FOR THE DECISION: 
 

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having 

been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against 

relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:  

 

- The proposal would not unacceptably impact upon the character and appearance of the 

site and the surrounding area, in accordance with Policy LP16 of the Peterborough Local 

Plan (2019); and  

15



- Neighbours adjacent to the application site would retain an acceptable standard of 

amenity, in accordance with Policy LP17 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

 

 
 

CHAIRMAN 
1:30 – 5.09PM 

16



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

MEETING 

HELD AT 1:30PM, ON 
TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021 

VIA ZOOM VIRTUAL CONFERENCE 
 

Committee Members Present: Harper (Chairman), Casey (Vice Chairman), Bond, Brown, Hiller, 
Hogg, Amjad Iqbal, Hussain, Jones, Rush and Warren.   

 
Officers Present: Sylvia Bland, Group Lead Development Management Place and 

Economy 
Stephen Turnbull, Planning Solicitor 
Nick Greaves, Principal Engineer 
Daniel Kalley, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
38. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 There were no apologies for absence received.  

 
39.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest received. 

 
40. MEMBERS’ DECLARATION OF INTENTION TO MAKE REPRESENTATIONS AS 

WARD COUNCILLOR 
 

 There were no declarations of interest received to address the committee as a Ward 
Councillor.  
 

41. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 15 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2020 were agreed as a true and 
accurate record. 
 

42. PLANNING AND ENFORCEMENT MATTERS 
 

42.1 20/00554/OUT - The Solstice Northminster Peterborough PE1 1YN 
 

 The Committee received a report, which sought outline planning permission for the 
demolition of existing nightclub and erection of a seven storey and three storey block 
comprising 56 apartments, ground floor Class E(a) retail or E(b) restaurant units, 
accommodation for up to 77 students and associated car parking. Layout (insofar as the 
site layout but not internal layout), access and scale are proposed in detail, with all other 
matters (appearance and landscaping) reserved.  
 
In support of the application, plans had been submitted which illustrate the scale and site 
layout of development, as well as forming a vehicle access from Brook Street serving an 
underground car park providing 36x car and 90x cycle parking spaces. The above ground 

17

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s43394/Item%205.1%20Location%20Plan%20The%20Soltice.pdf


works would comprise an L-shaped building with a maximum footprint of 69m x 32m. The 
taller seven storey element would have a maximum footprint of 32m x 27m and stand at 
no more than 23.8m in height. The lower, three storey element would stand at no more 
than 8.7m in height and would have a footprint of 52m x 28m.  
 
Whilst appearance and the internal layout of the development are to be reserved for later 
consideration, the ground floor would be occupied by Class E (a) & E (b) retail and 
restaurant uses addressing Northminster and the corner with Brook Street. The residential 
and student accommodation would be situated on the upper floors. Indicative floor plans 
have accompanied the application, but these have only been submitted to demonstrate 
that the number of residential/student units can be acceptably accommodated. 

 
The Group Lead for Development Management introduced the item and highlighted key 

information from the report and update report. Members were directed to the update report 

which contained an updated recommendation which stated: 

 

The Executive Director of Place and Economy recommends that Outline Planning 

Permission is GRANTED subject to the signing a Section 106 legal agreement, the 

conditions set out in the Committee Report (and updated within the Briefing Update 

Report) and subject to receipt of no new material considerations having been raised by 

objectors following further consultation on the revised description of development. 

 

Members of the Committee were also informed of further representations from the 

Peterborough Civic Society and Historic England which were also contained within the 

update report. 

 
 

 Councillor Fitzgerald addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included: 

 As Deputy Leader of the Council the regeneration of the area was important and 

was supportive of the proposal that was in front of Committee. 

 The regeneration of Northminister which was opposite the proposal was one of the 

Council’s corporate priorities and this development would fit well with achieving 

that aim. 

 The application that was now being proposed was an improvement on that which 

was presented to the Committee back in 2005, which at that time, had full support 

of the Committee. 

 Although the views of the Cathedral would be reduced the best views of the 

Cathedral were those right outside the Cathedral and not from a distance. It was 

not practicable to protect 360-degree views across a modern urban city. 

 It was important to keep a consistency in decision making, as this may impact on 

future regeneration proposals for the city which were much needed. 

 The Cathedral was fully accessible for people with disabilities who wished to go 

and view the Cathedral and support this cause. 

 There was already a limited view of the Cathedral from the application site, having 

a view from the accommodation was a bonus and not the reason for occupying the 

flats. 

 The planning officers had weighed up and given consideration to views from the 

Peterborough Civic Society and Historic England and on balance the proposal 

outweighed those concerns. 

 

 

18



 Mr Richard Astle and Mr Simon Machen, on behalf of the Applicant addressed the 

Committee and responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points 

highlighted included: 

 

 The proposal in front of members was popular, although there had been a few 

objections, in the whole these were well supported by the local community and by 

officers within the Council. 

 The area around Northminster was in desperate need of updating and this proposal 

was the start of that process. The site in question was in desperate need of 

upgrading. 

 The accommodation would bring people back into the city centre and create an 

additional buzz within the local economy. 

 During the consultation phase there was support for the scheme from a number of 

stakeholders, with recognition that investment was needed in this part of the city. 

This application would also provide affordable and student accommodation and 

would be within walking distance of the proposed university. 

 This was a better scheme than the one that was granted back in 2007. The impact 

of the proposal was less harmful than the one originally granted in 2007. 

 The developer was known to many local people and they had the best interests of 

the city in mind. 

 It was hoped that work on site could start within the next 12 months and that the 

project could be completed in a short time frame. 

 This project would bring a significant amount of investment into the city centre and 

the benefits of the application outweighed the concerns that had been raised. 

 The applicants had sought to avoid long legal debates over whether work had 

started based on the previous application granted in 2007. It was confirmed that 

the buildings on the site were demolished and the pylons inserted for the start of 

the original proposals, however some of the pre-commencement conditions did not 

go to the heart of the application. Having taken legal advice the applicant was 

satisfied that this did not start commencement of the original application. 

 The key material planning consideration that needed to be taken into account was 

that the original application was approved which had already taken account of the 

views and the benefits outweigh these considerations. 

 Much of the previous residential development around Peterborough in the past was 

around the peripherals of the city centre. Using sites like this for residential settings 

was a benefit as it created a more sustainable environment for the city centre itself. 

Having more quality residential blocks such as the proposal allowed for more 

natural surveillance and would bring potentially high crime levels down. This 

application was also supported by the Police for that reason. 

 There was too much empty floor space for retail in the city, it was hoped 

developments such as these would increase the desire of businesses to open up 

in the city centre. 

 It was still too early to know what sort of retail and business would occupy the 

ground floor unit. The aim was to have a café or restaurant take up the unit if it 

proved to be commercially viable.  

 

 The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 
 

19



 The difference between the application in front of members and the one being 

proposed for the University was that the application in front of members already 

had a previous permission and this was not the case for the University site. The 

committee needed to have regard to the previous permission when making a 

decision. 

 The planning officers had given consideration to the 28 proposed parking bays and 

8 visitor bays and this was deemed adequate. This was a city centre location and 

the local plan stated that extra cars in the city centre were to be discouraged. It 

was within walking distance of the bus station and train station. 

 When reserved matters applications is submitted at a later date, the design and 

appearance of the building would be considerations that could then be taken into 

account. With regards to commercial use the applicants had sought to put these 

units in the area that would generate the most footfall. 

 Members were advised that the commercial aspect was not a planning 

consideration, but the land usage was. It was common in a city centre location to 

see some form of commercial unit on the ground floor of a block of flats. Council 

policy encouraged mixed use buildings. 

 There was flexibility in the application for the developer to look at the commercial 

unit and they could look at the design at a later date, in consultation with potential 

businesses. 

 The main issue was the view of the Cathedral. The heritage officer had commented 

that the views were no worse than those that were proposed in the original 

application in 2007. 

 The application did not change much in terms of the view of the Cathedral. The 

application was pivotal for the success of the new University and for the continued 

development of the Northminster area. The applicant had considerable expertise 

in these applications. 

 The Northminster area was run down and was in desperate need if regeneration. 

This application was the start of that process. 

 

RESOLVED: 
 

A proposal was made and seconded to go with the officer's recommendations that Outline 

Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the signing a Section 106 legal agreement, 

the conditions set out in the Committee Report (and updated within the Briefing Update 

Report) and subject to receipt of no new material considerations having been raised by 

objectors following further consultation on the revised description of development. On a 

vote this was (Unanimous) to GRANT the application. 

 

 
  
 REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

 

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having 

been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against 

relevant policies of the development plan and specifically: 

 

- The application site is situated within the City Core, would provide a mix of residential, 

student accommodation, retail and restaurant uses as well as affordable housing. As such 

the proposed development would introduce a mix of residential development into the City 

20



Core, and go towards enhancing the vitality and viability of the City Centre. The principle 

of residential development would accord with Policies LP2, LP3, LP4, LP6, LP8, LP15 and 

LP47 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and Paragraph 85 of the NPPF (2019);  

- The proposed scale and layout of development would not harm the significance of the 

Grade I listed Cathedral building or the City or Park Conservation Areas above and 

beyond development which has previously been granted permission on the site, it would 

not have a harmful impact on buried archaeology and would not harm the character or 

appearance of the immediate area. As such, the proposal would accord with Policies LP16 

and LP19 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and Paragraph 196 of the NPPF (2019); 

- The proposed scale and layout of development would not have an unacceptable harmful 

impact to neighbouring amenity, and would provide satisfactory amenity for future 

occupiers, in accordance with Policy LP17 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and 

Paragraph 180 of the NPPF (2019);  

- There are no Highway safety concerns and parking can be accommodated on site, in 

accordance with Policy LP13 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019); 

- The development would make provision for surface water drainage and uncovering 

unsuspected contamination, and would accord with Policies LP32 and LP33 of the 

Peterborough Local Plan, 36 and Paragraphs 178-180 of the NPPF (2019); and  

- The development would secure 17x affordable dwellings, a fall back in the event that the 

student accommodation becomes available on the open market, and off-site public open 

space enhancements towards Stanley Recreation ground and Burton Street Allotments, 

and would therefore accord with Policies LP8 and LP21 of the Peterborough Local Plan 

(2019). 

 

42.2 20/01642/HHFUL - 24 Melford Close Longthorpe Peterborough PE3 9NG 
 

 The Committee received a report, which sought permission for a single storey front and 

rear extension, and a two storey side extension. The plans originally submitted with this 

application, proposed a two storey front extension. However, amended plans have been 

received during the course of the application changing the front extension from a 2 storey 

to a single storey extension.  

 

The proposed single storey front extension would provide the property with a new entrance 

hall. It would have a pitched roof design and would extend approximately 3m beyond the 

property frontage elevation at its furthest point, and 1.60 metres beyond the existing 

garage and lobby/porch. It would measure approximately 4.5m in width, and have a 

maximum height of 3.45 metres and 2.4m to eaves height. A canopy structure would 

extend from the side of the new extension in front of the lounge window to the side of the 

property. The 2 storey side extension would be set back slightly from the property frontage 

and set down slightly in height from the main ridgeline.  

 

At ground floor level it would accommodate a garage and kitchen, and at first floor an en-

suite bedroom. The single storey rear extension proposed would have a flat roof design 

with 3 roof lanterns and would extend beyond the rear elevation by 3 metres. This 

extension would cover the whole width of the rear of the property including the proposed 

side extension and would have an overall height of approximately 2.85 metres, with the 

roof lanterns projecting approximately 0.3 metres above this.  

 

This extension would accommodate the extended kitchen, family and dining rooms. The 

extensions would be all be finished in materials that match those on the existing dwelling 

21

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s43396/Item%205.2%20Location%20Plan%2024%20Melford%20Close.pdf


 

The Group Lead for Development Management introduced the item and highlighted key 

information from the report and the update report.  

  

 The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 This application was only being presented to committee as the applicant was a relative of 
a Councillor. 

 This was a good application and was sympathetic to the street scene. The extension 
would also enhance the house itself. 

 
 RESOLVED:  

 
The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to GRANT the application. The 
Committee RESOLVED (Unanimous) to GRANT the planning permission subject to 
relevant conditions delegated to officers particularly in relation to the treatment of the tree.  
 

 REASON FOR THE DECISION: 
 

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having 

been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against 

relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:  

- The proposed extensions would not acceptably impact upon the character and 

appearance of the site or the surrounding streetscene, in accordance with Policies LP16 

and LP29 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

- Neighbours surrounding the application site would retain an acceptable standard of 

amenity, in accordance with Policy LP17 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

- There would be an acceptable provision of on-site parking spaces to serve the dwelling, 

in accordance with Policy LP13 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
1:30 – 3.08PM 

22



The Site

Print Date: 09/03/2021

Planning Committee Location Plan-19/00347/FUL- Ferry Meadows Country Park, Ham Lane, Orton Waterville

±© OS Crown Copyright Licence 100024236
1:5,000

0 40 80 120 16020
Meters

Scale

23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

24



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 1 

Planning and EP Committee – 23rd March 2021 
 
Application Ref: 19/00347/FUL  
 
Proposal: Erection of Lakeside Activity Centre, which comprises an indoor climbing 

centre with climbing walls housed in a tower up to 34.25m high, indoor 
children's play area (D2), ancillary cafe (A3) and associated infrastructure, 
landscaping and car park 

 
Site: Ferry Meadows Country Park, Ham Lane, Orton Waterville, Peterborough 
Applicant: Nene Park Trust 
Agent: Ms Lynette Swinburne 
 Savills (UK) Ltd 
Referred by:   Head of Development and Construction 
Reason:  The application is of wider public interest 
 
Site visit: 19.03.2019 
 
Case officer: Mrs J MacLennan 
Telephone No. 01733 4501733 454438 
E-Mail: janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and Surroundings 
 
The application site is located within the Ferry Meadows Country Park which is approximately 200 
ha in size. Ferry Meadows Country Park is situated at the heart of Nene Park; an area around 1,000 
ha which runs west-east across the district and is identified as an area of high amenity, landscape, 
ecological and heritage value.  It is managed by Nene Park Trust (NTP). 
 
Ferry Meadows lies within a loop of the River Nene on the southwest edge of the city and is made 
up of surrounding lakes which were the former Ferry Meadow gravel pits, which were used as borrow 
pits for the roads constructed around Peterborough and have since been flooded to form three lakes: 
Gunwade, Lynch and Overton.  The Park is used for activities such as walking, picnics and 
barbecues, coarse  fishing  and  bird  watching.  Ferry Meadows also includes a camping site and 
year-round Caravan Club site.  It is a popular destination for thousands of visitors throughout the 
year.   
 
The application site is approximately of 2.3 hectares and lies adjacent to Gunwade Lake to the north-
west of the Park and next to the Lakeside Kitchen & Bar/Nene, Outdoor  Watersports  and Activities 
Centre and the Rutland cycle hire facility.  The northern part of the site comprises a tarmacked car 
park which currently serves the Lakeside Centre/Watersports Centre.  The car park is currently 
surrounded by soft landscaping, with trees to three sides, and it is accessed via a private road leading 
from Ham Lane.   A landscaped ridge lies to the north of the site, separating it from the Gunwade 
Lake. To the north east is a children's play area.  There is an existing toilet block to the south of the 
car park area.   
 
The southern part of the site includes an area of grassland/meadow (Oak Meadow) which is part of 
the Lynch Farm Complex Scheduled Monument.  There is an existing overspill car park to the south 
of the site. 
 
There are also a number of heritage assets surrounding the site including the standing stones ‘Robin 
Hood’ and ‘Little John’ (Grade II listed), Ferry Bridge (Grade II*) both of which are also Scheduled 

25



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 2 

Monuments, Milton Hall Park Registered Park and Garden (Grade II*).  
 
The site itself is subject to a non-statutory designation as Nene Park Local Wildlife Site.  Castor 
Flood Meadows SSSI is approximately 2km from the site. 
 
Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the erection of an indoor Lakeside Activity Centre, hereafter 
referred to as a LAC, which would incorporate a one-storey activity centre approximately 14m in 
height with a 34.25m high tower to serve an Olympic standard climbing facility.  The proposed 
building would have a footprint of 60m in length by 23m (max) in width.  The building would have a 
total internal floor area of 1412m² (1,052 sqm ground with 360 sqm first floor) comprising 1261m2 
D2 (assembly and leisure) and 151m2 (restaurant/Café) use. 
 
The proposal would include the following: 
 
Internal Lead Climbing:   
- The centre will contain c. 50 lines which is desirable for a National Performance Centre; circa 14 

will form the competition lead wall, with 8m overhang. 
- A 15m Speed Wall with 5 degree gradient and width of 6m. 
 
The Canyon: Intermediate Lead Walls on both sides with viewing area on Level 1 mezzanine 
(utilising the building’s 6m grid). 
 
Bouldering: 
- 11m of Competition Standard Bouldering Wall which would extended to 30m for competitions. 
- Beginner Bouldering behind the Competition Lead Wall.  
- Bouldering Cave on Level 1 Mezzanine: c. 34m of Wall Space. 
 
Clip ‘n’ Climb:  Providing 25-30 pieces of equipment  
 
Children’s Play Area and cafe:  25-30 pieces of equipment could be housed. 
 
Function Rooms, an office, training room, kitchen and changing rooms. 
 
External Lead Climbing at the northern elevation of the building:  ranging from 7-11m with c. 12 lines. 
 
Viewing Area/Additional Cafe Seating:  Located on the mezzanine; enables parents to view their 
children on the Clip ‘n Climb and climbers to view the ‘The Canyon’ Area. 
 
Competition Viewing Area:  An area for spectators to view competitions. 
 
Access to the site would be via an existing access road leading from Ham Lane. 
 
Car Parking:   A new car park is proposed to the south of site directly adjacent to the existing overflow 
car park. It will provide 225 standard car parking bays, 6 mini-bus parking bays and 10 no. accessible 
parking bays. An additional 10 no. accessible parking bays have also been proposed to the rear of 
the proposed climbing centre, within 50 metres of the main entrance. 
 
It is proposed that the climbing centre operate between the hours of 07:00 and 22:00 Monday to 
Friday, 08:30 and 22:00 Saturday, and 09:30 and 22:00 on Sundays or Bank Holidays.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 3 

Consultation 
 
Since the receipt of the initial application and consultation period further information including Flood 
Risk and Drainage, Transport Assessment, Travel Plan, Archaeology Report, External lighting, Tree 
Reports, LVIA and Sequential Test was submitted and re-consultation was undertaken in December 
2019. 
 
Further information including a Bat Activity Survey, Heritage Impact Assessment, Leisure Impact 
Assessment, External Lighting Report and Plan, Ecology Report, Statement on Security and revised 
Sequential Test was submitted in December 2020 and a further re-consultation was undertaken. 
 
 
2 Planning History 
 

Reference Proposal Decision Date 
19/01192/FUL Engineering operations to create a third exit 

lane, to include the installation of barriers, 
kerbs and other ancillary infrastructure, at 
the primary vehicle access to Ferry 
Meadows Country Park 

Permitted  01/11/2019 

20/00670/FUL The replacement and extension of an 
existing play area to include new structures, 
surfaces and furniture, and associated 
alterations to the landscaping 

Permitted  22/07/2020 

19/00001/SCREEN Screening Opinion Comments  13/05/2019 
15/00936/FUL Refurbishment of existing playground, 

including new structures, surfaces and 
furniture 

Permitted  30/09/2015 

13/00506/FUL Construction of new flexible surfaced 
entrance way to an existing overflow car 
park plus new footpath from car park to 
junction with existing footway: re- construct 
existing footway 

Permitted  12/06/2013 

12/00643/FUL Refurbishment and extension of existing 
water sports centre, including demolition of 
existing outbuildings and slip, erection of 
workshop, stores and bin store, extension 
to existing boat yard, creation of vehicular 
access, cycle route, boat slip, staff parking, 
external seating and covered seating area, 
and associated landscaping 

Permitted  09/08/2012 

 
 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
Section 66 - General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions  
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest 
which it possesses. 
 
 
 

27



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 4 

Section 72 - General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions.  
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to pay special attention to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the Conservation Area or its setting. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) 
 
Paragraph 80 - Building a strong, competitive economy  
Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity. 
 
Paragraph 83 - Supporting a Prosperous Rural Economy  
Planning decisions should support sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in 
rural areas through conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings, the 
development and diversification of agricultural and other land based rural businesses, enable 
sustainable rural tourism and leisure which respects of the character of the countryside and the 
retention and development of accessible local services and community facilities. 
 
Paragraphs 86/87 - Sequential Test  
A sequential test should be applied to applications for main town centre uses which are neither in 
an existing centre nor in accordance with an up to date plan. Main town centre uses should be 
located in town centres, then in edge of centre locations; and only if suitable sites are not available 
(or expected to become available) should out of centre locations be considered. When considering 
edge of centre or out of centre locations preference should be given to accessible sites which are 
well connected to the town centre. Flexibility should be demonstrated on issues such as format and 
scale. 
 
Paragraph 89 - Impact Assessment  
An impact assessment should be applied to retail and leisure uses outside of town centres, which 
are not in accordance with an up to date Development Plan. The default threshold is 2500 sqm if 
no local threshold is set. 
 
Paragraph 91/92 - Planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and safe 
places which enable and support healthy lifestyles, especially where this would address identified 
local health and well-being needs.  To provide the social, recreational and cultural facilities and 
services the community needs, planning policies and decisions should take into account and support 
the delivery of local strategies to improve health, social and cultural well-being for all sections of the 
community. 
 
Paragraph 102 – Sustainable Transport 
Opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public transport use are identified and pursued. 
 
Paragraph 108 - Transport Impacts  
Any significant impacts from development on the transport network (capacity and congestion) or on 
highway safety should be cost effectively mitigated to an acceptable degree. Development should 
only be prevented or refused on highway safety grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact 
on highway safety or the residual cumulative impact on the road network would be severe. 
 
Paragraph 127 – Achieving well-designed places 
Decisions should ensure that developments will function well and add to the overall quality of the 
area; are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective 
landscaping; are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or 
change; establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, 
building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work and 
visit; optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix 
of development (including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport 
networks; and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and 

28



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 5 

disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and 
resilience. 
 
Paragraph 131 – Design 
Great weight should be given to outstanding or innovative designs which promote high levels of 
sustainability, or help raise the standard of design more generally in an area, so long as they fit in 
with the overall form and layout of their surroundings. 
 
Paragraph 155 - Flood Risk  
Inappropriate development in areas at risk from flooding should be avoided by directing 
development away from areas at highest risk. Where development is necessary in such areas the 
development should be made safe for its lifetime without increasing the risk of flooding elsewhere. 
Development should be subject to a sequential test and if appropriate an exceptions test. 
 
Paragraph 175 - Biodiversity Enhancement  
Development whose primary objective is to conserve or enhance biodiversity should be supported. 
Opportunities to incorporate biodiversity in and around developments should be encouraged. 
 
Section 16 - Impact on Designated Heritage Assets  
In summary Paragraphs 189-202 indicate that Local Planning Authorities should take account of 
the desirability of sustaining and enhance the significance of heritage assets and putting them to 
viable uses consistent with their conservation, the positive contribution that conservation of 
heritage assets can make to sustainable communities including their economic viability and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness. When considering the impact of development great weight should be given to the 
assets conservation. This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial 
harm, total loss or less then substantial harm to its significance. Any harm to or loss of the 
significance of a designated heritage asset (which can include non-designated heritage assets of 
archaeological interest) either from is alteration or destruction, or from development within its 
setting, should be “exceptional”, (or “wholly exceptional”, in certain cases, including those involving 
scheduled monuments, grade I and grade II* listed buildings, or grade I and grade II* registered 
parks and gardens) require clear and convincing justification. Where a proposed development will 
lead to substantial harm to the designated heritage assets permission should be refused unless it 
can be demonstrated that substantial harm or total loss is necessary to achieve substantial public 
benefits that outweigh that harm. Where harm is less than substantial this harm should be weighed 
against the public benefits including securing an optimum use of the asset. 
 
Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (2019) 
 
 
LP07 - Health and Wellbeing  
Development should promote, support and enhance the health and wellbeing of the community. 
Proposals for new health facilities should relate well to public transport services, walking/cycling 
routes and be accessible to all sectors of the community. 
 
LP11 - Development in the Countryside  
Part E: The Rural Economy- Development involving the expansion or conversion of an existing 
employment use/building or use for tourism/leisure will be supported provided it is an appropriate 
scale, would not adversely affect the local community/services and would not cause harm to the 
character of the area and would be accessible. 
 
LP12 - Retail and Other Town Centre Uses  
Development should accord with the Retail Strategy which seeks to promote the City Centre and 
where appropriate district and local centres. Retail development will be supported within the 
primary shopping area. Non retail uses in the primary shopping area will only be supported where 
the vitality and viability of the centre is not harmed. Only retail proposals within a designated 
centre, of an appropriate scale, will be supported. A sequential approach will be applied to retail 

29



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 6 

and leisure development outside of designated centres. 
 
The loss of village shops will only be accepted subject to certain conditions being met. New shops 
or extensions will be supported in connection with planned growth and where it would create a 
more sustainable community subject to amenity and environmental considerations provided it is of 
an appropriate scale. 
 
LP13 - Transport  
LP13a) New development should ensure that appropriate provision is made for the transport needs 
that it will create including reducing the need to travel by car, prioritisation of bus use, improved 
walking and cycling routes and facilities.  
 
LP13b) The Transport Implications of Development- Permission will only be granted where 
appropriate provision has been made for safe access for all user groups and subject to appropriate 
mitigation. 
 
LP13c) Parking Standards- permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all 
modes of transport is made in accordance with standards. 
 
LP13d) City Centre- All proposal must demonstrate that careful consideration has been given to 
prioritising pedestrian access, to improving access for those with mobility issues, to encouraging 
cyclists and to reducing the need for vehicles to access the area. 
 
LP16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Development proposals would contribute positively to the character and distinctiveness of the area. 
They should make effective and efficient use of land and buildings, be durable and flexible, use 
appropriate high quality materials, maximise pedestrian permeability and legibility, improve the 
public realm, address vulnerability to crime, and be accessible to all. 
 
LP17 - Amenity Provision  
LP17a) Part A Amenity of Existing Occupiers- Permission will not be granted for development 
which would result in an unacceptable loss of privacy, public and/or private green space or natural 
daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to 
minimise opportunities for crime and disorder. 
 
LP17b) Part B Amenity of Future Occupiers- Proposals for new residential development should be 
designed and located to ensure that they provide for the needs of the future residents. 
 
LP19 - The Historic Environment  
Development should protect, conserve and enhance where appropriate the local character and 
distinctiveness of the area particularly in areas of high heritage value.  
 
Unless it is explicitly demonstrated that a proposal meets the tests of the NPPF permission will 
only be granted for development affecting a designated heritage asset where the impact would not 
lead to substantial loss or harm. Where a proposal would result in less than substantial harm this 
harm will be weighed against the public benefit. 
 
Proposals which fail to preserve or enhance the setting of a designated heritage asset will not be 
supported. 
 
LP23 - Local Green Space, Protected Green Space and Existing Open Space  
Local Green Space will be protected in line with the NPPF. Development will only be permitted if in 
addition to the requirements of the NPPF there would be no significant detrimental impact on the 
character and appearance of the surrounding areas, ecology and heritage assets. 
 
LP24 - Nene Valley  
Within the Nene Valley area the council will support development that will safeguard and enhance 

30



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 7 

recreation and/or bring landscape, nature conservation, heritage, cultural or amenity benefits. The 
proposal would need to be appropriate in terms of use, scale and character. Development which 
would increase flood risk or compromise the performance of flood defences will not be permitted. 
 
LP27 - Landscape Character  
New development in and adjoining the countryside should be located and designed in a way that is 
sensitive to its landscaping setting, retaining and enhancing the landscape character. 
 
LP28 - Biodiversity and Geological Conservation  
Part 1: Designated Site  
International Sites- The highest level of protection will be afforded to these sites. Proposals which 
would have an adverse impact on the integrity of such areas and which cannot be avoided or 
adequately mitigated will only be permitted in exceptional circumstances where there are no 
suitable alternatives, over riding public interest and subject to appropriate compensation.  
National Sites- Proposals within or outside a SSSI likely to have an adverse effect will not normally 
be permitted unless the benefits outweigh the adverse impacts. 
 
Local Sites- Development likely to have an adverse effect will only be permitted where the need 
and benefits outweigh the loss. 
Habitats and Species of Principal Importance- Development proposals will be considered in the 
context of the duty to promote and protect species and habitats. Development which would have 
an adverse impact will only be permitted where the need and benefit clearly outweigh the impact. 
Appropriate mitigation or compensation will be required. 
 
Part 2: Habitats and Geodiversity in Development 
All proposals should conserve and enhance avoiding a negative impact on biodiversity and 
geodiversity.  
 
Part 3: Mitigation of Potential Adverse Impacts of Development 
Development should avoid adverse impact as the first principle. Where such impacts are 
unavoidable they must be adequately and appropriately mitigated. Compensation will be required 
as a last resort. 
 
LP29 - Trees and Woodland  
Proposals should be prepared based upon the overriding principle that existing tree and woodland 
cover is maintained. Opportunities for expanding woodland should be actively considered.  
Proposals which would result in the loss or deterioration of ancient woodland and or the loss of 
veteran trees will be refused unless there are exceptional benefits which outweigh the loss. Where 
a proposal would result in the loss or deterioration of a tree covered by a Tree Preservation Order 
permission will be refused unless there is no net loss of amenity value or the need for and benefits 
of the development outweigh the loss. Where appropriate mitigation planting will be required. 
 
LP30 - Culture, Leisure, Tourism and Community Facilities  
LP30a) Development of new cultural, leisure and tourism facilities will be supported in the city 
centre. Facilities elsewhere may be supported in accordance with a sequential approach to site 
selection.  
 
LP30b) Development proposals should recognise that community facilities are an integral 
component in achieving and maintaining sustainable development. Proposals for new community 
facilities will be supported in principle.  
 
LP30c) The loss via redevelopment of an existing community, cultural, leisure or tourism facility will 
only be permitted if it is demonstrated that the facility is no longer fit for purpose, the service 
provided can be met by another facility or the proposal includes a new facility of a similar nature. 
 
LP31 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy  
Development proposals will be considered more favourably where they include measures to 

31



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 8 

reduce energy demand and consumption, incorporate sustainable materials, incorporate 
decentralised or renewable energy or carbon off setting. Proposals for non wind renewable energy 
will be considered taking account of the impact of the landscape including heritage assets, 
amenity, highways and aviation. Wind proposals will also only be considered if in additional to 
these factors the site is in an adoptable Neighbourhood Plan and the proposal has local support. 
 
LP32 - Flood and Water Management  
Proposals should adopt a sequential approach to flood risk management in line with the NPPF and 
council's Flood and Water Management SPD.. Sustainable drainage systems should be used 
where appropriate. Development proposals should also protect the water environment. 
 
 
4 Consultations/Representations 
 
 
PCC Peterborough Highways Services –  No objections subject to conditions.  Request were 
initially raised regarding the Transport Assessment (TA) to include more detail on size and layout of 
development, surveys of similar sites, sustainable modes of access, cycle and car parking and drop-
off/pick up facilities and a Travel Plan to be provided. 
 
Following receipt of a revised TA the LHA advised that Nene Park is well served and connected by 
a network of pedestrian and cycling routes.  There are many options to access the site via cycle 
ways, roads and footpaths.  Cycle parking will increase from 12 to 36 parking spaces.  Parking 
provision for the new Activity Centre shall be provided in accordance with current parking standards. 
 
Trip generation is discussed in depth as part of the TA using the trip rates of a similar Activity Centre 
in Milton Keynes which is an acceptable comparator site. 
 
Junction modelling software was applied to the A605 Oundle Road/Ham Lane/Chisenhale 
roundabout to assess the possible junction capacity issues as a result of the new development.     
The report concluded that the PM vehicles trips exceed the threshold as stated in the local transport 
assessment guidance however, to mitigate against these events, competitions will not be organised 
during peak hours to minimise the impact on the local highway network. 
 
Pedestrian crossing points:  As 2 way traffic movements, both vehicle and pedestrian, shall increase 
along Ham Lane the LHA requests improvements to 2 of the 4 most used pedestrian crossing points 
along Ham Lane. 
 
Parking provision:  The level of parking provision is satisfactory. Request that the new parking and 
turning areas (vehicle and cycle) are constructed and in place prior to the removal of the existing 
parking and turning areas.   
 
Location:  The location of the new Activity Centre within Nene Park is in a remote location in relation 
to the nearby strategic highway network and the nearest highway maintainable at public expense. 
 

Conclusion:  The trip generation created and the increase in visitor numbers created by the new 
Lakeside Activity Building shall not create an unacceptable impact on the existing highway network. 
 

PCC Travel Choice – Initial comments.  No objection.  A Travel Plan is not required to accompany 
this application as the sustainable travel links and facilities are of a high standard. A statement should 
be submitted to include details of current cycle parking and facilities such as showers, lockers, etc. 
Future cycle parking site should be identified as demand may increase. The TA should also contain 
additional information of the accessible routes to the site. 
 
Second comments - The Travel Plan Coordinator should be an existing staff member. The Travel 
Plan should identify future cycle parking provision, which should be covered along with 
shower/changing facilities, action plans and survey results.  Walking / cycling maps should be 

32



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 9 

displayed at the activity centre.  
 
Within 3 months of occupation of the new centre, a full staff (both new and existing Nene Park staff 
across the whole of Ferry Meadows / Nene Park) travel survey should be completed so that realistic 
targets can be set and initiatives tailored to the needs of the staff. Also quarterly on-the spot travel 
surveys should be carried out with visitors to ascertain travel patterns, along with quarterly car park 
and cycle parking usage monitoring. The Travel Plan does not include provision for the charging of 
Electric Vehicles or designated parking bays for members of staff that car share.  
 
The access road within Ferry Meadows should be reviewed and measures implemented to increase 
visibility so that people are encouraged to walk and cycle to the park.  
 
PCC Pollution Team – No objection.  Recommends a condition be appended to the decision notice 
requiring details of all mechanical ventilation and extraction equipment be submitted and approved 
to ensure there are no adverse impacts arising from cooking fumes/odour.  In addition informatives 
should be appended regarding hours of construction, unexpected contamination and noise control 
measure to ensure that noise from the D2 use of the proposed development is contained within the 
premises.  
 
Archaeological Officer – Initial comments- The site was the subject of an evaluation by trial 
trenching carried out in October 2018 within the current car park area and within part of Scheduled 
Monument. The current car park area revealed evidence of stratified natural alluvium sealing a 
possible early prehistoric buried horizon. This early horizon appeared to continue into the scheduled 
monument area. Here, the evaluation exposed linear ditch-type features, a pit, a possible 
palaeochannel/pond, and other natural/clearance features (tree throws) cut into it. All features 
revealed appeared to be sealed by an alluvial deposit derived from episodic early flooding by the 
River Nene. Pottery from the site included sherds dated to the Bronze Age, Roman period and post-
medieval period, some of which may be intrusive and/or residual. 
 
The current car park site, which will contain the proposed climbing centre, has been sufficiently 
characterised as containing deeply stratified alluvial layers above a possible buried horizon. The 
area within the scheduled monument has the potential to contain archaeological features and 
deposits, as identified during the evaluation. These features could not be dated and characterised 
with certainty. If present, they are expected to survive in good conditions of preservation, being 
sealed by an overlying alluvial layer between 250mm and 350mm below the extant surface. No 
evidence was found of destruction by former quarrying. 
 
The construction method of the proposed car park within the scheduled monument should be 
informed by the results of the evaluation, in order to mitigate the impact upon potential buried 
remains. Further work in the form of archaeological monitoring of soil stripping and ground 
excavation may be required, in consultation with Historic England.  For potential setting-related 
issues, Historic England should be consulted. 
 
Second comments - The construction method of the proposed car park within the SM, including the 
depth of proposed groundwork, landscaping/soil stripping preparation, and drainage, has been 
discussed with the applicant and Historic England in advance of the submission of the current 
application.  
 
Full excavation for the car park to a depth of 700 mm appears to be the preferred option by the 
applicant, Historic England and PCC Archaeologist, and should be supported by the Local planning 
Authority. This option requires the implementation of an archaeological mitigation strategy for ‘strip, 
map and record’ excavation.  The excavation will afford the opportunity to examine the 
archaeological resource associated with the area of the SM to be impacted upon by development. 
The aim is to seek a better understanding, and compile a lasting record, of that resource, and to 
analyse interpret and disseminate the results of its investigation within a framework of defined 
research objectives. The excavation must comply with the CIfA Standards and Guidance for an 
Archaeological Excavation (2014). If applicable, remains that can be preserved in situ will be 

33



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 10 

recorded and prepared for re-burial. Therefore, steps will be taken to ensure construction and future 
maintenance do not threaten these remains. 
 
All archaeological work must be carried out in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation 
(WSI) which is expected to fulfil the conditions specified in a brief issued by this office, unless 
otherwise agreed, and must be approved by the local planning authority.  
 
PCC Wildlife Officer – Initial comments.  The application is accompanied by an Extended Phase 
One Survey Report (June 2018).   The proposed development is unlikely to have an impact upon 
the Nene Park County Wildlife Site. 
 
Protected Species: Bats:  No bat roosts are likely to be affected by the proposal, however the site is 
likely to support foraging and commuting bats. Recommends the provision of a range of bat boxes; 
and external lighting to be carefully designed to be baffled downwards away from the retained areas 
of woodland and trees. These details may be secured via a suitably worded condition. 
 
Reptiles & Amphibians: The report identifies the possibility that reptiles and common amphibians 
may utilise areas of the site and a precautionary approach is recommended. Vegetation clearance 
works should be implemented in accordance with the non-licensed method statement set out in 
section 9.11 of the Report, to be secured by condition. 
 
Nesting Birds: The proposal involves the removal of vegetation which may support nesting birds 
therefore a bird nesting informative is recommended.   To mitigate for the loss of potential nesting 
habitat, recommends a range of nesting boxes are installed; the details to be secured by condition. 

Mammals: Suitable habitat is present within the application site to support hedgehogs as well as 
foraging badgers. All construction trenches are to be covered overnight or a means of escape 
provided for any hedgehogs (and other mammals) that may have become trapped.  To be secured 
by condition.    

Landscaping:  Details set out in the Landscape Masterplan appear acceptable, noting that an overall 
net increase in tree canopy cover is proposed. With regard to new tree and shrub planting.  
Recommends a range of native species; the details to be secured by condition. 
 
Second comments – No objection to revised details – Landscaping and Lighting scheme.  No bat 
roosts are likely to be affected by the proposal, however the surrounding habitats are likely to support 
foraging and commuting bats. Recommends external lighting is carefully designed to avoid impacts 
to bats. The details set out in the Site External Lighting Drawing and associated External Lighting 
Scheme Document appear acceptable, noting that light levels will be below 0.5 LUX at the lake edge 
and other potential bat foraging habitat features. The development may therefore be implemented 
in accordance with these documents which include the use of time switches to control lighting.  
 
Ecologist (Northamptonshire – acting for PCC):  Initial comments following the submission of the  
Updated  Preliminary  Ecological  Appraisal (PEA) Report – July 2020.  There is still concern 
regarding the lighting and the impact on Bats.  It needs to be established how bats are using the 
site/zone of impact, for example where are any roosts, key flight paths etc. and of which species.  
The results of this should then dictate how to approach the external (and potentially internal, if 
relevant) lighting, bearing in mind security concerns. The exterior lighting design concept (dwg 
BSXX(63)4001) does not offer the level of detailed information required. Recommends a detailed 
bat survey be undertaken to identity the local species and how they are using the site. Provided the 
survey establishes that any lighting impacts can be mitigated, I think an ecological design strategy 
(EDS) would be an appropriate way to handle the lighting design. BS42020 describes the particulars 
of what an EDS should include, but essentially it would result in a lighting scheme which has been 
designed to meet the needs of both wildlife and security. 
 
Recommends a construction environmental management plan be conditioned; this should include 
the range of precautionary measures and method statements recommended in the extended Phase 
I survey reports. 

34



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 11 

 
Further comments following submission of the Bat Activity Survey and Lighting Strategy:  The Bat 
survey fills the data gap. The updated lighting scheme will involve reducing existing light impacts, 
which will in itself be an improvement for biodiversity. Nothing further is needed regarding bats or 
lighting. 
 
Lead Local Drainage Authority – Initial comments.  Confirmation is required of the proposed 
surface water management option.  Option 2 would be the preferred option. As part of this, we require 
updated Drainage Strategy to reflect the chosen option, this should include but is not limited to - A 
full and detailed drainage layout in accordance with the chosen option that will include, but is not 
limited too; all proposed SuDS and drainage assets, with details of flow controls and attenuation 
storage, outfalls.  We still require the overland flood flow routes both pre and post development.  
Design details / construction drawings for all drainage assets. - I note that the Flood Risk Assessment 
states that the groundwater level on the site is between 1.0 and 1.27m below the existing ground 
level. As such, the details of how all underground drainage structures will be protected / managed 
from groundwater seepage will be required. 
 
Second comments: Recommends a condition seeking that no development shall take place until a 
detailed design and associated management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage for 
the site using sustainable drainage methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The approved drainage scheme must encompass Surface Water 
Management Strategy Option 1 or Option 2 as described and shown in the Flood Risk Assessment 
- LAC-ARUPRP-C-0001. 
 
PCC Tree Officer – Initial comments – The majority of the trees within group G.20, and all of the 
trees within G.23 should be retained, together with the greater part of the existing ditch associated 
with this natural feature across this part of the site. There are a number of significant and important 
trees within these groups not highlighted or appreciated in any real detail, within the submitted 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment. 
 
There is an opportunity to redesign the layout of the car park within the limits of the application site 
and tree protection measures, retaining the number of parking spaces and without the need for an 
asphalt concrete road across the Meadow. The pedestrian/disabled access from the car park would 
be via the existing gap in G.20, across the ditch in the north-western corner of the proposed car park, 
where an entrance/exit is currently proposed. 
 
Second comments – No objection.  Further to my previous comments and in light of the Wildlife 
Officer’s comments and those of the previous Tree Officer, combined with my re-evaluation of the 
visual amenity value of the trees within Group G20 and those to be removed within Group G23, I am 
prepared to accept the removal of the trees as a part of the overall proposals, including the mitigation 
planting.  It is clear, there will be an overall net increase in tree canopy cover, over time with the 
proposed planting of approximately 72 trees; this is to be increased by condition to 124 trees, as 
there is opportunity to secure additional planting. There will be a net gain in biodiversity across the 
development site, in time given the additional cover afforded by the proposed hedge planting and 
other areas of landscaping. 
 
Recommends a landscape plan with replacement tree planting, maintenance and management plan, 
tree protection plan and Arboricultural Method Statement be secured by condition. 
 
PCC Conservation Officer – No objection.  From a heritage consideration the proposed works can 
be supported.   
 
Cathedral:  Views from elements of the Cathedral would be limited to the top portion of the climbing 
wall and seen in conjunction with other structures to the west of the city.  There are no historical 
relationships between the two sites. The climbing wall would not inappropriately compete in terms of 
scale with Peterborough’s premier historic building. 
 

35



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 12 

Impact upon Conservation Areas:  Castor, Longthorpe, Orton Waterville and Orton Longueville 
Conservation Areas have the potential to be impacted by the development.  However, none will have 
a clear view of the proposed building 
 
Impact upon Listed Buildings within the County Park:  There are two Listed buildings within the park, 
Ferry Bridge (Grade II*) and Robin Hood & Little John Stones (Grade II), both of which are also 
Scheduled Monuments. Both are utilitarian structures which relate to the previous pathways now not 
in full existence. The creation of the lakes and the loss of the historic routes to which the listed 
buildings formed part, has significantly changed their historic settings. The Climbing Centre will be 
visible from the bridge, however it will not impact on the how the bridge functions or is appreciated 
and although the proposal will have a material impact upon the setting of the bridge, this is not 
considered to have a material detrimental impact upon its significance and is considered less than 
substantial. 
 
In terms of the Robin Hood and Little John stones, the proposal will be clearly visible within their 
setting. The insertion of the lakes with the sailing centre has significantly changed the supposed 
context for the stones, however, they no longer lie in any pathway of any historical relevance. As 
such although the insertion of the proposal will have a material impact upon the setting of the stones, 
this is not considered to impact upon their significance and is less than substantial. 
 

Impact upon Listing Buildings within the setting:  There are four listed buildings that have the potential 
to be impacted by the proposal. The most immediate are the three Grade II Listed buildings that form 
the Lynch Farm. This farm historically had a strong relationship with the proposed site presumably 
forming part of the farmed area and is adjacent to the access from Milton Hall to Alwalton Hall and 
is the reputed location of Alwalton Castle. It is possible that the proposed development will be visible 
over the intermediate trees, however this would be viewed in the context of the wider park 
development. As such it is not considered to materially change the contribution of the park to the 
Listed complex’s setting. 
 
The Grade I Listed Church of St Kyneburgha at Castor will have views of the proposal from  the 
church tower.  There is nothing significant about this view and the proposal would be seen against 
the backdrop of the City of Peterborough. As such, although the proposal may impact upon the 
setting of the church it would not be materially detrimental and not significant.  
 

Impact of Milton Estate including Grade II* Registered Park and Garden and Grade I, II* and II Listed 
buildings:  Milton Estate is located to the north across the A47. It should be noted that prior to various 
reorganisation within the late C20, the site lay across the county line, which was the river Nene, in 
Huntingdonshire. A setting assessment produced by Milton notes that the maps of the estate stop at 
either the river or the road and do not incorporate what is now the country park. The only relationship 
that it identifies to the south are with Alwalton Hall and Orton Hall, both of which would have been 
accessed along a path that ran from Ferry Bridge across the proposed site.  Orton Hall has a weak 
relationship, that of vague association however Alwalton Hall was constructed for an Earl Fitzwilliam 
and the Lynch Wood which connects the two is still in existence. There are no direct views between 
the two, as such, the proposal should not detrimentally impact upon the relationship between the 
two heritage assets. 
 
There are two Grade II Listed and one Grade II* Listed buildings on the southern edge of the park. 
The Grade II Ferry House, is clearly visible from the park, albeit only within the winter months. Its 
historic setting is within Milton Park and there would have been good southern views. In addition it 
was on the access route to the main road to Peterborough and the southern path across Ferry 
Bridge. Ferry House has been impacted more severely in terms of its southern setting by the A47. 
As such the proposal is not considered to be materially detrimental to the setting of the building.  
 
In terms of the Lodge to Milton Park and Lodge on Peterborough Drive, these are more screened 
from the proposal. In addition the Lodge to Milton Park has been moved to the west to make way for 
the A47 undermining its position of the Peterborough to Great North Road and the through route. As 
such its setting has been severely undermined and the proposed development is not considered to 

36



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 13 

impact upon the remaining significance of its setting.  
 
Other views:  No indicative overlays have been produced of views outside of the park of the proposal. 
These should be submitted to demonstrate the impact of the proposal on the wider landscape and 
how visible they would be from Milton Park. Specifically at least either view point 27 and/or 29 should 
be used to create an indicative view. I would like to reserve the right to amend the comments once 
the above information has been submitted. 
 
It should be noted there although there is clearly a landscape impact upon Ferry Meadows Country 
Park, it is not a heritage asset in its own right. As such this impact of the proposed Climbing Centre 
upon the park has not been taken in to consideration in these comments. 
 

PCC Conservation Officer – Final comments:  The revised HIS has remedied the various 
deficiencies regarding the required assessment and the report is now considered to meet the 
minimum threshold required by para 189 of the NPPF.  Other concerns regarding the production and 
attribution have also been remedied. In the first iteration of the comments there was concerns 
regarding the viewpoints from Mill Lane and Milton Park not being covered for wire frames. 
Subsequently these have been submitted and the information and context provided. After reviewing 
the pictures there is not a change in the overall assessment of the heritage impact. 
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer (PALO) – No objection.  A condition should be appended to 
the decision to ensure that vulnerability to crime and anti-social behaviour is addressed across this 
development. I am aware that local residents are concerned in regards to vulnerability of this site 
and an increase in crime and anti-social behaviour.  No further comments, objections or 
recommendations at this stage other than to help from this Office should the Client be undertaking 
BREEAM accreditation and we can supply a Security Needs Assessment. 
 
Second comments - Should planning approval be obtained this office can work with the applicant to 
ensure users of the facility are safe and more importantly feel safe when there. There are still 
concerns whether the use of bollard lighting around the facility would work with CCTV due to not 
enough light at the right height to recognise facial features which does increase fear of crime.  I 
support bulk head lighting with dusk to dawn functionality and I would like to see details of a lux plan 
and CCTV coverage.   The details could be secured by condition. 
 
Third comments:  Following review of the security statement I consider that they take security on the 
site to a high level and already consider community safety and reducing vulnerability to crime. 
  
In regards to the above planning application I welcome the opportunity for this team to work with 
them on security arrangements for the new site area to further enhance community safety and 
reduce opportunity for crime.  I look forward to future discussions should planning approval be 
obtained.  I would support a Condition in regards to security arrangements for the proposed new 
area that would ensure community safety and crime reduction is being considered. 
 

Final comments:  I have reviewed all recent documents and this office is supportive as consideration 
has been given to support community safety whilst reducing the opportunity for crime.   

 
Environment Agency – Initial comments – Objection.  The proposed development site lies partly 
within Flood Zone 3 defined by the Environment Agency Flood Map as having a high probability of 
flooding. Applying the Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification in Table 2 of the Flood Risk and Coastal 
Change chapter of the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), the proposed development is classified 
as less vulnerable. Table 3 of the Flood Risk and Coastal Change chapter of the PPG states that 
such uses should only be permitted in Flood Zone 3 if the Sequential Test is passed. 
 
In the absence of an acceptable Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) we object to the grant of planning 
permission and recommend refusal on this basis.  The FRA does not comply with the requirements 
set out in paragraphs 30 to 32 of the Flood Risk and Coastal Change section of the planning practice 

37



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 14 

guidance. In particular, the FRA fails to take the impacts of climate change into account; consider 
how the proposed building on stilts will allow for the free passage of water beneath it; and consider 
the requirement for floodplain compensation. 
 
Second comments – The revised FRA complies with the requirements for site-specific flood risk 
assessments, as set out in paragraphs 30 to 32 of the Flood Risk and Coastal Change section of 
the planning practice guidance. Accordingly, we remove our objection subject to a condition requiring 
the development to be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk assessment (ref ARUP 
LAC-ARUP-RP-C-0001 Issue 03 dated 25 July 2019) and the mitigation measures it details.  
 
In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 158), development should 
not be permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in 
areas with a lower probability of flooding. It is for the local planning authority to determine if the 
sequential test has to be applied and whether or not there are other sites available at lower flood 
risk.  
 
Historic England – Initial comments - The proposal would have impacts on buried archaeological 
remains and would result in harm to the significance of both designated and undesignated assets.  
Scheduled monument consent for an archaeological evaluation was granted within that part of the 
scheduled monument which would be developed for a new car park.  Although the report on the 
archaeological evaluation has been submitted in support of the application there has been not further 
discussion with us regarding the archaeological aspects of the scheme on the scheduled monument. 
 
There is no consideration of the results of the evaluation set against the proposed ground works for 
the car park nor have construction detail for the car park been submitted.  HE is not in a position to 
comment on the impact on the scheduled monument and nor does it include an archaeological 
mitigation strategy to offset the harm.  As it stands the application does not meet the aims and 
objectives of the NPPF para 189 and paras 193-4 which concerns the great weight which should be 
given to the heritage asset and the need for clear and convincing justification where this involves 
and harm or loss of the significance of the Scheduled Monument. 
 
Second comments – Whilst HE does not oppose, in principle, the redevelopment of the site, the 
development will impact on known areas of archaeological remains (both designated and 
undesignated).  The current car park site which will hold the footings of the building has been 
sufficiently characterised as containing deeply stratified alluvial layers above a possible buried 
horizon.  The area within the scheduled area has the potential to contain archaeological features 
and deposits sealed by an overlying alluvial layer of between 250mm and 350mm below the extant 
surface.   The construction method has been discussed with the applicant and the Archaeologist and 
Option 1b was agreed to be the most pragmatic solution with the northern part of the car park 
excavated to a depth of 700mm and the southern portion excavated to 250mm-300mm.  This will 
require an archaeological mitigation strategy for ‘strip, map and record’ in accordance with para 189 
of the NPPF.  The work will be undertaken in accordance with a WSI prepared in response to an 
archaeological brief issued by the LPA’s Archaeologist.  If applicable, remains that can be preserved 
in situ will be recorded and prepared for re-burial.  Scheduled Ancient Monument Consent is required 
before any works commence.  
 
Natural England - Natural England has no comments to make on this application. Natural England 
has not assessed this application for impacts on protected species.  Natural England has published 
Standing Advice which you can use to assess impacts on protected species or you may wish to 
consult your own ecology services for advice. 
 
Natural England and the Forestry Commission have also published standing advice on ancient 
woodland and veteran trees which you can use to assess any impacts on ancient woodland. 
The lack of comment from Natural England does not imply that there are no impacts on the natural 
environment, but only that the application is not likely to result in significant impacts on statutory 
designated nature conservation sites or landscapes.  It is for the local planning authority to determine 
whether or not this application is consistent with national and local policies on the natural 

38



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 15 

environment. Other bodies and individuals may be able to provide information and advice on the 
environmental value of this site and the impacts of the proposal to assist the decision making 
process. We advise LP As to obtain specialist ecological or other environmental advice when 
determining the environmental impacts of development. 
We recommend referring to our SSSI Impact Risk Zones prior to consultation with Natural England.  
 
Red Kite Network Limited (RKN)  - Landscape Consultant on behalf of PCC – Initial comments 
following desk top review of the proposal.  The materials submitted appears appropriate for an 
application falling outside the requirement for an EIA. 
 
The LAC presents an exciting opportunity to be one of UK’s first bespoke Olympic standard climbing 
centres potentially ensuring Ferry Meadows Country Park as a major destination attracting visitors, 
local and beyond in line with the overall landscape strategy for the `Ferry Meadows Corridor’ LCA 
Sub-Area.  The LAC adjacent to the existing Nene Outdoor Watersports Activity Centre and Rutland 
Cycling Hire Facility, this reinforces the characteristic quality of the host NCA of representing 
“recreational assets of wetland sites” and is in line with Ferry Meadow Corridor’ sub-area 
characteristic of “widespread recreational use”.  
 
The LVIA methodology is based on established guidance from GLVIA3 and has generally been 
followed. The Applicant has not indicated if LI Technical Guidance Note 02/17 ‘Visual representation 
of development proposals’ has been followed. No cumulated landscape impact assessment has 
been undertaken. 
 
The impact on certain receptors has been underrated, partly due to the “car park and meadow” being 
assessed together; RKN differ in opinion on the degree of material harm on the Lynch Farm 
Complex. In addition, assessment of the supporting highway infrastructure serving LAC should be 
assessed as a receptor.  
 
The Applicant has assessed LAC will result in a `Beneficial impact of Moderate/Minor significance’ 
to the “recreational character”. RKN feel this is subjective and divisive and differs in accordance to 
the type of recreational user. RKN has concerns about the perceived acceptability by the Applicant 
that the “proposed development is entirely in keeping with the recreational character” of the Country 
Park and  “no adverse impacts are predicted”. The LVIA assessment contradicts this as material 
harm has been demonstrated. With the existing Lakeside car park being displaced and rebuilt on the 
open recreational Ferry Meadow, mitigation measures have not been fully realised for offsetting this 
harm. 
 
Substantial weight on the screening properties from existing trees within the setting of LAC has 
eased the level of judgements made in the LVIA.  The LAC can be demonstrated to conflict with LCA 
guidance for the ‘Nene Valley’ for the setting of the Robin Hood and Little John Stones to “prevent 
development that could detract from local landmarks”. 
  
Although material harm will result, RKN agrees LAC is unlikely to exceed `Moderate Adverse’ 
significance of effect to the landscape character and visual baseline due to the physical and “visual 
containment” of the setting and presence of existing trees. This remains the situation even after 
elevating certain assessment scores.  
 
As a degree of harm will result from LAC, innovative architecture design and supporting landscape 
mitigation proposals will be key to ensure this major recreational opportunity is assimilated into the 
Country Park environs.   Although thought has been given to the proposed LAC landscape to connect 
with the existing Lakeside Activity Centre, through the continuation of existing paving lines across 
the proposed `Arrival Plaza’, the principle connecting access at the threshold of the existing steps is 
awkward and should be reconfigured.  
 
Contrary to promoting active and healthy lifestyles and sustainability and there appears a complete 
absence of approach supporting cycling.  
 

39



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 16 

This application has been assessed on the basis the LAC falls outside the requirement of a formal 
EIA. A degree of harm on landscape character, visual and perceptual baseline receptors has been 
presented but is not at a degree to give rise to major “significant environmental effect”.  
 
Recommends the decision of the application be deferred pending receipt of additional information, 
including a Traffic Impact Assessment with respect to impact on Landscape and Visual Effect; a Glint 
and Glare Analysis for moving and stationary cars; Assess `car park’ and ‘open meadow’ separately 
as landscape receptors; Assess an additional receptor - `highway infrastructure’; Submit proposals 
how offsetting the loss of the meadow will be achieved within the Site; a Cycle Strategy and include 
a provision for covered cycle parking and routes; a Glint and Glare analysis of the LAC building 
glazing and impact on visual receptors;  a light impact assessment to determine effect on bat foraging 
routes; provide details of all external lighting; provide construction detail and methodology for works 
within the proposed car park including stripping of soil, surfacing, and drainage to understand impact 
on the Scheduled Monument; review of the architecture, massing and form of LAC; review of 
aesthetics of the cladding selected articulated through photo-visualisation of each elevation; 
demonstrate the tower will “blend with its setting in winter months”; supply method statements for 
the protection and management throughout the Site’s construction phases of any existing trees, tree 
groups, hedgerows and grass meadows;  and provide details for tree route protection. Further 
conditions were also recommended. 
 
Further comments following submission of revised LVIA: comments are made on the visual matters 
only regarding the impact of the proposed LAC in the wider landscape setting. These were based 
on Chapter 5 ‘Visual Baseline’ of Lockhart Garratt’s revised LVIA submitted by the Applicant for Re-
consultation. This was accompanied by the supporting plans drawing 18-0202 ‘Baseline Information 
Plan’ and drawing 18-0083 ‘Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV)’. No other areas of the LVIA have 
been re-appraised so previous comments regarding landscape and visual matters still stand. 
 
RKN attended the proposed Site environs, and reviewed the wider landscape viewpoints (16 to 29) 
on 26th and 27th February 2020 to understand the validity of those selected. The weather was fine 
and clear, and at this time of the year there was limited leaf cover. On the 26th February RKN 
remained at the viewpoints west of the Site close to Castor til after darkness to experience the 
potential impact of night visibility of the proposed LAC when illuminated. RKN further carried out an 
exercise in the field to determine if there were other critical viewpoints that had not been considered 
by the Applicant which would change the visual envelope; and the nature of change to that view. 
 
The comments regarding the Re-Consultation submission should be read with the Summary 
contained in the Landscape comments (25th April 2019) under Section 12.  
 
The Applicant recognises the users will experience clear views of the proposed LAC but is there a 
detrimental loss of visual tranquillity caused which is a recognised characteristic eroding the Site’s 
host NCAs. Guidelines recommend to “restrict built development in the area and “safeguard and 
manage”, but this proposal “lends it a very strong recreational character” a further recognised 
characteristic.  
 
As in the previous comments (25th April 2019) the LVIA demonstrates material harm judged  Overall 
Adverse Moderate will be caused by the proposed LAC impacting on the visual and perceptual 
baseline of the Site and setting. In the wider landscape which is the focus of these comments there 
already exists a concentration of development at the lakeside of Ferry Meadows which eats into the 
perceived rurality of long-distance views key from the west along Mill Road near Castor. In daylight 
these could be of perceived visual interest against the tree backdrop for walkers along Landy Green 
Way, but at night the cumulative impact with the existing lighting of the lakeside building could be a 
prominent visual distraction. This could be being contrary to National Planning Policy Guidance 
(PPG) Para 001 of being a “risk of artificial lighting undermining the enjoyment of the night  sky”.  
 
There are various receptors surrounding the Site with views, but the majority from view- points in the 
wider landscape setting are obscured, transient or insignificant as other visual distractors interrupt 
the skyline or setting.  

40



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 17 

 
Due to the Site’s “strong degree of visual containment” within the valley environs and presence of 
obscuring mature trees and woodland groups alongside the A47 and within the Milton Park Estate 
in the north, and built form and infrastructure to three sides of the Site the visual envelope is limited. 
Therefore RKN are generally in agreement of the viewpoints selected in the wider landscape setting, 
although views from Peterborough Business park in  the south have not been scoped, also the road 
to Milton Golf Course parallel to the A47 in  the north and to the east at Orton Lock and Sluice.  The 
LAC would not be significantly visible beyond that indicated by the Applicant and influence  the ZTV.  
 
There is a potential for the associated vehicular glint and glare and building glazing to give rise to 
more harmful and significant visual effects than the proposed climbing chimney.  
 
The proposed faceted climbing tower of 34.25m height will be tapered vertically.  RKN consider from 
close-range view-points it will not deliver the key objective of assimilating into the sky where it pierces 
the tree line with the current cladding regime proposed. The Applicant could scope using mirrored 
cladding. From long distant viewpoints RKN agree the climbing tower would be “a marker on the 
skyline” amongst others already present.  
 
Substantial weight on the screening properties from existing trees within the setting of the Site has 
eased the assessment level of judgement made in the LVIA. By reviewing the visual effects in 
February when the leaf cover is minimal inter-visibility was more apparent between close range 
viewpoints and key long distant views from the west at Mill Lane and at Orton Lock and Sluices.  
 
No reference has been made to the Landscape Institute Advice LI Technical Guidance Note 06/19 
‘Visual representation of development proposals’ published on 17 September 2019 for presenting 
the visuals from the selected view-points. Certain VPs lacked definition, which is to the detriment to 
the Applicant, where the perspective parameters of the photograph are perhaps not accurate. Field 
assessment was necessary to understand the variations.  
 
In conclusion these comments should be read in conjunction with the Conclusion contained in the 
Landscape comments (25th April 2019) under Section 13.  
 
Although material harm will result to the visual baseline, I agree the significance of Visual effect of 
the proposed LAC is unlikely to exceed `Moderate Adverse’ due to various factors restricting the 
inter- visibility between the wider environment and the Site. These include  the physical and “visual 
containment” of the setting; the nature of the topography;  intervening tree cover; and presence of 
elements in the built environment such as high- density housing and road infrastructure, including 
the highly trafficked routes of the A1260,  A47 and A605. There is no significant inter-visibility 
between the Ferry Meadows and the city of Peterborough.  
 
Please refer to my Landscape comments dated 25th April 2019, item 13.16, regarding Landscape 
matters as a whole and recommendations listed under Section 14.  
 
With respect to long-distance views in the wider landscape setting presented in the reconsultation 
material, although it is agreed material harm will result, it is my opinion that the visual effect arising 
from the proposed LAC is acceptable, and should not prohibit a decision to be made for this Planning 
Application. 
 
Anglian Water Services Ltd – No objection.  The foul drainage from this development is in the 
catchment of Peterborough (Flag Fen) Water Recycling Centre that will have available capacity for 
these flows.  
 
From the details submitted the proposed method of surface water management does not relate to 
Anglian Water operated assets. The Local Planning Authority should seek the advice of the Lead 
Local Flood Authority or the Internal Drainage Board.   
 
Peterborough Cycling Forum – Initial comments - Objects to the application due to the lack of 

41



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 18 

suitable cycle parking and the need for cycle access to the site to be improved.  There is no indication 
where the existing cycle stands are to be relocated. Cycle parking for the centre should be 
considered to be ‘long stay’ and should be covered. It should be located as close as possible to the 
main entrance to the building and in a position where it is overlooked.  The level of occupancy should 
be regularly monitored and capacity increased whenever the level of occupancy frequently reaches 
80%. 
 
Cycle Access – the cycle route between Ham Lane and the new centre needs to be improved. Of 
the two alternative routes, the shared use paths between the visitor centre and the new centre carry 
a very high level of footfall and, in part, are less than 3m wide. This route is therefore not suited for 
cyclists travelling at speeds of 15mph or more. 
 
The access road used by motor vehicles should be the preferred route for most cyclists. The road is 
narrow and in places, is in poor condition. The width and surface of this route should be improved to 
give cyclists a safe and convenient route between Ham Lane and the activity centre. 
 
The application fails to include any measures that will encourage users to travel to the activity centre 
by cycle.  
 
Peterborough Civic society – Objects.  The Civic Society has previously commented on the 
application and have asked for the two previous comments to be disregarded. 
 
The Peterborough Civic Society appreciates the benefits that this major recreational facility could 
bring to the City.  Since our previous comments submitted on 8th April 2019 and 4th February 2020, 
additional information provided by the applicants and their agents together with comments by other, 
independent consultants and members of the public has guided the Civic Society committee towards 
this revised stance.  
 
Location. There are reservations regarding the location in a country park and the site selected on 
the car park overlooking Gunwade Lake is unacceptable. The revised Sequential Test Report shows 
several sites that are more suitable for the proposal than the Ferry Meadows site, but have all been 
ruled out on the basis of 'availability or viability'. As none of them are owned by the NPT the 
presumption in the report is that the costs involved in buying the site would make the project 
financially unviable. We question whether this is a valid approach. The sequential test is on the basis 
of the availability of a site not on ownership. We therefore believe that more suitable sites exist which 
fulfil the requirements of the relevant Local Plan policy LP12.  There is planning policy support for a 
central location for this type of development in the adopted Local Plan where, under Policy LP30. 
 
Design & Scale. The proposed building may be thought of as having two main architectural 
components; a shed and a tower. The shed is a larger horizontal boxy element and at one end is 
attached a tall pyramidal tower, the whole thing not unlike a church in outline. Apart from the sweep 
of glazing to the shed wall facing the lake the remainder will be clad, including the tower, in metal 
profile flat panels with raised seams. Such a tall and large building cannot, perhaps should not, be 
hidden away. Most people who know Ferry Meadows well instantly feel that this building would be 
out of keeping in a country park. The common perception of the park is of a quiet recreation where 
the natural environment predominates. The landscape architects who prepared the assessment of 
impact have a different appreciation of the character of Ferry Meadows. They consider this part of 
the park to have a recreational character and thus all their judgements of visual impact from the 
numerous individual locations are made in that light. The Civic Society's earlier view that there had 
been a change in the character or atmosphere in this location over recent years has changed. The 
Covid pandemic has raised awareness of the value of the park as a place of quiet and essential 
recreation in the true sense of the words. It has acted as a 'release valve' for many people from the 
pressures of an abnormally constricted daily life. The pandemic crisis has reminded us of what the 
essential purpose of park was and still is; a haven, a refuge, a place to walk, stroll and ride, 
somewhere to recharge the batteries.  
 
Traffic and Access. It is accepted that the increase in car based trips to Ferry Meadows generated 

42



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 19 

by the proposal would in general be relatively small. The Traffic Assessment does state that at the 
PM peak, capacity would be at threshold at the Oundle Road/Chisenhale roundabout. The Design & 
Access Statement does state that 'Lakeside Road' will be improved but not how this is to be done. 
More recently statements by NPT, reported in the local press, have indicated that there would be 
some more extensive widening to improve access to the Lakeside area car parks. This is believed 
to be a realisation that the proposed activity centre is likely to attract more visitors than was earlier 
envisaged. The traffic generation model used by the traffic consultants is largely based on the 
experience of a smaller climbing centre in Milton Keynes. Any significant increase in traffic would 
alter the character of the whole of the central part of Ferry Meadows to the detriment of the majority 
of the park's users. The traffic assessment should be revisited using research from facilities which 
are more closely similar to the proposal. It should be borne in mind that there is no realistic possibility 
of public transport provision to a point within a reasonable walking distance of the proposal and that 
no enhancements to the footpath and cycling access routes are proposed in the application. There 
are existing pinch-points for cars/pedestrians at locations near the Lakeside and main car park and 
between cyclists/pedestrians at a number of points close to Lakeside. These potential problems 
should be addressed in the application.  
 
The proposed replacement car park for 250 cars is large and uses a corner of Oak Meadow. However 
the edge of the proposed car park is a straight line and could be better assimilated into the landscape 
with a more irregular edge. This edge is to be planted with a hedge and again this could be more 
varied in depth to improve its natural look and screen views of cars from the extensive open field to 
the south and east. Within the car park individual trees are shown on the layout but these may not 
be effective in relieving the picture of a large expanse of cars. The design of the original car park at 
the Information Centre shows how this could be done. 
 
RSPB - No objection.  There is no apparent impact upon our reserve network or a site with statutory 
protection.  Recommends the development includes environmental and biodiversity enhancements, 
particularly to offset loss of habitat.  Supports recommendations of the Extended Phase 1 survey 
report. Clearance and construction works should be scheduled outside of the main bird breeding 
season.  Landscape planting should incorporate native species. 
 
The development design has not considered the potential for bird collisions with the new structure. 
Critical areas are first 12 metres of built structures and any parts of the building near areas of 
biodiversity/ environmental enhancement.  Recommends a design making window glass more visible 
and/or by reducing reflections, or the use of coloured panes rather than typical clear glass.   
 
PCC Property Services - No comments received 
 

The Wildlife Trusts (Cambridgeshire) - No comments received. 
 
Orton Waterville Parish Council - Concerns have been raised that the design and size of the 
building is not in keeping with the surrounding area and environment and detracts from being a 
country park. There are concerns that it may dominate and overshadow the existing building at 
lakeside. There are concerns that the increase in the flow of traffic caused by increased visitor 
numbers will affect access to the park. It is not clear if any contingencies will be put in place should 
this become a problem. 
 
There are currently no viable bus services to the park, and there do not appear to be any pledges or 
commitments to put a service in place in future. It does not appear that any enquiries have been 
made to Peterborough City Council to see if any service can be provided. 
 
Castor Parish Council - Castor parish council had previously considered the above application and 
could see both the benefit of a climbing wall and the objections to the location and scale of this 
application.  On receipt of the formal consultation letter the matter was again considered at the 
meeting. The meeting was attended by members of the public opposed to the application and parish 
council noted the volume of comments posted on the City Council Planning portal. Given the volume 
of observations, Parish council consider that you would probably refer the application to the Planning 

43



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 20 

& Environmental Protection committee and ask that it be so referred to that committee.  
 
Councillor K Aitken - Orton Waterville – Objection for an Olympic sized climbing wall for the  
following reasons. 
 
-   Country Park or NOT - If you read the history of Ferry Meadows it states; “Ferry Meadows 

Country Park was planned as part of this expansion to give this growing population a green 
space for leisure and recreation.” Of course the word ‘Recreation’ can be interpreted in a 
number of ways but we cannot get away from the fact that Ferry Meadows was built as a Green 
Space Country Park and it is my fear that if this application is approved it will set a precedent for 
Nene Park to consider more sports buildings in the future. 

-   Traffic congestion - Oundle Road is the main link road between the Showground and Ferry 
Meadows. When the Showground have large events such as; Truckfest, Firework displays, 
Motorhome show and Horse Shows to name but a few, the Orton residents will have to contend 
with the high volume of traffic coming from the A1.  If Nene Park then hold events at the 
climbing wall and these coincide on the same day I can guarantee the roads will grind to a halt 
putting pressure on every arterial road around Oundle Road including Fletton Parkway. 

- Location of the building - The location of the climbing wall is the only place where cars can drive 
to and passengers can look over any of the lakes at Ferry Meadows. Access to Gunwade Lake 
is essential for those who are disabled, it allows them to enjoy the beauty of the park without 
having to either get out of the car or just walk to a nearby seating area.   With the application 
this will disappear as the car park is being moved to the piece of land behind the building where 
you will only see trees and a brick wall. 

- Olympic or Not - I cannot help but feel that if the climbing wall was of a smaller size it would not 
have created such passionate objection from the community in which I live and support. To 
have a building that tower’s over the tree height and shows the building in a colour which is not 
in keeping with its surroundings only helps make my decision easier.  Therefore, I Object to this 
planning application and support all other residents who have also objected. 

- Can you please invite me to the Planning Committee on the date this application is being 
discussed 

 
Councillor J Howell - Orton Waterville -  I have listened to many residents of Orton Waterville 
ward and have heard a mix of views. Some residents are excited about the project with no 
reservations. Others are firmly against it, believing the project to be completely out of step with the 
intentions of the Peterborough Development Corporation, which intended for Ferry Meadows to be 
a country park. And there is a range of views in between. 
 
However, I would ask the Planning Dept to pay particular attention to comments submitted by 
residents of Orton Wistow (and Waterville village) in particular, as it is they who live closest to the 
proposed development and it is they who know the area best from the perspective of local residents' 
and, in many cases, it is they who have resided close to the park for decades and have both a 
personal and community interest in the park's development and the impact any development within 
the park may have on local surroundings and upon the park itself. In particular: 
 
-  Concerns have been raised over whether Ferry Meadows is the right location for this kind of 

facility (being as it is a country park). 
-  Concerns over the impact of additional traffic (including construction traffic) into the park and the 

impact on local roads. Is the existing transport infrastructure able to cope, for example? 
-  Concerns that there is no bus into the park, which means many more cars could potentially 

drive into the park, polluting the fresh air local people go there to enjoy. 
 
I should be grateful if you would give these concerns serious consideration and ask NPT to account 
to residents as to how these and other concerns that have come to you from them will be addressed. 
I do not believe this is NIMBYism. Rather, these are genuine concerns from local residents who care 
a great deal about their local country park and who wish to protect it for the benefit of future 
generations. 
 

44



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 21 

Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 394 
Total number of responses: 635 
Total number of objections: 457 
Total number in support: 166 
 
A petition containing 1112 names against the proposal has been received. 
 
A summary of representations received following all three consultation exercises is provided at 
Appendix A. 
 
The Local Planning Authority has been informed of a petition that has been set up on CHANGE.ORG 
https:/www.change.org/p/oppose-nene-park-trusts-olympic-national-competition-climbing-wall.  At 
the time of writing this report there were 4517 names on the petition.  
 
Chris Packham -  Chris Packham has accepted Lynn Walton`s (lead objector) comments on his Face 
Book page protecting green space.  Chris Packham stated on Facebook petition "Would you please 
sign this petition to PCC to help prevent more destruction to our wildlife. Tell them to reject plans to 
build a climbing wall at Ferry Meadows Country Park. And please share." 
Facebook Petition endorsed by Chris Packham Names.  2,848 names and rising as of 6th Feb 2020 
 
Chris Packham comments:  I am opposing the proposed setting for this indoor Climbing Wall that 
will be open at night and urbanise a precious area of green open space with mature trees, oak 
meadow and protected quality rich habitat for wildlife, including bats. 
 
British wildlife is in serious decline due to disappearing habitats. Meadows and mature healthy trees  
need protecting - we don't have the luxury to be blasé about removing any (in this case 15 & a large 
area of vegetation) no matter how many saplings we have planted as there are no guarantees they  
will survive.  Peterborough City Council rightly prides itself on declaring Climate Emergency and 
aiming to be First Environmental Capital yet is considering passing this proposal, opening nightly in 
such an environmentally sensitive area and attracting many hundreds of extra cars into one of the 
few unspoilt areas of fresh air in the city and low level light pollution. Ferry Meadows needs 
cherishing as a natural place for our children to learn to appreciate nature not an urban hub/ nature 
theme park destroying all it originally set to achieve.  Please reconsider the setting for this climbing 
wall and leave the habitat the way it is for wildlife and humans alike to enjoy. 
 
Milton Estates -   Objection.  This proposal will have a serious detrimental effect on landscape and 
heritage assets in and around Milton Park and these have not been fairly assessed by the applicant 
thus far.  
 
We have commissioned and are in receipt of a review of the application by Michell Bolger, Expert 
Landscape Consultancy. We have shared this report with Nene Park Trust and are expecting to hold 
discussions with the applicant about the key issue, which from Milton’s standpoint is the height of 
the tower and its impact on the landscape and the setting of heritage assets. In the context of the 
recently submitted screening opinion application to the requirement for an EIA we would draw your 
attention to Michelle Bolger’s preliminary observations previously lodged in support of a holding 
objection to the planning application. 
 
With a view to being able to hold constructive discussions with the applicant we propose to hold back 
on making the landscape consultant’s report public at this stage. Should there be no change to the 
application then this report together with further comments would be submitted as a formal objection 
in time for it to be taken into account by the case officer before preparation. 
 
Michelle Bolger on behalf of Milton Estates Briefing Note 1: Additional information is required to 
accurately assess the landscape and visual impacts of the proposal. Given the height of the building 
insufficient information has been provided within the LVIA as to how much of the development would 

45



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 22 

be visible at other locations and underestimates the visibility at other locations. This would allow an 
assessment of mitigation from a reduction in height. A blimp survey should be undertaken during 
during winter/ early spring.  If unwilling to undertake a blimp survey, the applicant should provide a 
refined ZTV analysis, provide high resolution versions of all photography, represent the photographs 
to give a more accurate sense of scale and distance and confirm whether or not the elevated views 
were taken using the same camera as the standard viewpoint photographs.  
 
Michelle Bolger on behalf of Milton Estates - detailed Application Review:  The LVIA does not provide 
sufficient information to be able to fully assess the impact of the proposal. It is not known how much 
of the tower would be visible above the tree line and how much of a reduction in the tower’s height 
could mitigate some of the impacts.  
 
The proposed climbing centre does not have any reason for a country park, lakeside location. The 
existing buildings are sympathetic to the horizontal character of Ferry Meadows.  The proposed 
building would be highly visible and incongruous.  The existing facilities in the Lakeside Area are 
well screened from most of Ferry Meadows to the south and where visible, the buildings sit well 
below the treed horizon.  The tower will be visible from the wider area.  Milton assets may be affected. 
 
The proposal would result in an intensification of built development and a breaking of the currently 
unbroken treed skyline. Loss of the meadow to car parking will also have a significant landscape 
effect. The LVIA has not considered the night time effect, intensification of use, the uncharacteristic 
nature of the tower and the harm to the integrity of the meadow.   
 
The Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA) is inadequate because it relies too heavily on the LVIA, it 
has not followed guidance set out by Historic England (HE), in particular it has not identified how the 
setting of the assets contributes to their significance, it has only considered views from the HAs and 
not views towards them or connections between them, it has not considered the effects on the setting 
of Ferry House at all, it has failed to identify the effects on the setting of Ferry Bridge, in particular 
the effect of the development on views towards the Bridge have not been considered and it has used 
the current modified landscape as a justification for further harmful modifications, contrary to the 
approach recommended HE, it has described as ‘barely discernible’ effects that will be clearly 
evident changes to the setting of the assets. 
 
The site is partly located on the Lynch Farm Complex Scheduled Ancient Monument (SAM). HE 
state that the information submitted to date is insufficient and does not meet the aims and objectives 
of the NPPF. 
 
Neither the LVIA nor the HIS appear to have drawn on a recent study commissioned by the Nene 
Park Trust which identifies the heritage value of Ferry Meadows, the historic associations with Milton, 
including Ferry Bridge and the old drive way to Milton Park, to Ferry Meadows; and that the creation 
of Ferry Meadows Country Park in the 1970s fits the definition of a landscape designed purely for 
aesthetic effect and pleasure. 
 
Michelle Bolger on behalf of Milton Estates Briefing Note 2: Following review of the updated LVIA.  
No information has been provided as to which aspects of the assessment have been revised.  It is 
noted that there is no change to the LVIA Executive Summary from which one can conclude that the 
authors considered none of the ‘additional information or clarification’ to be of significance.  No 
additional information has been provided in the UpLVIA that addresses the reasons set out in the 
MBELC Review (paras 2.1-2.3) as to why the proposed building is appropriate within its setting.   
 
It is agreed that a wireframe format is a suitable form of visualisation however, the visualisations are 
not consistent with most of the other recommendations in TGN 06/19, in particular with reference to 
their presentation, the lack of supporting information, the lack of a methodology; and the lack of 
winter photographs. The visualisations fail on a number of the guiding principles, in particular that 
baseline photographs ‘should be presented at a size and relative position, on a corresponding sheet, 
to allow like-for-like comparison with the visualisation.’ Visualisations should ‘be  accompanied  by  
appropriate  information,  including  a  Technical Methodology and required data within page title 

46



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 23 

blocks.’ The producers of visualisations should ‘where reasonable within project timescales, include 
maximum effect scenario e.g. winter views. 
 
As well as failing to meet the recommendations of there is no explanation for the choice of the four 
locations. The assessment of the new visualisations in the UpLVIA (paras 5.97-5.101) does not 
address any of the key issues identified in either of the MBELC reports. 
 
Viewpoint 8 (Ferry Meadows Country Park). The visualisation confirms that in this view towards Ferry 
House the climbing centre tower will either obscure existing views of Ferry House or will be directly 
adjacent and significantly higher on the skyline. A key issue is the overall change to this view as a 
result of the introduction of the car park alongside views of the tower, currently there is no built 
development in this view. There is no indication on this visualisation of the extent of the proposed 
car park which will be in the foreground of the view. Even without detailed proposals it would have 
been simple to indicate the extent of the Meadow that would be lost to hard surfacing.  As it stands 
this visualisation is misleading. 
 
The UpLVIA has not provided a refined and legible Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV); High 
resolution photographs; Winter photography; and additional information regarding the photography 
and the visualisations.  In addition, no visualisations have been produced from due west along Mill  
Road/from the landscape to the north west; no night time assessment; no assessment of views from 
Nene Valley Railway; no assessment of the impact on the view toward Ferry House; no viewpoints 
from the old A47; no reference to the Ferry Meadows Heritage Value and Designed Landscape 
report; and no consideration of Ferry Meadows as a designed landscape. 
 
The majority of omissions from the original LVIA, identified by MBELC, have not been addressed in 
the UpLVIA. MBELC remain of the opinion that the assessment of impacts by the applicant is 
inadequate and the usefulness of the additional visualisations provided is undermined by their failure 
to adhere to a number of TGN 06/19 guiding principles. Overall, the UpLVIA has not altered the 
conclusions set out in the previous MBELC reports that the proposed development would be harmful 
to the character and appearance of the Ferry Meadows Country Park, and would harm visual amenity 
both within the Park and from the wider landscape to the north and north west. 
 
Michelle Bolger on behalf of Milton Estates Briefing Note 3 in response to comments provided by 
Red Kite Network Limited (RKN):  The 2019 Landscape comments concluded that the LVIA had 
underestimated the sensitivity of most receptors (sections 7.3-7.5) and  the magnitude of change in 
most circumstances (Section 11) and that the significance of the effects was greater than that 
assessed in the LVIA. In a number of instances concluding the effects should be moderate adverse 
rather than the moderate/minor adverse effects identified in the LVIA. The 2019 Landscape 
Statement describes these effects as ‘material harm.’ (13.9). The author did not accept the argument 
put forward in the LVIA that the proposed development was ‘entirely in keeping with the recreational  
character of the Country Park’ and consequently there would be no adverse impacts. (13.6). The 
author recommended that the decision on the application be deferred with regards to landscape and  
visual matters and made a number of recommendations. 
 
The 2020 Landscape Comments state that it should be read alongside the 2019 Landscape 
Comments. It is a little confused at times as to what was within the 2019 Landscape Comments and 
what was within the original LVIA. 
 
The author of the 2020 Landscape Comments does not review whether the recommendations in 
Section 14 of the 2019 Landscape Comments have been fulfilled by the UpLVIA.  Only one has been 
fulfilled - the car park’ and ‘open meadow’ have been assessed separately as landscape receptors 
however this assessment has not fed into any subsequent changes in the conclusions. 
 
There is no reference to landscape effects nor to the fact that the UpLVIA has neither undertaken 
the assessment of lighting effects nor revised the architecture/materials of the tower, both of which 
were considered essential in the 2019 Landscape Comments for an informed decision to be made. 
 

47



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 24 

It is not good practice for the landscape reviewer to say whether an application is acceptable or not. 
That is for the decision makers who must balance the benefits of the scheme (which are rarely 
landscape benefits) with the landscape harm. RKN concludes that there will be ‘material harm’ and 
this, along with other harms such as harm to heritage assets, should be balanced against the benefits 
of the scheme by the decision maker.   
 
Michelle Bolger on behalf of Milton Estates Briefing Note 4 re non-technical summary for screening 
opinion: The Savill’s Non-technical Summary states at paragraph 4.11 that ‘In selecting the 
wireframe views as a suitable method for representing the likely impacts of the development, regard 
has been given to Landscape Institute Technical Guidance Note 06/19: Visual Representation of  
Development Proposals.’ Whilst the choice of wireframes is in accordance with the guidance, the 
way in which they have been presented is not.  Landscape Briefing Note 2 paragraphs 11-19 sets 
out in detail how the visualisations fail a number of the guiding principles set out in Section 2 of 
Landscape Institute Technical Guidance Note. None of the issues identified in that Briefing Note 
have subsequently been addressed. 
 
The applicant’s conclusion that there will be no significant landscape effects as a result of the 
development, is based on the LVIA’s characterisation of the Ferry Meadows Country Park as having 
a strong formal recreational character which would not be harmed by the introduction of the climbing 
centre and tower.  The LVIA does not give any consideration to the fact that the existing recreational 
facilities are water related and that the existing buildings are horizontal in character and only visible 
from the immediately surroundings. No consideration is given to the fact that the climbing tower will 
be visible from large parts of the Park which are currently characterised by informal recreational 
within a natural setting, with very little existing influence from buildings. Impacts on the character of 
the Park and the visual amenity of its users are dismissed on the basis that ‘only the climbing tower 
itself is likely to be visible.   
 
The non-technical summary refers to RKN’s conclusion that the effects were acceptable, these are 
visual effects not landscape effects.  The initial RKN review (2019) considered that an assessment 
of lighting effects and revisions to the architecture/materials of the tower were both considered 
essential for an informed decision to be made. Neither were undertaken.  
 
Bidwells on behalf of Milton – Oct 2019:  Objection.  The proposal would be in conflict with the aims 
and objectives of Policy LP24, particularly with regards to its use, scale and character within the 
setting of the Nene Valley.  It is not a low-impact informal activity for this rural area of the Nene 
Valley. It would be more appropriately located within the urban area of Peterborough. 
 
The aim of creating an ‘activity village’ erodes away the rural nature of this area and will have a 
detrimental impact on the landscape, nature conservation and heritage values that contribute to the 
Nene Valley as a high amenity area. 
 
The development is contrary to para 8 of the NPPF and does not constitute sustainable development 
and fails to demonstrate how it meets the environmental objective which is to contribute to protecting 
and enhancing our natural, built and historic environment; including making effective use of land. 
 
The proposed development is an intensification of built development and does not respect or 
enhance the special characteristics of Ferry Meadows Country Park and its significant landscape 
and heritage importance within the Nene Valley.   
 
There is a lack of information regarding how much of the tower would be visible above the tree line 
and how lowering the tower’s height could mitigate some of the impacts. 
 
The 34.25m high tower would make the proposed building highly visible and incongruous. Limited 
visible built development is one of the characteristics that contribute to the sense of Ferry Meadows 
as a natural landscape with a high degree of tranquillity. The existing facilities in the Lakeside Area 
are well screened from most of Ferry Meadows to the south and where they are visible across 
Gunwade Lake, the buildings sit well below the treed horizon. 

48



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 25 

 
A Heritage Statement principally focusses on archaeology in the form of the scheduled ancient 
monuments. An assessment of the significance of the heritage assets surrounding the site has not 
been undertaken in accordance with NPPF paragraph 189. Likewise, the setting of the assets and 
the contribution that the site makes to those settings has not been defined. 
 
The HIS largely relies on the conclusions LVIA as to whether the proposals will be visible from these 
assets. The concept of setting is not purely a visual connection and extends to the wider 
surroundings of an asset, as such this assessment of impacts is incomplete. It should also be noted 
that an LVIA focusses on publicly accessible viewpoints, whereas a Heritage Impact Assessment 
should also take into account private viewpoints. The requirements of policy LP19 have not been 
met. 
 
Policy LP24 regarding development in the Nene Valley, we consider that the proposed development 
will result in an unsympathetic and incongruous development within the setting of a number of 
heritage assets, including the Grade II* listed Ferry Bridge and the Grade II* Registered Park and 
Garden of Milton Park, due to its excessive height. 
 

Bidwells on behalf of Milton Estates February 2020– further comments – Objection.  Conflict with 
Development Plan:  The 34.25m climbing centre does not respond appropriately to the context of 
the site and surrounding area. An indoor climbing centre is a formal activity and should be located 
within the urban area. Proposals within Ferry Meadows are required to be of a low-impact /informal 
activity more suited to the rural area of the Nene Valley.  
 
The proposals will also give rise to a significant increase in transport movements and reliance on 
motor vehicles. No measures are provided to encourage sustainable modes of transport. 
 
In terms of the use, scale and character of the proposal does not respond appropriately to the context 
of the site and surrounding area. Ferry Meadows is a Country Park within an area of high amenity, 
landscape, ecological and heritage value. The design is unsympathetic and will have an adverse 
impact on the natural and surrounding built environment.  As lighting will be required at night-time  
there will be significant light pollution causing unacceptable harm to the setting of this countryside 
location.  The proposal is therefore contrary to policies LP11 (Development in the Countryside Part 
E: The Rural Economy) LP13 (Transport), LP16 (Design and the Public Realm) LP19 (Historic 
Environment) LP24 (Nene Valley) and LP27 (Landscape Character). 
 
Impact on Heritage Assets:  We have sought expert opinion with regards to the impact the proposed 
development will have on designated heritage assets. The proposal involves both a direct impact 
upon a scheduled monument and adverse effects upon its setting. 
 
Development within a scheduled monument should be wholly exceptional. It is our opinion that 
insufficient evaluation has been carried out to inform the planning decision. For example, 
geophysical survey that has been shown to work well in the scheduled monument, and “enhance” 
our understanding of it, was not undertaken across the proposed development area (Pre Develop 
Archaeology Heritage Impact Statement [HIS], Page 10. As this is a nonintrusive technique, it is 
ideally suited for evaluating a site and allowing trenching to be targeted. 
 
The trenching itself comprised two 50m trenches within the scheduled monument representing less 
than 2% of the scheduled area affected by the development. This small sample is insufficient to 
characterise the archaeology of the monument that could be affected.  The nature of the trenches 
(long and linear) are best suited to pick up linear features (such as ditches) and not settlement 
remains typified by post-holes, for example. 
 
The inadequacy of the evaluation is noted by your City Archaeologist in her consultation response 
of 6th January 2020: “These features are not characterised nor securely dated”: Notwithstanding the 
inadequacy of the evaluation, the conclusions drawn in the HIS (Table 3.3, page 21) confirm that 
direct, physical damage will be caused to the archaeology within the scheduled monument, and that 

49



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 26 

this will amount to a “medium adverse impact”. It states that “a programme of archaeological work 
would greatly mitigate the loss [of] archaeology’. We do not understand what “greatly” means in the 
context of mitigation, but, the fact that mitigation is required is a clear statement that damage will be 
caused to archaeology within a scheduled monument. 
 
The City Archaeologist confirms that damage to archaeology will occur and recommends a strip map 
and sample approach to mitigation. As set out in NPPF, any harm to a scheduled monument must 
be wholly exceptional. We are surprised therefore that the City Archaeologist believes that direct, 
physical damage to the scheduled monument is ‘in compliance with’ both NPPF and your Local Plan. 
 
Setting of the scheduled monument: The assessment of the impact of the proposed development 
upon the setting of the scheduled monument is wholly inadequate. The HIS notes at page 17 Historic 
England’s guidance (GPA3): Despite stating that discussions “are framed” by GPA3, there has been 
no attempt to follow the methodology contained within it to assess the effects upon setting. HE 
recommends a 5-stage approach leading to a conclusion on significance. The HIS simply states 
(page 18), with no explanation of how the conclusion was reached.  
 
Given that a 32.45m high tower will be introduced into the immediate landscape of a scheduled 
monument, and given that it is accepted in the brief statement above that it will “change the setting 
of the scheduled monument”, the lack of a quantifiable assessment removes all credibility and 
confidence in the conclusion reached. 
 
A 32.45m high tower is a very prominent intrusion into an historic landscape: it bears no resemblance 
to the “existing recreational facilities and a modern access road’. 
 
The archaeological aspects of this planning application were poorly scoped, and the methodology  
employed wholly inadequate. Even taking into account these deficiencies, the conclusion reached 
in the Applicant’s HIS accepts that there will be harm to both below-ground archaeology and to the 
setting of the monument. The City Archaeologist’s consultation response reinforces the inadequacy 
of the evaluation through lack of characterisation and the damage that will be caused to archaeology. 
This is demonstrably contrary to NPPF paragraph 193 and Policy LP19 of the Local Plan. Planning  
Policy is clear on impact to a scheduled monument, borne out and tested at Inquiry. Any harm to a  
scheduled monument must be wholly exceptional. 
 
Landscape Harm:  MBELC remain of the opinion that the assessment of impacts by the applicant is 
inadequate and the usefulness of the additional visualisations provided is undermined by lack of 
rationale for the choice of viewpoints and their failure to adhere to a number of TGN 06/19 guiding 
principles. Overall, the updated LVIA has not altered the conclusions set out in the previous MBELC 
reports. 
 
The proposed climbing centre does not have any reason for a country park, lakeside location. The 
need for the 34.25m high tower would make the proposed building highly visible and incongruous. 
There is limited visible built development and existing facilities are well screened and where they are 
visible, across Gunwade Lake, the buildings sit well below the treed horizon. 
 
The development will be clearly visible in views across Gunwade Lake and the tower will be visible 
from a much wider area from within Ferry Meadows and from the wider landscape to the north west 
and west. 
 
Flood Risk – Sequential Test and Exception Test: The proposed development is located within Flood 
Zone 3 – a Sequential Test and Exception Test in line with paragraphs 155 -160 of the NPPF is 
required.  As the proposal is for an out of centre leisure use, the applicant is required to demonstrate 
that there are no other sequentially preferable sites within Peterborough City Centre and the edge 
of Peterborough.   
 
The sites that have been assessed and discounted within the report do not confirm that there are no  
other reasonably available suitable sites in areas of lower flood risk. An informed assessment cannot 

50



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 27 

therefore be undertaken.  Request that a sequential test and exception test is carried out in line with 
the NPPF and National Planning Practice Guidance. 
 
Alternative Sites for Consideration:  The development would be more appropriately located within 
the urban area of Peterborough.  The former Whitworth Mill at Fletton Quays should be considered 
as a suitable alternative site and is available; and Alwalton Hill, Plot 302a formerly owned by 
Pressglass Ltd is also available and should be considered as part of the site assessment for the 
Sequential Test.  
 
Bidwells on behalf of Milton Estates January 2021– further comments – Objection.  The amended 
Heritage Impact Statement remains insufficient to fully identify, and draw conclusion upon, the 
heritage impacts of the proposed development. There is no reference to the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, which sets the statutory duty in Section 66: In 
considering whether to grant planning permission or permission in principle for development which 
affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the 
Secretary of State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting 
or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.  The primary legislation 
should be referenced. 
 
The Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) does not fully consider the impacts of the proposed 
development on the significance of the identified heritage assets. Instead it draws conclusions based 
on perceived impacts on setting. The setting of an asset is not a designation in itself, and it is the 
impact on an asset’s significance which is most important to understand. Historic England’s 2017 
The Setting of Heritage Assets guidance document sets out a staged approach which can be used 
to assess setting and potential impacts of development.  
 
The heritage assets are each briefly described in the HIS but  there is no discussion of the 
contribution that their settings make to significance before section 3.2 of the HIS ‘Assessment of the 
impact of the development proposals on heritage assets’. This section does include ‘physical impact’ 
and ‘impact on setting’ of the proposals on each identified asset, however there is no description of 
the setting and its contribution to the asset’s significance.  
 
Without a full understanding of the contribution setting makes to significance, it is not possible to  
fully assess what impact the proposed development will have on the significance of the asset  
(rather than only its setting). Indeed, the HIS assesses impact of the proposals on each asset’s  
setting, but not on their significance.  
 
In certain cases, the contribution of setting to the significance of the identified assets is very high  
and these settings are highly susceptible to effects within them. Thus, assessments based only  
on degrees of impact to setting will not be reliable where they are not then connected to the 
resultant impact on significance. 
 
The two above points are, we consider, of high importance to the understanding of the impacts of 
the proposed development in this context and are highly relevant to the Local Planning Authority’s 
decision making with regard to their statutory duties. 
 
Bidwells on behalf of Milton Estates February 2021– further comments – Objection.  The site is 
located in an area designated as Flood Risk 2 and Flood Risk 3 and therefore has a high risk of 
flooding. Flooding has occurred in the area on several occasions over the last 22 years. Furthermore,  
climate change is expected to increase flood risk and this must be considered as part of future 
development proposals. The plans as currently submitted do not sufficiently demonstrate that the 
significant risk from flooding, both to people and property, can be appropriately mitigated.  
 
The existing adjoining Watersports Centre sits at the same level as the flood plain which is 6.0m OD.  
However, the rear elements of the building were set at 5.45m OD which did not meet the criteria set 
by the Environment Agency at the time and it has been flooded. The submitted Flood Risk 
Assessment (FRA) - 25 July 2019 advises the finished floor levels for the new Activity Centre shall 

51



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 28 

be set no lower than 6.70 metres above AOD. The requirement for 6.70 metres above AOD is 700mm 
higher than the existing Watersports building but the submitted elevation drawings (Ref: A-L-300 
Rev A and Ref: A-L-203 Rev A) appear to show them both at the same level. The drawings are not 
clear and need to be updated.   The drawings do not show site levels for the existing Watersports 
Centre. Without the detail on the plans it is not possible to ensure that the proposals will not increase 
floodrisk at the site or adjoining areas (para. 160 NPPF).  
 
Finally, the submitted design and access statement states that the building will sit on a concrete 
plinth to protect from flooding but this is not shown clearly on any of the submitted planning drawings. 
Given the level of the flood plain at 6.0m OD, then the floor construction can only be 700mm thick – 
is this sufficient for such a heavy building with concrete walls? The detail of this concrete plinth below 
platform level is crucial given the high flood risk of the area and the need to ensure mitigation 
measures can be achieved in line with the requirements of the Environment Agency and national 
and local planning policy. Indeed, the NPPF confirms that new development should be planned for 
in ways that avoid increased vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from climate change and 
when new development is brought forward in areas which are vulnerable, care should be taken to 
ensure that risks can be managed through suitable adaptation measures (paragraph 150).  
 
Dr Robert Stebbings:  Initial comments -  The  Ecological  Report  omits  any  mention  of  the  most  
significant adjacent quality ecological habitats, namely  the lakes and wetlands.  This is a serious 
omission.  The Cambridgeshire  Bat  Group  has  undertaken  observations  for  over  35  years  and  
it  seems  they were not consulted about their results.  The Nene valley and especially the Nene 
Park is an important area for bats and several  hundred bats of  five species feed in the area each 
appropriate night through the summer.  
 
The principal problem would be increased lighting and extended hours into the night.  Even tiny 
amounts of lighting  exclude  bats  from  foraging  areas and will  reduce the  survival  of individual 
bats as they are prevented to feed in key areas over the lakes  and  around  trees and woodland. 
Lighting in the area is already too bright and extensive. Bat boxes as a wildlife enhancement measure 
are completely irrelevant to this scheme. 
 
A full assessment should be made for both the development area and adjacent woodland, trees, 
scrub and especially the extensive wetlands and lakes. The Nene Park Trust area contains a 
regionally important foraging resource for bats which eat the insects which originate from the lakes, 
grasslands and surrounding trees and woodlands.  A detailed lighting plan showing actual light levels 
throughout and without the proposed development must be included in any Planning Application. 
 
Recommends a substantial series of observations on bats throughout the summer season from May  
to end of September.    
 
Further comments: The Nene Park was conceived as a green lung for Peterborough. The 
Development Corporation considered that people needed a quiet countryside to re-energise 
themselves in their ever increasingly busy lives. This concept has been largely achieved with the 
wonderful interconnected open spaces along the river of meadows, woodlands and the fresh water 
bodies as well as the ever changing river. Indeed, this importance has been recently acknowledged 
by a Wildlife Trust and Northants Council initiative in protecting the nationally important wildlife 
habitats all along the Nene. The scheme called a Nature Improvement Area (NIAs) has received 
Government financial support for its importance for wildlife and us. One of the Nene Park Trusts 
guiding principles is to Conserve and Safeguard Wildlife. 
 
The NPT’s planning proposals are serving to negate one of the most important of the principles on 
which the Trust was established. Apart from an inappropriate development in the countryside, one 
major problem relates to lighting. The police advise that bright lighting is needed to help make the 
site safer for visitors.  The proposed amount of light would constitute a considerable negative impact 
to the biodiversity of that area. Bats are some of the most highly protected animal species in Britain 
and Europe. Unless black-out blinds were installed, any windows in the proposed building will spill 
huge amounts of light over habitats currently used by bats for foraging. 

52



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 29 

 
A detailed appraisal of the lighting of highways in relation to bat foraging/usage of habitats/wildlife 
corridors on behalf of Highways and Caerphilly District Council, found, in general, bats were much 
more affected by even very low lighting. Light levels should be below 0.005lux (ie 100 times less 
than the Councils Wildlife Officer reported in his submission and far above what would be acceptable 
at lake edge levels as described by the developers.) Lighting should be addressed from sunset to 
dawn. Lighting should be only at ground level with no spillage into the lakes, meadows or woodland 
and hedgerows. 
 
Bats need the scrub and treed areas on land around the lakes more than just over water. As insects 
emerge from water often they drift towards land where bats of many species forage. This river valley  
is important to bats. The valley habitats are a key wildlife corridor for all species of bats as well as 
for many other species. 
 
Peterborough & District Angling Association (P&DAA) – Object.  P&DAA retain the fishing rights 
to Overton/Gunwade lakes and the surrounding River Nene. 
 
Disabled Access:  There are currently 2 purpose-built fishing platforms on Gunwade Lake dedicated 
to angling for disabled members, in close proximity to the lakeside disabled parking facilities. The 
proposed disabled parking is limited at the rear of the LAC.  This will create accessibility issues for 
disabled anglers. We are aware of an ‘arrival plaza’ that, it has been suggested, could be used as a 
‘drop off’ point, but this is not a feasible solution for less-abled anglers with often large amounts of 
valuable equipment. Nor are we convinced that security concerns at this ‘arrival plaza’ for members 
of the public leaving their property unattended have been satisfactorily addressed. 
  
General Angling Access:  The proposed development will remove general angling access from the 
current lakeside car park to the new proposed ‘main car park’, a considerable increase in distance 
on what is already a large venue involving long walks to most areas with large amounts of equipment. 
Again, the proposed ‘arrival plaza’ is not a feasible solution for anglers to leave equipment of 
significant value possibly unattended whilst parking. A reduction in accessibility will, in our view, be 
detrimental to the angling viability of a venue currently considered to be one of the UK’s foremost 
natural waters, and may, in turn, have a direct impact on the membership of the Association.  
 
Aesthetics and Nene Park Usage:  The management committee of P&DAA do not believe that the 
proposed Lakeside Activity Centre is in keeping with the nature of Nene Park, neither aesthetically 
nor philosophically. As previously mentioned, from an angling perspective, Ferry Meadows is known 
as and considered to be one of the foremost ‘natural water’ venues in the UK.  The proposed 34.5m 
structure and adjoining developments could only be to the detriment of this. Angling is intrinsic to 
Ferry Meadows and the people of Peterborough and we, the P&DAA, believe that the proposed, in 
its current form, can only serve to negatively affect this.  
 
Alternative considerations:  Should the above considerations be addressed, in part or whole, and 
the Association further consulted regarding, primarily, accessibility issues, but also general impact 
on angling viability as a result of the proposed development, the management committee would 
reconsider its objection of the proposed developments. 
 
Second comments:  Any changes made to the application do not materially alter our concerns. 
 
 
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
a) Background 
 
Nene Park Trust (NPT) is the registered charity which looks after Nene Park in its entirety. Nene 
Park was part of Peterborough’s 1968 expansion masterplan. Originally within the control of the 
Peterborough Development Corporation, the management of the Park was transferred in 1988 to 
the NPT. The Trust was provided with a 999 year lease on the land and was endowed with 

53



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 30 

commercial properties and other assets which now generate some of the income required to 
maintain the Park. 
 
The core purpose of the Trust is to provide facilities for recreation, education and leisure; establish 
parkland facilities; conserve and safeguard wildlife; preserve, restore and develop park features 
(infrastructure).   
 
The proposed development is part of a masterplan to ensure the Trust delivers its fundamental 
charitable purposes alongside ensuring sustainability as the Trust’s land is held in perpetuity for the 
benefit of the people of Peterborough.  NPT consider the LAC to be a key part of the masterplan and 
it is envisaged that the LAC would be climbing focussed and unique in England,  hosting  the  three  
Olympic  climbing  disciplines – speed, bouldering and lead (to  be  introduced  at  2021 Olympics).  
 
It is intended that the LAC would create an activity hub, influenced by the existing watersports 
facilities and recently introduced cycle hire offer alongside the other active outdoors attractions such 
as play areas and walking trails.  Although the watersports and cycle hire are popular they are highly 
seasonal and the proposal would help meet the Trust’s charitable objective of providing all year-
round recreation for the people of Peterborough.  
 
Pre-application enquiry 
 
A pre-planning enquiry was made to the Local Planning Authority (LPA) in May 2018. The LPA was 
supportive of the proposal subject to a Sequential Test in terms of the site location, being passed 
and assessment of supporting information on material planning matters including a Visual Impact 
Assessment, Heritage Statement, Landscape Assessment, Ecology Statement, Transport 
Statement and Flood Risk Assessment/Drainage Strategy. 
 
EIA Screening Opinion 
 
Subsequent to the submission of the application a screening opinion was issued by the Local 
Planning Authority (ref.  19/00001/SCREEN).  The Screening Opinion was based on a suite of 
documentation and technical reports submitted in support of the application for the LAC and on the 
responses received having consulted with relevant specialist consultees.  The LPA considered that 
the development would not have significant  environmental  effects  and  as  such  an  Environmental  
Impact  Assessment  was  not required. 
 
An independent screening opinion was sought by Milton Estates to the Secretary of State (ref.  
PCU/EIASCR/JO540/3250843).  The opinion of the Secretary of State was that the proposal is not 
likely to have significant effects on the environment and that the proposed development is not ‘EIA 
development’ within the meaning of the 2017 Regulations. 
 
b) The Principle of Development 
 
The site is located within Nene Valley as designated under policy LP24 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Local Plan (2019).   The Nene Valley area is identified as having high amenity, landscape, ecological 
and heritage value. The supporting text to policy LP24 refers to facilities such as Ferry Meadows 
Country Park being within the Nene Valley and that ‘there is still scope for further action to enhance 
the Nene Valley's role for recreation, whilst having due regard to enhancing the natural environment. 
It is envisaged that there will be a gradual transition from informal, dispersed activities in the rural 
area to more organised, formal activities in the urban area. The Nene Park Master Plan (2017) will 
provide a mechanism for addressing some of the above issues.’ 
 
Policy LP24 advises that the Council will support development that will safeguard and enhance 
recreation and/or bring landscape, nature conservation, heritage, cultural or amenity benefits 
provided the proposal is appropriate in terms of use, scale and character within its townscape or 
landscape setting. 
 

54



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 31 

Ferry Meadows provides a leisure and recreational facility serving the residents of Peterborough and 
beyond. Although located outside of the urban area boundary, it is within relatively close proximity 
to a densely populated area and is accessible via a number of footpaths and cycleways.  It is 
accepted that the height of the building, particularly the ‘tower’ element would be undeniably high 
and certainly higher than the neighbouring Lakeside/Watersports building and indeed any of the 
existing development within the park.  However, in terms of the character of the wider Nene Valley 
area, this location has more of an association with the nearby urban area.   It is considered that this 
part of the Nene Valley has a less rural character compared with other areas of the Valley where the 
building would be very imposing.  The proposal would form part of the wider city initiative to secure 
improvements along the river valley and therefore the principle of the development would be 
compliant with policy LP24.   
 
A significant number of objections have been raised regarding the principle of the development with 
regard to the proposal not adhering to the original concept of the park and that the proposal has no 
relationship with the informal recreation opportunities at Ferry Meadows.  It is not considered that 
the proposal would change the overall character of the park as it would occupy a relatively small 
area which is already an area of increased activity for example the Lakeside Centre, sailing centre 
and the playground, compared with quieter areas of the park. It is accepted that the objectors to the 
proposal are passionate about the park which for many is ‘on their doorstep’ and have a connection 
with it.  However the purpose of the park is to provide a recreation and leisure facility that benefits 
all the residents of Peterborough and visitors. 
 
The proposal would enhance the recreational offer at Ferry Meadows providing an Olympic-standard 
climbing centre. Climbing is growing in popularity with many climbing walls opening across the 
country.   It is considered that the LAC will complement the services already provided in this part of 
the park including the Watersports Centre, cycle shop and associated facilities and improve the long 
term viability and sustainability of the services provided at Ferry Meadows. This development will 
help meet the Trust’s charitable objective of providing ‘all year-round’ recreation for the people of 
Peterborough and beyond ensuring Ferry Meadows Country Park as a major destination attracting 
visitors and bringing benefits to the city.  This is in line with the overall landscape strategy for the 
`Ferry Meadows Corridor’ LCA Sub-Area.  
 
It is noted that a number of objectors have referred to the Park becoming more commercial and that 
this is against the original ethos and purpose of the park.  However, for the Park to continue to be 
sustainable and offer benefits to the community and visitors it has to secure income.  It is anticipated 
that the LAC would generate over £2 million/pa contributing to the local economy with around 
112,000 visits to the facility; a significant amount of these would be by individuals outside of the area.  
This would also benefit the local economy with additional spending on accommodation and 
retail/catering outlets and so on.  The proposal would also provide employment opportunities. 
 
In addition, with Peterborough’s projected housing growth and estimated expansion of population, 
along with the City’s campus-based university with an undergraduate population of 12,500 students, 
the proposal will help meet the demands of a diverse and expanding population and would contribute 
to the vision for Peterborough to become a ‘destination of choice….and providing a range of high 
quality attractions and facilities making it a distinctive place to live, work and visit’.  The proposal 
would not only provide financial benefits to the Park it would also stimulate wider investment in the 
city.  
 
The supporting information states that there is a gap in the market with no similar facilities within an  
hour’s drive.  The climbing wall at Bretton, although modest is size has now closed, however this 
facility has engaged well with schools and the LAC would build on this.  The LAC would provide a 
range of climbing facilities including, the ‘Clip ‘n’ Climb’ which would be the only facility of its kind in 
Peterborough. 
 
The LAC could also deliver a number of health benefits encouraging participation in physical activity.   
Para 91 of the NPPF advises that ‘planning decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and 
safe places which..promote social interaction, including opportunities for meetings between people, 

55



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 32 

…enable and support healthy lifestyles, especially where this would address identified local health 
and well-being needs’; and para 92 advises ’to provide the social, recreational and cultural facilities 
and services, planning decisions should: … support the delivery of local strategies to improve health, 
social and cultural well-being for all sections of the community’. 
 
In addition, Policy LP7 of the Adopted Local Plan is supportive of development which facilitates 
“participation in sport and physical activity”. The LAC would improve and promote healthy and active 
lifestyles for the local population offering a range of facilities which would have the incidental benefit 
of encouraging a greater use of the park facilities and the outdoor environment and the subsequent 
benefits to health. 
 
The Sport England Strategy ‘Uniting the Movement’ advocates that ‘although parks not usually 
designed exclusively for exercise, and certainly not for specific sports, do provide a vital resource.’  
The proposal may attract different audiences to active lifestyles who may never attend a sports club 
or a gym. 
 
It should be noted that there have also been a significant number of representations received in 
support of the proposal, who believe it will be a great asset for the city, bringing benefits to the 
community.  Supporters believe there is a growing interest for climbing and many places of similar 
size to Peterborough have climbing walls. 
 
In conclusion it is considered that the LAC would enhance the recreational offer within the Nene 
Valley, bring recognisable benefits to the viability and sustainability of Ferry Meadows as well as the 
wider Peterborough economy, promote active and healthy lifestyles and would accord with policies 
LP7, LP11(e) and LP24 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and paras.  91 and 92 of 
the NPPF. 
 
The principle of development is considered to be acceptable subject to meeting the criteria of 
relevant planning policy and material planning considerations. 
 
c) Location of the LAC Facility 
 
The proposal is for a leisure facility with the potential of attracting a large numbers of visitors from 
within the Peterborough area and beyond. Policy LP30 of the Local Plan advises that the preferred 
location for new facilities such as the climbing wall would be within the city centre which would accord 
with the overall spatial policy for the intensification and regeneration of the city centre.  Policy LP30 
supports such facilities, especially where they would help to improve the range, quality, and 
distinctiveness of facilities that the city and surrounding areas have to offer; it improves access by 
sustainable transport modes to such facilities; and it will help to promote the image of Peterborough 
and attract more visitors.  Policy LP30 also goes on to say that in exceptional circumstances when 
there is not an appropriate city centre site, due to the nature and scale of the proposed development, 
other locations will be considered in accordance with a sequential approach to site selection as 
outlined in policy LP12. 
 
The hierarchy of designated centres in Peterborough is the city centre as the first preference, 
followed by the consideration of edge of centre sites, sites within the District Centres of Bretton, 
Hampton, Millfield, Orton and Werrington and then, where appropriate, Local Centres.  For sites 
outside of these designated areas a sequential approach should be applied to demonstrate that there 
are no suitable, available and viable sites higher in the search criteria. 
 
The application, as initially submitted, was supported with a sequential test however, the document 
focussed on vacant industrial units which are mostly in out-of-centre locations and these locations 
are not sequentially more preferable than the proposed site.   
 
An addendum to the sequential test was subsequently submitted however, again, not all vacant units 
or sites within the City Centre, District Centres and on the edge centre had been assessed.   A further 
sequential test has been submitted. 

56



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 33 

 
It is acknowledged that this is a bespoke facility that has specific premises requirements.  For 
example the building would need to be a minimum of 25m in height and would need a minimum 
floorspace of  500 sq.m  over one or two floors. A minimum area of 1 Ha of land would be required 
to accommodate the building and sufficient car parking.  Therefore a site is only suitable if it can 
accommodate these requirements. 
 
The applicant refers to the Tesco Stores limited (Appellants) v Dundee City case, where the Supreme 
Court ruled that “suitable” means “suitable for the development proposed by the applicant”. The 
sequential test should be considered in the context of the exact development proposed by an 
applicant.  There is no requirement in the NPPF to disaggregate a proposal to accommodate 
elements of a proposed development on smaller, sequentially preferable sites, recognising this may 
lead to an applicant seriously compromising  their  proposal.   
 
A search was undertaken of all commercial premises available to buy or rent within Peterborough 
City Centre, District Centres and edge of Centre sites. ‘Edge of centre’ for the purposes of this search 
would include any premises within a 500 metre buffer of the city and district centres. 
 
A search was also undertaken of allocations in the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  Consideration 
was also given to the sites suggested by the Peterborough Civic Society. 
 
Whilst the first preference for LAC would be the city centre;  given the height of the proposed scheme 
and the close proximity to the Peterborough Cathedral many city centre sites would not be suitable.  
Policy LP19 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan advises against development that would 
unacceptably detract from important views of Peterborough Cathedral by virtue of its height, location, 
bulk or design. 
 
A number of comments made by objectors have referred to alternative sites which they consider 
should be reviewed by the applicant.   Many suggestions are for industrial sites, however and as 
stated above, these are no more sequentially preferable than the application site.  Comments on the 
suggested alternative sites are summarised below: 
 
Embankment:   This area lies within the Riverside North Policy Area (Policy LP50) states that ‘any 

built development will be confined to the northern part of the site and along the  frontage to Bishops 

Road’. It also states that ‘views of the Cathedral from the south and south east and the settings of 

the Lido and Customs House should be preserved’. Planning permission has recently been granted 

for University (LP51.1) (ref.  20/01044/R4FUL). The height of the proposal would detract from critical 

views by virtue of its height, on the Cathedral. There are significant views of the cathedral from the 

Embankment and to the south and south east. 

Wellington Street car park:  This area lies within the Boongate Policy Area (Policy LP52). The site  
is allocated for mixed use site, including retail and leisure uses and car parking (LP52.2).  The height 
of the proposal would detract from critical views by virtue of its height, on the Cathedral.    
 
Dicken’s Street car park:  This area lies within the Boongate Policy Area (Policy LP52).  The site is 
allocated for residential use (LP52.1).  The height of the proposal would detract from critical views 
by virtue of its height, on the Cathedral.   
 
Football club car park:  The site is located within the Riverside South Policy Area (LP50).  The height 
of the proposal would detract from critical views by virtue of its height, on the Cathedral. NPT require 
min of 1 hectare of land  would  be  required  to accommodate the building and sufficient car parking. 
The site area is 0.37 hectares and therefore below the established operational requirements for 
Nene Park Trust. 
 
Fair Meadow car park:  The site is located within the Riverside South Policy Area (LP50).  The site 
is allocated for mixed use (LP50.2). Including leisure and commercial LP50.  The height of the 
proposal would detract from critical views by virtue of its height, on the Cathedral. NPT require min 

57



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 34 

of 1 Ha of land  would  be  required  to accommodate the building and sufficient car parking.  The 
site area is 0.83 hectares and therefore below the established operational requirements for Nene 
Park Trust. 
 
Railworld car park:  The site lies within the Riverside South Policy Area (LP50).  The site is allocated 
for residential use (LP50.1). The height of the proposal would detract from critical views by virtue of 
its height, on the Cathedral. NPT require min of 1 Ha of  land  would  be  required  to accommodate 
the building and sufficient car parking.  The site area is 2.77 Ha and therefore could meet the 
established operational requirements for Nene Park Trust.    
 
Railway station car park:  The site lies within the Riverside South Policy Area (LP50).  The site is 
allocated for residential use (LP50.1).    The height of the proposal would detract from critical views 
by virtue of its height, on the Cathedral. The site area is 2.4 Ha and therefore could meet the 
established operational requirements for Nene Park Trust.   
 
Bourges: The site is designated by the adopted Local Plan as General Employment Area (GEA1). 
Policy LP4 states that ‘within General Employment Areas planning permission will be granted for 
development within Use Classes B1, B2 and B8’’. GEA1 is also a ‘Transport Zone’ and ‘Transport 
Safeguarding Area’. The height of the proposal would detract from critical views by virtue of its height, 
on the Cathedral. NPT require min of 1 Ha of  land  would  be  required  to accommodate the building 
and sufficient car parking.  The site are is 5 Ha and therefore could meet the established operational 
requirements for Nene Park Trust. The area identified as GEA1 is prioritised for Use Classes B1, B2 
and B8.   
 
Fengate south:  LP37.27 allocated for housing up to 350 units.  The height of the proposal would 
detract from critical views by virtue of its height, on the Cathedral. NPT require min of 1 Ha of  land  
would  be  required  to accommodate the building and sufficient car parking.  The site are is 13.77 
ha and therefore could meet the established operational requirements for Nene Park Trust. 
 
East of England Showground:  The site is designated within the adopted Local Plan under Policy 
LP36 which states ‘facilities related to the function of shows, conference facilities (D2 and D2), 
employment related development and residential development of 650 new dwellings 
(indicative)’would be supported in principle. The site could meet the established operational 
requirements for NPT however the site is no more sequentially preferable than the application site. 
 
Thorpe Wood Business Park:  LP46.5 business use.  The allocation is over 500 metres from a District 
Centre and therefore is not considered sequentially preferable. 
 
Gateway Peterborough (GEA12):  LP44.2. The allocation is over 500 metres from a District Centre 
and therefore is not considered sequentially preferable.  In addition the majority of the plots have 
been developed or under construction and there is a maximum height limit for development between 
15-20m excluding plot E2.1 which has an element at 35m. 
 
Alwalton Hill, Plot 302a:  The site has recently been granted planning permission for a parcel delivery 
operator ref. 20/01142/FUL 
 
The Flour Mill site at Fletton Quays:   There would be substantial objection from a heritage 

perspective for demolition.  There would also be ecological issues.   

To the east of the Former Mill:  This would remove the view of the Cathedral from the Fletton 
Recreation Ground and would compete with other views of the Cathedral. 
 
Orton Mere:  This is not a sequentially preferable location.  It is very near built up development and 
there would be possible impact upon the setting of the Orton Waterville Conservation Area. 
 
Rowing Lake:  There would be an impact on significant views of the Cathedral.  This area is also in 

flood zone 3. 

58



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 35 

Thorpe Meadows pay and display car park:  This is not a sequentially preferable location.  There 
would also be an impact on the setting of Thorpe Hall/Parks and Gardens. 
 
Sites a Hampton (lots of land):  Unless located within the district centre other sites would not be 
sequentially preferable. 
 
Woodlands, Castor:  There would be impact on the heritage assets within Castor and it is not a 

sequentially preferable location.  Woodlands has planning permission for a care facility and 

development is currently under construction. 

Thorpe Wood Business Park:   This area is allocated for employment use and is not within a 
sequentially preferable location. 
 
Either side of The Pearl Centre building:  The area is allocated for employment use and is not 
within a sequentially preferable location.  The Pearl Centre is a listed building and there is potential 
for impact on the Alwalton Conservation Area. 
 
The ‘Toys are Us’ site:  This site has recently become occupied with two retail units. 
 
Sites within Ferry Meadows 
 
One of the fields near the Visitors Centre/top car park:  This would be within the Scheduled 
Monument. 
 
Camping Field/area south of Overton Lake:  This area is used as a camping site.  It is doubtful 
there would be space to accommodate the facility in this area and the proposed location has 
context with existing facilities. 
 
Area to the north west of Lynch Farm bridge:  Most of this area is within the Schedule Monument 
and there would also be an impact on the setting of the Listed Building. 
 
Adjacent to the overflow car park:  This would be within the Scheduled Monument. 
 
It is noted that a number of objectors have referred to reasons stated within the sequential approach 
for a particular site not be viable in terms of cost to the applicant of acquiring land not within their 
ownership.  This is not a material consideration when assessing the suitability of sites. 
 
It is considered that the applicant has followed due process in terms of the sequential test which has 
demonstrated there are no sequentially preferable sites that could accommodate the proposal.  Due 
to the scale and nature of the proposal there are few locations where the facility could be 
accommodated, for example, without impacting on visual or neighbouring amenity and this is 
recognised under policy LP30 and also within National Planning Policy Guidance (para 012) which 
refers to specific locational requirements. 
 
The sequential approach has been reviewed by the Policy Officer who is satisfied with the report. 
The sequential test is therefore passed.   
 
Although the application site is located outside of a designated centre it is within an established 
country park which functions as a recreational and leisure facility serving the wider community.  The 
LAC would be relative to the context of this part of the park and would complement and enhance 
existing facilities, particularly at times when visitor numbers are low, such as in the winter.  The 
principle of enhancing the recreational offer is supported under policy LP24 of the adopted 
Peterborough Local Plan.   
 
Impact Assessment 
 
Policy LP12 requires that proposals for leisure developments outside of centres with a gross external 

59



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 36 

floor space over 280 sq metres be accompanied by an impact assessment, which includes a robust 
assessment of impact on nearby centres.  A Leisure Impact Assessment has been submitted.  The 
Assessment demonstrates that the proposal does not result in a significant adverse impact on any 
defined centre in the City. Guidance is given under para 015 of the NPPG advising that impact should 
be assessed on a like-for-like basis in respect of that particular sector.  The Assessment states that 
in this instance the assessment of impact can only relate to the impact that the proposal would have 
on existing climbing facilities.  
 
The assessment concludes that the only climbing  facility  in  Peterborough  is  the  outdoor  climbing  
wall  located  at  Nene  Park  where  the application site is located. This is not located within a centre; 
the applicant is not aware of any proposals for existing, committed or planned investment within a 
centre that includes provision for a climbing facilities; and there are no existing climbing facilities 
located within centres in Peterborough.  Therefore the proposal would not have an impact on defined 
centre locations in the City and the proposal does not represent a challenge to the vitality and viability 
of centres. 
 
The policy officer has assessed the impact assessment.  The Officer notes that there is an existing 
indoor climbing facility in the City which has been in operation for several years.  Due to the current 
COVID, it closed in March 2020, but it is unlikely to reopen. If this wall had been in a centre, then it 
would be a material planning consideration. 
 
Having assessed the sequential approach to site selection and the impact assessment the proposal 
accords with policies LP12, LP24 and LP30 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and 
paras 86, 87 and 89 of the NPPF (2019). 
 
d) Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
Sequential Test 
 
The site lies within Flood Zone 2 and 3 as defined on the Environment Agency’s Flood Maps.  Policy 
LP32 of the Adopted Local Plan advises that in areas known to be at risk of flooding development 
will only be permitted following the successful completion of a sequential test and an exception test;  
the submission of a site specific Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) (setting out flood risk management 
and demonstrating no increased risk of flooding to the site or existing properties and where possible 
seek to reduce flood risk; and consideration of maintenance and management and incorporation of  
Sustainable Drainage Systems.   
 
The NPPF advises that inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by 
directing development away from areas at highest risk (whether existing or future). Where 
development is necessary in such areas, the development should be made safe for its lifetime 
without increasing flood risk elsewhere (para 155).  The aim of the sequential test is to steer new 
development to areas with a lower risk of flooding.  Development should not be permitted if there are 
reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower risk of 
flooding (para. 158).   If it is not possible for development to be located in zones with a lower risk of 
flooding (taking into account wider sustainable development objectives), the exception test may have 
to be applied. The need for the exception test will depend on the potential vulnerability of the site 
and of the development proposed, in line with the Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification set out in 
national planning guidance (para. 159). For the exception test to be passed it should be 
demonstrated that: a) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community 
that outweigh the flood risk; and b) the development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the 
vulnerability of its users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce 
flood risk overall (para 160).  Both elements of the exception test should be satisfied for development 
to be allocated or permitted (para. 161).  
 
A Flood Risk Assessment supports the application.  This has been revised following comments made 
by the Environment Agency which will be discussed below. 
 

60



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 37 

As discussed in section c) above and in accordance with policy LP30, the preferred sites for Leisure 
uses, such as the proposal, are within the city centre or designated centres in accordance with the 
search hierarchy.  A detailed Sequential Test considering the suitability of all potential development 
sites in and around Peterborough was completed by the applicant. It did not identify any sequentially 
preferable sites within a 10-mile radius of Peterborough, including the city centre, district centres 
edge of centre, which could accommodate the proposal.   
 
The FRA states that the applicant has considered alternative sites within Ferry Meadows which could 
accommodate the development.  However, although the Ferry Meadows site is significant in area, 
approximately 200 ha, 60 ha, is covered by water and a further 43 ha is part of the Lynch Farm 
Complex (SM); other areas of the park have ancient trees or are occupied by other uses.  Therefore 
the options for locating the LAC within other areas of Ferry Meadows are significantly limited. 
 
Although not a consideration for applying the sequential test, the part of the site for the location of 
the LAC is an existing car park and therefore the location would prevent the loss of further green 
space within the park. 
 
Exception Test 
 
The proposed land use (assembly and leisure) is categorised as ‘less vulnerable’ as defined under 
Table 2 of NPPF-Technical Guidance and as such is assessed to be appropriate development for 
both Flood Zone 3 and Flood Zone 2 as defined by Table 3 of the same guidance. As the site 
functions as a flood plain it is considered that the Exception Test is required. 
 
Sustainability benefits: 
 
The proposed LAC intends to create a wider activity hub to complement the existing Watersports 
centre, cycle hire facility alongside other active outdoors attractions such as play areas and walking 
trails within the Ferry Meadows Country Park. The proximity to the existing facilities is considered to 
be fundamental to the success of the proposal and where the LAC would have context and 
contribution in terms of visitor offer as an all year round facility and benefit by existing access routes.   
 
In addition, the Olympic standard climbing centre would have significant economic benefits to the 
park and the wider local economy as well as promoting active and healthy lifestyles for residents and 
visitors to the City.   
 
In conclusion it is considered that the LAC would enhance recreational offer within the Nene Valley 
bring recognisable benefits to the viability and sustainability of Ferry Meadows as well as the wider 
Peterborough economy as well as promoting active and healthy lifestyles and would accord with 
policies LP7 and LP24 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and paras.  91 and 92 of the 
NPPF. 
 
Mitigation/Flood risk: 
 
The proposed LAC will utilise a piled foundation that will raise the building above the flood level.  The 
finished floor level of the building would the same as the existing Watersports Centre (approximately 
6.700 mAOD).   The floodplain displacement will therefore be negligible. The proposal would also 
reduce the impermeable area by removing the existing hard standing covering the car park. This 
also increases the flood plain storage by c. 1,000m³.  
 
The area beneath the building would be screened, to prevent it being used as a storage area and 
impacting on flood storage. The screening will be designed to allow for the free passage of water 
across the site.  
 

The Environment Agency (EA) raised objections to the initial FRA as it did not address the impacts 
of climate change; did not consider how the building on stilts would allow for the free passage of 
water beneath it; and did not consider the requirement for floodplain compensation.  The revised 

61



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 38 

FRA now complies with all requirements for site-specific flood risk assessments, as set out in 
paragraphs 30 to 32 of the Flood Risk and Coastal Change section of the planning practice guidance 
and the EA has no objection subject to imposition of a planning condition to set the minimum floor 
level no lower than 6.70 metres above Ordnance Datum (AOD) and the screening underneath the 
building should be cleared of debris regularly. 

 
A number of concerns have been raised regarding the adjoining Watersports Centre, where it is 
stated that this lies at the same level as the flood plain at 6.0m OD with rear elements set at 5.45m; 
against the criteria set by the EA and the building has flooded.  It was suggested that the elevation 
drawings were therefore incorrect as they showed both the LAC and the Watersports Centre to be 
at the same level and these should be amended.  Also that reference is made to the building sitting 
on a concrete plinth to protect from flooding but this is not shown clearly on any of the submitted 
planning drawings.  
 
In response, the applicant has advised that the Lakeside Kitchen & Bar (Water Sports Centre) 
currently sits at +6.60 AOD not +6.00 AOD (600mm higher) as suggested with the rear elements 
sitting at +5.55 AOD.  A drawing has also been submitted to demonstrate this.  Furthermore, an 
application to discharge a condition regarding levels show the floor level of the Lakeside/Watersports 
at 6.60mm (ref.  13/00436/DISCHG).  The proposed LAC will be located within the 100 -year 
floodplain. The results of the modelling have been used to determine flood levels and subsequent 
freeboard. Flood depths across the proposed development site for four key return period events, and 
climate change allowances, have been presented in Table 8 of the FRA. Additional detail regarding 
the modelling approach and data have been included in Appendix D of the FRA. 
 
The height of the Lakeside Activity Centre has therefore been designed to these principles with the 
FFL in the building at +6.770 AOD as shown on application drawing (2259-A-L-101: Ground Floor 
General Arrangement) and the concrete plinth is clearly described on the elevations, plans and 
sections provided with the application. 
 
Several mitigation options have been considered in relation to the fluvial flood risk. The applicant will 
produce a Flood Plan, including signing up to the EA Flood Alert/Warning system and the addition 
of wooden bollards, or similar, would be provided around the perimeter of the car park to will prevent 
buoyant vehicles from becoming an additional hazard away from the site.  These details would be 
secured by condition. 
 
In addition, a proposed project to increase biodiversity, wetland habitats and provide additional flood 
attenuation is currently being undertaken by NPT in the east of the Ferry Meadows Country Park. 
 
The proposal has demonstrated that there are no sequentially preferable sites available at a lesser 
risk of flooding and that the development would be safe for its lifetime and would not increase the 
risk of flooding elsewhere. In applying the exception test the proposal has demonstrated that the 
proposal would provide wider sustainability benefit to the community and the development would be 
safe for its lifetime and would not increase flood risk elsewhere and accords with policy LP32 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Local Plan and paras 155, 159, 160 and 161 of the NPPF (2019). 
 
The proposal would not increase flood risk or compromise the performance of flood defences in 
accordance with policy LP24 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
 
Drainage 
 
It is proposed that the drainage strategy will be aligned with the drainage strategy of the Watersports  
Centre where surface water from the roof is taken via rainwater pipes through a Rain Water 
Harvesting (RWH) tank with surplus discharging into Gunwade Lake via buried pipes.  
 
The proposed development involves the removal of the existing tarmacked car park. The proposed 
impermeable area associated with the development is smaller, with proposals to make use of 
rainwater harvesting to further reduce runoff. This will reduce the runoff from existing levels. 

62



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 39 

 
RWH has been considered and included for the development in order to reuse rainwater for non-
potable uses such as flushing toilets.  It is not possible to infiltrate on site and so the surface water 
management strategy focuses on delaying surface water flows through the use of attenuation and 
flow controls restricting the flow rate at the outfalls to acceptable levels before discharging into 
Gunwade Lake.  
 
Hydro-brake manholes will be provided at all proposed outfall locations prior to discharging the water 
into the lake in order to control the flow in accordance with the required greenfield runoff rates. Non-
return / anti-flood valves will be provided on any head walls at the discharge points in order to stop 
the system from surcharging.  
 
SuDS will be adopted on site where feasible and the implementation of SuDS which integrate into 
the landscape will be considered in collaboration with the landscape architect during the next stage 
of the project design.  
 
Two options are considered. Both are based on the surface water ultimately discharging into the 
Gunwade Lake to the north and west of the site. Both propose rainwater harvesting to collect and 
reuse rainwater from the proposed LAC roof. High level estimates have indicated that a storage 
volume of approximately 20m³ would be appropriate for the RWH system design.  Runoff exceeding 
the RWH storage capacity will be collected into an attenuation tank, before discharging into the lake. 
Based on the proposed and existing impermeable area adjacent to the building of approximately 
5,000m², a preliminary estimate indicates that an attenuation volume of around 270m³ will be 
sufficient to contain the 100-year return period rainfall event+ 20% climate change.  
 
Both Options will utilise permeable pavement and shallow storage beneath the car parks to manage 
surface water runoff, providing water treatment before discharging to the Gunwade Lake. Suggested 
options for the permeable pavement include; plastic crates, or a granular fill. This shallow storage 
area will be underlain with an impermeable membrane, due to the expected high-water levels in the 
ground.  
 
Essentially, the difference between the options is whether the whole site drainage is managed in its 
entirety within one system, with a single discharge point, or if the building and car park are managed 
independently, resulting in two discharge points.  
 
The proposed surface water drainage strategy has been reviewed by PCC Drainage Team and there 
are no objections in principle subject to a pre-commencement condition being appended to the 
decision requiring the submission of a detailed design and associated management and 
maintenance plan of surface water drainage for the site using sustainable drainage methods to 
incorporate either option 1 or 2 as detailed within the FRA. 
 
Comments have been made regarding the removal of the tarmac car park and that the statement 
that there will be an 85% reduction in impermeable area is misleading.   The applicant has responded 
advising that the reduction of impermeable area between the existing and proposed will be 
approximately 25% (existing 3350m2 to the proposed 2500m2). There is an existing gully on site 
which appears to be draining the car park. The pre-development surface water runoff has been 
determined following the methodology of calculating the existing brownfield runoff rates of the 
existing  impermeable  area  (car  park  area  which  is  100%  impermeable).  The 85% betterment 
results by comparing the proposed greenfield runoff rates (5 l/s) vs the equivalent brownfield runoff 
resulting from the existing impermeable area (32.6 l/s).  
 
The Drainage Officer has advised that the issue of surface water ponding would be redundant with 
the proposals to the redevelop the car park, as the construction of the car park will incorporate 
permeable paving and any issues with levels that have historically resulted in ponding would be 
designed out as the car park would be reliant on the levels allowing surface water to drain to areas 
of permeable paving. 
 

63



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 40 

Further questions have been raised regarding the proposed surface water runoff rate of 10 l/s, (two 
outfalls, each at 5 l/s) which is far in excess of the equivalent Greenfield runoff rate (estimated to be 
0.33 l/s in the FRA), thereby increasing the risk of downstream flooding.  The applicant has 
responded that the outfalls are proposed to be discharging at 5 l/s each, as the minimum reasonably 
practical to avoid blockages. Since there will be an 85% betterment in flowrates the LLFA have 
previously accepted these flowrates in principle. 
 
The Drainage Officer has referred to section 6.7.6 of the Flood and Water Management 
Supplementary Document (FWMSPD) which states, ‘For riverside sites, slowing down the discharge 
of water to the River Nene through the normally required attenuation measures might not always be 
the preferred approach for wider flood risk management. There is a time lag between heavy rainfall 
and high water levels in Northampton and the peak water levels being reached in the Nene in 
Peterborough. For some storm situations it could therefore be better if Peterborough’s rainfall and 
surface water were removed from the system before the high flows arrive from upstream’. Although, 
the site does not propose to discharge surface water to the River Nene directly, Gunwade Lake is 
connected to the River Nene and would be impacted by high river levels. 
 

It should also be noted that within Appendix B of the FRA, an 85% betterment of surface water 
discharge rates were proposed which is line with S3 of the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
Sustainable Drainage Systems, ‘For developments which were previously developed, the peak 
runoff rate from the development to any drain, sewer or surface water body for the 1 in 1 year rainfall 
event and the 1 in 100 year rainfall event must be as close as reasonably practicable to the greenfield 
runoff rate from the development for the same rainfall event, but should never exceed the rate of 
discharge from the development prior to redevelopment for that event’. 
 
The UKSuDS Tool Report provided by the design engineer in Appendix E of the FRA does state that 
the QBAR greenfield runoff rate for the site would be 0.33 l/s. Based on the total site area provided 
this would mean that the QBAR rate in l/s/ha would be calculated as 0.127 l/s (rounded up), taking 
into account that the site will be positively drained, low rates such as the above are often not 
reasonably practical or achievable within drainage design for positively drained sites.  
 
Additionally, within the UKSuDS Tool Report, firstly Note (1) specifies that ‘normally limiting 
discharge rates which are less than 2.0 l/s/ha are set at 2.0 l/s/ha’, which based on the site would 
be calculated at 5.2 l/s. Secondly, Note (2) states that ‘where flow rates are less than 5.0l/s consents 
are usually set at 5.0 l/s if blockage from vegetation and other materials is possible’ which is line with 
the reasons provided in Appendix B of the FRA.  
 
The site is proposed to be built with sustainable drainage systems such as permeable paving, 
rainwater harvesting, and swales and the drainage system is be designed to hold surface water for 
up to and including the 1 in 100-year critical rainfall event including the 20% climate change 
allowance with a restricted discharge to Gunwade Lake. This is an improvement from the existing 
surface water drainage arrangements on site and as such, it is not considered that the site would 
increase the risk of downstream flooding.  
 
Questions have also been raised regarding the indicative stormwater attenuation calculations using 
a climate change factor of +20%. Elsewhere in the FRA, a design life of 50 years is stated. According 
to the current GOV .UK climate change recommendations, the applicable Upper End climate change 
rainfall allowance for facilities with a design live in the years 2070 to 2115 should be +40%.  
 
The applicant’s response is that the design life of the building has been below 2070 based on the 
date of submitting the Planning application. The 20% of Climate Change uplift has been used 
following consultation and agreement with the LLFA based on the site’s region (Refer in Appendix B 
of the FRA report for correspondence with LLFA).   
 
Comments are also made regarding the means of surface water attenuation storage under the car 
park and whether this is viable without impact upon the Scheduled Monument. 
 

64



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 41 

The applicant’s response refers to the details provided within the Archaeology Addendum report. 
The proposal has been considered by Historic England and PCC’s Archaeologist and no issues have 
been raised.  Should there be any restrictions on excavations meaning that the proposed strategy 
cannot be completed in accordance with the FRA then an amended surface water drainage strategy 
that takes these restrictions into account would be required.  
 
There is also concern that consideration has not been given to the effect of submerged outfalls to 
the surface water drainage to the proposed building and car park.    
 
The Drainage Officer refers to section 8.2.1 of the FRA states that non-return / anti-flood valves will 
be provided on any head walls at the discharge points in order to stop the system from surcharging 
from Gunwade Lake. In addition, the proposed surface water drainage system is be designed to hold 
surface water for up to and including the 1 in 100-year critical rainfall event including the 20% climate 
change allowance.  Section 4.2 of the FRA also states that methods to manage potential exceedance 
of the above storage capacity need to be provided.   As this is reliant on proposed finished levels 
and additional detail that isn’t available at this stage; these details would be secured by condition. 
 
Concerns have been raised regarding the degradation in surface water quality and potential effects 
on the Caster Flood Meadows SSSI, it should be noted that the SSSI is upstream of the development 
proposal. Effects on the SSSI would not be likely. 
 
Foul Drainage: 
 
The site is served by a series of pumping mains before it ultimately discharges to the public sewer 
approximately 900m away from the onsite discharge point.  Capacity issues have however been 
identified on the existing pumping station and therefore, a solution is required to ensure that the 
system can perform adequately when the new development foul rates are discharged into it. There 
are two possible solutions - reduce the amount of flow that will be discharged into the pump via 
storage tank and flow control or to upgrade the pumps.   
 
The foul drainage from this development is in the catchment of Peterborough (Flag Fen) Water 
Recycling Centre and Anglian Water advises there is available capacity. 
 
The proposal has demonstrated that the site can be suitably drained, will incorporate SuDS into the 
proposal to reduce surface water run-off and adequate foul water treatment and disposal can be 
achieved.  The proposal therefore accords with policy LP32 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019) and paras. 163 and 165 of the NPPF (2019). 
 
e) Impact on Heritage Assets 
 
There are a number of heritage assets within close proximity to the site. The Lynch Farm Complex 
Scheduled Monument (SM) forms part of the southern part of the site. 
 
The proposal is assessed against policy LP19 of the Local Plan and section 16 of the NPPF, primarily 
paras. 189 and 193-196.  In summary, policy LP19 places emphasis on the protection of designated 
heritage assets and their settings.  All proposals that would directly affect any heritage asset should 
be accompanied by a Heritage Statement. 
 
Para 189 of the NPPF requires that applications ‘should not only describe the significance of any 
heritage assets affected, but also any contribution made by their setting.’ The glossary to the NPPF 
describes the setting of a heritage asset as ‘The surroundings in which a heritage asset is 
experienced. Its extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its surroundings evolve. 
Elements of a setting may make a positive or negative contribution to the significance of an asset, 
may affect the ability to appreciate that significance or may be neutral’.  
 
Para 193 of the NPPF advises that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation, 

65



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 42 

irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than 
substantial harm to its significance. 
 
Para 194 of the NPPF states ‘Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset 
(from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear and 
convincing justification…assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments.. should 
be wholly exceptional. 
 
Para 195 of the NPPF advises that where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to 
(or total loss of significance of) a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse 
consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total loss is necessary to achieve 
substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or a number of stated criteria are all 
satisfied. 
 
Para 196 advises ‘where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits 
of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.’ 
 
The Local Planning Authority has a duty under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 Section 66(1) to have a special regard to the desirability of preserving listed 
buildings, their special features and their setting. 
 
Section 72 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 places a duty on the LPA to pay ‘special 
regard’ to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the special character or appearance of 
conservation areas.  
  
Considerable weight and importance should be given to (a) the need to avoid harm to conservation 
areas and (b) the duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building and its 
setting.  The presumption against the avoidance of harm is a statutory one, (which has been subject 
to interpretation by the Courts) and can only be outweighed if there are material considerations 
strong enough to do so, and which involve some advantage or benefit which outweighs the harm. 
 
A Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) supports the application. There have been two revisions to the 
HIS following comments made by the Conservation Officer and those made on behalf of Milton 
Estates.  The first revision gives particular regard to the setting and significance of Ferry House, 
Ferry Bridge and Robin Hood and Little John Stones.  The second revision makes reference to the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 Section 66(1), previously omitted;  
further consideration given to the impact of the development on the significance of the heritage asset, 
providing an independent assessment as required by para. 189 of the NPPF and provides a 
discussion of the significance of the heritage assets with regard their association and relationship 
with the proposed site. 
 
The Lynch Farm Complex SM 
 
The proposed LAC is located close to the Lynch Farm SM and the car park would be within the SM.  
The application site was the subject of an evaluation by trial trenching carried out in October 2018 
within the current car park area and within part of SM. An Archaeology report supported the 
application and the PCC Archaeologist and Historic England were consulted.   The PCC 
Archaeologist advised that the current car park where the building would be located had been 
sufficiently characterised as containing deeply stratified alluvial layers above a possible buried 
horizon.  However the area within the scheduled monument, where the car park will be relocated, 
has the potential to contain archaeological features and deposits, as identified during the evaluation. 
These features could not be dated and characterised with certainty.  If present, they are expected to 
survive in good conditions of preservation, being sealed by an overlying alluvial layer between 
250mm and 350mm below the extant surface. No evidence was found of destruction by former 
quarrying.   
 

66



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 43 

Discussions have taken place with Historic England.  Scheduled monument consent for an 
archaeological evaluation was granted within that part of the scheduled monument which would be 
developed for a new car park.  The Archaeology report as initially submitted had not considered the 
results of the evaluation set against the proposed ground works for the car park and no construction 
details for the car park being provided.  Whilst Historic England did not oppose the principle of the 
proposal the initial report did not meet the requirements of para 189 and paras 193-4 of the NPPF 
in terms of the weight given to the SM and justification where it involves harm or loss of the 
significance of the SM. 
 
Further information has since been submitted in the form of an Addendum to the previous 
Archaeology report which provides details of the specification and excavation depths for the car park. 
 
There are two constraints with the proposed car park on the meadow area.  Firstly the car park would 
be located within the SM and secondly the area is located within flood zone 3, which is the functional 
flood plain of the river Nene, preventing any build up above existing levels.  The design of the car 
park needs to be robust enough to withstand traffic and the need to address surface water flooding.  
 
The applicant has considered several engineering options for the car park construction.   Following 
discussion with Historic England and PCC Archaeologist, the most pragmatic solution was 
considered to be Option 1b; whereby a portion of the car park will be the full  700mm excavation, 
and the remainder limited to a 250-300mm excavation. The proportions of these are based on the 
locations of the archaeological features revealed during the 2018 evaluation excavation, as well as 
the predicted visitor use patterns to ensure sufficient supply of robust parking is available year-round. 
 
A mitigation strategy for a programme of archaeological works comprising a ‘strip, map and record’ 
excavation is proposed.  The excavation will afford the opportunity to examine the archaeological 
resource associated with the area of the SM to be impacted upon by development. The aim is to 
seek a better understanding, and compile a lasting record, of that resource, and to analyse, interpret 
and disseminate the results of its investigation within a framework of defined research objectives. 
The remains that can be preserved in situ will be recorded and prepared for re-burial. Steps will be 
taken to ensure construction and future maintenance do not threaten these remains. 
 

The proposed mitigation strategy is acceptable to Historic England and PCC Archaeologist; the 
details would be secured by condition. 
 
A letter of objection from Bidwells on behalf of Milton Estates argues that insufficient evaluation has 
been carried out to inform the planning decision.   Bidwells consider that the geophysical survey was 
not undertaken across the proposed development area and as this is a nonintrusive technique, it is 
ideally suited for evaluating a site and allowing trenching to be targeted.  Furthermore, the trenching 
represent less than 2% of the scheduled area affected by the development and is insufficient to 
characterise the archaeology and the nature of the trenches are best suited linear features and not 
settlement remains. 
 
Bidwells go on to state that the conclusions drawn from the HIS confirm that direct, physical damage 
will be caused to the archaeology within the scheduled monument, and that this will amount to a 
“medium adverse impact”. It states that “a programme of archaeological work would greatly mitigate 
the loss [of] archaeology’. We do not understand what “greatly” means in the context of mitigation, 
but, the fact that mitigation is required is a clear statement that damage will be caused to archaeology 
within a scheduled monument. 
 
The City Council’s Archaeologist considers that strip, map and record (or sample) is a method of 
investigation which offers the flexibility of stripping a whole area of proposed development/change 
of land-use, and allows to make further decisions and inform a mitigation strategy based on what is 
actually found, rather than having to extrapolate information from limited trial trenching, even allowing 
for further trenching to be carried beforehand.  
 

67



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 44 

If applicable remains that can be preserved in situ would be recorded and prepared for re-burial. 
Therefore, steps would be taken to ensure construction and future maintenance do not threaten 
these remains.  
 
Strip, map and record also offers the opportunity to select features/deposits which need to be further 
investigated to obtain the maximum information to enhance the current understanding of the 
character and degree of preservation of the scheduled remains.   The completed archaeological 
programme of works was closely monitored by Historic England. The proposed strip-map-record was 
recommended by Historic England on the basis of the preferred method of construction of the car-
park. 
 
It is considered that although there would be impact on the SM the area and proportion of the 
monument impacted upon is very small and with the appropriate mitigation strategy employed, the 
impacts would not be significant.  The applicant has assessed the significance of the heritage asset 
and an evaluation has been undertaken in accordance with para 189 of the NPPF. 
 
The Setting of the SM 
 
The proposed development would introduce the relocated car park within the boundary of the SM, 
and the proposed building within its immediate setting to the north.  Both the high tower and the new 
car park would change the setting of the SM particularly when viewed from the south.  However the 
HIS considers this to be relatively minor given the existing recreational facilities and the modern 
access road to the west of the SM.  It is also stated that part of the SM is already used as an overflow 
car park and so in terms of the setting the proposed car park would not introduce an entirely new 
intrusion.  The degree of change to the setting is deemed to be low: adverse. 
 
Further discussion regarding the setting of the SM has been provided within the Landscape Visual 
Impact Assessment submitted in support of the application.  Reference is made to the extensive 
development that has taken place within the SM including the creation of the  existing  car  park,  
visitor  centre  and  associated  facilities  in  the  east  of  Ferry  Meadows Country Park and the 
character of the SM is  therefore  recreational  across  its  entire  area  and  immediate  setting,  and 
therefore the susceptibility of its character to the type of change proposed is judged to be Low. The 
LVA concludes the magnitude of change upon the SM is therefore Low, with the overall impact 
judged to be an adverse one of Moderate/Minor significance. 
 
Ferry Bridge:  There would be no physical impact.  The impact on setting is considered to be 
negligible due to the number of mature trees to the south of the bridge there would be no views of 
the climbing tower.  In addition, the bridge now stands divorced from much of its historic setting and 
context, due to the construction of the A47 dual carriageway to the north, and the gravel extraction 
lakes to the south.  The impact on the setting of the bridge will be negligible. 
 
The Conservation Officer is of the view that the climbing centre will be visible from the bridge it will 
not impact on the how the bridge functions or is appreciated. The creation of the park and the 
insertion of the lakes and associated facilities has already significantly undermined the clear purpose 
of the bridge, however, this has in effect been refashioned as an entrance to the park from the north, 
which is considered to be positive. As such although the insertion of the proposal will have a material 
impact upon the setting of the bridge, this is not considered to have a material detrimental impact 
upon its significance and is considered less than substantial. 
 
Ferry House:  There would be no physical impact.  There would be some intervisibility between the 
dormer windows of Ferry House and the climbing tower, although they are 1km apart.  The top of 
the tower would be a small feature, and would not be visible at night. Other views between the two 
are screened by dense planting on the bund to the south of Ferry House.  Comments received from 
Milton Estates states that the trees may not remain.  However it was the Conservation Officer’s view 
that they are currently present and that it was not considered reasonable to take into consideration 
what the Milton Estate ‘may’ do in the future.  The setting of Ferry House to the south is already 
hugely compromised by the A47, which has effectively severed its historic visual and functional link 

68



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 45 

with Ferry Bridge and the River Nene. The impact on setting is considered to be negligible.  The 
historical functional relationship between Ferry House and the proposed site has been severely 
undermined due to the insertion of the A47 and Gunwade Lake and the LAC would not materially 
degrade what remains of the existing relationship. 
 
Ferry Lodge:  There would be no physical impact.  The Lodge’s principal relationships were with 
Milton Hall, and Ferry Bridge. These have been much reduced by the movement of the lodge, and 
especially by its separation from the bridge by tree screening and the busy A47. There is some very 
limited glimpsed intervisibility with the proposed development site through trees in the winter months, 
but again the A47 and Gunwade Lake have radically altered the historic setting and its relationship 
with the site and the insertion of the tower will not alter this fact any further. 
 
Robin Hood and Little John Stones:  There would be no physical impact.  The LVIA concludes that 
the proposed development will be clearly present within the setting of these scheduled standing 
stones.  Thought to have been way-markers for vehicles hauling stone from Barnack quarries to the 
ferry point on the Nene.  What is now Nene Park was merely the hinterland of the site rather than 
being integral to the stone’s journey. As such there is only a weak relationship, in term of function 
and significance, between the proposed development site and the scheduled monument.  The setting 
has changes dramatically with the present lakes and recreational facilities. In conclusion, as the 
relationship between the sites is weak, the stones are utilitarian in nature, and Nene Park is 
undeniably read as a man-made landscape with some development, the impact upon the 
significance of the scheduled monument is considered limited. 
 
It is the Conservation Officer’s view is that although the insertion of the proposal will have a material 
impact upon the setting of the stones, this is not considered to impact upon their significance and is 
less than substantial. 
 
Milton Park:  The development would have no physical impact on Milton Park. The LVIA did not 
assess the impact on the registered park and listed buildings within it. However, the view south from 
high ground within the park, a kilometre and more from the proposed development site, is already 
over the highly developed modern cityscape of Peterborough, furthermore with the park being 
bounded to the south by the bust A47.  The original landscape relationship to the pastural flood plain 
has changed to one of leisure including the presence of the gravel pits which have undermined this 
relationship, particularly to the development site. The insertion of the tower, unlikely to be visible 
from the park, does not further change this relationship.  The HIS concludes that the proposed 
development will have a negligible detrimental impact on setting of the registered park and its 
buildings. 
 
The Conservation Officer notes that prior to various reorganisation within the late C20, the site lay 
across the county line, which was the river Nene, in Huntingdonshire. This resulted in a natural 
barrier which reduced the direct relationship between estate and the land to the south, although it 
should be noted that the Ferry Bridge did, and still does, provide a crossing at the historic southern 
access to the Milton Estate along the road that connects Peterborough with the Great North Road. 
The duelling of this connecting road (now the A47) has exacerbated this disconnect. 
 
Milton Estates have previously produced a setting assessment describing the many varied 
relationships the estate has with its surroundings. It is noted that the maps of the estate stop at either 
the river or the road and do not incorporate what is now the county park. The only relationship that 
it identifies to the south are with Alwalton Hall and Orton Hall, both of which would have been 
accessed along a path that ran from Ferry Bridge across the proposed site. 
 
Orton Hall has a weak relationship that of vague association however Alwalton Hall was constructed 
for an Earl Fitzwilliam and the Lynch Wood which connects the two is still in existence. There are no 
direct views between the two, while the historic pathway has already been diverted in the creation of 
the lakes. As such the proposed construction of the Climbing Centre should not detrimentally impact 
upon the relationship between the two heritage assets. 
 

69



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 46 

Lynch Farmhouse and associated farm buildings:  The LVIA assessment did not formally assess the 
impact of the proposed development on the setting of the listed buildings at Lynch Farm. This stands 
c.800m south of the proposed development immediately south of the line carrying the Nene Valley 
Railway. The top of the climbing tower may conceivably be visible from Lynch Farm, above the tree 
line around the Lakeside Centre however the HIS concludes that the propose development will have 
a negligible detrimental impact on the setting of Lynch Farm, in terms of views northward from the 
listed buildings. The original agricultural setting has been lost and modern housing already closes 
off views to the east and south. 
 
Water Newton and Durobrivae: Impact on setting: The LVIA did not formally assess the impact of 
the proposed development on the scheduled areas and the conservation area. There is currently no 
material relationship between the development site and these heritage assets. The top of the 
climbing tower may be glimpsed at a distance, but against the busy backdrop of modern 
Peterborough. Given this, PDA concludes that the proposed development will have negligible impact 
on the setting of these assets and no change to the heritage relationship between them. 
 
Castor:  The LVIA did not formally assess the impact of the proposed development on Castor’s 
heritage assets.  Although it is slightly nearer the proposed development site, PDA draws the same 
conclusions it does in terms of the sites associated with Water Newton, namely that given the busy 
backdrop of modern Peterborough, the proposed development will have negligible detrimental 
impact on Castor’s SMs, listed buildings and conservation area. 
 
The Conservation Officer considers that the Grade I Listed Church of St Kyneburgha at Castor will 
have views of the proposal from the church tower, as demonstrated by the Landscape and Visual 
Impact Assessment. There is nothing significant about this view and the proposal would be seen 
against the backdrop of the City of Peterborough. As such, although the proposal may impact upon 
the setting of the church it would not be materially detrimental and not significant.  
 
Windmill near Castor Mill:  The development would have no physical impact on the Windmill and the 
LVIA assesses that that the majority of the proposed development will be screened by the existing 
Lakeside area structures, although it will introduce the proposed tall climbing tower into view above 
these structures. The existing structures set a precedent within this view for recreational structures 
and the view is distant, therefore the magnitude of change is judged to be Low.  It concludes the 
overall impact upon this receptor is therefore judged to be an adverse impact of Moderate/Minor 
significance.  The windmill stands c.1.5km south-west of the scheduled monument and that there 
are no material heritage relationships between the site and this heritage asset and its setting. 
Accordingly, PDA believes the LVIA if anything over-states the impact the development would have 
on the listed building, which it reckons to be negligible. 
 
Longthorpe:  The development would have no physical impact and while the LVIA did not formally 
assess the impact of the proposed development on the Longthorpe SM, a Roman fort. The top of 
the climbing tower will be visible, but as an adjunct to the Lakeside complex of 2014, and over the 
modern infilled gravel pits now occupied by Overton and Lynch lakes. To the east the monument is 
bounded by the busy A1260, with the modern built-up area of Longthorpe immediately beyond. The 
HIS concludes that the proposed development will have negligible increased detrimental impact on 
the setting of this monument. 
 
It is the Conservation Officers view that there would be no clear views of the climbing centre from 
Castor, Longthorpe, Orton Waterville and Orton Longueville Conservation Areas.  The Conservation 
Officer accepts there may be some glimpsed views from select parts of the conservation areas with 
some slightly better views from non-public parts (such as upper floors of some buildings) however 
these are not considered significant.  
 
Views with regard to the Cathedral:  Although these views do not form part of the HIS the 
Conservation Officer considers that if views of the climbing centre were visible from elements of the 
Cathedral these would be limited to the top portion of the climbing wall and seen in conjunction with 
other structures to the west of the city, which reduces the impact substantially. The Cathedral does 

70



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 47 

have a significant relationship with Longthorpe Tower, however due to the alignment of the three 
buildings, the proposed climbing tower would not lie within Longthorpe Towers backdrop.  The 
Officers view is that due to the distance between the two, the climbing wall would not inappropriately 
compete in terms of scale with the Cathedral. 
 
The Conservation Officer has assessed the revised HIS and considers the various deficiencies 
regarding the required assessment and the report meet the minimum threshold required. 
 
In addition, the Conservation Officer’s concerns regarding the viewpoints from Mill Lane and Milton 
Park not being covered for wire frames have been addressed and there is no change in the over 
assessment of the heritage impact. 
 

The Conservation Officer’s view is that from a heritage consideration the proposal can be supported; 
and that if there is an impact on the heritage significance of the various assets then this may be less 
than substantial and this should be balanced against the public benefit for the proposal. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The HIS concludes that the proposal would have a negligible impact on the Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas identified, however due to the physical impact on the Lynch Farm complex ‘less 
than substantial harm will be caused’. In accordance with para 196 of the NPPF it is considered that 
public benefits provided by the proposed LAC with its Olympic-standard climbing walls would be a 
significant enhancement to the range of recreational facilities provided in Ferry Meadows which 
provides a major recreation and leisure resource to the Peterborough Community, would outweigh 
the less than substantial harm to the SM.  In addition, the archaeological programme associated with 
the development will provide a broader understanding of the heritage value of the area, recording 
evidence and compiling a lasting record of the past hence sustaining or enhancing the significance 
of a heritage asset and the contribution of its setting. 
 
The proposal therefore accords with policy LP19 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) 
and paras.  189, 190, 193, 194 and 196 of the NPPF (2019). 
 
f) Landscape Visual Impact 
 
The site is located within the Nene Valley Landscape Character Area (LCA) which is divided into 
three sub areas;  Nene Valley Floodplain;  Ferry Meadows Corridor; and Ailsworth and Castor Valley 
Slopes.  The site lies within the Ferry Meadows Corridor Sub-Area and occupies the stretch  of  the  
Nene  Valley  from  Ferry Meadows Country Park in the west to the city centre.  Within this sub area 
there is more emphasis on recreational uses closer to the urban area although it is recognised it is 
likely to share a relationship with the sub areas to the west. The  strength  of  character  of  this  area  
is  described  as  ‘Strong’  due to the effective combination of high recreational use with valuable 
wildlife habitats on land formerly used for mineral extraction. The  overall  landscape  strategy  for  
the  Sub-Area  is  to  ‘safeguard  and  manage’.  One of the guidelines to achieve  this  strategy  
include  the  ‘identification  of  facilities to upgrade in Ferry Meadows Country Park to maintain its 
position as a major facility for local and visiting populations’. (Landscape Character Assessment - 
2007). 
 
Policy LP27 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan advises of the importance to ensure the diverse 
character of an area’s landscape is respected, maintained and, where possible, enhanced and that 
the distinct landscape setting of the area is integral to protecting the identity of Peterborough. Policy 
LP27 goes on to say that ‘planning permission will be granted if the development would amongst 
other things, recognise and where possible, enhance the character and special qualities of the local 
landscape through appropriate design and management.  Where a proposal may result in significant 
harm, it may be permitted in exceptional circumstances, if the overriding benefits of the development 
demonstrably outweigh the harm’… and so on. 
 
Para. 127 of the NPPF advises that decisions should ensure that development is sympathetic to 

71



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 48 

local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while 
not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change. 
 
Landscape Visual Impact Assessment 
 
A Landscape Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) supports the application.  The LVIA assesses the 
baseline landscape and visual characteristics of the application site, identifies and assesses the 
potential landscape and visual impacts of the proposed development upon the established baseline; 
and proposes mitigation measures to reduce adverse impacts of the development. 
 
The LVIA has been revised following comments on the initial LVIA from PCC Landscape Consultants 
– Red Kite.  On the initial LVIA Red Kite concluded that the impact on certain receptors had been 
underrated, partly due to the “car park and meadow” being assessed together; that there was a 
difference in opinion on the degree of material harm on the Lynch Farm Complex; and the supporting 
highway infrastructure serving LAC should be assessed as a receptor.  A number of 
recommendations were also suggested which will be discussed below in the report. 
 
Red Kite made a number of recommendations to elevate the assessment of significance of the 
impact caused from LAC on various receptors.  Some of these recommendations have been 
adopted, however the applicant argues that none of the impact scores recommended by Red Kite 
would, in any case, represent ‘significant impact’ (Major/Moderate or higher), according to the LVIA 
methodology. Indeed, following review of the initial LVIA, Red Kite concluded that although material 
harm will result, it was agreed the LAC is unlikely to exceed `Moderate Adverse’.  
 
The baseline assessment has been compiled through a desktop search of information and a Zone 
of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV) was prepared.   The extent  of  the  visual  envelope  was  then  tested  
through  field  investigation of the site and publically available routes.  A mobile elevated work 
platform was used to take a 360-degree set of photographs from the top height of the proposed 
building to understand its visual envelope and relationship with the surrounding landscape. The 
revised LVIA also includes wireframe views and visualisations from selected points within the 
surrounding landscape to illustrate the potential effects from these locations.  The area of study had 
a radius of 3km from the site.  The site sits at around 8m AOD above the floor level of the River 
Nene. Love’s Hill, west of the Site acts as the local promontory rising 30m AOD. To the north and 
south, the land rises steadily with the slopes of the Nene Valley, to 30m to the north and 25m to the 
south. 
 
A number of listed buildings, Castor Conservation Area within the study area and approximately half 
of the overall site area includes an area within the Lynch Farm Complex SM.  These are covered 
above within the Heritage Impact section. 
 
Milton  Hall  Park  Grade  II*  Registered  Park  and  Garden  was  considered  but  not  taken  forward  
in  the assessment because visibility with Milton Park is restricted by the presence of trees to the 
south of the park to the extent that there is unlikely to be a relationship between the park and any 
part of the proposed building, even in winter months. 
 
Castor Conservation Area designation is within the Study Area however there is no relationship 
between the Site and Castor village, and therefore is not considered to be a relevant receptor. 
 
14 public rights of way were identified as having the potential to be directly affected by the proposed 
development particularly Nene Way Long Distance Recreational Route, Hereward Way Long 
Distance Recreational Route, Public Bridleway Orton Waterville 11 and Public Bridleway Castor 26. 
 
7no. physical and perceptual elements have been considered relevant receptors in terms of 
landscape character - Recreational character associated with Ferry Meadows Country Park; 
Surfaced car park land use; Open meadow land use; Road infrastructure; Large recreational water 
bodies and water meadows form immediate setting to the north, west and east; Limited relationship 
with wider valley landscape;   Limited influence from adjacent city of Peterborough; Overall character 

72



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 49 

of the Site; and  Overall character of the setting of the Site and then assesses the susceptibility  of  
each  receptor to the type of development proposed and the landscape value of each receptor. 
 
The  Site’s  visual  environment  is  influenced  by  the  topography  of  the  Nene  Valley,  and  the  
vegetation surrounding Ferry Meadows Country Park. The main receptors of the proposed 
development are people Lakeside Activity Centre engaged in recreational activities, within Ferry 
Meadows Country Park and the Public Rights of Way in the countryside to the west of Peterborough, 
including the Nene Way, Hereward Way and Torpel Way Long Distance Recreational Routes. 
 
The LVIA sets out detailed findings with respect to effects on character elements and areas. The 
greatest effects identified are Moderate/Minor and relate to Ferry Meadows Country Park (including 
some elements thereof) and its relationship with the wider valley landscape. 
 
With respect to visual effects, the LVIA considers effects on individual routes and areas with public 
access, identifying Moderate effects on the Nene Way and Hereford Way; Moderate/minor effects 
on views from within the country park and from routes through it; and localised Moderate/Minor 
effects on paths within 0.3km to 2.5km.  Minor effects would be experienced by users of Mill Road, 
Castor and employees within the Travelex building. 
 
The LVIA concludes that the site has a strong formal recreational character within the Lakeside area 
of Ferry Meadows Country Park. Because of the strong tree cover surrounding Ferry Meadows 
Country Park, the Site has a limited relationship with its surrounding landscape. It is  likely  that  the 
majority  of  the  proposed  building  and  external  works  will  only  be  visible  to  receptors  in  the  
immediate vicinity,  although  the  climbing  tower  itself  is  likely  to  be  visible  from  a  range  of  
receptors  within  the surrounding  landscape.  However,  the  tapered  nature  of  the  tower  is  such  
that  the  effects  of  the  small proportion that is likely to be visible above the tree cover will be 
limited. The assessment concludes that no visual receptor would experience significant adverse 
effects as a result of the proposed development. 
 
In addition, the LVIA concludes that the tree cover also prevents any substantial relationship with 
the adjacent city of Peterborough.  The development is in keeping with the formal recreational 
setting, and that it would result in no significant adverse landscape impacts upon the character of 
the Site, its setting, or the character of the settings of designated heritage assets within the study 
area. 
 
Review of the LVIA 
 
Red Kite had provided detailed comments on the initial LVIA and made a number of 
recommendations which will be discussed further in the report.  However in reviewing the revised 
LVIA Red Kite was asked to focus on the wider landscape impact resulting from the development.  
Red Kite considered the study area to be appropriate and the methodology used is robust for a 
project falling outside requirement for an EIA and sufficient information has been provided for 
conclusions to be drawn.  
 
As discussed above the LVIA has been revised to assess the ‘car park’ and ‘Open Meadow’ 
individually as they are different landscape character types and the ‘road infrastructure’ has also 
been included. 
 
Red Kite undertook site visits to review the wider landscape viewpoints (16 to 29) on 26th and 27th 
February 2020; at this time of the year there was limited leaf cover. On the 26th February the Officer 
remained at the viewpoints west of the Site close to Castor until after darkness to experience the 
potential impact of night visibility of the proposed LAC when illuminated.  
 
Red Kite commented that in the wider landscape there already exists a concentration of development 
at the lakeside of Ferry Meadows which eats into the perceived rurality of long-distance views key 
from the west along Mill Road near Castor. In daylight these could be of perceived visual interest 
against the tree backdrop for walkers along Landy Green Way, but at night the cumulative impact 

73



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 50 

with the existing lighting of the lakeside building could be a prominent visual distraction, contrary to 
para 001 of the National Planning Policy Guidance of being a “risk of artificial lighting undermining 
the enjoyment of the night sky”.  
 
The majority of view points in the wider landscape setting are considered to be obscured, transient 
or insignificant as other visual distractors interrupt the skyline or setting.  
 
Due to the Site’s “strong degree of visual containment” within the valley environs and presence of 
obscuring mature trees and woodland groups alongside the A47 and within the Milton Park Estate 
in the north, and built form and infrastructure to three sides of the Site the visual envelope is limited. 
The Officer is therefore generally in agreement of the viewpoints  selected in the wider landscape 
setting, although views from Peterborough Business park in  the south have not been scoped, also 
the road to Milton Golf Course parallel to the A47 in  the north and to the east at Orton Lock and 
Sluice.  However, the LAC would not be significantly visible beyond that indicated by the Applicant 
and influence the ZTV.  
 
There is a potential for the associated vehicular glint and glare and building glazing to give rise to 
more harmful and significant visual effects than the proposed climbing chimney.  
 
The proposed faceted climbing tower of 34.25m height will be tapered vertically, however Red Kite 
consider that from close-range view-points it will not deliver the key objective of assimilating into  the 
sky where it pierces the tree line with the current cladding regime proposed.  It is suggested the 
applicant could scope using mirrored cladding. From long distant viewpoints Red Kite agree the 
climbing tower would be “a marker on the skyline” amongst others already present.  
 
Substantial weight on the screening properties from existing trees within the setting of the Site has 
eased the assessment level of judgement made in the LVIA. By reviewing the visual effects in 
February when the leaf cover is minimal inter-visibility was more apparent between close range 
viewpoints and key long distant views from the west at Mill Lane and  at Orton Lock and Sluices.  
 
Red Kite conclude the significance of visual effect of the proposed LAC is unlikely to exceed 
`Moderate Adverse’ due to various factors restricting the inter- visibility between the wider 
environment and the Site. These include  the physical and “visual containment” of the setting; the 
nature of the topography;  intervening tree cover; and presence of elements in the built environment 
such as high- density housing and road infrastructure, including the highly trafficked routes of the 
A1260,  A47 and A605. There is no significant inter-visibility between the Ferry Meadows and the 
city of Peterborough.  
 
With respect to long-distance views in the wider landscape setting presented in the Reconsultation 
material, although it is agreed material harm will result, it is Red Kite’s opinion that the visual effect 
arising from the proposed LAC is acceptable, and should not prohibit a decision to be made for this 
Planning Application.  
 
Red Kite made a number of recommendations following review of the initial LVIA; some of these are 
covered in the relevant sections of this report for example, covered cycle parking, construction 
methodology for the proposed car park within the SM, tree protection and biodiversity enhancements 
and will not be repeated here. 
 
Red Kite referred to the palette of cladding materials and questions the ‘reddish’ colour proposed 
and also questions whether there is scope for the town to be mirrored to assist assimilation in to the 
skyline.  Further consideration would be given to the finishing colour and mock ups along with a glint 
and glare assessment would be secured by condition.  
 
Red Kite, in the initial assessment of the LVIA, suggested the applicant undertook a ‘Glint and Glare 
Analysis for moving and stationary cars.  The applicant has not provided this information.  As this is 
an existing access to the Lakeside Centre which, at times in used during the evenings, it is 
considered unreasonable to insist on this assessment.  The existing car park and number of car 

74



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 51 

parking spaces has the potential to emit a significant level of light particularly visible from views to 
the west.  The proposed scheme has significantly less cars in this area.  Furthermore the proposed 
parking area is set behind the Water Sports Centre and would be substantially screened by 
hedgerow and trees. 
 
Red Kite advised that a low impact lighting strategy would be key to minimise light spill and intrusion 
into the surrounding natural landscape. Para 180 of the NPPF advises that development should limit 
the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark landscapes and 
nature conservation.  The level of existing lighting is to be reviewed by the applicant improving on 
the existing lighting levels at the Lakeside area.  The lighting strategy proposed is to reduce lighting 
in the interests of ecology, reducing light spill within the site and particularly along the lakeside edge.  
As this area is already used during the hours of darkness it is not considered that the level in lighting 
would substantially increase and the impact of light pollution from artificial light would be limited.  
 
Conclusion 
 
It is accepted that whilst the proposal would not have significant visual effect on the wider landscape 
setting, primarily due to the site’s visual containment and surrounding tree cover, the proposal would 
have an impact on the visual amenity of the area and the building would inevitably impact on views 
particularly from the west and across the lake due to the physical presence of the building.  However, 
this harm (moderately adverse) is outweighed by the enhancement of the recreational and leisure 
benefits the proposal LAC would provide ensuring Ferry Meadows Country Park as a major 
destination in line with the overall landscape strategy for the `Ferry Meadows Corridor’ LCA Sub-
Area.  The proposal therefore accords with policy LP27 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019).  
 
g) Wildlife Implications 
 
An Extended Phase 1 Survey Report (June 2018) was submitted in support of the application.  This 
has been updated as there has been a two year time lapse since the original report was undertaken. 
The updated Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (July 2020) found that the condition of the original 
habitats within the site had not significantly changed.  The updated Appraisal covered a wider survey 
area including the access road and immediately adjacent habitats to the site. 
 
Designated Sites:   The Castor Flood Meadows SSSI is located approximately 1.9km south-west of  
the application site.  Due to the distance from the site it is considered unlikely that the proposal would 
result in any adverse impact on the SSSI.  Natural England have developed Impact  Risk  Zones  
(IRZs)  which are a tool to  provide  an  initial assessment  of  the  potential  risks  to  SSSIs.  The 
site  falls  within  IRZs  for  the  Castor  Flood Meadows SSSI, Castor Hanglands SSSI and Orton 
Pits  SSSI, however the assessment of recreational pressure is not required for this type of 
development.  The  identified  categories  of  concern  relate  to  industrial,  commercial  uses,  
energy,  waste  and  quarry developments. Only new housing is identified as a category that will 
require an assessment of recreational pressure. It is considered that the country park is already an 
area of recreation and that the development would not significantly change the existing character of 
the park. 
 
The application site is within the Nene Park County Wildlife Site (CWS) (a non-statutory designation), 
and within a site of Local Nature Conservation Importance. Policy LP28 of the Local Plan advises 
that development which would have an adverse impact will only be permitted where the need and 
benefit clearly outweigh the impact and appropriate mitigation or compensation will be required.  
There is of the duty to promote and protect species and habitats.  
 
The report advises that the proposed development will not have  a  significant  negative  impact  on 
the CWS. However, the report acknowledges that some species such as birds and bats utilising the 
CWS for foraging and shelter will be impacted by the proposed development.  There is potential 
impact from artificial lighting and increased night time traffic along the access road which could be 
disruptive to nocturnal species such as bats and barn owls; and increased noise and human 

75



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 52 

disturbance across the site in general. The report concluded that there were no habitats within the 
site considered to be of regional or national ecological value.   
 
A number of objections have been received regarding the impact on nature and wildlife and the loss 
of habitat resulting from the development.  However the building would be located on an existing 
tarmacked area, there are limited loss of trees on this part of the site and those trees identified for 
removal have no suitable roosting features for bats.   
 
Concerns have been raised regarding the loss of part of Oak Meadow and its contribution to wildlife. 
The proposal would lead to the loss of an area of grassland.  The report advised that this habitat 
was of low ecological value. 
 
Amphibians and Reptiles:  although the site is of low value to amphibians and reptiles, the report 
recommended the fallen deadwood, grass cuttings and rubble piles should remain in situ; if this is 
not possible, moving these habitats should be completed by hand and recreated within similar habitat 
on site.   Should any great crested newt or reptile be encountered, works must stop immediately and 
a member of the Lockhart Garratt ecology team contacted for advice. The report recommends a 
method statement be implemented. 
 
Badgers:  No evidence of badger activity was found within or immediately adjacent to the site 
however, should there be evidence found on site during construction, a member of the ecology team 
contacted for advice. All trenches or deep pits within the site that are to be left open overnight will 
be provided with a means  of  escape  should  an  animal  enter.   
 
Bats:  The site has the potential for roosting and  foraging  for  bats.   The Assessment recommended 
that existing habitat should be retained, where possible and where it was not possible existing habitat 
should be enhanced with native planting and  the  planting  of  new  hedgerows  is recommended as 
a tool to offset this loss in biodiversity.  
 
The current proposal will lead to the loss of an area of scrub and several scattered trees. None of 
the trees to be lost have suitable roosting features for bats. However the Proposed Development will 
lead to additional lighting and disturbance close to the trees identified. Foraging and commuting 
habitats will also be subject to some disturbance from the change of use. Should it be necessary to 
remove any tree with bat potential, additional dusk emergence and dawn re-entry surveys will be 
required. 
 
A number of objections have been received due to the concern the development would have on 
Bats.  Dr Stebbings, a bat expert, has concerns about the lighting during the evening, including light 
spill from the building.  Dr Stebbings advises that lighting levels should be below  0.005lux (i.e. 100 
times less than the Councils Wildlife Officer reported in his submission and far above what would be 
acceptable at lake edge levels as described by the developers.).  Only minimal lighting should be 
provided to the car parking areas and paths to the facility should be contemplated. Lighting where 
needed should be only at ground level with no spillage into the lakes, meadows or woodland and 
hedgerows. 
 
A Bat Activity Survey has been undertaken to assess the bat activity on the site and the surrounding 
area. Remote bat detectors were deployed monthly between June and October 2020 for five 
consecutive nights for each month, which is recognised by the Bat Conservation Trust as the optimal 
period to undertake bat activity surveys.  Four areas on site and within the surrounding area were 
surveyed: the Site, the waterfront adjacent to the Site, south of the Site near the access road and 
the waterfront to the east of the Site away from already existing infrastructure and lighting. 
 

Eight species were identified as part of the data collected from the remote detector surveys. The 
majority of the calls recorded were identified as common pipistrelle or soprano pipistrelle which made 
up 97% of the total calls recorded during the monitoring period.   Brown long-eared, another common 
species were also recorded. Some rarer species were identified included Daubenton’s, Myotis  
species, Leisler’s, Serotine and Nathusius’ pipistrelle. 

76



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 53 

 
The Site itself was found to be used by a low number of bats, averaging hundreds of calls less than 
all other areas recorded. This indicates that the site itself is of low value for foraging and commuting 
bats, which correlates with the dominant habitats on Site being hardstanding and amenity grassland. 
 
The waterfront was found to be the area most used by bats. This indicates that the water and 
shoreline habitats are of good value for bats and provide an important foraging and commuting 
habitat. This area will not be directly impacted as part of the proposed development it is advised that 
it should be protected from indirect impacts, particularly light spill. 
 
The  waterfront  location  to  the  east,  located  away  from  the  existing  infrastructure,  had  a 
significantly higher nightly average suggesting that the existing infrastructure around the site may  
already  be  impacting  bats  in  the  area.  The survey suggested reducing the lighting levels of  the  
existing infrastructure should be considered as part of the proposed development. 
 
The site and surrounding area is considered to be of local level importance for commuting and of 
district level importance for foraging according to the Wray et al. (2010) assessment.  The Survey 
makes a number of recommendations.  Whilst the majority of the habitat on the site is sub-optimal 
for bats it is recommended that the boundary features including hedgerows, scrub and scattered 
trees are retained where possible to ensure the connectivity through the site for these species is 
maintained. 
 
Several trees were marked in the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Ref 20-3256) as having bat 
roosting potential. These trees should be retained and protected.  Should any scattered trees 
considered  to  have  bat  potential  during  the  Preliminary  Ecological  Appraisal  need  to  be 
removed, further assessment in association with these trees will be required to ensure they are not 
being used as a bat roost. 
 
Buffers should be designed into the Site Masterplan. A 3-5m buffer should be kept from all retained 
hedgerows. Replacement hedgerows should be planted where boundary features cannot be 
retained. Any replacement planting should comprise of native species. Where possible, commuting 
corridors should be retained. 
 
The waterfront, found to be the main area of bat activity, should be protected  from  indirect  impacts  
of  the  proposed development, particularly regarding lighting.  Lighting should be designed so that 
is at 0.5 lux  (maximum)  at the  shoreline as indicated in the lighting design scheme (1016836-RPT-
E-001 f).  The survey recommends reducing the lighting output of certain fixtures and using hoods 
and cowls to direct the light away from sensitive areas and avoid uplighting. PIR sensors are also 
recommended for areas where lighting at a certain level is required to provide sufficient security 
lighting given known antisocial behaviour in the area. 
 
It is recommended that reduced lighting is designed into the areas of the car park further away from 
the proposed building. These areas are less likely to be used during the night and only need to be lit 
for health and safety purposes when in use.  PIR sensors are recommended to ensure lighting is 
only on when required. This will help to reduce indirect impacts on habitat to the south, particularly 
a number of mature oak trees along the southern boundary. 
 
The  access  track  should  remain  unlit  as  it  is  currently  to  avoid  additional  impacts  on  bats 
commuting and foraging in the wider park. Night time use is considered unlikely to significantly 
increase, as there is already cars presence at night, as to cause significant disturbance to bats 
through car headlights. 
 
In addition, window glazing to prevent internal light spill should also be considered. There is a 
possibility to tie this in with the decals/glazing suggested to prevent bird strike within the PEA report. 
  

A lighting scheme supports the application.  The scheme also considers the lighting at the Lakeside 
Centre and nearby boat yard and shed which will minimise the environmental impact of current 

77



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 54 

installation. 
 
External luminaires are to be provided with a light source which has colour temperature of 3000K or 
less to minimise the installation effect on local wildlife.  All external lighting will be designed to support 
CCTV coverage of external areas where present.  The lighting will be controlled through a time switch 
and daylight sensor to prevent operation during daylight hours configured for photocell on/time clock 
off control. Lights to be switched on when the luminance levels received at photocell drop below the 
pre-set on/off lux level. Time clock control is used to control different zones on site.  
 
A maximum light level of 3 lux to be achieved along features likely to be used by foraging and 
commuting bats (i.e. hedgerows, trees, lakes).  A dark corridor effect (<0.5lux) is achieved through 
minimising the amount of lighting on walkway paths taking into consideration that some bats species 
are known to be more sensitive to light.  
 
Improvements to the lighting at the Boat yard will implemented including the existing floodlights to 
be replaced with spotlights supplied with direction flaps as to control the direction of light and reduce 
any spillage light and lighting close to the waterfront edge will be programmed to turn off when 
sunsets.   
 
The Ecologist is satisfied with the lighting scheme and advises that the updated lighting scheme will 
involve reducing existing light impacts, which will in itself be an improvement for biodiversity. 
 

In addition, the Police Architectural Liaison Officer is supportive of the lighting details and raises no 

objection. 

The report recommends the installation of four bat boxes on scattered trees to increase bat roosting 
potential.  
 
It is considered that the potential impact on Bats resulting from the development has been 
adequately assessed.  The Bat Survey has identified how the site is used by Bats and has identified 
where improvements can be made at the neighbouring Lakeside Café and Boat yard by replacing 
existing lighting.  Therefore the proposed lighting scheme would result in significant enhancements 
to the existing environment. 
 
Birds:  The report recommends due to the considerable area of glazed wall on the ground floor of 
the proposed LAC there is the potential for ‘bird strike’ and therefore consideration should be given 
to the type of glazing installed, for example it should be either UV coated or with visible decals.  The 
RSPB has also raised this as a concern.  These details would be secured by condition. 
 
Comments have been made regarding an Owl resident in one of the large oak trees within Oak 
Meadow.  This is referred to within the Ecology Report.  The tree would be unaffected by the 
development. 
 
Comments have been made regarding the loss of an area of shrubs which is a particular haven for 

over-wintering and winter visitor songbirds.  

As the scattered trees, scrub and hedgerows may potentially offer breeding opportunities for birds, 
works affecting these habitats should take place outside the bird breeding season (March to August 
inclusive). If in the event works need to proceed within this period then specialist advice from a 
suitably qualified ecologist should be sought. 
 
The report recommends the enhancement of hedgerows/shrub within the site. 
 
Comments have been made regarding the need for an Environmental Impact Assessment not being 
carried out to assess the impact on wildlife, including protected species.  The Local Planning 
Authority issued a screening opinion which concluded that there would not be a significant impact 
on wildlife.  A separate screening opinion has been issued by the Planning Inspectorate with the 

78



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 55 

same conclusion. 
 
Comments have been made regarding how wildlife and nature in the park has flourished during the 
covid crisis 2020. It is acknowledged that with less people within the park more sightings of wildlife 
have been experienced.  However, the purpose of the park is for the enjoyment of residents and 
visitors…one of the objectives of NPT is to increase visitors to the park to ensure its sustainability 
both for the present and future generations. 
 
Comments have been made regarding the potential for bird nesting at a height where cleaning will 
be impossible.  Pigeon infestation is known to have effect on human health (zoonosis).   However, 
the park is full of birds and this would be the case with any tall building and does not make the 
proposal unacceptable. 
 
The Wildlife Officer is satisfied that no bat roosts are likely to be affected by the proposal, however 
the surrounding habitats are likely to support foraging and commuting bats. The officer therefore 
recommends that any external lighting is carefully designed to avoid impacts to bats.  

In addition it is advised that a range of bat roost boxes are installed, full details of which may be 
secured by condition. 

 
Enhancements in the form of bird and bat boxes are also recommended. 
 
Otters:  A statement has been provided by the applicant regarding otter sightings.  The habitats 
present on site; hardstanding and amenity grassland with dense scrub, hedgerow, introduced shrub, 
scattered trees and a building also present, are not considered suitable for otters and are regularly 
disturbed as a result of recreational use by the general public. It is therefore considered that otters 
are absent from the site itself and will not be directly impacted as a result of the proposed LAC.  
There is also a footpath located between the site and the lake edge which is regularly used and is 
considered to act as a physical barrier for any holt creation beyond this point.  Measures would be 
put in place during the construction phase to prevent pollution of the watercourses and associated 
wildlife.   
 
The statement has been reviewed by the Ecologist who is satisfied that the precautionary measures 
will all be in a CEMP so nothing more is required in respect of otters. 
 
Concerns have been raised regarding the impact on wildlife and the natural environment of the park 
during construction.  A CEMP would be secured by condition. Construction practices should follow 
best practice in terms of dust and noise and control.  It is not considered that the construction of the 
building would unduly impact on the wildlife within the park.  
 
Comments have been made regarding the increase in pollution resulting from additional vehicles in 

the park.  Whilst it is accepted that there would be an increase in pollution entering the park, it is not 

considered that this would make the proposal unacceptable. 

 
It is considered that due regard has been given the presence or potential precedence of protected 
species within the site and the proposal would avoid any adverse impact on the biodiversity within 
the site in accordance with policy LP28 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and para 
175 of the NPPF (2019). 
 
 
h) Design and Appearance 
 
Local Plan policy LP16 advises that development proposals are expected to positively contribute to 
the character and local distinctiveness of the area and create a sense of place.  The supporting text 
to the policy advises that ‘design should evolve from an understanding of the site, its context and 
surroundings rather than unimaginative standards which could apply to any location’. 

79



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 56 

 
Policy LP16 goes on to say that, where applicable, proposals will be required to demonstrate that 
they, inter alia, respect the context of the site  and surrounding area and respond appropriately to 
building form…, existing natural, historic and built assets and features that contribute positively to 
local, character and distinctiveness;…. existing landmarks and focal points; existing views into, out 
of or through the site;…use appropriate, high quality materials which reinforce or enhance local 
distinctiveness, maximise permeability and legibility for pedestrians and cyclists, and avoid barriers 
to movement; are safe and designed to minimise crime and antisocial behaviour, and ensure public 
spaces are accessible to all. 
 
Para 124 of the NPPF advises that ‘Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates 
better places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities’.  
 
Para. 127 advises that ‘decisions should ensure that developments are sympathetic to local 
character and history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not 
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change’.   
 
Para 131 advises ‘that great weight should be given to outstanding or innovative designs which 
promote high levels of sustainability, or help raise the standard of design more generally in an area, 
so long as they fit in with the overall form and layout of their surroundings’. 
 
LAC 
 
The proposal is for a purpose built climbing centre which will house an Olympic Standard facility.  
There are two elements to the building – the ‘Shed’ and the ‘Tower’ due to different heights required 
for the different climbing activities.  The applicant has tested different forms and iterations 
considering various options and the requirements have been explored with climbing specialists.  The 
form and massing of the building has been influenced by how the building needs to function. 
 
The shed element of the building would have a maximum ridge height of 14 metres this element 
would be constructed in part with glass exterior curtain walls, with the exception of an external 
concrete climbing wall on its north-eastern elevation.  The tower element would have a maximum 
height of 34.25 metres and would be tapered vertically, reducing its mass.  The roof would be 
constructed using the standing seam method, using aluminium as the external material and would 
be finished in a bronze shade. This is chosen due to the durability of the material and ease of 
construction.   
 
The building would have glazing to the north-west elevation providing views of the lake. 
 
The Civic Society, in previous comments, questioned whether a colour close to Barnack stone may 
be of more relevance and suggest the spire (tower) be finished in golden buff and the shed in 
red/bronze which would break up the monumentality.  The Civic Society noted that the external 
materials are important to the impact and suggest a mock up on side rather than just submitting 
samples.   
 
Red Kite also suggests whether there is an opportunity to scope the tower to be mirrored to assist 
assimilation into the skyline. 
 
It is acknowledged there have been a number of objections to the design, height and form of the 
building. Objectors consider the design and size of the building is not in keeping with the surrounding 
area and it detracts from the character and appearance of the county park – ‘it will be an eyesore’, 
‘the structure is horrid as it will look horrendous’ while others consider it would ‘positively contribute 
to a city that has been lacking in architectural ambition’.   It is acknowledged that good design is 
emotive and subjective and whilst some will welcome the proposal others will not. The building is 
undeniably large particularly the tower element.   It is not possible to compare the design of the 
building with any other building as it will be ‘one of its kind’ and not replicated anywhere else in the 
City and indeed not anywhere in the UK.  Whilst the design of the building is ambitious and very 

80



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 57 

different to the Peterborough context it is considered that good architectural design should be 
welcomed and the building has the potential to enhance the setting of the Park and ‘act as a marker 
on the skyline’ providing identity and a sense of place while at the same time promoting the profile 
of Peterborough. 
 

It is accepted that the building would have an impact on the character and appearance of the area 
and particularly views across the lake, the most prominent aspect being the tower which would sit 
above the tree line.  However as stated above due to the topography of the site and its position within 
the valley it would be relatively contained by surrounding trees and the visual impact would not be 
substantial; depending on your point of view. 
 
It will be appropriate to consider examples of finishing material and colour and photo-visualisation of 
each elevation of the building and a mock up on site as suggested by the Civic Society, in their 
previous comments and Red Kite to ensure the building assimilates within the setting and these 
would be secured by condition. 
 
Comments have been received regarding the concrete floor and whether it is sufficient for such a 
heavy building.  It would be assumed that the applicant has carried out research to establish that 
this provision would be suitable. 
 
Overshadowing:  There are concerns that the LAC may dominate and overshadow the existing 
building at lakeside.  The building would be to the north-east of the Lakeside Building and therefore 
it is not considered that it would cause unacceptable overshadowing. 
 
Concerns have also been raised regarding the disabled fishing bays being in shade.  It is considered 

that the building would cause shadowing over the lake in the morning in winter, however this does 

not make the proposal unacceptable. 

 
Disabled users:  The LAC has been designed with Approved Document M. Provision has been made 
for disabled access to the site and a platform lift would be provided for mezzanine access. 3 disabled 
toilets have been provided as well as a disabled changing room for people participating in the 
building’s activities. 
 
Renewable energy:  The supporting information advises that the standing seam cladding will provide 
a very low embodied C02 material finish, natural cross ventilation and stack ventilation will be utilised 
where possible as a passive sustainable design approach and minimise heat loads and the building 
fabric capable of energy storage to actively limit internal summertime temperatures. 
 
Where possible locally sourced and reclaimed materials will be used to reduce CO2 emissions in 
the transport of materials and to make the building of its locality. 
 
Low energy lighting (LED’s) will be used throughout to minimise energy use. 
 
Security:  There have been a number of concerns raised regarding the security of the site, particularly 
as the LAC will be operational during the evenings.  The applicant has provided a security statement.   
There are already a number of systems in place for example Automatic Number Plate Recognition 
(ANPR), a barrier car parking system, CCTV coverage and the Lakeside Centre has a  monitored 
alarm and security attend the building if there are any issues. 
 
Whilst antisocial activity is fairly low in the park it has been noted via CCTV that there are still a 
significant number of people in the park during the night for recreation this includes, for example, 
people fishing or playing virtual reality games on their mobile phones, late night or early joggers 
amongst other activities. This presence is broadly mundane and contributes to security on site. 
 
There were concerns regarding the low level lighting required due to the impact on ecology, and the 
effective operation of CCTV.  As stated above a lighting strategy has been provided which will satisfy 

81



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 58 

this requirement.  The applicant welcomes the offer of support from the Cambs Police Architectural 
Liaison Officer to work on detailed solutions. 
 
It is considered the proposal would be of innovative and contemporary design and interest and 
although it would impact on the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area this 
would not be to a harmful degree.  
 
Car Park 
 
The car park will be constructed from permeable surfacing; most likely, gravel filled recycled plastic 
Golpla geo-grid. Comments have been made on the durability of this surfacing and whether it is 
robust enough for vehicle movements.  There is a balance of achieving permeability and protection 
of the SM, protecting the character of the open meadow.  Further consideration will need to be given 
to the surfacing in consultation with the drainage team, the PCC Archaeologist and Historic England.  
The surfacing has been chosen to limit the impact of the car parking area on the character of the 
meadow. 
 
Conclusion 
It is accepted that the LAC would introduce a prominent building into the lakeside setting and 
although located within a relatively contained location, views of the site would inevitably change.  
However this is weighed against the benefits of providing a building of high quality, innovative design 
which would be sympathetic to the surrounding context and which has the potential to enhance the 
setting of the park, add to the local distinctiveness of the area and create a sense of place. 
 
In addition the building would be of inclusive design, would incorporate measures to reduce carbon 
emissions and would be designed to minimise crime and antisocial behaviour. 
 
Hence the proposal accords with policies LP16 and LP31 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019) and paras 124, 127 and 131 of the NPPF. 
 
 
i) Landscape Implications 
 
An Arboricultural Impact Assessment supports the application and gives an assessment of the 
potential impact on the existing trees within the site resulting from the development.  The survey 
identified a total of 25 trees, and 18 groups of trees.  An addendum to the assessment has been 
submitted as a tree (T44 – Oak) had not been recorded individually.  
 
The development would require the loss of 6 trees, (T3 , T7, T10, T14, T13, T42) 3 groups of trees, 
and part of 4 tree groups (Part of G11, Part of G12, Part of G19, G20, Part of G23, T42, G32).   
 
T3 (Maple) and T10 (Hawthorn) are recommended for removal due to poor physiological and 
structural condition and would be recommended for removal irrespective of this proposal. 
 
T7 (Ash), Part  of  G11 (Mixed),  Part  of  G12 (Mixed), T14 (Maple), Part of G19 (Mixed), Part of 
G23 (Mixed) are of moderate quality.  T13 (Maple), G20 (Mixed), T42 (Prunus) These trees are 
proposed for removal because they are located within the footprint of the proposed new building, 
access road and car parking.  These trees are  of  low  and moderate  quality.  The impact of their 
removal  is reduced by the  retention  of  existing  trees in close proximity.    The removal of  these  
trees  will  not  have  a significant  negative  impact  on the  wider  community  due  to being  located  
internally to  the site  and  their  removal  will  be mitigated  by  replacement planting.  G32 (Elder) 
Low quality trees  to  be removed to allow replacement with better quality trees.  
 
The remaining trees and groups of trees will be retained and protected throughout the construction  
process. 
 
Arboricultural Impacts 

82



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 59 

 
No dig construction will be required for proposed footpaths within the RPA of trees G8 (Mixed), T16 
(Maple), G19 (Mixed) and G31 (Oak) which are moderate to high quality trees. 
 
There will be an encroachment into the RPA of trees T37 (Ash) and T38 (Birch) to provide a drop off 
point adjacent to the existing access road. The encroachment is between 3-15% and it is considered 
that the trees can successfully be retained. 
 
A Landscaping scheme has been submitted with the application including replacement tree planting 
is proposed. The majority of proposed tree planting will be native in keeping with surrounding tree 
species already existing on the site e.g. Alder, Field Maple, Hawthorn, Oak and Rowan but with a 
few additional flowering species to create interest e.g. Prunus avium ‘Plena’ and Sorbus aria 
‘Lutescens’ and Betula pendula to provide winter interest.  
 
Proposed hedging will comprise double staggered Hornbeam for formal areas nearer to the building, 
with mixed native hedging along the proposed car park edge including Dogwood, Elder, Hawthorn, 
Holly, and Hazel. 
 
Planting within the arrival plaza area and surrounding the proposed new building will complement 
the existing mix of ornamental shrubs, herbaceous and grasses surrounding the Lakeside Centre 
 
Initial comments from the tree officer requested that the majority of the trees within group G.20, and 
all of the trees within G.23 are retained, together with the greater part of the existing ditch associated 
with this natural feature across this part of the site. As an existing natural feature, the officer 
considered this important in terms of visual amenity of the area and the contribution of biodiversity 
within the site.  The Officer believed there was an opportunity to redesign the layout of the car park 
within the limits of the application site and tree protection measures, retaining the number of parking 
spaces and without the need for an asphalt concrete road across the Meadow. The 
pedestrian/disabled access from the car park would be via the existing gap in G.20, across the ditch 
in the north-western corner of the proposed car park, where an entrance/exit is currently proposed. 
 
Following a site visit and the re-evaluation of the visual amenity value of the trees within Group G20 
and those to be removed within Group G23, the Tree Officer is happy to accept the removal of the 
trees as a part of the overall proposals, including the proposed mitigation planting as over time there 
will be an overall net increase in tree canopy cover with the proposed planting.  The Officer is of the 
view that there is an opportunity to secure additional planting in several areas across the application 
site. 
 
The officer also considers that over time there will be a net gain in biodiversity across the 
development site, given the additional cover afforded by the proposed hedge planting and other 
areas of landscaping.  These details would be secured by condition. 
 
A detailed revised Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement shall be required to be 
submitted and would also be secured by condition.  This will also ensure that there is no impact on 
trees within close proximity of the site. 
 
Letter from objector with request to placing a Tree Protection Order on trees.  The tree officer 
considers that there is not any immediate threat of the trees being removed, given that the trees are 
an integral part of an ongoing current planning application, under public consultation, also the Nene 
Park Trust have no desire to remove any trees the subject of this process. 
 
There have been a number of objections to the loss of trees and shrubs within the site however the 
loss of trees has been limited where possible and there would be substantial replacement planting 
of species which would enhance the biodiversity of the site. 
 
There are no ancient trees affected by the development. 
 

83



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 60 

Conclusion 
 
It is considered that appropriate consideration has been given to the tree stock within the site and 
the impact of the development on existing trees around the site and where trees are to be removed 
a significant number of new tree planted would be secured.  Hence the proposal accords with policy 
LP29 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
 
j) Loss of open space 
 
The proposal would result in the loss of part of the open meadow due to the location of the car park. 
There has been significant objection to this loss.  Policy LP17 (b) of the Local Plan states that new 
development should not result in an unacceptable impact on the amenity including the loss of public 
green space and/or amenity space.  Para. 97 of the NPPF promotes the importance of access to 
high quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and physical activity for health and well-being. 
Existing open space, sports and recreational buildings and land, including playing fields, should not 
be built on unless: a) an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space, 
buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or b) the loss resulting from the proposed 
development would be replaced by equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in 
a suitable location; or c) the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the 
benefits of which clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use.  
 
In addition to meeting the requirements of the NPPF policy LP23 of the Local Plan states that the 
proposal must demonstrate that the open space does not make and important contribution to the 
green infrastructure network/connectivity of habitats, and the development would not result in 
landscape or habitat fragmentation or incremental loss; and the development can be accommodated 
without causing significant detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area, ecology 
or any heritage assets.  
 
It is accepted that an area of the meadow would be lost as a result of the development, however the 
area is small relative to the open space provision within the Park.   The proposal would enhance the 
recreational facilities within the park which would bring recognisable benefits promoting active 
healthy lifestyles to the Peterborough community and visitors to the park. 
 
The proposal would result in the loss of trees within the site however a significant number of new 
tree planted would be secured.  Therefore the proposal would result in an enhancement to the 
biodiversity within the site. 
 
As discussed in the above report the proposal would not have a significant impact on the visual 
amenity of the area and less than substantial harm would be caused to the Scheduled Monument. 
 
Conclusion 
 
It is considered that the benefits of the proposal and the provision enhanced facilities serving the 
community would outweigh the loss of the open space in accordance with policy LP23 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Local Plan and para 97 of the NPPF (2019). 
 
Amenity of users of the Park 
 
Wind Shadow:  A number of comments have been made regarding the impact of wind shadow that 
would result from the LAC building and the detrimental effect on sailing on the lake.  This has been 
raised with the application and it is not considered that this would be a concern.  It would not be in 
the applicant’s interest to compromise existing facilities provided within the park.  
 
Users of the Meadow:  Concerns have been raised regarding the activities that currently take place 
within the meadow being displaced.  The area for the car parking is a relatively small area of the 
meadow and it is not considered that activities would be compromised. 
 

84



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 61 

View of the lake:  Objectors consider the building would remove the possibility of people sitting in 

their cars having views across the lake.  Whilst it is accepted that views would be lost this does not 

make the proposal unacceptable. 

Lakeside area:   Comments have been raised regarding the impact the development would have on 

users of the lakeside area, for example walkers, dog walkers, families using the area for barbecues, 

playing football, the height of the building will put the children play area in shade.  It is considered 

that whilst the area will change the proposal would not result in an adverse impact on the users of 

the park.   

 
k) Highway Implications 
 
Transport Assessment (TA): 
A TA has been submitted in support of the application.  The aim of the TA is to assess the impact of 
the new development and, if necessary to mitigate the impact and identify measures to ensure that 
the trip generation created by the increase in visitor numbers to the park does not create an 
unacceptable  impact  on  the highway network.  Para. 108 of the NPPF advises that proposals 
should ensure opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes, safe and suitable access to 
the site can be achieved for all users; and any significant impacts on the transport network can be 
mitigated. 
 
Policy LP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan advises that development would not result in 
an unacceptable impact on any element of the highway network including highway safety. 
 
The Local Highways Authority (LHA) requested amendments to the initial TA and a revised TA has 
been submitted.     
 
Trip generation:  A comparison with a similar climbing wall centre in Milton Keynes with a GFA of 
1,309 sqm has been undertaken to determine the trip rates associated with the LAC.  This is 
considered to be an acceptable comparator. 
 
The trip generation for the proposed development has estimated development-related vehicle trips 
entering and leaving Ham Lane in the AM peak hour (08:00 – 09:00) as 14 and PM peak (16:30 – 
17:30) as 57.  In the future period and by 2029 the total number of trips estimated entering and 
exiting Ham Lane in the AM peak (08:00 – 09:00) is 190 and PM peak (16:30 – 17:30) as 312. 
 
Junction Modelling:  Junction modelling software was applied to the A605 Oundle Road/Ham 
Lane/Chisenhale roundabout to assess the possible junction capacity issues as a result of the new 
development.     The report concluded that the PM vehicles trips exceed the threshold as stated in 
the local transport assessment guidance however, to mitigate against these events, competitions 
will not be organised during peak hours to minimise the impact on the local highway network.  
 
It is the view of the Local Highways Authority that the transport impacts as a result of the development 
shall be minimal and there shall be no issues on the local highway network as a result of the 
proposals. 
 

A number of concerns have been raised regarding the TA and the limited assessment given to the 
existing traffic conditions along Oundle Road and the impact that future planned development will 
bring.  Residents carried out their own traffic count on a junction along Oundle Road a few hundred 
yards away from the Skanska junction recording traffic numbers over a 10 hr period, over 2 days.   

 
The TA scope was agreed with the LHA and produced in line with the Council’s guidance for 
assessing developments.  The junction modelling includes future traffic growth and the TA explains 
how a growth factor has been calculated using the national forecasting model TEMPro. TEMPro 
calculates future traffic growth based upon information from published Local Plans, and although 

85



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 62 

this doesn’t model the impact of specific developments, it does represent the expected growth across 
the Local Authority area as quantified in the Local Plan. 
  
The LHA do have a wealth of historic and real-time data along the Oundle Road corridor and there 
are plans to undertake transport studies (not related to the Nene Park Climbing Wall) in this part of 
the City Centre, subject to funding being available. 

 
Access: 
The LAC would be accessed from the existing access Ham Lane via Oundle Road (A605), a major 
arterial road linking the A1 to Peterborough City Centre. 
 
Ferry Meadows is considered to be well connected with footways and cycleways to the rest of 
Peterborough. Many of these routes are off-road footpaths and cycleways built as part of the New 
Town phase of development in Peterborough. There is also an east-west on-road cycle route along 
the A605 Oundle Road that provides the most direct access to and from the city centre. 
 
It is therefore considered that the site is adequately served by pedestrian and cycle routes from the  
surrounding residential areas. 
 
As  2  way  traffic  movements,  both  vehicle  and  pedestrian,  shall  increase  along  Ham  Lane  
as a result of the proposals the Local Highways Authority has requested that amendments, in the 
form of tactile paving on both sides of each crossing point, to 2 of the 4 most used pedestrian 
crossing points along Ham Lane. 
 
This would enhance the safety of the pedestrian route along Ham Lane for the visually impaired and  
as  tactile  paving  is  slip  resistant  it  would  also  benefit  pedestrians  with  a  wide  range  of  other  
disabilities including wheelchair users and pushchair users and people with walking disabilities.  The 
upgrading of the 2 crossing points would also increase the attractiveness of walking to Nene Park, 
reduce the  need of travelling by car and encourage alternative modes of transport such as walking 
to the site. 
 
The TA advises that the nearest bus stops to Ferry Meadows are located along the A605 Oundle 
Road between the A605 Oundle Road / Ham Lane / Chisenhale roundabout and the A605 Oundle 
Road / Cherry Orton Road junction. These bus stops are currently served by the Stagecoach X4, 23 
and 24 bus services, operating up to every hour all day in both directions on Mondays to Fridays 
(excluding bank holidays). There are no Saturday or Sunday Stagecoach 23 and 24 bus services 
along this route. 
 
Alternatively visitors could use the Stagecoach Citi 1 Service which operates between Werrington 
and Orton Wistow, via the City Centre on a 10 minute frequency between 06:00-18:30, and then 20 
minutes between 18:30 and 20:30, and hourly until 23:30. Saturday services run every 10 minutes 
between 09:00 and 19:00 with services either side operating on a 30 minute frequency. A 30 minute 
frequency operates on a Sunday between 09:00 and 17:30, with an hourly service until 23:30. The 
bus stop close to Linnet/Kingfishers is the nearest bus stop, access to Ferry Meadows would be via 
a route of off-road footpaths linking to Ham Lane.   
 
Comments have been made regarding the site’s location in terms of distance to bus stops and this 
is accepted.  Ferry Meadows is not well served with public transport and the site is at the heart of 
the park which increases the length walking distance from nearby bus stops.  It is likely that public 
transport is unlikely to be the main choice of transport for visitors to the LAC however as stated 
above the site is well served by a network of footpath and cycle paths and given that this is an 
existing recreational and leisure facility the distance from bus stops does not make the scheme 
unacceptable. 
 
Para 102 of the NPPF states that ‘opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public transport use 
are identified and pursued’. NPT have commented that ‘they are committed to encouraging visitors 
coming to the site through as many modes of transport as possible, and are keen to encourage more 

86



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 63 

people to cycle. The Lakeside Activity Centre is located within close proximity of National Cycle 
Route 63 and Local Cycle Route 21 and served by many access points suitable for cycle travel. The 
Nene Park Masterplan acknowledges that the key barriers to cycle access to the site are those of 
signage and  wayfinding  rather  than  a  lack  of  facilities.  These are  barriers  highlighted  in  the  
Nene  Park Masterplan and are being improved independent of this application. 
 
The National Travel Survey (NTS) 2017 considers a trip as being suitable for a bicycle when between 
1km and 8km in length with the average being around 5.5km. The NTS also cites 42% of the 
population as having access to a bicycle.   As Ferry Meadows and the proposed site of the activity 
centre are within a 6km traffic free route of the city centre, cycling is a key mode of transport for 
users to the park and this facility, and is central to the Trust’s sustainable travel plans. Cycle routes 
to the centre and park will be actively promoted and incentivised to encourage increased use of this 
method of transport.’ 
 
The comments made by the PCC Travel Team and the Cycle Forum regarding the access road 
leading to the development are noted.  There are no proposals to improve the access road as part 
of this application. Changes to the access road have to be balanced with the desire to improve safety 
for cyclists with the need to maintain the character of the Park.  The Park has a significant offering 
for cycle routes and the access road is just one of those routes.  There is a cycle path from the main 
entrance which lead to the Lakeside area and there are alternative route to the LAC for cyclists. It is 
not considered that condition of the existing access road would make the proposal unacceptable. 
 
A number of objectors consider the increase in traffic along the access road to the lakeside area 
compromise the safety of pedestrians, young families with toddlers, dog walkers, horse riders and 
disabled people entering the Park at Lynch Farm.  It is considered that pedestrian access to this part 
of the site would not be affected by the proposal.  
 
Comments have been made regarding the front cover of the TA shows a photo of a lady on a bike 

which is not on Oundle Road or an access to the park.  This is the Skanska logo/photograph and not 

related to the site. 

 
Car Parking: 
There are currently 467 car parking spaces available for visitors at Ferry Meadows, of which 130 are 
provided in the existing car park next to the Lakeside Centre. In addition Oak Meadow is used for 
informal overflow car parking, with capacity for around 600 cars within the designated area. 
 
A new one-way system car park is proposed to the south of the site and adjacent to the existing 
overflow car park, providing an additional 90 standard car parking bays, 6 mini-bus parking bays and 
10 accessible parking bays for disabled users.  There are no parking standards for this type of use 
and such proposals are considered on a case by case basis, however the LHA considers the level 
of provision is satisfactory. 
 
The existing parking and turning serving the existing Lakeside Centre shall be retained until the new 
car park area has been completed.  The new Activity Centre shall not be occupied until the new car 
park has been completed and the development shall not commence until provision has been made 
to replace the existing car park.  This would be secured by condition. 
 
In accordance with policy LP13 a condition would be appended to the decision requiring that 10% of 
the car parking spaces be provided with electric vehicle charging points. 
 
Disabled provision:   
A number of objections have been raised regarding the loss of the existing car park which provides 
for less mobile people views across the lake etc; and the loss of the parking for disabled fishermen 
and those attending the Sailability facility.  The scheme proposes 10 no. disabled parking spaces 
close to the LAC building and an additional 10 disabled parking spaces in the new parking area 
which is close to the Lakeside Centre.  Whilst it is appreciated that parking would be lost from the 

87



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 64 

existing site suitable provision has been made for disabled parking as part of the proposed 
development. 
 
NPT has responded that ‘the  use  of  Ferry  Meadows  by  as  many  members  of  the  community  
as  possible  is  at  the  heart  of  NPT’s aspirations. The new Lakeside Activity Centre would enable 
access to its facilities for all, including those who are less mobile or use a wheelchair. It is anticipated 
that when operational, the LAC would have sessions which target groups who may be harder to 
reach or with a range of disabilities and needs. 
 
Beyond the new LAC, Nene Park itself will retain its existing range of spaces where less mobile 
people are able to drive and enjoy the environment. These include Orton Mere and Thorpe 
Meadows, in addition other projects are in development to provide improved opportunities for 
accessing views by the lake edge in Ferry Meadows.’ 
 
Cycle Parking: 
The existing stainless steel cycle parking stands will be relocated to the front of the proposed LAC 
close to the ‘Arrival Plaza’. 15 stands shown on the plan and further cycle parking would be provided 
if demand increases.  The cycle parking shall be provided prior to the occupation of the LAC and the 
development shall not commence until provision has been made to replace the existing cycle 
parking. 
 
The comments made by the Cycle Forum and the Travel Choice Officer  and others are noted with 
regard to covered cycle parking and this would be secured by condition. 
 
It is not considered that the proposal would unduly impact on the surrounding highway network.  
The site is accessible by a choice of means of transport the proposal would ensure that a safe and 
convenient access for all users would be available.  Satisfactory provision has been made for car 
and cycle parking.  Hence the proposal would accord with policy LP13 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and paras 102 and 108 of the NPPF. 
 
l) Neighbouring Amenity 
 
The LAC would be positioned some 600m from existing residential development off Wistow Way.  
As activities will take place inside the building the use of the facility would not adversely impact on 
neighbouring amenity.  Whilst it is noted that a number of objections have been raised regarding the 
potential increase in vehicles and subsequent noise levels, given the separation distance this is 
unlikely to be unacceptable. 
 
Likewise given the 600m distance from these properties if any of the development is visible this is 
unlikely to impact. 
 
Comments have been made regarding the impact from increased traffic and noise from people 
leaving late at night and subsequent impact on residents off Ham Lane and those abutting the site.  
These properties are set back from Ham Lane and there is a tree belt separating the residential 
development from the access road.  In addition, given the recreational use of the park and that 
facilities within the park already operate in the evening and the predicted traffic levels it is not 
considered that the impact on the LAC on existing residential occupier off Ham Lane would be 
unacceptable. 
 
It is noted that residents are already experiencing issues with visitors to the park who park their 
vehicles on the nearby streets some of which restrict access to driveways and that this would be 
exacerbated by the proposal.  However this is an existing problem.  There would be no reason for 
users of the LAC to parking on local streets and adequate parking provision would be available 
within the park.   
 
Additional lighting will impact on residents backing on to the Park, people who enjoy the fantastic 
Star studded sky still seen in this area.  As discussed above, there is already a level of lighting 

88



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 65 

around the Watersports Centre and a lighting strategy will be introduced to reduce existing levels in 
the interest of ecology and the wider landscape impact.  
 
There are already noisy PA systems and loud music at the park.  This is an existing issue and not 
for consideration as part of this proposal as no PA system is proposed. 
 
Objectors have suggested that the facility will give rise to higher levels of littering.  Whilst there may 
be a risk of this it would be a matter that would be addressed by day to day park management. 
 

Concerns have been raised regarding the construction works and noise implications for neighbouring 
occupiers.  It is accepted there will be an impact however a construction management plan would 
be secured by condition whereby noise would be restricted as far as reasonably practicable. 
 
Concerns have also been made regarding plant machinery to serve the development.  It is 
considered that due to the separation distance to existing residential properties it is not considered 
that this would result in any unacceptable adverse impacts with respect to noise.   A condition would 
be appended to the decision to agree extraction and associated noise. 
 
The proposal would not result in any adverse impact on neighbouring occupiers and therefore 
accords with policy LP17 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan in respect of neighbouring 
amenity. 
 
 
m) Environment and Pollution  
 

A number of objections have been raised regarding the impact of the proposal on air pollution due 
to the increase in traffic; the environmental impact through the loss of the open meadow and trees; 
and impact on the biodiversity of the park.  Objectors refer to Peterborough’s ambition to create the 
UK's Environment Capital.  The council is committed to creating the UK’s Environment Capital and 
it is one of the council’s key priorities. 
 
While there may be an increase in traffic and therefore emissions, it is not considered that this would 
have significant impact in terms of air pollution.  This has not been raised as an issue by the 
Environment Protection Team.   The site is accessible through a number of footpaths and cycleways 
to the surrounding areas and the applicant actively encourages access to the park by alternative 
means of transport.  An updated Travel Plan would be secured by condition which would provide 
measures to encourage the number of people accessing the site on foot or bicycle.  Also in line with 
government timescales for electric vehicles a number of vehicle parking spaces will be served with 
electric vehicle charging points. 
 
In terms of noise pollution, the site is within an existing park setting which has high levels of visitors 
throughout the year and the proposal would not exacerbate existing noise levels within the park. 
 
With regard to the impact on biodiversity resulting from the development through construction, 
vehicle emissions, lighting, loss of part of the meadow and removal of trees, the proposal includes a 
number of measures to enhance the biodiversity of the site, including significant replacement tree 
planting, the reduction in current levels of lighting around the lakeside area and a CEMP would be 
secured to ensure that construction does not adversely impact on the ecology of the site. 
 
Furthermore the building would be designed to reduce energy demand and ensure energy efficiency. 
 
Conclusion  
 
It is not considered that the proposal would result in an unacceptable level of pollution in terms of air 
quality, noise and lighting.  The proposal includes measures to encourage travel to the park by 
alternative means along with measure to enhance and protect ecology within the park setting.  

89



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 66 

 
In addition, the proposal would make a positive and significant contribution towards reducing energy 
demand and promoting energy efficiency. 
 
Hence the proposal accords with policies LP13 and LP31 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019). 
 
n) Public Consultation 
 
A public exhibition on the proposal was held on Saturday 3 November 2018 in the John Horrell Room 
at Ferry Meadows which was attended by 97 people.  A preview event was also held with key 
stakeholders on  1 November 2018 was attended by 15 people including: Nene Park Board Member 
Christine De Ferrars Green, current Nene Park tenants and two representatives from Ailsworth 
Parish Council. 
 
The applicant advises that issues raising during the consultation have been taken into account 
including further design refinement to create a more slender tower and general building shape, 
improved accessible parking strategy, feedback on cladding colour reviewed and taken into account, 
and reduced plinth area around building and increased soft landscaping to improve siting of Building. 
 
Over 1800 flyers were distributed to local residents and park users, an advert was placed in the 
Peterborough Telegraph alongside a wider press release and a range of media coverage and both 
posters within the park, email to the Trust’s substantial mailing list and social media was used to 
promote the consultation event. The plans and survey were also available online following the event.  
 
Comments have been received regarding the level of consultation that has taken place by NPT 
arguing that this was to a small representation of the city.  From the above, it would appear that an 
acceptable level of consultation has been undertaken and would accord with the requirements of 
para 128 of the NPPF for the purposes of this application. It is noted that comments have been made 
regarding the lack of communication between members of the public and the applicant however this 
does not affect the consideration of this application. 
 
In respect of this planning application, the Local Planning Authority publicised the application in the 
Peterborough Telegraph, site notices were erected around the park and 394 neighbouring occupiers 
were notified.  This is considered to be in accordance with the statutory obligations for consultation. 
 
It is considered that given the number of representations made both in objection and support 
consultation has reached a high number of people across the City. 
 
 
o) Items not covered in the above report 
 

• The access road is not covered in the red edge of the site.  Officer response:  there are no 
proposed works to the access road.  The access road abuts the adopted highway and is within 
the applicant’s control – blue land. 

 

• Viability:  Comments have been made regarding the viability of the proposal.  Officer response:  
This is not a material planning consideration. 

 

• The proposal is contrary to the 1988 Covenant from PDC required NPT.  Officer response:   It is 
not considered that the proposal would be contrary to the original covenant, however this is not 
a material planning consideration. 

 

• Given the level of objection to the proposal the application should be refused.  Officer response:  
the decision of the application must be based on planning policy and material planning 
considerations and cannot be determined on the basis of level of support or objection. 

 

90



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 67 

• This would establish a worrying precedent for potential future development in Ferry Meadows. 

Officer response:  Consideration have been given to the proposal and any future application 

would be considered on its merit. 

 

• There is a conflict of interest as NPT’s Chief Executive and involvement with the climbing sector.  

Officer response:  This is not a material planning consideration. 

 

• The NPT CEO is now Chair of the Towns Fund Committee; a Committee which puts together a 

list of Projects for funding from the Town Fund Bid – the International Climbing Wall is on this 

list.  This is a blatant conflict of interests.  Officer response:  the Climbing Wall is one of many 

projects under consideration, however this is not a material planning consideration. 

 

• Will there need to be an Aircraft warning light on the top of the tower.  Officer response:   It is not 
considered that the building would require an aircraft warning light.  However, this would need to 
be investigated by the applicant in the event that planning permission is granted. 

 
• With families accessing food banks –  is the climbing wall of 4 million morally obscene?  Officer 

response:  This is not a material planning consideration. 
 

 

• Suspend this application until the major Pandemic restrictions have ended.  Officer response:  
The Government Guidance is that planning applications continue to be determined. 

 

• Has the platform been designed for the proposed wheeled cleaning vehicle.  Officer response:  
There are no reasons to suggest that the platform would not be sufficient. 

 

• Was planning permission granted for the existing overflow car park?   Officer response:  There 
is no history of a planning application being submitted for the overflow car park.  The area has 
been used for this purpose for several years; evidence shows it was used for parking in 2010.  
As the area is used as an overflow car park it is probably used when the park is busy, for example 
bank holidays, and is therefore a temporary use.  Under the Town and Country Planning 
Permitted Development Order land can be used temporarily for up to 28 days per year. 

 
 
6 Conclusions 
 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically: 
 

• The proposal would enhance recreational offer within the Nene Valley bring recognisable 
benefits to the local economy as well as promoting active and healthy lifestyles and would accord 
with policies LP7 and LP24 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and paras.  91 and 
92 of the NPPF; 

 

• a sequential approach to site selection has been undertaken which demonstrates there are no 
sequentially preferable sites which could accommodate the development in accordance with 
policies  LP12, LP24 and LP30 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and paras 86, 
87, 89, of the NPPF (2019); 

 

• The proposal has demonstrated that there are no sequentially preferable sites available at a 
lesser risk of flooding and that the development would be safe for its lifetime and would not 
increase the risk of flooding elsewhere. In applying the exception test the proposal has 
demonstrated that the proposal would provide wider sustainability benefit to the community and 
the development would be safe for its lifetime and would not increase flood risk elsewhere and 

91



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 68 

accords with policies LP24 and LP32 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and paras 
155, 158,159, 160 and 161 of the NPPF (2019). 

 

• The proposal has demonstrated that the site can be suitably drained, will incorporate SuDS into 
the proposal to reduce surface water run-off and adequate foul water treatment and disposal can 
be achieved.  The proposal therefore accords with policy LP32 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Local Plan (2019) and paras. 163 and 165 of the NPPF (2019). 

 

• The proposal would have a negligible impact on the Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas 
identified.  The proposal would lead to less than substantial harm to Lynch Farm Complex (SM); 
a ‘strip, map and record’ mitigation strategy is proposed.  The public benefits of the proposal 
would outweigh the less than substantial harm, hence the proposal would accord with policy 
LP19 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and paras.   189, 190, 193, 194 and 196 
of the NPPF (2019). 

 

• The visual harm caused by the building to the wider landscape is outweighed by the 
enhancement of the recreational and leisure benefits of the proposal ensuring Ferry Meadows 
Country Park as a major destination in line with the overall landscape strategy for the `Ferry 
Meadows Corridor’ LCA Sub-Area.  The proposal therefore accords with policy LP27 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  

 

• The proposal would avoid any adverse impact on the biodiversity within the site, including 
protected species and biodiversity enhancements would be provided.  Hence the proposal 
accords with policies LP24, LP28 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and para 175 
of the NPPF (2019). 

 

• The proposal would provide a building of high quality, innovative design which would be 
sympathetic to the surrounding context and which has the potential to enhance the setting of the 
park, add to the local distinctiveness of the area and create a sense of place.  Hence the proposal 
accords with policies LP16 and LP31 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and paras 
124, 127 and 131 of the NPPF. 

 

• The proposal has appropriately considered the tree stock within the site and the impact of the 
development on existing trees and where trees are to be removed a significant number of new 
tree planted would be secured.  Hence the proposal accords with policy LP29 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

 

• The loss of open space would be outweighed by the benefits of the proposal and the provision 
of enhanced facilities serving the community; the loss of grassland and habitat would not result 
in an adverse impact on the biodiversity of the site; and the proposal would not impact on the 
character of the area or heritage asset to an unacceptable degree.  Hence the proposal accords 
with policy LP23 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and para 97 of the NPPF (2019). 

 

• The proposal would not unduly impact on the surrounding highway network.  The site is 
accessible by a choice of means of transport the proposal would ensure that a safe and 
convenient access for all users would be available.  Hence the proposal would accord with 
policy LP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and paras 102 and 108 of the 
NPPF. 

 

• The proposal would not result in any adverse impact on neighbouring occupiers and therefore 
accords with policy LP17 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan in respect of neighbouring 
amenity. 

 

• The proposal would not result in an unacceptable level of pollution in terms of air quality, noise 
and lighting.  The proposal includes measures to encourage sustainable travel, measures to 
enhance and protect ecology, and measure to reduce energy demand and promoting energy 
efficiency.  Hence the proposal would accord with policy LP31 of the Adopted Peterborough 

92



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 69 

Local Plan (2019). 
 
 
7 Recommendation 
 
The case officer recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions: 
  
C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 

the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 

amended). 
  
C 2 No development shall take place/commence until a programme of archaeological work 

including a Written Scheme of Investigation has been submitted to, and approved by, the 
local planning authority in writing.   

  
 The details shall require the implementation of an archaeological mitigation strategy for 

‘strip, map and record’ excavation as set out as Option 1b in the Addendum by Pre-Develop 
Archaeology. 

  
 No development shall take place unless in complete accordance with the approved 

scheme.  The approved scheme shall be implemented in full including any post 
development requirements e.g. archiving and submission of final reports. 

  
 Reason: To secure the obligation on the planning applicant or developer to mitigate the 

impact of their scheme on the historic environment when preservation in situ is not 
possible, in accordance with Policy LP19 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and 
Chapter 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019).   This is a pre-
commencement condition because archaeological investigations will be required to be 
carried out before development begins. 

  
C 3 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk 

assessment (ref ARUP LAC-ARUP-RP-C-0001 Issue 03 dated 25 July 2019) and the 
following mitigation measures it details: 

  
 * Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 6.70 metres above Ordnance Datum 

(AOD) 
 * The screening underneath the building should be cleared of debris regularly. 
  
 These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently 

in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. The measures detailed 
above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the lifetime of the 
development. 

  
 Reason:  To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and to reduce flood 

risk elsewhere, in accordance with policy LP32 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019). 

  
C 4 No development shall take place until a detailed design and associated management and 

maintenance plan of surface water drainage for the site using sustainable drainage 
methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

  
 The approved drainage scheme must encompass Surface Water Management Strategy 

Option 1 or Option 2 as described and shown in the Flood Risk Assessment - LAC-
ARUPRP-C-0001 Issue 3 dated 25th July 2019. 

93



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 70 

  
 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
  
 Reason:  To ensure that the principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this 

proposal in accordance with policy LP32 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
  
C 5 No commencement of the LAC building hereby approved shall commence until full details 

of a scheme, for the provision of mains foul sewage infrastructure on and off site has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The LAC building 
shall not be occupied until the works have been carried out in accordance with the 
approved scheme.  

   
 Reason: To prevent flooding, pollution and detriment to public amenity through provision of 

suitable water infrastructure. 
   
C 6 No development shall take place above foundation level until the following details have 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
  
 * Walling and roofing materials – samples shall be ‘mocked-up’ on site  and made available 

for inspection  
 * A photo-visualisation of each elevation  
 * Measures to prevent bird collision for example ‘bird friendly’ glass either UV coated or with 

visible decals 
 * Window glazing to include measures to prevent light spill outside the building. 
 * A Glint and glare assessment 
  
 The details submitted for approval shall include the name of the manufacturer, the product 

type, colour (using BS4800) and reference number. The development shall not be carried 
out except in accordance with the approved details. 

   
 Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, and 

that  the  development  does  not  have  an  adverse  ecological impact in accordance with 
Policies LP16, LP27 and LP28 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) and para 
175 of the NPPF. 

  
C 7 No development or other operations shall commence on site in connection with the 

development hereby approved, (including any tree felling, tree pruning, demolition works, 
soil moving, temporary access construction and or widening, or any operations involving 
the use of motorised vehicles or construction machinery) until a detailed Arboricultural 
Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 The Tree Protection Plan will exclude all and any development beyond a line north/south of 

the construction limit required to construct the car parking spaces on the eastern boundary 
of the site, the remaining land to the east will be within a Construction Exclusion Zone - 
CEZ. 

  
 No development or other operations shall take place except in complete accordance with 

the approved Method Statement/Tree protection plan.   
   
 Reason: In order to protect and safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with 

Policies LP16 and LP29 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  This is a pre-
commencement condition because the approved construction specification must be in 
place and adequate prior to development commencing to ensure the trees are protected. 

  
C 8 Notwithstanding the details hereby approved on the Indicative Softworks Plan; Indicative 

Planting Schedule and the Landscape Masterplan, a Landscaping Plan providing details of 

94



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 71 

additional tree planting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The details shall include a planting design proposal, including the position, 
species, size, support, planting/planting pit detail and plant/tree protection of all plantings, 
together with a detailed Maintenance & Management Programme. 

  
 The soft landscaping shall be installed within the first planting season following first 

operational occupation of the building and thereafter be retained as such.  
     
 If within a period of five years from the date of planting of any tree/shrub that tree or shrub,  

or any tree or shrub planted in replacement for it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or 
does, or becomes, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged or 
defective, another tree or shrub of the same species and size as that originally planted shall 
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to 
any variation.  

    
 Reason:  In the interest of visual and general amenity and the enhancement of biodiversity 

in accordance with policies LP16, LP28 and LP29 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019). 

   
C 9 No development shall take place until a Construction Environment Management Plan which 

includes measures recommended under Section 10 of the Updated Preliminary Ecological 
Appraisal V2 – July 2020 has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

  
 The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the approved details.  
  
 Reason:  In  order  to  ensure  that  the  development  does  not  have  an  adverse  

ecological impact in accordance with policy LP28 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019) and para 175 of the NPPF. This is a pre-commencement condition as the details will 
need to be agreed before works start on site.  

  
 C10 Prior to first occupation of the development a scheme for bird nesting boxes for birds shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall 
cater for a number of different species such as House Sparrow, Starling and Swift and shall 
include details of the number and design of boxes and their location. The boxes shall 
thereafter be implemented before the development is first occupied.       

   
 Reason: In the interests of the enhancement of biodiversity in accordance with policy LP28 

of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019).  
  
 C11 Prior to first occupation of the development a range of bat roost boxes shall be installed in 

accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented before the development 
is first occupied. 

   
 Reason:  In  order  to  protect  species  within  the  development  area  from  harm  in  

accordance  with policy LP28 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
   
C12 The development hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance with the details set 

out in the Site External Lighting Drawing drg. no.   BSXX(63)4001 rev P4 and External 
Lighting Scheme Document – Dec 2020. 

  
 Reason:  In  order  to  ensure  that  the  development  does  not  have  an  adverse  

ecological impact in accordance with policy LP28 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019). 

    

95



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 72 

C13 The level of existing car parking provision to be lost as part of the proposed development 
shall be provided as a minimum in accordance with the details shown on drg. no.  A-L-002 
A prior to the removal of the existing parking. 

  
 The parking and turning provision shall be provided in full in accordance with the approved 

details prior to the building being brought into use.   Thereafter the parking and turning area 
shall be used for no other purpose than the parking and turning of vehicles. 

  
 Reason:  In the interest of highway safety and in accordance with policy LP13 of the 

Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
   
C14 Notwithstanding the details for cycle parking provision as shown on the approved plans the 

following details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: 

  
 * Secure and covered cycle parking for staff 
 * Covered cycle parking for visitors 
  
 The level of existing cycle parking provision to be lost as part of the proposed development 

shall be provided as a minimum in accordance with the details shown on drg. no.  
414.05944.00002.0003 P03 prior to the removal of the existing cycle parking. 

  
 The cycle parking provision shall be provided in full in accordance with the approved 

drawings prior to the building being brought into use.   Thereafter the cycle parking area 
shall be used for no other purpose than the parking of cycles. 

  
  
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to encourage travel by sustainable modes, 

in accordance with Policy LP13 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
  
C15 Prior to commencement of development, other than ground and foundation works, details of 

the upgrading to 2 of the 4 most used pedestrian crossing points along Ham Lane shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The upgrading of the 
pedestrian crossing points shall be implemented in accordance with the approved plans 
prior to the occupation of new Activity Centre. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with policy LP13 of the 

Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
   
C16 Notwithstanding the details hereby approved, competitions to be held at the LAC shall be 

organised to avoid peak hours on the highway network. 
  
 Reason:  To minimise the impact on the local highway network, in accordance with policy 

LP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
  
C17 Notwithstanding the approved site plan drg. no. A-L-002 Rev A details  of  the  location  and  

specification  for  electric vehicle charging points  shall  be  submitted  to  and  approved  in  
writing  by  the  Local  Planning  Authority.  These shall be provided for 10% of the car 
parking spaces. 

   
 The  approved  details  shall  be  provided  prior  to  the  building  being  brought  into  use  

or  first occupied. 
   
 Reason:  In order to encourage the use of low emission vehicles and in accordance with 

policy LP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
     

96



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 73 

C18 Prior to the commencement of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority, a Construction Management Plan shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This shall include amongst other 
matters: 

  
 * a noise management plan including a scheme for the monitoring of construction noise; 
 * a scheme for the control of dust arising from building and site works; 
 * a scheme of chassis and wheel cleaning for construction vehicles including contingency 

measures should these facilities become in-operative and a scheme for the cleaning of 
affected public highways; 

 * a scheme of working hours for construction and other site works; 
 * a scheme for construction access from the Parkway including measures to ensure that all 

construction vehicles can enter the site immediately upon arrival, adequate space within the 
site to enable vehicles to turn/load and unload clear of the public highway and details of any 
haul routes across the site; 

 * a scheme for parking of contractors vehicles; 
 * a scheme for access and deliveries including hours; 
 * A construction environmental management plan as set out under condition 9; 
 * A tree protection plan including construction exclusion zone as set out under condition 7? 
  
 The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved plan, 

unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  
  
 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with policy LP13 of the 

Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). This is a pre-commencement condition as the 
CMP needs to be in place before works start on site.  

    
 
C19 Within six months of the first operational use of the building a full Travel Plan shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The Travel Plan shall 
include the following: 

  
 - action plans and staff travel survey results 
 - details of staff lockers and shower/changing facilities for staff 
 - details of quarterly on-the spot travel surveys for visitors to ascertain travel pattern 
 - details for quarterly car park and cycle parking usage monitoring to inform future initiatives 

and interventions 
 - the provision for additional cycle parking spaces if demand increases  
 - details of car share parking spaces.   
       
 The development shall thereafter be operated in accordance with the approved Travel Plan. 
     
 Reason: In order to promote sustainable travel and reduce the number of single occupancy 

trips to the site in accordance with policy LP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan 
(2019). 

  
C20 Prior to the installation and use of the external mechanical plant associated with the 

development hereby approved, details of all mechanical ventilation and extraction 
equipment, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The information to be submitted shall include Sound Power Level (SWL) and frequency 
spectrum data to show that the combined rating level of all the mechanical plant and 
equipment will be at least 5dB below the background level at the nearest noise sensitive 
premises, and also include manufacturer detail, extraction and filtration of cooking 
fumes/odour control etc. The assessment must be carried in accordance with BS4142:2014 
Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound.   

  

97



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 74 

 Thereafter all equipment shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and 
retained and maintained in perpetuity. 

  
 Reason: In the interest of protecting the amenity of neighbouring residents, in accordance 

with Policy LP17 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
   
C21 Prior to any occupation of the development hereby permitted, measures to minimise the 

risk of crime and ensure community safety shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 The approved security measures shall implemented prior to the development being brought 

into use and thereafter retained in perpetuity.  
   
 Reason: In the interests of crime prevention and site security in accordance with Policy 

LP16 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
  
 
C22 Before the Lakeside Activity Centre is brought into use a scheme shall be agreed with the 

local planning authority which specifies the provisions to be made for the control of noise or 
other nuisance emanating from the site.  These provisions could include physical and/or 
administrative measures.  The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details. 

    
 Reason:  In  the  interests  of  amenity  and  in  accordance  with  policy  LP17 of the  

Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 
  
 
C23 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 

1987 (as amended) (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification) the development hereby permitted  

 shall be used as an ‘indoor climbing centre’(D2) and ancillary cafe (A3)and for no other use 
in their respective use class. 

  
 Reason:  In order to prevent a permitted change of use which would not be appropriate for 

this location and which may affect the vitality and viability of the City Centre in accordance 
with policy LP12, LP30 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan (2019) 

   
C24 Prior to the first use of the LAC hereby approved details of the following shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
  

• a robust flood evacuation plan together details of when it would be deployed and means 
of temporary closure of the LAC 

• detail of wooden bollards to be erected around the perimeter of the car park to prevent 
buoyant vehicles from becoming an additional hazard away from the site.   

  
 The operation of the LAC shall be carried out at all times in complete accordance with the 

flood evacuation procedure. 
  
 Reason: To ensure the development is safe for its lifetime taking account of the 

vulnerability of its users in accordance with para 160 of the NPPF (2019). 
  
C25 The use of the LAC hereby approved shall only take place between the hours of 07:00 and 

22:00 Monday to Friday; 08:30 and 22:00 on Saturday; and 09:30 and 22:00 on Sunday 
and Bank Holidays. 

  

98



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 75 

 Reason:  To safeguard the area from intrusive noise and activity in the interest of amenity 
and wildlife of the park in accordance with policies LP17 and LP28 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Local Plan (2019). 

  
C26 No development shall take place above slab level until a scheme for the hard landscaping 

of the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The scheme shall include details of the following:- 

  
- Proposed finished ground and building slab levels 
- Samples of hard surfacing materials including the surfacing materials for the proposed 

car park. 
- Details of balustrades and rails. 
- Location and specification of lighting. 

  
 The approved hard landscaping scheme shall be carried out prior to the building being 

brought into use. 
  
 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity of the area and the enhancement of biodiversity, 

in accordance with Policies LP16, LP28 and LP29 of the Peterborough Local Plan (2019).   
  
C27 The development shall be implemented in accordance with the following approved plans 

and documents: 
  

• Location Plan drg. no. A-L-001 Rev A 

• Site boundary plan drg. no.  14.05944.00002.001 P1 

• Site Plan existing drg. no. A-L-003 Rev A 

• Ownership Plan 

• Proposed Site Plan drg. no. A-L-002 A 

• Proposed Site Plan drg. no. A-L-004 Rev A 

• Scheduled monument plan drg. no. 414.05944.00002.008 P1 

• Landscape Masterplan drg. no. 414.05944.00002.0002 P07 

• Landscape Masterplan drg. no. 414.05944.00002.0003 P03 

• Indicative Softworks drg. no. 414.05944.00002.0004 P04 

• Tree Removal and Retention drg. no.  414.05944.00002.005 P03 

• Landscape Masterplan with preliminary external levels drg. no. 414.05944.00002.009 
P02  

• Landscape Sections Sheet 1 of 2 drg. no. 14.05944.00002.006 P01 

• Landscape Sections Sheet 2 of 2 drg. no.  414.05944.00002.007 P01 

• Sections Sheet 1 drg. no.  A-L-300 Rev A 

• Site Context Elevations drg. no.  A-L-203 Rev A 

• Elevations Sheet 3 drg. no.  A-L-202 Rev A 

• Elevations Sheet 2 drg. no.  A-L-201 Rev A 

• Elevations Sheet 1 drg. no.  A-L-200 Rev A 

• Roof Plan drg. no.  A-L-102 Rev A 

• First Floor General Arrangement drg. no.  A-L-101 Rev A 

• Ground Floor General Arrangement drg. no. A-L-100 Rev A 

• Main Car Park excavation proposals drg. no.  414.05944.00002.010 P00 

• Site exterior lighting design concept drg. no. BSXX(63)4001 Rev P4 

• Arboricultural Impact Assessment – January 2019 

• Pre-Develop Archaeology Report – 2019 

• Statement of Community Involvement and Appendices 

• Addendum to Tree Constraints Plan and Impact Assessment – Sept 2019 

• Pre-Develop Archaeology Addendum 

• Travel Plan 

• Transport Assessment – Sept 2019 

99



 

DCCORPT_2018-04-04 76 

• Flood Risk Assessment – July 2019 

• Landscape Visual Impact Assessment V3 – December 2019 

• Sequential Test (Revised) March 2020 

• Security Statement – July 2020 

• Updated  Preliminary  Ecological  Appraisal (PEA) Report V2 – July 2020 

• Leisure Impact Assessment – Sept 2020 

• Bat Activity Survey – October 2020 

• External Lighting Scheme – Dec 2020 

• Otter Statement – Jan 2021 

• Heritage Impact Statement – February 2021 
 

Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

 
Copies to: Councillor Aitken, Councillor Day and Councillor Howell 

100



Appendix A – Summary of representations received 

First round of consultation – March 2019 

Comments objecting: 

The principle of development 

• A climbing wall is a good idea but not in Ferry Meadows - Our Jewel in the Crown. 

• The proposal is wilfully disregarding the purpose of the park and the patrons who use it. 

• The purpose of Ferry Meadows is to provide residents/visitors an open air, healthy area. 

• Ferry Meadows is a place of natural beauty where citizens and get away from the hustle 

and bustle of daily life. 

• This is a complete betrayal of the original vision of what Ferry Meadows was about.  

• Ferry Meadows should be a place that focuses on nature/nature based activities. 

• Please keep nature at the heart of the vision for the future of our country park. 

• Ferry Meadows is a country park not a theme park. 

• This is one of the very rare open and unspoilt areas. 

• Ferry meadows was gifted by the Peterborough Development Corporation (PDC) to the 

Trust and has matured into a wonderful natural wildlife haven.  

• PDC set up this Country Park with amazing vision -do not let their legacy down by ignoring 

this. 

• David Bath, Chief Planning Officer at the PDC, said "Ferry Meadows is a haven, a refuge 

and a place to walk and ride". The Corporation wanted lots of activity but drew a line at 

funfairs, tradeshows, water-skiing and hang gliding. 

• 5 years ago an open license for performances, music, open cinema etc was denied; the 

overwhelming response was to keep Ferry Meadows as a Country Park and not an Activity 

Hub.   

• The original layout provided for an active core to the south of Ferry Meadows including the 

main car park, information centre, cafeteria, caravan club site.  Buildings were single 

storey with simple tiled roofs and at the perimeter of the park. 

• Ferry Meadows does not need a climbing activity village to be put it on the map; its already 

on the map - recently named in the ‘Visit England Visitor Attraction Accolade’ winners. 

• The quiet green environment will become a commercial Activity Centre/Village. 

• The climbing wall has no relationship with the countryside/this area of the park/water 

based uses.  

• The proposal fails to satisfy the planning policy PP15 relating to the Nene Valley. 

• No other Climbing Wall is in a Country Park – it belongs in a different sort of park.  

• The development will attract 15,000 new visitors. The park is not large enough. 

• There were 67 running events in the Park 2018 so even this is taking over!  

• Ferry Meadows is not Rutland Water, it will only take a small increase in visitors before it 

becomes impossible to enjoy the simple pleasures. 

• The increasing number of events are out of keeping with a country park.  

• The city already has similar facilities – it is likely to put them out of business. 

• The Council should be promoting the peaceful and healthy usage of green spaces and not 

supporting the idea of building on it?  

• Why does the Park need to be populated around the clock?  

• This proposal has the potential to damage the great nature conservation and outdoor 

recreation work the NPT has undertaken for the last 40 years. 

• So much work has been done changing some gravel pits back into more 'natural' 

surroundings – it’s a very backward step.  

101



• Nene Park is more interested in profit. 

• This is a pure financial business adventure breaching Nene Park’s fundamental existence. 

• I fail to see how the proposal works towards one of Trust's key objectives to 'manage the 

landscape to maximise biodiversity'. 

• Gardens are getting smaller. Surely we should be encouraging children to connect with 

nature, walk and play outside.  

• There are already two cafes in the park and several indoor children's play facilities nearby. 

• The proposed restaurant will take away business from the existing restaurant. 

• It would be better to fund and expand the natural environment for our children and the 

planet. 

• It would be better building a canoe course such as that at Holme Pierrepoint in Nottingham. 

• Numerous current activities/interests of many will be disadvantaged by the proposal. 

• Relocating the car park to the field will displace other activities e.g. archery, hot air balloon 

rides, classic car events etc – more natural space will need to be claimed. 

• This is a specialist, single-use facility, used by few at the expense of the skyline being 

spoiled for everyone. 

• Sacrificing benefits for the many for the fleeting gratification of the few. 

• As time passes it will be geared up to be an elitist playground. 

• An Olympic standard structure, miles away from natural climbing rocks and mountains will 

attract interest from a niche market and those initially out of curiosity. 

• I would prefer a multi-use facility that does not detract from the existing natural 

environment. 

• I fail to see why you are setting up a competitive indoor sport in a prize area of fresh air! 

• Climbing will be done inside and it will make no difference to climbers whether they do it. 

• If the ambition is to host international / national competitions, then the venue does not 

have adequate space for spectators –  the current UK host venue holds several hundred. 

• The vast majority of climbers/spectators travel by car, and stay in hotels - are these 

facilities available? 

• The money would be better spent on lengthening the railway track. 

• The PDC were ahead of their time in including the Lakeside Car Park for passive 

enjoyment. 

• There are climbing walls at Bretton, Langtoft Lakes, Grafham Water and Wicksteed Park. 

• The indoor play area is minimal compared with the climbing facility. 

• With families accessing food banks –  is the climbing wall of 4 million morally obscene? 

Character and Visual Amenity 

• Great facility for the city/Nene Park but not in such a picturesque part of the Park. 

• This 'White Elephant’ will be an eyesore to the environment and area which is, after all, a 

Country Park.  

• The large structure such will change the entire atmosphere of the site.  

• The building is a huge monstrosity and would be better hidden away in some trees. 

• It looks awful and is not in keeping with the surrounding area.  

• The height should be greatly limited so that the building fits into the natural landscape. 

• It will cast a huge shadow over parts of the park making them cold and in winter months.  

• The building would be the second highest building in the city, eleven storeys high with 

the top section of the cone 5.0m square.  

• To build a Wall just lower than Cathedral is madness. 

102



• The PDC determined that the most significant and iconic building was the Cathedral and 

that no building should be in excess of four storeys high.  Even office buildings at Lynch 

Wood follow this principle.  

• The Thomas Cook building though prominent has a horizontal emphasis.  

• Taller residential buildings have been approved i.e. Fletton Quays but there are no others, 

other than the recycling centre in Fengate.  

• We should not be looking to build any large scale buildings on what is a park.  

• There is no need for a landmark building.  

• People neighbouring Nene Park or visitors don’t want to see is a 34m orange triangle 

towering above and ruining one of Peterborough's last large open green spaces. 

• A 34.5m high structure will erase the ambiance of this beautiful location and form a 

'carbuncle on its backside'. 

• 34m is excessive and significantly taller than anything in the surrounding area, including  

units at the Gateway Peterborough. 

• The existing Lakeside building is only 8.5 metres tall and only just within the tree belt. 

• It will dwarf the beautifully designed Water Sport`s Centre. 

• The mock up drawings are not to scale and do not show the true height of the building. 

• The Watersports Centre has double mono-pitch roofs to reduce the scale. This new 

proposed building is totally out of scale in the setting.  

• The building would be above any natural tree screening, with its massive imposition visible 

from all angles of the park and beyond.  

• In the winter months the building will be almost entirely exposed. 

• The car park, designed to give open views of Gunwade Lake and around will be lost.  

• Oak Meadow is increasingly becoming a giant car park, destroying the last area of quiet 

open natural environment and dog walking space. 

• The car park will be a visual impact from Oak Meadow; one of the Park’s best features. 

• Instead of being an unbroken, open-skied vista Oak Meadow will be carved into by tarmac 

and cars, with a great tower looming over the trees. 

• Whatever surface is used for the car park is contrary to Government meadow land policy.  

• A Golpal paving system for the car parking is specified; this should be queried. This ground 

should able to take heavy wear. 

• The predominant colour for the car park will be the grey granite that is out of character with 

the environment increasing hard surface.  

• I hope the walk along the lake is not like walking next an industrial warehouse.  

• A 10 storey, windowless, metal clad tower contrary to the peaceful verdant landscape. 

• The structure will significantly detract from the rural and waterside environment. 

• We have tall structures in Ferry Meadows that are a pleasure to see; they are called trees.  

• The Sydney Opera House with its shape and positioning is the work of genius - it blends 

comfortably into its setting and is iconic. 

• The lakeside esplanade is a prime site - it is not an El Capitan in Yosemite Park.  

• The area should feel like a meeting place rather than dominated by an imposing building. 

• It looks like a large stealth bomber had landed in Ferry Meadows.  

• The late opening will considerably change the nature of the park after dark, with cars using 

the narrow unlit roads. 

 

Landscape Visual Impact 

 

• It will spoil the view of the lake for visitors from all directions round the lake. 

103



• Loss of precious open space and views across Gunwade Lake with a proposed building 

34.5m (height of Apex House on Oundle Road 34m). 

• The visual impact assessment covers an area of 3km – this is inadequate and the building 

will be seen from much further, especially to the west, in Castor. 

• The building will be clearly visible from the A47, Nene Valley Railway, Milton Bridge, Lynch 

Bridge, Thorpe Wood Bridge, Old Thomas Cook building and on every country walk, 

bridleway, cycle way around the park and by boaters using the River Nene. 

• This building will be viewed from the south through trees with the top tower always viewed.  

• It will be clearly seen from the west, east and particularly viewed from the north will appear 

huge. 

• Due to the topography of the area it will be seen from the A1, Mill Lane, Castor, houses at 

Castor Heights, Milton Estate the golf courses and particularly from Orton Wistow and 

Orton Brimbles over the trees.  

• The most striking view is from the north, this building cannot be masked as seen on the 

architectural drawing A-L-203A. 

• The relationship of this building to the Watersport Centre is remarkable as seen on the 

drawing plans and elevations. A-L-203A again is the clearest example of scale.  

• The building will be well lit up to 10pm each day; at night it will be seen for miles. 

• Although banking is shown this is not wide and would be minimal. A sea of cars would be 

visible from across the fields.  

• Planning requirements are that development is sensitive to its surroundings and does not 

have an unacceptable impact on the local environment.  

• Red Kite questions the figures and methodology used in the TA and highlight the significant 

impact traffic could have on the landscape and visual amenity. 

• The Red Kite report the LVIA does not adequately identify the landscape receptors and 

where it does it underestimates the impact on these receptors.  No winter assessment has 

been undertaken.   

Heritage Assets 

• The area for the replacement car park is part of a Scheduled Monument which would need 

to be preserved at least by record. 

• Red Kite have advised that the proposal is likely to have a significant environmental effect. 

• The proposed car park would require sympathetic landscaping - Interaction with 

archaeological interests would also need to be considered in choice of species. 

• It is not normally allowed to plant trees on sites of archaeological interest.  

• The main car park holds approximately 600 vehicles; it was positioned so that it would not 

encroach on the park and archaeological area. 

• The proposal should cause no harm or loss of the significance of a designated heritage 

asset and requires clear and convincing justification. 

• Historic England advised that the development would impact on buried archaeological 

remains – harm to the significant of designated and non-designated assets. 

• The proposal will have a serious detrimental effect on landscape and heritage assets in 

and around Milton Park and that these have not been fairly assessed by the applicant. 

 

Design/Appearance 

 

• Would support an activity centre with a tower but not one to accommodate an Olympic 

Standard Climbing Wall.  

104



• Move the tower to the South of the lower building to reduce the tower's impact. Wrap the 

lower building around the tower to the South and West. 

• The artistic impressions are extremely misleading and whoever mocked them up clearly 

has some issues with depth perception. 

• Buildings for climbing walls do not have to be tall but have to be technically difficult. 

• The colour of the roof should be blended in with the environment rather than red.  

• The exterior design looks like a smelting works, whereas it could be rather more classical 

(materials, colour, shape). 

• Suggest that the new building is rotated through 180 degrees, so that the "spire" is at a 

distance from the Lakeside complex. 

• It doesn't even appear that a glass outlook area is planned.  

• Adjust the Northern elevation so that it is in an SW-NE orientation so as to catch the 

afternoon sun. 

• It looks like the Elephant and Rhino House at London Zoo. 

• I do not agree that "the proposal’s exceptional design would help offset any perceived 

negative impact."  

• The building has a roof clad in coated sheet steel; the colour chosen attempts to match 

red pantiles but whatever colour is chosen this it is obtrusive in the landscape.  This is an 

industrial cladding.  

• The new Watersport building is extensive, still with a double ridge, very prominent from 

the north, however constructed in elements to reduce impact. 

Location 
 

• Throughout the UK no other conservation areas have a climbing wall - they are mostly 
sited in industrial areas. 

• An alternative site should be sought. 

• The development should be located in one of the main fields near the visitors centre to 
avoid restriction to disabled access/loss of view of the lake.  

• Locate it near the top car park where there is a large car park and coach parking. 

• Build it where the overflow car park is beyond the trees at the Watersports Centre. 

• A position away from the lake would be better. 

• It is suggested to relocate to the field area but the fields are so important for the many 
regular dog walkers.  

• A better location is the camping field where there is considerable mature tree screening. 

• There is an area to the north of the Nene Valley railway line, to the west of the bridge 
that goes across the line to Lynch Farm Livery Stables.  

• The park has many less prime locations which would minimise disruption to wildlife. 

• There is no demonstrable reason why a climbing wall needs to be located by the lakeside.  

• It should be located in a more accessible site not at the furthest point from the entrance 
to the park. 

• The Embankment would be ideal with Fletton Quays/new university/sports village!  

• A striking architectural building for the hub, next to the river, alongside the established 
sports facilities of the regional pool and athletics track.   It also benefits from good 
access via the Frank Perkins Parkway 

• A climbing centre would be suited for one of the many industrial units i.e. Alwalton Hill. 

• Major climbing walls are in city centres or urban environments i.e. St. Benedict’s 

Presbytery Baptistery in Manchester. 

• There are plenty of urban sites more suited that would benefit from investment/ 

regeneration.  

105



• The facility should be put close to the city centre on unused land/Brownfield land with 

access, parking and public transport. 

• Orton Mere would be ideal as it accessible, has good parking and is close to the river. 

Could be in place of the old toilet block. 

• The rowing club is an established sports venue. Climbing and rowing are ideal partners 

for sharing facilities and location. 

• There are plenty of other existing retail/industrial sites. 

• There is lots of land at Hampton. 

• The showground could have been an ideal venue for great activities on a national scale. 

• Woodlands, Splash Lane, Castor is also owned by NPT and has been empty for years. 

• The Flour Mill site at Fletton Quays is available and would fulfil NPT’s future plans to 

develop the park to run from the Embankment area to Wansford. 

• The Flour Mill site has land available for car parking and close to the city centre and 

University and it would be in keeping with its surroundings. No flood, drainage, wildlife, 

historic issues or felling of trees. 

• The Sequential Test should be ignored as there are many sites available but not to NPT. 

• The Sequential test was written some 5/7 months after NPT had took the decision to build 

on Gunwade Lake.  There is no evidence that alternative sites were considered.   

• NPT should be required to genuinely and honestly consider alternative site including 

Splash Lane. 

Flood Risk 
 

• The proposed building lies within Flood Zones 2 and 3 - advice is no building in zone 3. 

• The existing car park is often under water. 

• The car park set below flood level and has flooded many times including 2009, 2012.  

• The building will degrade the Park’s ability to store flood water – one of its most important 

functions, so increasing flood risk to residential areas. 

• The waters need to be able to flow and spread out and be able to soak into soft ground. 

• Flood meadows are designed to act as emergency reservoirs when the rivers cannot cope 

with flood.  If buildings and hard-surfaced areas diminish the flood meadows then river 

levels will be a little higher. 

• The building will contribute more water to the floodplain; more water will end up in 

Gunwade Lake exacerbating floodwaters. 

• Properties will be at risk of flooding again, after 40 years of peace of mind. 

• Photos of flooding in 2012 demonstrate how important these flood meadows are - never 

mind Climate Change – this was 7 years ago! 

• The proposal does not address the flooding issues. 

• The building will be liable to flooding and it will be inaccessible at certain times. 

• The sequential test is a desktop exercise with little evidence of alternative sites at a lesser 

risk of flooding. 

• As they haven’t satisfied the Sequential Test the Exception Test cannot be applied. 

• The Watersports Centre was set on a platform and pillars at the same level of the flood 

plain which is 6.0mOD. On 6th April 1998 the area was flooded to a level of 5.85mOD. 

• The existing stand alone toilet building to the rear of the car park was designed to flood.   

• The Water sport Centre was rebuilt in 2011 – the rear section is set below this 6.0.OD level 

and in 2018 it avoided by being flooded by only 25mm. Adjacent Sailability buildings 

flooded in 2018 to a maximum 450mm and had to be vacated. 

• The Environment Agency considers the Flood Risk Assessment to be inadequate as it has 

not considered displacement or the need for floodplain compensation.   

106



Highways 
 

• 15% more visitors predicted by CE of Trust…..2018 there were 1,853, 000 visitors and 
rising without the Wall. 

• The new activity will attract significantly more traffic and will cause gridlock at peak 
times. 

• There is also a major concern about the increase of traffic (cars and climber & spectator 
coaches) on the Oundle Road leading to Ham Lane in both directions. 

• The infrastructure will not cope.  

• There has been a significant omission in the' major trip generators' in the area. It does 
not the Caravan & Motorhome Club Site. The only access/exit is via Ham Lane. The 
amount of traffic and size of vehicles should be considered as part of any traffic 
survey/assessment. 

• The threshold for testing on the local highway network is a flow 30, 2-way trips – they are 
over this threshold. 

• The entrance to on Ham Lane has a crumbling and poor surface.  NPT should improve 
what's there already. 

• Question the conclusion of the Transport Statement – anyone living or working in 
Peterborough would be well aware of the traffic, congestion on Oundle Road. 

• The Transport Statement states there would be no impact on the existing highway. 

• The development should require improvements to traffic conditions during peak hours on 
Oundle Road. The Transport Statement says nothing about this. 

• The Park has increasing problems with a growing population without encouraging new 
traffic.  

• The Park should be trying to decrease traffic in that zone not encourage more.  

• The Council should be working towards decreasing traffic, not increasing it. 

• A significant number of trips will be made from outside of the immediate vicinity. 

• Ferry Meadows is not directly served by any Passenger Transport and is not convenient 
for anyone relying on public transport, and would be a particular deterrent during the 
winter months.  

• The D+A Statement wrongly states that Ham Lane has a bus service. The nearest stops 
are on Oundle Road, and not immediately adjacent to Ham Lane.  

• The site is a 30 minute walk (approximately 2.5k) from the nearest bus stop on a route 
that only operates every thirty minutes. 

• Competitions could attract thousands of competitors; this has not been accounted for. 

• The current climbing wall at Bretton Gate is served by 3 bus routes from the city centre. 

• Question why the applicant was advised that only a Transport Statement would be 
required – why not a full transport Assessment and a travel plan? 

• No information has been submitted to justify traffic and parking issues relating to the 
development. 

• Policy PP13 specifies the quantity and type of cycle parking for developments, and 
should be the minimum required – 44 spaces. 

• No additional cycle parking spaces are proposed, only to relocate existing spaces close 
to the facility's entrance, but not close enough to encourage people to cycle. 

• Existing walking/cycling routes should be improved (e.g. widen and improve the surface 
and install lighting) as the opening hours are until 10pm daily. 

• Routes from South Bretton, Thorpe Wood, the Ortons and from the city centre via Orton 
Mere must be improved to cater for the additional capacity.  They are largely owned by 
NPT. 

• Despite NPT’s expressed mission to "encourage a healthy, active lifestyle" there are no 
improvements to access by walking, cycling or public transport, while proposing an 
additional 106 car parking spaces and 6 minibus spaces on site.  

107



• The sustainability claims refer only to the construction of the facility, entirely ignoring the 
need to make transport and access more sustainable and healthy. 

• Does not comply with transport policy – reducing the need to travel by car it is envisaged 
most visitors will travel by car. 

• The park could not cope with 700 cars at the end of January 2019 for the Parkrun and 
was closed to traffic twice in the summer of 2018. 

• Recent problems with barriers not coping and cars queueing, particularly at peak times 
and recently in February Half Term.  

• Ham Lane is the only access and can be blocked by traffic; Emergency Services access 
may be required.    

• The Fireworks were moved to The Showground as Fire Brigade access was not adequate.  

• The transport statement does not take in to account the increased traffic on Ham Lane 
and it's junctions at times when events take place in Ferry Meadows. 

• Ham lane will not be able to support extra traffic as it cannot be widened. 

• It is difficult during park runs and weekends to drive out from Cherryfields onto Ham Lane.  

• Visitors park in Cherryfields opposite number 21 making it dangerous to turn towards our 
home. 

• There are accidents waiting to happen with traffic driving in excess of 30mph and people 
not paying attention whilst crossing Cherryfields footpath entrance. 

• There is a lack of pedestrian/cycle crossing points on Ham Lane. 

• There is no right of way given to walkers and cyclists at the path that crosses Ham Lane 
near to the rail crossing. 

• The footpath that crosses the railway line is particularly narrow at that point; increase in  
cars sharing this pedestrian route is a cause for concern. 

• There should be a second entrance to the site along Thorpe wood or from the Castor. 

• The increased volume of traffic within the country park poses far greater risk to animals, 
wildlife, families and particularly the vulnerable (young children, the disabled and 
elderly). 

• All construction traffic would have to use this access; the barrier system at the car park 
entrance is temperamental and this will cause congestion and delay.  

 
Access road to Lakeside 

• The access has not been included in the application - this is crucial to whether this 
project should go ahead and whether it is adequate or requires improvement.  

• The access road is a former haul road from construction of the lakes, it has no kerbs, is 
not to adopted standard and has deteriorated. 

• Most vehicles drive in the centre of the road.  

• I am told NPT intend widening the access road – no information has been provided. 

• The access road to Lakeside is not suitable for the predicted massive uplift of visitors.  

• The road would need widening and the verges better maintained so a better view of 
traffic could be had.  

• This road is also beside one of the main access points for local walkers and cyclists and 
there is risk to public safety with heavy traffic in this area. 

• If competitions are to take place, there will no doubt be coaches – the access road is 
unsuitable.  

 
Car Parking 

• It will mean disruption to existing car park users, particularly during construction. 

• The large structure will cut down on the parking area.  

• In the summer parking is already quite difficult and I don't believe there is space without 
damaging some of the natural area. 

• The parking/disabled parking will be further away from the lakeside and cafeteria facilities. 

108



• Visitors will park on Wistow Way/neighbouring residential areas. How would the authorities 
prevent parking on the residential streets – perhaps resident parking only. 

• There is already a major and growing issues of parental school dropoff and collection on 
Wistow Way and Dogwalkers/visitors to the park. 

• The parking and supporting infrastructure can’t cope – on busy days cars were being 
parked ad hoc anywhere and Ham Lane was grid-locked.  

• The car parking area on the Oak Meadow is bare earth and not suitable for intensive 
use; only capable of being used in dry weather. 

• The new Watersport Centre/Sailability facility has increased the volume of traffic. 

• Often the parking is at full capacity and on occasions the access to the park by vehicles 
restricted.  

• Clearly the new car parking area would have to be created first before the existing car 
park can be vacated.  

• Was planning permission granted for the existing overflow car park? If not, then its 
legality is surely in doubt? 

 
Landscape Implications 

• The proposal will result in the loss of a significant amount of trees. 

• The carefully planned tree line will be disrupted.  

• New trees will take a long time to grow …Thomas Cook Building is still not properly hidden.  

• This is frankly sacrilege and would inevitably involve cutting down beautiful trees. 

• New trees would take a considerable time to mature, perhaps twenty years.  

• Requests made for Tree Protection Order on Trees. 

• The report does not identity the number of trees within each group to be lost.   

• The public green space should be conserved and protected for future generations. 

• With the rising population of Peterborough and rapid residential development, green 

spaces will be practically non-existent.  More reason to retain green space. 

• Planting of hedging would be out of character in the landscape. 

• It is claimed that the building will be hidden by the trees.  Trees in the area are deciduous. 

• Trees combat climate change – absorbing carbon dioxide and releasing oxygen into the 

air and absorb pollutants. 

• Trees cool the street of our cities by providing shading, breaking up heat islands and 

producing vapour, reducing energy demand. 

• Trees slows water evaporation, prevent water pollution/soil erosion. 

• Trees shield children from ultra violet rays. 

• Trees provide food for birds and wildlife; Sycamore and Oak provide urban homes for 

birds, bees, squirrels and bats, etc. 

• Studies show that patient with views of trees heal faster and children with ADHD show 

fewer symptoms when they have access to nature. 

• Trees reduce violence and have provided spaces for human retreat throughout the ages. 

• Planting trees provide opportunity for community involvement. 

• Trees as landmarks can give a neighbourhood a new identity and encourage civic pride. 

• Trees screen walls, car parks and muffle sound. 

• The car parking on Oak Meadow will impact on the roots of trees. 

• There is nothing in the plan that warrants the losses we will endure for little in return. 

Wildlife Implications 

• Impact of nature and wildlife in the area - one of the park’s main reasons for existing. 

• It should not be built in a public open space which is a supporter of wildlife. 

109



• The Park is supposed to preserve and protect Wildlife not destroy habitats.  

• Oak Meadow is precious, not merely a field but the food supermarket for the wildlife and 

source of our crop pollinators and should remain pristine, not a car park. 

• To disregard wildlife for a few athletes is wholly unacceptable.  

• The Trust claims “our surveys have shown that there are no priority species in the area 

which will be affected.” 

• The building will lead to reduction if not displacement of bat colonies in Ferry Meadows. 

• Bats are a protected species. 

• The access road has been completely ignored. It isis part of an extremely important wildlife 

corridor between Oak Meadow, the tree belts and many residents` gardens. protected 

hedgehogs use this route. An EIA should be carried out. 

• Bird and bat flight paths will be affected.  

• Cambridge Bat Trust have e-mailed information showing significant Bat Activity and 

sightings of a rarer pipistrelle bat in the Lakeside Area. 

• Oak Meadow needs protecting from extra pollution; mature ancient native trees support 

an abundance of insects, essential to Bat survival along with the linear tree lines as 

commuting routes.  

• The park currently closes to traffic at dusk; night traffic on the access road will affect all 

the nocturnal wildlife.  

• The access road has no lighting; it will need lighting to stop accidents. 

• It needs to be proven that the structure will not affect resident wildlife – bats and nesting 

birds.  

• The building will be open and night and lit - consideration should be given to bats. 

• Damage to wildlife in existence below and above ground level (flora fauna).  

• It will encourage bird nesting at height where cleaning will be almost impossible; pigeon 

infestation known to have effect on human health (zoonosis). 

• There is a danger of swans, geese, birds and bats striking this building bad weather. 

• Construction work will cause major disruption to wildlife for at least 18 months.  

• The Ecology Report has severe omissions; fails to consider the wider area and bats are 

overlooked. 

• Peterborough city council need to refer back' to their own policies on doubling diversity 

rather than their constant destruction 

• Dr R Stebbing who was involved in the part 1970`s has information that will be of interest 

to PCC Wildlife Officer. 

• Dr Stebbings points out there are 9 species of bats in the area.  Through lighting, disruption 

and heavy traffic flows, pollution there will be a significant impact on bats.   

• A private function room is included so night activity will increase significantly. 

• The cafe area with glass facing Gunwade Lake will be lit so the impact of reflection will 

need to be taken into account. 

Environment and Pollution 

• The proposal would fall under Schedule 2 of the EIA regs – leisure uses. Developments 

should be considered which have the potential for significant environmental effects even 

if the threshold is not met. 

• Request that an Environmental Impact Assessment is undertaken. 

• An EIA screening opinion is essential prior to determining the application and should have 

been undertaken prior to the applicant being submitted to inform everyone of the 

environmental consequences. 

110



• An EIA is needed to assess the impact on flora and fauna, loss of flood plain and 

consideration of alternative sites with less impact on the environment. 

• The EIA should include a study on the reversibility of the project.  To remove the building 

would be extremely costly, and therefore not reversible.    

• The applicant should undertake a rigorous EIA because of the strength of objection and 

concerns raised by official consultees and by the public at large. 

• Red Kite comments state the development is likely to have a significant environmental 

effect by virtue of its characteristics, location, the nature of the potential impact and high 

traffic flow. 

• Red Kite state the project will have a significant urbanising effect on the landscape setting. 

• Encouraging more traffic into the Park is working negatively against PCC Environmental 

Action Plan for 90% Zero Carbon Emissions and making Peterborough First 

Environmental Capital.  

• The Trust will be working against their Environmental Policy May 2018 regarding “to 

reduce pollution both locally and in the wider environment” as this is a new and very 

permanent activity.  

• The continued transformation of Oak Meadows into a car park has huge environmental 

cost. 

• The proposal does not meet NPT objectives for example, Investors in the Environment 

(iiE) Green accreditation.  

• Vehicle pollution is damaging to human health and animals and creatures that have no 

natural defence to such higher levels of airborne pollutants and will suffer.  

• Cities have invoked Carbon and emission reductions! 

• Damaging non environmental products brought into the site and installed 

(concrete/tarmac/COSHH Substances to seal building). 

• We are warned about the irreversible damage we are inflicting on our planet. 

• The 10 storey structure will require substantial construction below surface and the supply 

utility services. 

• Removal of material by huge plant lorries to extract and remove from site substrate 

materials and deliver concrete for piling footings. 

• Our main responsibility is to address our mistakes and abuses on the environment for 

generations to come. 

• This would question the environmental credentials – are we a green city? 

• "Parks help reduce pollution", says the NPT. The proposed facility would increase both 

light and air pollution, at a time when responsible, environmentally-aware organisations 

and authorities are seeking to reduce pollution. 

• Air pollution is already at a high from the existing main road systems of the A1, A605, A47. 

• Pollution can cause brain damage to young lives as well as damage to lungs. 

• The location of the car park on Oak meadow will increase pollution. 

• More traffic going into ferry meadows increases pollution it's a place to breath fresh air. 

• Pollution/noise from increased traffic affecting Residents, Caravaners, wildlife and ancient 

oak trees of Oak Meadows. 

 
Users of Park 

• Gunwade Lake is great location for those of us who enjoying walking in the park.  

• The building will have a detrimental effect on those people who use the lake for sailing due 

to wind shadow caused by blocking the prevailing winds. This is confirmed by Rutland 

Sailing and Tallington 

111



• There should be an independent investigation into the effects on sailing/watersports. 

• Sailing on the lake will be nigh on impossible for Sailability sailors who get a great deal of 

pleasure of being a normal person instead of being classed as disabled. 

• The very popular and educational Watersports Activities should not be compromised, 

especially after there were mistakes with the Lakeside Cafe and Watersports Centre that 

have affected and stopped some sailing activities. 

• Carers of users of the Sailability Centre remain parked and view those in their care sailing, 

particularly in inclement weather. It is the only parking area with views of the lake. 

• The building will severely restrict access to the disabled fishing pegs, something NPT has 

refused to even mention.  

• The disabled fishing bays will be in shade. 

• Insufficient consideration has been given to people with disabilities. 

• Disabled park users have a longer walk to the water’s edge - disabled access should be 

maintained. 

• Although disabled parking is shown there are no available views across the lake from cars. 

• The environment will no longer be dog friendly.  

• The height will spoil a beautiful area where families meet for bbqs, football etc. 

• This proposal will be at the expense of hundreds of Orton pedestrians, young families with 

toddlers, dog walkers, horse riders and disabled people entering at Lynch Farm. 

• People wanting to enjoy the views, walk the dogs, feed the ducks, have access to the 

fields and small woods in the area etc  need to be in this location. 

• The east elevation of the building will shadow the children’s play area and barbeque area 

as it is 15m. high (at least five storeys). It will be unattractive on cooler days and in the 

afternoons and early evening. 

• The building will cast a considerable shadow in a potential outside seating area from 

which to view the lake. This situation of only being able to sit in the shade already exists 

at the Lakeside cafe. 

• It will block Lake/sky views for users of the café. 

• The climbing tower would take morning light from its closest neighbour, casting a 

disagreeable shadow over the Lakeside cafe seating area and affect their trade. 

• Southern banks of Gunwade Lake will be permanently in shade. 

• Noise is a worry for those who use the park for quieter pastimes such as fishing.  

• Elderly persons may no longer feel as comfortable with the large modern building.  

• The Archery club that meets at Oak Meadow will be displaced. 

• Impact of night traffic on the caravan park.  Night traffic on some weekends has been 

tolerated for weddings and conferences at Lakeside but 7 days a week is totally 

unacceptable!  

• The increase in cars exiting the annoyingly noisy, one way barriers, will be increased into 

the night. 

• There will be disruption for pedestrians, cyclists and public vehicles and wildlife during the 

construction period. 

• Should we also expect film crews covering the events, causing yet further disruption? 

Impact on health and well-being 
 

• Disabled /elderly car owners can look out at the water….don`t underestimate the 

importance of this on Mental Health.   

• The Wall will provide activity and mental well-being but only for those who can pay.  

112



• The wonderful natural, open and quiet view for pedestrians entering the Park by Lynch 

Farm Bridge will be lost - do not underestimate its importance on peoples Mental Health 

and Well Being.  

• People enjoy that quiet zone around Oak Meadow, Lakeside Cafe & open lake views and 

benefit daily from better mental health & well-being.  

• Ferry Meadows is a place for me to keep my mental health in check. I frequently run the 

perimeter of Gunwade lake or walk with my dog across Oak Meadow. 

• It is well researched that being in an open space in nature reduces stress and can help 

with many mental health issues therefore people need to see the water & greenery. 

• Access to quiet open space is essential to unwind. This jeopardises that. 

• We hope PCC recognises the importance and benefits of open spaces and landscapes 

for both physical and mental wellbeing for future generations. 

Neighbouring Amenity 

• Stationary queuing traffic will produce emissions which are harmful to the local residents. 

• The noise expected from the building, given the 34m height, would disturb adjacent 

residential properties. This is already the case when individual events are hosted in the 

park. 

• Residents of Orton Wistow have no wish to be subjected to the inevitable increase in traffic 

(both noise and pollution) and further loud noise from events etc. 

• I will be able to see the structure from my bedroom window - not a pleasant thought. 

• The proposal will have a huge impact on local residents, who are the ones who visit the 

park all-year-round, pick up the litter and care for the natural environment they all hold so 

dear. 

• There will be a significant impact on the residents of Cherryfields and those in Farleigh 

Fields due to additional traffic. 

Security 

• It will cause problems of managing access to the park for late evening use, and increased 

liability of unauthorised access by illegal encampments etc. 

• What is there to stop anybody after hours using the climbing wall (for fun)? 

• Very little has been said about crime, apart from increased CCTV being in place. May I 

remind Nene Park committee the problems they had with crime just a couple of years back. 

• There are no staff to monitor or clear the site after dark at present. This has led to cars 

coming into and leaving the park very late into the night, fires being left in the wooded 

areas, litter, vandalism and groups of drivers meeting and playing music at an anti social 

level. 

 

Precedent 

 

• If the proposal is approved it will be an invitation for further structures/buildings and further 

loss of open space, increase in traffic and further erosion of the existing qualities of the 

park. 

• This would also establish a worrying precedent for potential future development in Ferry 

Meadows.  

• An indoor adventure space, as well as a play area, at the lakeside has already been 

mooted. What next? A hotel, snow dome, or how about a dry ski slope? 

113



• Urbanising the Park will destroy it and set a green light to other urban projects like skate 

parks, mountain bike tracks, perhaps a speedway to replace the one that will probably go 

in the showground. 

Public consultation 

• A Leaflet drop in October 2018 was made along a narrow corridor of residential dwellings. 

A wider consultation should have been undertaken. 

• Only 290 of the 1.8 m visitors in 2018 completed a biased questionnaire with leading 

questions in favour of the development. 

• From this small sample consultation response NPT deduced that the public want an 

Olympic Standard Climbing Wall. Useful but hardly robust market research. 

• The majority of the Supporters' statements are substantially one-liners supporting a good-

fun idea with little consideration of the broader issues. The majority of the Objectors' 

statements do support their argument with some deeper consideration/explanation of their 

views. 

• The Trust issued a 30 year plan but this did not have significant public consultation.  

• In late 2017 or early 2018 the Trust decided that they wished to create a climbing centre 

in the park.  There was no public consultation.  

• With only one week’s notice the Trust announced on Facebook that they were providing a 

display of the proposal for the Climbing Tower on Saturday 3rd November 2018 between 

10.00 and 15.00, a five hour period, the Saturday of many firework displays.  The exhibition 

was merely a set of images with little detail.  

• There has been little information of the structure in the park – display boards. The Trust 

uses Facebook to inform the public. 

• As a result of pressure from objectors the Trust has agreed to hold an exhibition but only 

for a three hour period at the Watersport Centre on Tuesday 26th March 2019. 

• Consultation stated a building of 30m which is now 35m – this may have influenced views. 

• NPT are doing the bare minimum to inform local residents and users of the park, which 

isn't just devious but unfair. 

• Consultation has been wholly inadequate, under the public radar and very limited. 

• Can it be right that NPT who manage the country park on our behalf appear to believe that 

people cannot have their say on this huge planning proposal. 

• We question is this what the people of Peterborough and visitors want in their country 

park? 

• We would refer you to the number of online objections and petition? 

• Those pathetic pink signs around the park detailing the proposal are just as futile and 

deceptive as the artist mock-ups.  

Viability  

• The idea of a Climbing Wall is excellent in principal if it were financially viable. 

• Costly to build £5m for Wall /£8m for full project if it does not go over budget as often 

happens.  

• There is no business plan provided but even with grants the amount required it is difficult 

to believe that this facility is economically viable. 

• It is irresponsible for the Trust to commit to the building, while its stated financial goal in 

its most recently published annual review is 'the return to a sustainable financial break 

even'.  

114



• I believe that an operational deficit of £40000 that is inflated by a voluntary income of 

£148000 proves it to be financially irresponsible of the Trust to further burden itself until a 

route to operational profit is secured. 

• It has not been proven that this project is financially viable as a profitable venture in the 

long term – there are no figures to suggest its projected income or operational profit.  

• The Olympic standard internal climbing wall would certainly be a great attraction to 

Peterborough provided it was conceived on a commercial basis with the expected users 

paying for its costs and overheads and not being an additional burden on either the current 

users of Nene Park or the rate payers of Peterborough. 

• A large amount of this project will rely on outside funding but this does not cover the 

ongoing operating and labour costs on an ongoing basis. 

• The wall will rely very much on national /university users to generate enough income to 

make it viable.  

• There are other ways the Trust can raise money e.g. projects more in keeping such as 

Holkham Hall and the Look Out, corporate funding, waiting for the many rents they have 

to accrue after their recent big spend.  

• Costly to use (others with Clip and Climb and Bouldering cost £10 -£15 per half hour) 

Niche market.  

• How many local residents will be able to afford to participate – it will not be free and will 

not be for everyone. 

• Can Peterborough people afford the facility - activities like Lakeside Bowling, Lido, 

Westwood Climbing Wall etc are closed or with problems?  

• I do not see how this climbing centre can possibly recoup the cost of installation. 

• Capital funding could be raised by Nene Park and third parties such as Lottery Funding. 

However that is different from commercial viability on an on-going operational basis.  

• No information is provided on the forecasted revenue split between general activities and 

the Olympic Climbing facilities. I fear the risk of a 'white rhinoceros'. 

• The park has far more pressing things to spend money - the footpaths around the lakes  

are badly in need of improvement. 

• Changing the nature to an Activity Hub is too risky. 

• The building is so reliant on a single activity. Is long-term interest in climbing proven?  

• If it is not popular in the long-term the park would be stuck with a building that was 

inappropriate for other uses. (Similar to the Pearl Assurance Sports Club building in 

Castor.) 

• This sport, at present, has a small percentage of interest and could be a passing phase. 

• It is suggested that the university would benefit the climbing wall. Unfortunately, the difficult 

financial climate facing existing universities, and the falling numbers of potential university 

students does not support this. 

• There is little to no chance of national comps being held at this venue, and no chance of 

an international comp.  

• This proposal is not able to cater for completion spectators. This dramatically reduces 

potential income. 

• Walls housed in projects such as this tend not make a profit. Provided the Council (or other 

body) is prepared to bear ongoing funding, then it does look like a beautiful centre. 

• An "Olympic" sized climbing wall is not required and a 15% increase in visitors is wildly 

overstated. 

• These climbing walls are not viable and are nationally supported by local authorities. Our 

local budgets are being slaughtered and the City Council is struggling to maintain basic 

services.  

115



• The Trust will have expended an estimated sum of between £75,000 and £100,000 to 

produce this scheme. This should not influence a final decision.  

Conflict of interest 

• NPT’s Chief Executive has a conflicting interest with at least one other group in the 

climbing sector which should be investigated. 

• I also feel that the Chief Executive of NPT holding the position of 'Independent Director' of 

BMC (working for climbers, hill walkers and mountaineers) represents a significant conflict 

of interest, with the stated core goals of Nene Park perhaps being a secondary 

consideration to his current goals for BMC. 

Misc 

• The building will be hazard to small aircraft and helicopters – Sibson Aerodrome and Milton 

Hall landing strip closeby - it will need to be lit to warn air craft of its presence 

• The planning application was delayed in appearing on the Council website.  It contained a 

mountain of material. 

• The design of the web site is such that all comments from those objecting or approving  

appear first making it difficult to search the application.  

• There appears to be no detail of sequence of work or consideration provided of Health and 

Safety considerations. 

• All materials to create the car park would have to be imported but there is also no detail of 

how materials displaced will be removed. 

• Although it has not been passed NPT are already started to prepare for this – events on 

oak meadow. 

• I submitted a formal request to NPT to access Nene Park Archives – there has been no 

reply. I suspect these archives are likely to contain significant legal and planning issues 

both past and present. I believe this is a deliberate withholding of legal information and 

against the spirit of the Development Corporation’s gift to the people of Peterborough. 

 

Comments in Support: 

• This will enhance the area providing an excellent facility for Peterborough.  

• It would be a great asset for the city.  

• I think this is absolutely fantastic! Peterborough needs more activities like this! 

• This is what Peterborough needs to bring more people in from surrounding areas!  

• Not only good for the locals but will increase Peterborough’s profile. 

• This will help the trust to generate much needed income to be reinvested locally into the 
park and Peterborough as a whole.  

• It will bring people from across the country for something very unique and may breed a 
future Olympic champion! 

• Exactly the sort of thing Peterborough and Nene Park deserves. 

• This is a very positive thing for Peterborough. There needs to be more activities for our 
children and for adults too. 

• The benefits a scheme like this will bring to climbing in the region are un-measurable. 

• Climbing is accessible to the full age spectrum, with kids as young as 4-5 years and 
adults in their 80's - maximising fitness and mobility. 

• To access similar facilities means driving to Milton Keynes, Nottingham, Northampton or 
Sheffield. 

• A climbing wall of the size proposed is not available within probably a 100 mile radius. 

116



• With climbing being in both the 2020 & 2024 Olympics, an Olympic class climbing facility 
could positively influence and contribute to Britain's Olympic legacy. 

• Milton Keynes - a city with a similar population and demographics to Peterborough - has 

a well regarded (though not top end) climbing wall. Within a couple of years it was so 

popular that a second site had to be opened. 

• Visitors would be investing in the local economy.  

• Groups will come to Peterborough and spend time using the centre and then venture into 

the city centre in the evening and use bars and restaurants. 

• I will provide new jobs.  

• Easy access to Ferry Meadows makes it the perfect location.  

• I cannot wait for this facility and will be definitely be using it. 

• It will also give people new opportunities to try something new to get fit and healthy. 

• Will be a great addition and I would definitely like to try it out!! 

• An opportunity for my children to have local amenities close to home. 

• Any additions to ferry meadows to improve it for my kids is a win. 

• The city is expanding at a fast rate and needs to keep up with other cities. It would bring 

younger people to the city and money for local businesses.  

• Learning the younger generation to climb and do something more than play computer 

games.   

• It's about time this city got with the times and catered for active people! 

• With Peterborough wanting to be a university city this will encourage younger people to 

the park. 

• It will encourage new hobbies for our younger generation. 

• This climbing centre would be fantastic for the current climbing club in Peterborough and 

give them a new home and let that expand. 

• I look forward to this being approved. 

• Would you be able to add a small council vivacity gym in the same area? Would be a great 

area for meditation/yoga. 

• Peterborough needs to expand its recreational activities and attract the best talent and 

money. 

• The structure will not have any adverse impact on the park. Facilities like this are very 

common and are built with great care to their surroundings. 

• Personally I hope this is the start of many exiting things to come to Nene Park...I truly hope 

that PCC will be a part of the journey and not a road block to refusing a worthy charity of 

much needed income and innovation. 

• Ferry Meadows is most definitely a jewel in Peterborough’s crown and this will make that 

jewel more valuable. 

• This will make Ferry Meadows an all year round attraction for families and youth groups. 

• It will make an excellent addition to the recreational facilities at Ferry Meadows. 

• Lifelong health benefits - There is increasing evidence of the physical and mental health 

benefits of being active especially activities which are normally outdoors.  

• Whilst the centre itself is an indoor facility there is recent strong evidence undertaken on 

behalf of Sport England (Getting Active Outdoors) that highlighted that children and young 

people who experience outdoor activities continue to participate in them through their life. 

• The facility will complement the increasing number of climbing facilities in Schools for 

example locally Peterborough School, Thomas Deacon Academy.  

• An increasing number of Schools are installing climbing walls as they develop their 

facilities and this will generate interest which needs a follow on opportunity.  

117



• It would be an ideal next stage for the young person who enjoys this sport and wants to 
continue with it, especially with the impending loss of the Peterborough Climbing Club. 

• It is a timely development with climbing included in the next Olympics. 

• It will generate a massive interest as all televised sport does, especially new sports 
benefiting from their Olympic inclusion and coverage - eg the impact of London 2012 on 
the sports of Handball and Goalball locally here in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough. 

• It is a sport that can have recreational and competitive participation - for Living Sport it 
would be an ideal activity for the Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Public Health Active 
Families programme, funded by Sport England as it is one in which families can participate 
together.  

• This has the full support of Living Sport, the Cambridgeshire & Peterborough sports and 
physical activity partnership. 

• The Nene Park mobile climbing walls have clearly demonstrated the level of interest in the 
activity and the queues for this activity are obvious wherever they are available at events. 

• The development of this facility will be a real opportunity to put Peterborough on the map. 

• It will be the only facility of its kind in the country (England) which provides an opportunity 
to bring people to the city to enjoy the enhanced fantastic recreational and participatory 
offer of the Nene Park, or to compete in competition, be that national and international. 

• The thought and care given to create this activity has been done with great effort to blend 
into the environment with natural materials.  

• From Castor the view will blend into the landscape and will not be an eyesore. 

• It is a great activity for young and old to challenge themselves physically and mentally.  

• I attend the Climbing Wall in Bretton weekly, this would allow me to attend more frequently.  

• It would be a great asset and open up opportunities for our community. 

• I am excited about new facility accessible to all people in Peterborough. 

• I attended the public open day held at the park and the public exhibition of the submitted 
scheme. I have been impressed with the staff’s passion and enthusiasm. 

• The history of Nene Park is of course a complex one and 40 years ago it did not exist.  

• It is clear from the volume of responses that local people clearly care about their park.  

• This varied landscape provides a designation to walk, cycle, ride a train or sail a boat. It is 
a constructed landscape and its relationship to the urban environment adjacent to it should 
not be discounted.  

• The addition of a climbing centre to the variety of leisure activities would provide another 
dimension to it. 

• I am impressed with the ambition shown by NPT in commissioning a piece of 'architecture'.  

• The project has the potential to positively contribute to a city that has been lacking in 
architectural ambition and in recent years has suffered from generic place making.  

• The issue of design quality is emotive and subjective, however the importance of creating 
quality buildings is clearly set out in the NPPF (2019). 

• "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and 
development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development 
acceptable to communities." NPPF 124. 

• The importance of design and quality is also highlighted in the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD: "Urban design and the quality of the public realm play a significant part in people's 
everyday lives. 

• Good design can help to create attractive places and spaces for people to live, work, play, 
relax and visit. It is at the heart of the vision for a more sustainable Peterborough because 
it contributes to our quality of life in so many ways." (CS16, 6.10.1) 

• One measure of quality is the accolades and awards that projects attract.  

• Information provided by the RIBA shows that, since 1966 only 5 buildings in Peterborough 
have been recognised with an award. However, in this same period, 50 buildings have 

118



received awards in Cambridge, including two 2 Stirling Prize winning projects and another 
shortlisted scheme as recently as 2018.  

• I is clear that the investment in new buildings in Peterborough has fallen short of its nearest 
neighbour over the past 50 years. 

• The lack of quality is highlighted in the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD: 
"...the overall current public perception is that many parts of the city have poor standards 
of design and a lack of local identity. ... It is important to achieve higher design standards 
and an improved public realm at a strategic level, whilst allowing innovative design 
solutions that respond to differences in location and changing contexts over the coming 
years." (CS16, 6.10.3-4) 

• This project is of greater quality than any other comparable scheme I have seen recently 
proposed in Peterborough.  

• I feel that the architects award-winning pedigree and commitment to producing crafted 
buildings would provide Peterborough with a new building of quality.  

• I believe the building has the potential to enhance the setting of Nene Park.  

• I have been impressed with the commitment demonstrated to engage with the local 
community. 

• The   NPPF states that: "Design quality should be considered throughout the evolution 
and assessment of individual proposals. ... Applications that can demonstrate early, 
proactive and effective engagement with the community should be looked on more 
favourably than those that cannot." NPPF 128 

• The community has been involved in the design, for example at the first public open day 
visitors were able to comment on the proposed cladding materials. By holding this event 
at the weekend the views of a wider audience could be gathered. Furthermore, hosting an 
exhibition of the submitted materials (after the planning application had been made) is not 
an approach I have typically come across, providing further opportunities for both 
supporters and objectors to the scheme to make their opinions known. 

• The building has the potential to provide the city with enhanced leisure opportunities and 
set a new benchmark for quality architecture in the city.  

• I live nearby in Castor and wholeheartedly support the application. 

• The sooner this happens the better. 

• Climbing in currently one of the fastest growing sports in the UK, and the number of 

competition grade walls surprisingly few, given the popularity of the sport. 

• Peterborough currently doesn't have a suitable climbing facility. There is a 30 year old 

community run project, but the facilities are lacking and it suffers for being both too small 

(in both height and in terms of the number of climbers it can accommodate) and for being 

inaccessible for newer climbers 

• The same arguments are levelled against every significant project, be they care homes, 

hospitals, swimming pools or schools; they should not prevent the construction of a 

facility which will be of great benefit to the wider community. 

• Do not allow a vocal minority to dictate the direction of what would be a superb step forward 

for Peterborough and the surrounding towns and villages. 

• It will give the youth of the area another activity and facility to use.  

• As a local parent of 2 I welcome this addition, and can't wait to be able to use it 

• A wall of this sort, with professional route setters, offers a place for skilled climbers to 

train; but more importantly it offers a place for new climbers to get into the sport. 

• The revised designs with its tapered spire aping the spire of to our cathedral, would not 

be an unattractive addition to the park. 

• I fully support this and feel there is no negative impact on the area. The choices of 

materials compliment the location.  

  

119



Second Round of Consultation – December 2019 

Following submission of revised information including Flood Risk and Drainage, Transport 

Assessment, Travel Plan, Archaeology Report, External lighting, Tree Reports, LVIA and 

Sequential Test. 

Comments objecting: 

The Principle of Development 

• This is against the principles of what the park was intended for i.e. as a country park for 
the recreation and pleasure of local citizens of Peterborough and surrounds. 

• Nene Park is predominantly an outside pursuits area – the building would be at odds with 
encouraging the love of outdoor life. 

• The indoor facility has no relationship with the informal recreation opportunities at Ferry 
Meadows. 

• The building is not in keeping with the Country Park.   

• It is not a leisure/amusement/adventure park. 

• This an urban sport divorced from the outdoors. 

• It is essentially an enormous indoor gym/sports centre - we have numerous leisure centres 
around the city. 

• Nene Park is one of the few nature areas left in Peterborough. 

• Our only escape from an urban environment will be lost. 

• Keep the park undeveloped. 

• People were given this park as a country park, not a sports venue. 

• NPT should concentrate on the provision of a park and not create a monster that will end 
up pleasing no one. 

• Is it really going to benefit the residents of Peterborough or is another cash cow for NPT? 

• The development appears to be commercially driven rather than helping to enhance the 
original objectives of the Nene Park Trust. 

• Does Peterborough need another climbing wall? 

• We already have 2 cafes within Ferry Meadow so do we really need another one? 

• Development and provision of this should not be through NPT but by PCC. 

• Ferry Meadows was created for the benefit of the people of Peterborough and not for the 
benefit of huge numbers of outsiders. 

• The park is heaving and has enough visitors. 

• How can so many visitors be accommodated without the destruction of our green park 
land. 

• Wyndham Thomas`s amazing vision will be absolutely disregarded by the people who 
were handed over that responsibility. 

• Wyndham Thomas gave us a Country Park not a Park for a 34 metre monstrosity - he 
would be furious with the proposal to destroy the atmosphere of tranquillity in Nene Park. 

• NPT’s amazing work for the past 40 years has been exemplary as protectors of wildlife 
and nature carrying out what Wyndham Thomas and all the others set out to achieve.  

• The park was gifted to the people of Peterborough by the PDC as an open, green, quiet 
place away from the urban frenzy of the ever growing city. So this is OUR Country Park. 

• How lucky we to have access to such a green and nature rich gem. 

• Wyndham Thomas designed Sports in the centre of each Township. 

• The legacy of Wyndham Thomas is not to urbanise and the Covenant is being ignored for 
commercial gain and to serve the few! 

• There is no place in Ferry Meadows for any commercial building of this magnitude. 

• I do not accept the development will be beneficial to the NPT or the City of Peterborough.  

• Its only recently with a change of trustees things have changed with much commercialism 
causing anger towards the trustees. 

120



• The Trust is letting the people of Peterborough, spending Trust money promoting a 34m 
tower that has no right to be in this park. 

• Looking at NPT accounts, if the park keeps to its original ethos along with grants and 
charity donations it should be able to maintain itself financially. 

• Don't get obsessed with making money, Ferry Meadows/Nene Park is priceless, let's keep 
it that way. 

• With more emphasis on recreation activities, like the Park Runs and other events have 
significantly altered the original intentions. 

• To those who say this proposal will "put Peterborough on the map”, it’s already been on 
the map for a very, very, very long time!  

• Violating one of the very few remaining green spaces for wildlife and for the area's lungs 

is misguided and goes against our civic duty to protect nature for the next generation. 

• Every regular visitor to the park I have spoken to has been opposed to the building/tower. 

• The climbing wall will be for the few and the paraphernalia of indoor play area and cafe 

merely a sweetener to make this building more acceptable to the public. 

• The climbing tower will be for a handful of people as access is so limited. 

• The climbers will be conducting their sport inside a building, oblivious to their surroundings.  

• Climbing is a minority sport and of little interest to the vast majority of local people.  

• Minor benefits to the community are massively outweighed by all of the negatives. 

• It would be an act of vandalism to destroy even part of it purely for financial benefit. 

• Our descendants should be able to enjoy the rich natural diversity of nature as our 

generation has been able to do. We should not rob them of these experiences. 

• Should be repurposing, renewing and regenerating areas that need it. 

• The city is far too happy to smother the area in housing and huge warehouses, in an over-

expanding city population, build another park perhaps?  

• People clearly want to walk, run, cycle and see the sky. Not an incongruous, red wood and 

glass fronted super barn dominating everything else around. 

• The proposed development is not in step with many of the national and local policies. 

• The proposal is contrary to policy LP11, where development should avoid harm to the 

countryside. 

• The proposal is contrary to policy LP24 Nene Valley Policy – the proposal does not 

safeguard, enhance landscape, nature conservation, heritage, cultural and amenity 

benefits it damages and destroys them. 

• NPT comments to the media claiming losing the car park is nothing when they have all this 

land is shall we say ‘misinformation’, clouding the issue. 

• NPT say there is a void in the area for this type of activity; there are climbing walls in Milton 

Keynes, Rushden, Cambridge, Harlow all within an hour of Cambridge. 

• If we have another lockdown with Covid then this project will take away a big important 

area and Oak Meadow carpark will mean less green space. 

• Ferry Meadows has proved to be too small an area during Covid and Social distancing.  

 
Character and Visual Amenity 

• What a sad day when a few people can make decisions that such an eyesight can be built 
in the middle of a nature reserve which will alter the space forever. 

• This activity centre is completely out of character for the peaceful tranquillity of this park 

and the wildlife. 

• The very tall obtrusive structure would have a very detrimental visual and aesthetic impact 

on one of the most attractive and popular areas of the park. 

• The climbing wall would have a massive presence and would dominate the area. 

121



• The revisions do not adequately address the adverse visual impact. 

• The wall would spoil our wonderful park – the ‘Jewel in the crown’ of Peterborough’. 

• Covering the meadow with tarmac, an environmental disaster on its own.  

• It is an inappropriate overdevelopment of the area. 

• This building would dwarf the surrounding trees and the tower is a comparable height to 

Apex House and Peterborough Cathedral.  

• I would ask anyone to stand at the top of the field, next to the Oak tree and imagine the 

view looking down towards the proposed site.  

• The 34m high tower will significantly reduce and impact on the aesthetic and ambience of 

the surrounding lakeside area. 

• The views - particularly from Bluebell woods will be blighted. 

• It would encourage persons from outside of the area so the character of Ferry Meadows 

would change from countryside destination to an urban arena. 

• The images are incorrectly scaled, they do not show a true comparison. 

• NPT have permission for the huge play area to join on to the climbing tower, which 

means we lose a much bigger part of the park. 

• Oak Meadow was painted by Repton late 1700s early 1800s which shows it today much 

the same as it was then including the group of trees between Oak Meadow and Gunwade 

Lake – they have historic provenance. 

• The proposal is contrary to policy LP16 – development should respect the context of the 

site and surrounding area. 

Landscape Visual Impact 
 

• Will ruin the pleasing views within the valley and the surrounding city and towns for many 

miles. 

• It will totally ruin the landscape for miles because of its height and presence. 

• The building of a 34.25m Tower (the third tallest building in Peterborough) would be an 

eyesore on the landscape/beautiful natural park. 

• This building will be visible from a significant distance and will not blend in well with the 

setting of the park and surroundings. 

• Views from the Castor side and Lynch Wood have virtually no man-made structures  

except the Lakeside café, which sits below the treeline. 

• It will still drastically impact on the view of the lake and totally change the nature of the 

area. 

• At 34.25 m (approx. 112ft) high it will stand out like a sore thumb from all directions, ruining 

the country park's appearance. 

• Its size will dominate and change forever the views and skyline. 

• It would be visually intrusive in such a wide and flat landscape 

• No changes have been made to the Landscape Visual Impact Assessment. 

• The LVIA does not give an informative or unbiased impression of the impact of the building 

that visitors will experience. 

• It will be like standing next to a similar building to the Cathedral at the lakeside. 

• The landscape impact has largely been considered in relation to its visibility from outside 

the Park not in relation to the imposing nature of the building for visitors to the park or 

walkers in the valley. 

• Photos are provided of the site from the north and the new Watersport Centre the position 

of the new building is not even shown in outline. This is essential.  

• A recent objection provides details showing how the Climbing Tower dwarfs the 

Watersport building.  

122



• The tower is taller than the west towers of the cathedral and will be visible from many 

miles. 

• Reference to single storey/two storey is misleading as the main bulk of the building is 16m 

high and the tower 34.5m. 

• The evaluation in the LVIA in respect of Users of Ferry Meadows Country Park (sections 

8.3 to 8.7) of both the Magnitude of Change (judged to be Low) and the adverse impact 

(Moderate/Minor significance) is extremely difficult to reconcile. 

• The impact from anywhere near Gunwade Lake is overwhelming - it would be hard to 

choose a more conspicuous or flatter location.  The visual impact is definitely severe. 

• The justification that ..”the development is to substantially reinforce the recreational offer 

of Ferry Meadows Country Park..." is extremely unpersuasive in terms of the visual impact.  

• Policy LP27 identifies the Nene Valley as one of the 6 areas in Peterborough having 

valuable landscape character. Given that the building is 11 stories high so violating views 

and skylines, mature trees will be lost it is clear that this does not comply. 

• The building will be taller than the mature height of most of the surrounding trees and will 

be visible for miles. 

Heritage Asset 

• The loss of trees and shrub between Gunwade Lake and Oak meadow will allow clear 

view of Lynch Farm – a scheduled monument to Milton Hall. 

• The proposal is contrary to policy LP19 – Oak Meadow is a scheduled monument the 

proposal will damage and destroy what has been preserved for centuries. 

Design/Appearance 

• So an updated plan but the same monstrous building. The small amendments cannot 

remove the central feature. 

• The scale, colour and massing of the building is inappropriate for the location, doing 

nothing to enhance its setting. 

• I am all for innovative design however, believe that a building should be both sympathetic 

to and respectful of its surroundings and not just showcase a designers abilities.  

• One only has to view the old Pearl building in Castor to appreciate how detrimental the 

impact of inappropriate height and bulk can be on a rural landscape.  

• Consideration should be given to reducing the height of the highest element. 

• The sheer size of this proposed development it does not fit the natural landscape and 

environment. 

• The artist impression provided is ugly and a monstrosity. 

• The architecture is devoid of any aesthetic quality. There is no style, beauty, detailing or 

decoration, leaving this structure incongruous to the setting and any local architecture.  

• The artist’s impression shows a large brown lump by the side of the lake, and with its tower 

it resembles a dark satanic mill. 

• The residents of Castor and Ailsworth were promised no building would breach the tree 

line during the development of the Ortons and to date, the promise has been kept. 

• l know Olympic climbing walls are 12.5 metres. 

• Thomas Cook building is about the height of the attached shed to get a perspective. 

• All buildings in the Park are single storey to the perimeter except Watersport which itself 

was single storey, with mono pitched tiled roofs and natural timber cladding. 

Flood risk 
 

• The proposed building lies within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  

123



• Only “Essential Infrastructure” should be built in Flood Zone 3b “Functional Floodplain”.  

• Just because we can doesn’t mean we should build a non-essential building on a level 3 
flood plain. 

• We are all aware of the consequences of building in the flood plain – Guardian articles 
12/11/19 and 2/1/13. 

• In the Flood Risk Assessment the “probability of flooding” was hardly considered.  

• It is for the LPA to determine if the sequential test has to be applied in accordance with 
para 158 of NPPF – Is the LPA happy to just accept the conclusions of the sequential test?  

• Many more possible sites could be considered on land already owned by NPT.  

• There are many more alternative sites within a short distance of the proposed site. 

• Sequential test is not robust – Will you be insisting on an unbiased test? 

• Land ownership is not a reason to ignore the sequential test. 

• Other sites were discarded on the basis that “Nene Park Trust, a charitable organisation, 
would be unable to justify the purchase of the required site area. 

• If the application had been for a different location and the Alternative Site test had 
considered Lakeside then it would have been dismissed as being not suitable due to 
having a high probability of flooding. 

• Exception test –  there are no sustainability benefits from an Environmental point of view 
- Government provides guidance in the NPPF for achieving sustainable development. 

• Disappointed at Environment Agency response -  we should be rapidly changing our 
attitude towards unnecessary developments in flood plains. 

• Why have the organisations done a U-turn on protection for Flood Risk and the 
Environment? Ferry Meadows plays an important part in its capacity to store additional 
water. 

• Do they think that in the last 7 years the threats from Climate Change etc. have 
diminished? 

• Incorrect guidance may have been used for climate change allowances?  

• FRA and it does not take into account the future mapping to 2050 which shows the extent 
of flooding only getting worse hence a higher risk. 

• The lake also acts as a flood plain and it will destroy its usefulness. 

• Within a few decades, flood plains will need to store more water temporarily, otherwise 
there will be more flooding pressure onto areas of the city downstream.  

• Given the damp nature and flood risk, the site is not appropriate for 34m tower which 
requires a sturdy foundation. 

• The loss of porous ground and increased obstruction to flow is not justified for a building 
that does not need to be built in that exact location. 

• The need to build on stilts, adding to the height, would be unnecessary in a zone of lesser 
flood risk, where the building would only need to be 20m tall. 

• The site flooded in 2013. 

• On a number of occasions the car park has flooded.  

• From October onwards the park has been subject to high water levels and flooding.  

• This winter most of the paths surrounding Gunwade lake and beyond were impassable. 

• The Waterside Centre may soon need to be raised or require a raised walkway for access. 

• Disagree with the stated level of the flood plain. It has previously been confirmed that the 
flood plain was at 6.0m OD.  

• The flood of 6th April 1998 came to 5.85m OD. The level of the existing asphalt car park 
is 5.45 with level of the steps at the entrance to Watersport 5.58m.  

• The 6.0m contour actually includes half of the proposed new parking area and 5.75 
contour over three quarters of the new car park.  

• At times the area around the new building would be flooded but the proposed new car 
park will have a subbase that is waterlogged. 

• The consultant in his report agrees that there will be a minimum of 20% uplift in river 
volume in the next 30 years alone and more up to the year 2100.  

124



• The latest EA reports state unless drastic action is taken then Peterborough will be by 
the sea in 2050 and a considerable amount of the park subject to flooding. 

• Our rainfall has increased by 17% in the last 10 years. The plan must be viewed for the 
next 50 years and it would be wholly irresponsible for it be dismissed as not being of 
concern.  

• The original Environment Agency advice recommended a Capture-fence to restrain any 
vehicles in the event of flooding. This is not shown. 

• The longstanding sewer stench in the park adjacent to the pillar box and along Ham 
Lane would appear to be beyond being solved, without adding another source. 

 
Location 

• The concept of an "Olympic standard climbing facility" within Peterborough is a brilliant 
idea but this is the wrong location. 

• Fully support the building in an already industrialised area – there are plenty of sites. 

• It may be better sited at a secondary school or sports facility, where oversight and safety 

can be organised. 

• There are 3 alternative locations within the park – area adjacent to the Nene Valley Railway 

line (150m WNW) of Lynch Farm road bridge, at Orton Mere on secondary car park and 

land to the NE of Thorpe Meadows pay and display car park. 

• The Woodlands, Castor would be an alternative site - leased by the NPT. The site is 

already designated for sporting and recreational activity and has good access to 

Peterborough and major roads A1 and A47.   

• How has the council/trust allowed the sale of Woodlands and proposed residential 

development of the disused sports centre at Castor for non leisure purposes? 

• The Embankment site and potential location for the new Peterborough University Campus 

would be appropriate and would fit in well with the Sports Village. 

• The Embankment, near the swimming pool and running track that could be viewed with 

pride while traveling on the parkways. 

• The Embankment sites also marry with NPT long term plan for the park run from the 

Embankment through to Wansford. Neither site has flooding, wildlife or local traffic issues. 

• The South Bank where other tall buildings are going up, and not in a place of relaxation 

and enjoyment. 

• The East of England Showground would see less environmental impact and better cope 

with increased traffic movement. 

• Alwalton Hill distribution centre - other climbing walls have  been sited in similar locations. 

• In other cities these are in urban brownfield sites not in rural country park settings. 

• The vast majority of the UK's indoor climbing walls are in converted churches, pumping 

stations, former military facilities, industrial estates, etc where its exterior aesthetics are 

unimportant. 

• Edinburgh International Climbing Area is within a disused quarry and has a height ranging 

from 6m-28m. 

• Sites that were dismissed because of finances - the submission doesn’t include a cost 

implication.  

• It should be built near to the town's transport links, to ensure accessibility. 

• Note the recent criticism by UNESCO of the Lake District, being solely accessed by an 

insufficiently diverse mix of the population. 

• The revisions do not address the location - the main objection from people. 

• There must be more appropriate built-up sites to construct this building. 

• The reasons given for this being the wrong location far outweighs the fact that it will be 

good for Peterborough.  

125



• Rail World has a large area. 

• It should be located at the top part of the park/entrance on Ham Lane to lessen congestion 

on the narrow road and remove the need to relocate a carpark. 

• The development would be better suited to the new township of Hampton. 

• Better locations would be the cattle market car park, Dickens Street car park, Northgate 

development would be the obvious choice. 

• Perhaps the council’s strategic property section could assist with an appropriate site? 

• The Toys are Us site is accessible by public transport, brownfield, and could entice visitors 

to the city centre. 

• Why not build it in the Nene Park Chairman's garden, if he truly believes it is acceptable. 

• The opposite end, off Thorpe Road, near the rowing club, where a youth hostel was once 

proposed. 

• It could be accommodated within an existing large retail building -  TKMAX building is  

suitable for conversion.  

• The climbing wall at Rushden Lakes is within a section of the cinema with the building 

16m. high.  

• IKEA adjacent land and the lake next to it, ripe for improvement. On a linked parkway. 

• Land to the NE of the Thorpe Meadows Pay and Display car park. 

• It could be attached to the proposed £14million leisure centre in Werrington? 

• One of the commercial areas at Hampton good road access. 

• The sequential test dismissed alternative sites, due to finances – negotiations could be 

undertaken with landowners. 

• There appears to be enough space on a yard that seems to be just used for dumping trees, 

gravel etc? Presumably this land is owned by NPT? It is located just yards north of the 

level crossing on the east side of Ham Lane, next to the existing main access road, the 

main car park, the caravan and campsites, the NVR railway station, NPT offices, 

information centre, shop, café, warden’s office – in fact all the main facilities in the Park! 

• The Sequential Test document does not consider possible redevelopment such as 

ageing industrial areas.  

• It would also arguably benefit Peterborough's other businesses to a greater degree than if 

situated out-of-town, in our primary country park. 

• The overflow car park would be a better location. 

• I am surprised that no other part of the Country Park was identified by the Sequential Test 

as feasible alternatives. 

• The sequential test is an entirely biased report – PCC should commission a fully 

independent assessment. 

• Planning Applications should not be approved purely on the basis of the Applicant not 

being able to afford to build anywhere but on his own land. 

• The Sequential Test incorrectly states that a number of Alternative Sites are not suitable 

when in fact they are because an invalid test factor was used? 

• Another reason in the Sequential Test for dismissing other potential sites is that the 

building would "...cause harm to setting or character..." to those other sites. The same 

factors do not seem to be considered for the application site. 

• Within the Sequential Test, it repeatedly states that the minimum height for such a facility 

is 25m, yet the plans submitted are for a 34m high building.  

• The Addendum to the Sequential Test refers to consideration of land within the “ 

ownership" of  NPT.  The land is managed by NPT not owned by them – leased to them. 

• The Sequential Test is totally against the NPPF and Planning requirements.  

• Why did they not even consider land next to their main offices and buildings on Ham Lane?  

126



• The proposal is contrary to policy LP12 as no impact assessment has been submitted. 

• The climbing community advise that brownfield sites in more built-up areas would be far 

more suitable for such a construction. 

• A venue like the Depot (across the country including in Nottingham): these provide very 

challenging climbs, overhangs etc. in relatively low buildings. 

Highways 
 

• The proposal is contrary to policy LP13. 

• If the £2 million/pa contribution to the local economy is to be realised then most users will 

need to come from outside of Peterborough.  

• The recent amendments do not address the fundamental issue of accessibility to all 

sectors of society. 

• The application still fails to adequately address the transport and traffic issues. 

• Increase in traffic on Oundle Road. 

• How can 275,000 car movements per annum not result in a residual, cumulative, severe 

impact on an already congested area? 

• The TA is a desk top study, is flawed, insufficient in scope and fails to model current 

observed conditions. 

• There are plans (approved or in the pipeline) for further residential/commercial 

development – Great Haddon, Lynch Wood, Alwalton, Showground.  These ought to be 

put into the baseline before allowing for nebulous growth rates. 

• Oundle Road is a nightmare, parkways closed with daily accidents and we encourage 

more traffic. 

• The report contains no "What if?" scenarios or tests of the robustness of the figures, e.g. 

if the actual growth in traffic was a mere 1% more for each of the next 20 years. The RFC 

factors quoted in Table 5.7 would be 70-100. 

• The conclusion drawn cannot be relied on as any actual realistic forecast of future traffic 

conditions on Oundle Road. 

• Residents in Orton Wistow, Sunningdale and Chisenhale already have difficulty accessing 

Oundle Road – the traffic study downplays these issues by basing statistics on low flow 

periods. 

• The TA traffic flow information does not reflect the actual traffic usage on Oundle Road 

particularly from the Ferry Meadows roundabout to the Nene Parkway and Lynch Wood 

Business Park.  

• The sets of three traffic lights to the east on Oundle Road have a particular effect on traffic 

flow because of the Business Park, traffic from Orton Waterville the Nene Academy 

School.  

• In weekday mornings from before 8.00 until 9.15 the road is congested then again in the 

afternoon from 14.45 up until 17.45 due firstly to school traffic and after 16.00 until 17.45. 

Traffic does not flow it is stationary.  

• Traffic jams along Oundle Road at peak times have consequences for emergency 

vehicles.  

• When events are held at the Showground, traffic problems are intensified. 

• Traffic plans are not legally enforceable and not worth the paper they are written on. 

• A containment of the growth of future traffic is required, not unnecessary development in 

inappropriate areas. 

• We have undertaken our own Traffic volume count at a junction  a few hundred yard’s 

away from the Skanska junction - recorded over a 10hr period , over 2 days . 26,052 in a 

10 hr window. 

127



• Oundle Road should very importantly become part of Skanskas lacking Traffic Report!  

• BBC news related item on 21/1/20 online! ‘New UK Housing dominates by roads’ Planners 

& Engineers have been rapped for allowing new Housing Developments to be dominated 

by roads’ 

• The application fails to acknowledge/address the wider transport implications when 

national climbing competitions are held. Could attract up to 700 spectators. 

• Comparison with the site at Milton Keynes – here the 2 walls are 11m and 11m, both 

located within an industrial estate.  The only other comparison is Edinburgh. 

• Will increase traffic on Ham Lane, which is used by pedestrians and young children on 

bikes and scooters – potential increase in accidents.  

• Ham Lane is often grid locked and the car parks so full that half of one of the meadows 

has been allocated for parking. 

• Increased volume of traffic is dangerous to wildlife, dog walkers and children. 

• Whilst there will be little impact on the local road network, there will be an impact on Ham 

Lane and on the roads within the park.  

• The existing lack of pedestrian/cycle crossing points already renders the Ham Lane and 

park roads hazardous to non-vehicular users at busy times. 

• Drivers ignore pedestrians either crossing or waiting to cross the road. 

• Traffic exceeds the capacity threshold of the park and the local infrastructure frequently 

with the current level of visitors.  

• Ferry Meadows is not effectively served by public transport. This means that most climbing 

wall users will travel to the site by car.  

• Due to the weight of the climbing equipment it is unlikely they will arrive by public transport 

or other means. 

• The Travel plan is misleading in its statement regarding walking distances. The walking 

route from the Citi 1 Linnet bus stop to the location of the new facility is not "within 900m". 

It is over 1.5km. 

• The nearest stop for the X4 service is 2.0km from the proposed facility. 

• The nearest bus stop in Orton Wistow is a 15 minute walk to Lakeside and takes 40 

minutes minimum to travel from Queensgate Bus station – who will use this in reality? 

• In the Development Corporation Master Plan there was a maximum distance from all new 

development to a bus route of 500m.  

• From this bus stop the quickest route to enter the Park is walking along Wistow Way, take 

the lit footpath between the Rookery and Lynch Farm then walk in complete darkness to 

Lakeside. 

• Access by bus at night after 18.00 is impossible. 

• The TA shows a photo of a lady on a bike between a bus stop and pavement – where is 

the road/bus stop? It is not on Oundle Road/ not part of any obvious access road to the 

Park and is therefore misleading! 

• What can be done to reduce traffic?  

• Can alternative access options to park be prioritised? Park and ride and cycle hire?  

• Vehicles should be reduced by initiatives i.e. electric buggies, trams etc for visitors to rent? 

• Surely it would be better to restrict numbers and types of vehicles that are allowed to enter 

the clean-air zones in the centre of the Park? 

• Can the total number of visitors to the activity centre be restricted to a maximum? 

• There is too much traffic with restricted access & egress. 

• There is always a high volume of traffic to the park on a Saturday morning for Parkrun, 

even in the winter (629 runners on 25thJanuary 2020) that fills the main car park.  

128



• Although access is relatively easy exit is tortuous. The ticketing system for those paying is 

inefficient and there are also queues at the machines where coaches park.   

• Although the barriers to exit the park are supposed to be automatic every Saturday there 

seem to be problems and cars cannot exit.  

Access road to Lakeside 

• The revised application does not address the access road within Ferry Meadows.  

• The road is narrow and winds around Oak Meadow with several pedestrian/cycle 
crossing places with poor visibility. 

• Any increase in road traffic will present an increased risk to non-vehicle users of Ferry 
Meadows, especially as the road will be open well into the evening. 

• The road is not suitable for two way traffic. No passing bays. 

• The access road is barely adequate for large vehicles, such as buses.  

• There will be a dramatic increase in car and coach traffic – access via a narrow lane. 

• Access road is not lit and has speed bumps that will be dangerous in winter.  

• The site is unlikely to be used by cyclists the evening in winter - Footpaths are unlit 

• Few use these routes after sunset.  

• There is a 15mph speed limit in the park, which most drivers ignore. 

• There is no evidence of any attempt by the Trust to monitor the speeds nor do anything 

about those who do exceed those speeds. 

• I am disappointed that the application does not propose any improvement to this road.  

• The amount of traffic going round the access road will be a nightmare 

especially in the summer when it is already much too busy. 

• Cycling on the access roads will be more hazardous. 

• Cars park along the access road - it is often impossible to get emergency services vehicles 

down the road. We have elderly neighbours who have required the assistance of the 

ambulance services which have been impeded by inappropriate parking. 

• Concern that the access road would be widened and consequently lead to increase speed 

on this quiet approach road.  

• The inevitable vastly increased traffic will harm the peaceful enjoyment of hundreds of 

pedestrians entering the Park safely at Lynch Farm Bridge. 

Car parking 
 

• Since Nene Park have increased their parking charges more cars are parking in the 
nearby streets to avoid the charges. This will increase. 

• Cars park on Wistow Way, in housing estate cul-de-sac roads such as Whitewater and 
on Ham Lane and nearby lanes.  

• Cars parked in the streets create hazards/in some cases cars are parked very near 
junctions making manoeuvring very hazardous. 

• Perhaps the local streets need to be made resident parking only or the new parking 
restrictions need to be extended to The Rookery. 

• Insufficient car parking. 

• Although additional 90 spaces provided - concern with the ability of the system to cope 
with traffic.  

• When the park was first designed it was agreed that the main routes in the main car park 
would be asphalt with some parking areas gravel.  

• The grass overflow car park on the higher section of Oak Meadow was positioned because 
land closer to the Watersport Centre was waterlogged in wet weather. 

• In winter it is not possible to use this temporary carpark without damage to the subsoil and 
archaeology.  

129



• The car park would be Grass block – the term is deceiving. These are visually obtrusive - 
grass not the predominant material, it is concrete and grass does not grow easily in these 
units.  

• The report suggests that the trust should accept settlement, this would definitely be the 
case given the subsoil and that Historic England will have to approve.  

• The car park is visually unacceptable, it is too far from the facility. 

• It is detrimental to the commercial undertaking of the restaurant/cafeteria and even Nene 
Outdoors. 

• Can parking for disabled visitors be prioritised and 'green levy' applied to others as a 
disincentive to driving to this location. 

 

Landscape Implications 
 

• The car park will result in felling 15 mature healthy trees and a sizeable area of 
vegetation that acts as habitat. 

• Will destroy ancient trees – they work so hard to clean our toxic air. 

• The world is in a climate crisis and cutting trees down to make room for the development 
we don’t need doesn't make any sense.  

• We need to use this area to be planting woodlands. 

• Trees should only be felled if they are dangerous and research to treat and prevent 
disease should be applied. 

• A giant new car park will cause permanent loss of loss of Oak Meadow with its ancient 
oaks. 

• Cars driving over the roots of the old oaks will lead to compaction of the soil and will kill 
them. 

• We have noticed the demise of the carpet of cowslips in spring, will the Trust now care 
for the meadow as its the beginning of the food chain for us and the wildlife. 

• We need to preserve our natural places 

• Wildlife corridors are constantly being disrupted, valuable trees removed and habitats 
threatened and pressured.  

• I've seen numerous beautiful Oaks and Ash cut down here in the last couple of years; I 
do not believe this action was at all necessary. 

• Removal of trees that cool the air, prevent flooding, encourage biodiversity, provide 
foraging and habitat, filter toxins from the air – they are the lungs of the city. 

• Urban forests make cities more resilient to climate change.  

• The newly planted trees will be saplings that will need between 30 to 50 years to mature. 
In the meantime, invasive species will move in and become established and 
rare/endangered species will no longer be seen in Ferry Meadows. 

• The proposal is contrary to policy LP22 – if approved the development will not be 
maintaining or improving existing green infrastructure but destroying it. 

• The population in Peterborough is now huge, please, please don't take anyway anymore 

green space. 

• The problem is that country and quiet areas are being eroded fast on a U.K. 

• Wide open spaces are becoming a scarce resource 

Wildlife Implications 
 

• Would the building and car park not destroy some existing wildlife habitat? 

• Removal of trees/additional parking and floodlighting will do unimaginable damage to the 
fauna and flora of the park. 

• How can anyone interested in wildlife welfare condone this in such an environmentally 
sensitive area.  

130



• How can this do anything other than potentially harm wildlife welfare. 

• As a former employee this development is contrary to everything I learned/was taught 
about being respectful of the park as a 'country park', not as theme park. 

• This is a country park teaming with nature, and many different species will suffer, 
including rare species of bats. 

• This is a nature reserve of significance and should be protected.  

• In a world in which global warming is becoming of ever more acute concern, I am worried 
about disappearing wildlife habitats. 

• A slight change in my garden's dynamic can cause such an increase in wildlife visiting 
my garden, what detrimental affect will building this climbing wall and associated 
infrastructure have on the wildlife at Ferry Meadows? 

• There will be significant damage to nocturnal creatures such as the bats that are 
prominent in the area. Hence Chris Packham’s support. 

• The access road which is the Wildlife Corridor has been totally ignored.  

• Light emitted from the building/car headlights along the access road after dusk, will impact 
on bats, foxes and smaller animals crossing the road. The road is only open occasionally 
for weddings. 

• Lighting will impact on nocturnal wildlife that use this rich quality habitat area as part of the 

Wildlife Corridor between Oak Meadow, tree belts and residents gardens. 

• Oak Meadow has a long standing Owl resident in one of the large Oak trees 

• The Wildlife Officer’s report should be removed from the Portal as new information by Bat 

Expert, Dr Robert Stebbings has been submitted which challenges statements made about 

impact. 

• Complete disregard for Dr Stebbings report. 

• Lighting needs to be 100 times less than NPT propose to ensure Bat protection.  

• The recent wildlife officer report is surprisingly complacent and accepting of the proposal 

and ignores the disturbance and development of roads and the impact on wildlife.  

• The wild life recommendations of extra bat boxes seems pointless considering other views. 

• There is a small enclosed area of shrubs, which is one of the best places in the Park for 

viewing birds. It is particularly a haven for over-wintering and winter visitor songbirds. This 

will be destroyed by the development.    

• Adjoining the western side of this habitat is an overgrown “tunnel” of shrubs and trees – 

bats and hirundines/swifts feed in that area – it is one of a handful of important places for 

these species within the Park. Please don’t let this small but important piece of habitat be 

overlooked and destroyed. 

• There is a petition by Chris Packham – how can PCC agree to an application objected to 

by such a well-known naturalist. 

• Chris Packham has not changed his letter of objection despite some discussion with NPT 

linked to Radio Cambs Interview.  No...Chris Packham sees the bigger picture. 

• NPT's Ecology Survey ignored Bats; only concentrating on the car park. The access road 

has not been included.    

• The area supports and provides important habitats for birds, foxes, badgers, deer, fish, 

otters, bats and fast disappearing insects. The removal of the grassland is a real negative. 

• The Wildlife Officer's report is flawed; it does not consider high traffic flows, increased 

human activity away from normal visitor hours etc. permanent loss of the meadow habit or 

bats that come into the park to feed on the variety of insects inhabiting mixed water and 

meadow environment from other nearby roosts. 

• The high structure risks a high number of bird-strike incidents during cloudy or foggy 

weather conditions. 

• During the Covid crisis 2020 the wildlife and nature in the Park has flourished – Ospreys 

sighted over Gunwade Lake, swans showing off their cygnets, goslings and ducklings, 2 

131



rare Nightingales in the actual trees and hedgerows due to be demolished for the Wall, 

Red Kites nesting,  Bats flying over the area foraging and feeding. 

• Future generations have been able to see some of these wonderful creatures. 

• UK Climbing have stated nature must not be comprised. 

• After attending NPT Bat Walks; this site is vital to bats feeding and foraging....nightly 

opening would have huge impact on nocturnal wildlife. 

• This access road has been closed by design at night to vehicles for over 40 years in order 

to preserve the wildlife corridor. 

Environment and Pollution 
 

• If Peterborough wants to be seen as an environmental capital then these are the kind of 

places they simply must maintain. 

• An Environment Capital - Peterborough City Council unanimously declared a Climate 

Emergency.  Now would be a good time for PCC to stand by it’s declaration and say no to 

this proposal. 

• If the development is permitted it send a message that PCCs aspirations are merely empty 

words. 

• This is not going to help Peterborough’s global footprint. 

• PCC has a remarkable achievement in its regard for the climate,  the environment and the 

well being of the city population, not only through the development of Ferry Meadows but 

the City’ s network of green cycle ways and footpaths and its beautifully greened roadside 

verges. It has punched above its weight and achieved magnificent facilities for its 

population, Don’t risk it, don’t lose it. 

• Ferry Meadows is a huge carbon sink for the city. As we are now in a climate crisis we 

cannot afford to lose any amenity of this nature, nor to attract additional traffic. 

• Given the continuing growth of the city it is even more important to protect and safeguard 

Ferry Meadows  as the “lungs" of the city. 

• The Council should listen to the needs and concerns of these residents and consider this 

venture in light of the climate emergency motion it passed in July.  

• Is the planning application in harmony with the councils aim to meet its carbon neutral/ 

reduction targets?  

• Are building plans environmental, in keeping with surroundings and careful to incorporate 

important trees and habitat, not destroy them? XR Peterborough support established 

wildlife and habitats being prioritised over mitigation options. 

• As a council with good green environmental credentials this application should be refused. 

• It would be a shame if policies in place to promote our green city accomplishments were 

overlooked entirely. 

• How can it be justified to lose a meadow for a car park, at a time when there is increasing 

focus on environmental issues? 

• It will cause huge amounts of light-pollution deep into the Park. There are few places where 

slightly better dark-sky/view of stars can be experienced.  

• Levels of light should be restricted. 

• Encouraging young people to do sport is important but not at the expense of a fragile and 

endangered landscape and environment. 

• Global warming threat to the planet: "Why don't you listen to the scientists ...." 

• This is not an environmentally sustainable location for a facility to cater for national and 

regional sports enthusiasts. 

• To what extent will the Planning Authority as part of sequential testing consider the carbon 

footprint of this development in Nene Park. 

132



• Why is an Environmental Impact Assessment not being carried out? 

• If the path from the end of The Rookery into the Park will be lit, there will be light pollution  

• Additional car park will cause air and noise pollution. 

Users of the Park 

• Wind shadow extends for between 7 and 10 times the height of the thing in the wind.  

• The sailing centre itself has proved enough of a hazard to safe sailing, particularly for 
beginners and the disabled. 

• The proposed wall would create both wind and sun shadow, both Rutland and Tallington 
Lakes Sailing Clubs say novice and dingy sailors will struggle and capsize. 

• It will take away the disabled parking – a viewing point to watch activity on lake. The only 
place in Ferry with viewing access from their cars. People park bring flask and snacks, 
because they cannot afford cafes prices. 

• It will spoil the pleasure of being able to park near to the water front and café facility. 

• The proposed disabled parking will be too far away for many people. 

• Disabled users of Ferry Meadows rely heavily on using the car park in question for 
accessibility for sailability, etc. 

• The park has always been a place of calm and quiet for people to walk and enjoy the 
outdoors. 

• One of the few places to take our children to experience nature and the outdoors safely. 

• The climbing wall will encroach on the green space and spoil this wonderful amenity. 

• The location of car park will reduce the back field that is used for many outdoor events,  
relaxation and family time and an outdoor classroom. 

• Fishermen will have to leave their vehicles and equipment tens of metres further away. 

• It does not fit with the idea of getting children to play outside whatever the weather.  

• The latest children's play areas are very poor value for money.  

• Is it fair to the two million visitors to deprive them of this wonderful natural area? 

• We are regular visitors to Ferry Meadows, staying at the caravan park.   If it goes ahead 
we will stop coming. 

• Thousands currently come whether elderly, disabled, recovering from illness and it was 
designed for this purpose by PDC.  

• Everyone can currently come to that area and decide on a whole range of options.  Their 
choices do no impede on others unlike this project. 

• You will distress a lot of disabled people and everyday walkers and park users. 

• This superb open space which is visited by many throughout the year by walkers, dog 

walkers, nature lovers and peace seekers.  

• Wheelchairs and Pushchairs will struggle when this area is full of vehicles after a period 

of wet weather.  

Impact on health and well-being 
 

• It is a hugely important resource for tranquillity, exercise and well-being and most 

importantly the air is clean. 

• The level of benefit to the health and wellbeing of Peterborough remains overstated.  

• Ferry Meadows is vital for the mental health of Peterborough.  

• We know the benefits to both mental and physical health of getting out in the fresh air and 

enjoying nature - why take some of this away, by putting an activity centre in one of the 

most important parts of the park. 

• Ferry Meadows is a very special place which offers residents of all abilities and socio 

economic groups an escape from the stresses of normal life. 

133



• During the covid crisis 2020 Ferry Meadows has been a physical, emotional and mental 

haven for the people of Peterborough. 

• Red Kite state that passive recreation and mental health value must not be ignored. 

• Research suggests spending 20mins in a park can improve your happiness whether 

exercising or relaxing -  it's the natural environment that matters.  

• As study found that people who spent time in a local park benefited from stress reduction 

and managed to kick mental fatigue after soaking up some park life. 

Neighbouring Amenity 

• Additional lighting will impact on residents backing on to the Park, people who enjoy the 

fantastic Star studded sky still seen in this area. 

• Residents abutting the park will be impacted upon by vehicle noise, air and light pollution 

• It will be utter chaos during the building of this structure. 

• There has been an increase in events which impacts on surrounding roads as well as noisy 

PA systems and loud music.  

• The proposal is contrary to policy LP17 – there is clearly going to be a loss of green space 

and amenity enjoyed by 1.8 million people who visit annually for the green spaces. 

• Extension of opening hours will impact on the amenity of residents abutting the park. 

• The building will clearly be visible to those houses abutting the park, Lynch Farm, Milton 

Hall and Castor village properties. 

Security 
 

• The police say that lighting is not strong enough to ensure personal safety/CCTV 

recognition. 

• The 0.05 lux lighting for Bats would be far too dim for people to feel safe and to see.  

• Opening till 11pm will have major implications on what has for 40 years been a safe area. 

• The area is protected at night by natural darkness. 

• It would possibly entice more vandalism in the park.  

• How are Nene Park Trust going to police the opening/closing times? 

• What security is NPT proposing, in patrolling/monitoring criminal activity – I heard there 

would be a warden. 

• The late opening will attract undesirables and bring anti-social behaviour, bearing in mind 

the catchment area of the Ortons and the problems experienced there, including 

youngsters on bikes supplying drugs for County Lines. 

• All the paths in Ferry Meadows will need to be lit at night for people walking, cycling and 

gaining access by bus as it is pitch dark from just before Lynch Farm bridge.  

• The facility will change our safe park - currently young people stop at Lynch Bridge with 

their cans as it is pitch black in autumn/winter – there will be an incentive to go into the 

park. 

• This newly lit but isolated site is going to provide an ideal location for drug dealing, etc. 

• More police presence will be needed 

• No consultation has taken place with the local community about security issues. 

Precedent 

• Setting a precedent for further building within the park. 

• It won't be long before they look to build holiday chalets in the park too. 

• Slowly and surely we will lose areas of Ferry Meadows to commercial ventures. 

Public consultation 

134



 

• I criticised the Consultation exercise by NPT in a previous submission. This criticism still 
stands.  

• Talking to members of the public, residents and visitors it is clear that the majority of people 
knew little to nothing about the plans. 

• There has been very poor consultation. 

• There seems to have been almost no consultation or communication with the wider 
general public and users of the Park. 

• There have been no leaflets, posters displaying plans at the Information centre.  

• No information on the noticeboards scattered around the Country Park. 

• How can members of the public make an informed opinion without relevant information?  

• It is reassuring that many hundreds/thousands of residents and visitors alike have  
expressed their views on  the NPT plans  on this planning portal, on various petitions and 
petition web sites eg.change.org & climbing uk. 

• There have been no proper displays at the site itself, so visitors from the city, the wider 
region and the country have almost no idea what will have changed when they next visit. 

• Leafletting restricted to properties butting up to the Trust land off Wistow Way.  

• Refused to hold a Public Meeting stating as a Trust they were not obliged to.  

• Even  now after 15 months, the plans are not well known. 

• There is a black folder kept under the counter but I was advised the info. may be a 
little out of date? 

 

Viability 

• It is a White Elephant that Nene Park will be the poorer for. 

• The scheme will never pay for itself, money should go to more worthwhile causes. 

• NPT have not indicated the source of the funding – this would have an impact on 
whether the public would support or object to this project. 

• The calculations for income spin off for both NPT and the City are no longer sound. 

• Are there really that many potential users interested in what is a fairly minor 
sport/activity? 

• Will thousands of climbers be interested in travelling from all over the region and 
negotiating the long, slow drive down Ham Lane and then on deep into the Park?  

• What about in a few years’ time when another Climbing Centre is built in a more-
convenient location? 

• What happens when it becomes unviable to operate, due to commercial, flooding or 
other issues? Who will have to pay for cleaning-up the problem? We are left with a 
hideous building.  

• Once built it would be hard and very time consuming, not to mention costly, to back-
track. 

• Ill-conceived attempt to train Olympic climbers for the nation is misguided and unlikely to 
succeed. 

• A climbing enthusiast believes the tower badly designed, not appropriate for National 
competition and not economic.  

• The building is custom built; any correction/design modifications/maintenance, are all 
costly. 

• If not viable the development cannot be feasibly adapted for another use  (Similar to the 
Pearl Assurance Sports Cub building in Castor). 

• Local councils often have to top up their operating shortfall from already stretched 
municipal resources. 

• There are currently one or two portable climbing walls on site, I doubt if they're used more 
than 5% of the year. 

135



• The indoor climbing fraternity are not impressed with the design and the facilities needed 
to make it a "go to" climbing facility when described as an Olympic wall. 

• There are objections from climbing enthusiasts (Mr Walton) stating that the design of the 
wall will limit its attraction. 

• UK Climbing have recently added their objection -  their view should be recognised. 

• We should not be over optimistic about local schools and groups using this facility.  

• NPT have changed the status from an Olympic Climbing Centre, Regional Centre to an 
Activity Centre with some climbing. 

• £8m is a very worrying sum to spend on a local centre especially with the comments from 
UK Climbing – if this project fails then our awarding winning Park will be lost. 

• To use valuable charity monies of over 8 million to build this, is an abuse. UK climbing will 
tell you those up and running are supported by Local Authorities. Peterborough City 
Council is in no position to assist, it has its own financial crisis. 

• So many negative reports from experts in many fields and risks that NPT do not mention 
or deal with that makes this a White Elephant project. 

• NPT have still to complete the outstanding issues for the Lakeside building; leaking roof, 
decking and exterior cladding. There is no money to do this work. This does not bode well 
for future projects. 

• Every project has to be financially viable, this clearly is not! 

• NPTs claim that the development will bring in an extra £2million per year is insupportable 
and fanciful. 

• What if this sport declines and is left out of Olympic sports. 

• UK Climbing's statement: Ian Walton stated the inside is not big enough to house the 
hundreds of climbers and spectators for National level (quoted 700 as typical).   

• Edinburgh Centre has closed, Corby closed after 18 months.....We need to be careful. 

• It would still be nothing like a 'national competition / Olympic climbing wall as used in IFSC 
comps. 

• It looks more like a pretty concept picture by an architect rather than something thought 
through as a climbing wall. 

 
Conflict of Interest 
 

• The purpose seems to be the objective of one person. The CEO of NPT is associated 
with British Mountaineering. 

• Are there any vested interests with members of the NPT and climbing wall Associations? 

• As a clear conflict of interest exists the application should have been submitted in some 
form of independent way. 

 
Consultation 
 

• Other than the PCC notices there are no images/displays of this building in the park, the 
staff will not discuss the project.  

• There seems to have been almost no consultation or communication with the wider 
general public and users of the Park. 

• The majority of visitors to the park are totally unaware of the proposal and when told find 
it appalling.  

• Having spoken to residents of Peterborough and outlying areas many knew nothing about 
the proposal. 

• A model showing the Watersport Centre and Climbing Tower would have been good 
publicity. 

• NPT are just not answering the public questions. 

• 97% of people we spoke to were against it. 

136



• Over 1,000 people signed a petition against the proposal and most comments on the Portal 
are against this proposal. 

• The planning department should review the majorly negative responses on NPTs own 
site - public opinion on this very public facility should surely be taken into account. 

• Although 9 site notices were erected around the park and an advert placed in the ET the 
consultation should have been much wider. 

• In November 2018 NPT conducted an online consultation -  the form was totally skewed 
towards forcing the user to accept the proposal – despite complaining I had no response. 

• Now NPT have repeated their railroading tactics with yet another one-sided sham of a 
survey. 

• There is no proper, unbiased consultation or communication by NPT. 

• NPT should be considering everyone's views and wishes on a much more objective and 
less-biased basis. 

 

Misc 
 

• I hope the councillors voted in by the local public take on board the 100's of objections; 
would be good to hear their views. 

• I hope our duly elected councillors/politicians do the ethical thing and stop this. 

• Peterborough Council please do your duty and protect Ferry Meadows as a wildlife park. 

• There are so many issues still not addressed. 

• Total disregard by NPT from the thousands of current Park Users. 

• Refuse this application on this site. It may bring a new facility for some families and 
climbers but it will ruin the healing benefits of that open beautiful area for thousands of 
local people who use it regularly now...and incidentally volunteer and buy items to help 
the Parks revenue. 

• Do not ignore these people...NPT did....please PCC do not do that too. 

• I urge the council to reject this application for the benefit of the people of Peterborough 
and our visitors. 

• We would like to see those people who are" For the Wall" come up with answers to the 
problems themselves and knowledge of the area to counter our arguments and reassure 
us. 

• If passed this will be judged in the future as a poor planning decision. 

• Why is the existing climbing wall at Bretton not being developed? PCC need a joined up 
planning strategy 

• I hope the planning committee are taking notice of all the people of the Park.  

• The 2000 people who have signed petition. Just want to Save Our Park and the Trees .  

• Will there need to be an Aircraft warning light on the top of the tower. 

• We have concerns about the way that NPT is being run. 

• It seems inconceivable that such a plainly ridiculous proposal could be give planning 
consent by councillors elected by the people of Peterborough to serve our best interests. 

• Why would anyone, unless they have vested interests in the financial aspects, support 
this proposal. 

• The new opening times are on NPT website yet no decision has been made. 

• We have all seen the Peterborough Plan with grand plans being forced through despite 
residents voicing serious concerns. All because the misguided at PCC wants to be 
remembered.  

• NPT (applicant) sent cards signed by 14 Contributors - this is a biased exercise – an 
interference in the due process of planning regulations? 

• A short time of 3 weeks to set up a petition to hand to Planning before the closing date 
raised 1112 names.  

• Your portal times me out before I have completed my comments. Residents and visitors 
have resorted to change.org.  

137



• I am amazed to learn the portal is still open.                          

• I thought this portal was closed months ago, even before NPT sent in postcards. 

• Already the beautiful Oak Meadow has been festooned with plastic fencing and umpteen 
plastic traffic cones. 

• The CEO of NPT is on the new Town Cttee to spend money from the Government for all 
the people of Peterborough not just the few – he put this monstrosity forward. 

• How many families will be able to afford the expense of using the wall regularly out of 
their weekly budget? 

• Charity monies should be used for desperately needed projects to support the fallout of 
the pandemic. 

• The Covid-19 restrictions imposed on wall operations is reducing their earning abilities. 

• What sort of backhander will the council get for letting this go ahead? 

• Surely the deadline for this is past and the far reaching issues still not resolved. 

• The final total on the Change.org Petition is 3,711 – it is the comments that speak 
volumes. I urge you to read them as many are local people and the others fly the flag for 
Environmental Protection. 

• We disagree with those who say Ferry Meadows is not a Nature Park....the 1988 
Covenant is clear that it is. 

 
Construction 
 

• The whole construction process will cause a great deal disruption; pollution, noise and 
loss of habitat for local species. 

• Has consideration been given to access for construction vehicles? 

• I assume the existing cafeteria/conference room and Nene Outdoors will still operate.  

• I assume that it will be essential to construct the new car park before any construction 
work is undertaken. 

• A time limit of one year from commencement of the car park to commencement of the 
Climbing Tower should be imposed. 

 

Comments in Support: 
 

• 14 postcards have been received; completed by visitors to the park sent in by NPT in 
support of the Activity Centre. 

• Nene Valley is a prime location - it encourages those who come to climb that there is a 
great outdoors. 

• Ferry meadows is a wonderful, well-loved place and this would be a world class facility 
and a marvellous addition to a great public amenity. 

• Nene Park already encourages an active lifestyle and a climbing wall will complement 
what the park already has to offer. 

• The new centre will bring a new lease of life to Ferry Meadows. 

• Ferry Meadows is a leisure facility and the new facility will increase the enjoyment of the 
younger generation.  

• It will raise awareness of the site and encourage more people to appreciate Ferry 
Meadows; raising awareness of the local wildlife protection measures and biodiversity. 

• Will encourage new visitors to view the park as a sport and outdoor recreational 
destination, which is there to be enjoyed.  

• This should definitely go ahead! Climbing is now an Olympic sport. The fastest growing 
sport.  It’s only going to grow in popularity. 

• Many towns and cities of a similar size to Peterborough have a climbing gym or wall.  

• My family and I are excited about prospect of an Olympic standard climbing wall. 

• Peterborough has a thriving climbing community. 

• I think this will be a great facility and a huge attraction for Peterborough.  

138



• This centre would be a fantastic resource for the city, providing much needed high 
quality leisure and health benefits for all who visit. 

• There is a complete lack of sports facilities for the local community and visitors to the 
city; the climbing wall would be a great addition the Peterborough's sporting facilities. 

• It will put Peterborough in a much more positive light following recent bad press re. lack 
of opportunities. 

• Peterborough is in need of more wholesome family and outdoor activities.  

• It would be one of the best indoor climbing facilities in the country.  

• It would add to the overall attractiveness of the park for visitors to the city and residents.  

• It will be a fantastic boost to the community - providing activities for a huge age range, 
not just 'young active' people.  

• More visitors to Peterborough is great for the city, bringing money into the local 
economy. 

• People who visit the climbing centre will also do other activities at the park, 

• Parents will be able to use the parks surroundings while their children climb. 

• Creating jobs and income and extra security to help the Trust to continue to improve the 
site for people and wildlife.  

• This proposal will be extremely beneficial to health and participation and boost the 
economy.  

• It will encourage physical exercise and promote the park as a whole.  

• It will also give the public something new and exciting to do in all weather. 

• It would encourage me to spend more time there - especially throughout the winter, as 
I'm sure it would for others. 

• We would be lucky to have this on our doorstep. 

• It will offer a new, exciting activity - I am looking forward to it opening.  

• If a high standard wall is built in Peterborough I will be one of the first buying a 
membership.  

• For general all round fitness the climbing wall in Peterborough is such great alternative to 
the usual gyms and much cheaper to take part.  

• I think this centre will be an asset to the city. I really hope it goes ahead. 

• It will add considerably to the range of sporting and leisure facilities in the area and it will 
appeal to a wide range of ages and climbing abilities. 

• The climbing wall would enable younger generations to learn the great skill of climbing 
and be active at the same time.  

• Climbing is an amazing sport that is great for conditions and strengthening, and also the 
social aspect of it. 

• It is a great way to stay active and fit and families can participate as well as people 
climbing solo.  

• It is also an activity that can encompass the whole family.  

• Climbing promotes outdoor living and a fitter and healthier society and keeps youth off 
the streets. 

• More activities to inspire young people in Peterborough can only be a good thing. 

• Great let's get more people enjoying climbing and the environment around them! 

• Climbing is a very inclusive sport, and a fun sport that aids overall fitness. 

• Climbing is an extremely beneficial activity - it works your mind and body and can be 
undertaken on an individual or group basis.  

• It’s a great social space for people to meet, climb and have fun. 

• The health benefits, both physical and mental for all ages are wide ranging.  

• Climbing is a fun and fantastic sport which allows people to improve their strength and 
balance while developing qualities like teamwork, trust and an interest in the natural 
world 

• Climbing teaches discipline, resilience and strategy. 

• Climbing trains creativity and problem solving.  

139



• Climbing celebrates an individual's achievements, boosts self confidence, team work and 
leadership skills, communication skills, trust and confidence in self and others. 

• Climbing can open up opportunities for new friendships and the opportunity to travel to 
other destinations to continue progressing within the sport.  

• Communities and activities like this are essential for combating loneliness.  

• There is nothing of its kind within a 50 mile radius and it will attract serious and 
recreational climbers from miles around.  

• We make weekly trips to Milton Keynes since there are no closer facilities. 

• A climbing wall of this grade, in this sort of location, would attract all sorts of outgoing 
people from miles around.  

• The facility at Northampton is busy with kids clubs, scout clubs all climbing, this can only 
be a good thing for getting kids active. 

• Other quality centres are too far away to visit in the evenings after work. 

• Having to travel by car to other cities with climbing facilities adds to pollution that so 
many of us are trying to reduce. 

• There is already an established climbing community in Peterborough so the centre would 
be well used and would attract new climbers.  

• We have been waiting for a decent climbing wall in the area and I feel it can only be a 
good thing to get more people active!  

• Peterborough is long overdue a good sized climbing wall to bring a sport which is so 
great for overall mental and physical health. 

• Indoor climbing walls are now present in most major towns. Peterborough needs to have 
a climbing wall. 

• Peterborough is seriously lacking compared to many similar or smaller sized places in 
terms of climbing facilities.  

• The climbing wall at the Town Sports Club has now closed and the health, fitness and 
fun benefits will be lost.  

• If this doesn’t go ahead then Peterborough will be left without any kind of facility for this 
sport which would be regressive and a total loss.  

• My Cub Scout Pack to try out climbing as part of the Scouting programme; soon there 
will be no purpose built climbing facilities within Peterborough. 

• Local Scout groups would still have somewhere to try out climbing without having to 
travel. 

• I am the leader of the local Guide unit; we would definitely use this new one, closer to 
home. 

• I frequently work at a school specialising in helping autistic students. I have seen the 
significant benefits of challenging but safely supervised activities to many students.  

• The climbing wall will provide challenges at a level beyond that easily experienced in 
Peterborough. I fully support the development. 

• As an instructor in the army cadet force I feel that Peterborough needs a class A 
climbing facility to ensure people can practice safety before transgressing to the 
outdoors.  

• The local brownies currently have very few activities available at this end of 
Peterborough – this would provide more choice. 

• Although the aesthetic issues are understandable, the benefits outweigh these. 

• The staff at Nene Park care deeply about the environment and will make every effort to 
ensure that the building does not impact negatively on the wildlife and surrounding 
beauty of the country park.  

• The exterior/cladding of the building should blend with its surroundings.  

• Perhaps there is an opportunity to use natural materials to create nesting areas for birds 
and the ability to grow moss/ plants? 

• There should be a toilet in the baby changing area. 

140



• Mr Packhams objection, and the vitriolic and untrue remarks on the portal has compelled 
me to formally lodge my support for the development.  

• I have faith that there will be a net environmental benefit.  

• Whilst they may be flaws in the proposal, they can be mitigated through planning 
conditions.  

• Helicoptering Packham and his acolytes in to object on masse based on hyperbole and 
falsehoods is distorting the true feeling of local residents.  

• The vast majority of people I talk to are supportive of the climbing centre.  

• I don't believe it will be an eye sore, especially not as much as the old Thomas Cook 
building. 

• Nene Park is the perfect location; especially as it'll be built on an existing tarmac car 
park. 

• The proposed area is ideal with the least impact of the surrounding countryside and 
wildlife. 

• Ferry Meadows is not a nature reserve; it is a leisure park and always has been.  

• The structure is visually and architecturally appealing and not detrimental to the area. 

• Nene Park Trust has consulted various agencies to ensure minimal impact on the 
wildlife; they do an excellent job and would not jeopardise their hard work. 

• Objectors suggest the development would 'urbanise' the park, especially at night; the 
park is regularly used at night, especially in the spring and summer months.  

• The Lakeside centre is already visible from places in the park. 

• The park is surrounded by major roads so this addition is hardly ruining a countryside 
vista. 

• The benefits really do outweigh the concerns from what I have seen of the plans and 
speaking to other members of the public. 

• NPT has addressed the environmental impact. 

• The experts have looked over all of the wildlife impact data and found it to be negligible.  

• Very sad to see so much negativity towards a development that has the community’s 
best interests at heart. 

• I believe due diligence has been done, and we are ready for this change. 

• Concerns have been raised on the impact on nature, however climbers do care about 
nature.  

• I do not think it would be out of place in Ferry meadows, 

• The sport is popular with young people - a group that is under-represented in terms of 
visits to Ferry Meadows.  

• The park is easily accessible from the city centre and would be an addition to the leisure 
options for young people in the city.  

• It would be fantastic to see this travel reduced, by local residents climbing more locally.  

• This type of development and investment in the city is much needed.  

• I feel the plans have sensitively taken into account all local wildlife and ecological 
sensitivity as best as possible. 

• The design of the building is sympathetic to the local surroundings and works well with 
the existing architecture.  
I feel that Nene Parks responses to the opposing comments will not be registered or 
acknowledged by some people.  

• Ferry Meadows is not a nature reserve as it keeps getting titled. It was only a by-product 
of housing being built in the 70's and was created for the community.  Many people were 
against these houses being built and therefore against Ferry Meadows being created.  

• Many people were against the new café/visitor centre; but now use them and praise 
them. 

• Ferry Meadows is a reclaimed quarry that has been regenerated for the health and 
leisure of the local community.  

• Exercise facilities are for the benefit of all in terms of well-being. 

141



• The proposal would prove far more beneficial than detrimental. 

• The fact that the Centre would also have a place for children to play will only add to the 
appeal of it, especially for families. 

• The proposed venue encourages physical activity therefore increasing both physical and 
mental well being of its users. 
There is plenty of space at the proposed site for this build and currently the space being 
proposed for a new carpark, is used as an overflow anyway. 

• Peterborough is crying out for more outdoor activities for all, especially children.  

• Many in the community would be able to try climbing for the first time and it could also 
inspire a future Olympic climber from Peterborough.  

• The site is not a pristine wildlife location, it is man-made and this building will be next to 
the existing leisure facilities.  

• Climbers should breathe clean air so the wall should not be in the city, the 
river/meadows and lake setting is perfect for this.  

• As a child I sailed at the site and would have really appreciated a climbing facility.  

• Those offended this building have the entire "Nene Way" to enjoy, those who enjoy more 
adventurous pursuits like climbing, canoeing or skydiving should also be given facilities 
here.  

• Those complaining about the building ruining the view would to be actively looking for it.  

• An excellent opportunity to get more people out of their homes, children interacting with 
other children rather than on their phones and tablets. 

• It’s an excellent way to help sustain the park from loss and likely having to sell land for 
development in order to raise funds.  

• This wall would have unique qualities in this settings, and is really hard to find other sport 
than climbing that is so strongly woven into nature fabric.  

• So many climbers start from the safety of the walls to venture in to wildest environments 
on this planet, 

• Ferry Meadows should use their open spaces for activities such as zip wires, assault 
courses, inflatable water parks.  

• Fully support the work at ferry meadows, our favourite place to be on our doorstep, keep 
up the good work. 

• Being so close to the A1 will no doubt attract climbers from far and wide. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

142



Third round of consultation – January 2021 
 
Comments objecting: 
 
The Principle of development 

• Ferry Meadows was gifted to the residents of Peterborough – christened the green lungs 

of the City – providing outdoor space and nature. 

• Please respect our gift from the previously wise and long sighted Council. 

• The 1988 Covenant from the PDC required NPT to maintain existing Flora and Fauna. The 

building and car park in the meadow does not comply. 

• The Covenant 1988 does not state anything about all year round recreation. 

• This temptation to maximise the value of an asset will be to the detriment of the original 

intention of the PDC. 

• This proposal is not in keeping with the idea of a Country Park (1966 White Paper) & 

government money to PDC to create one is being disregarded. 

• This is our only Nature park built with government money to create Country Parks as 

escapes from urban life i.e. buildings. 

• The park was bequeathed to the people of Peterborough not nationwide. 

• It was never meant to draw in hordes of outsiders. The park is simply too small for this. 

• A few years ago, the then chief exec submitted plans to turn it into an outdoor events 

venue. Thankfully, this was rejected. 

• Disappointed at the NPT for putting money before welfare of citizens of Peterborough. 

• It is not a theme park/sports centre. 

• This is not something the park is lacking. 

• NPT are going to build their new playground so effectively that whole part of the park will 

be gone. 

• NPT have already allowed inappropriate development there as stated by Lockhart Garretts 

findings. 

• The logs, signs, flood lit pay machines, light pollution can one day be reversed, but a 35m 

tall building cannot. 

• NPT raison d'etre was clear to them when they wrote their plan for the next 33 years. 

Unfortunately, within just a year or two, they had forgotten their ideals. 

• No one with a heart for the great green outdoors/wildlife would agree to it being built 

here. 

• This monstrous building must not be approved for development anywhere in Nene Park 

let alone near Gunwade Lake, probably the most beautiful area in the City. 

• It would destroy the heart and glorious much loved area everyone enjoys for a building 

for indoor use. 

• The proposal to build a monstrosity of a building within an open green space is utter 

madness. 

• This is a gym with meeting/entertainment rooms and café. It has nothing to do with nature, 

de-stressing in the fresh air and relaxation. 

• The usage of a few climbing enthusiasts should not outweigh the needs of a larger majority 

who use the park. 

• It will displace users of the park in favour of elite climbers with no interest in the location. 

• The café and indoor children's play area duplicate existing facilities. 

• It will most likely only be used by the few who are able to afford the entrance fee. 

• There should be less space for cars and more facilities for encouraging walking and cycling 

and enjoying this beautiful green meadow. 

143



• Why would you actively choose to cover its central, most scenic meadow with car parking? 

• Far too much development for a nature reserve forgetting the flora and fauna that will be 

impacted by these developments. 

• The play facilities for the children are excellent.  Children are more than well catered for - 

there's no need for a 34m high climbing wall.  

• There is a climbing wall less than 30 miles away at Rushden Lakes. 

• We have a climbing wall centre in Bretton and the portable ones at Ferry Meadows are 

ok as they can be moved. 

• This is a commercial project that will have huge detrimental effect on the whole of Nene 

Park. 

• Ferry Meadows already has enough visitors and should not be further developed 

commercially.  

• The area is already busy with new housing estates being developed. 

• Ferry Meadows is far too small to accommodate this planned monstrosity, it is no Rutland 

Water. 

• If this is given the green light, can we have another park that will have less traffic and more 

space for a diverse public? 

• During the current pandemic people have visited the park and it is already overcrowded – 

more outdoor space is needed. 

• The pandemic has taught the nation to value open green spaces and the Park has played 

its part in providing outdoor recreation in these difficult times. 

• NPT now has a new description for the park, 'The Lakeside International Activity Centre' - 

rings alarm bells for anyone who appreciates the tranquillity, close proximity to nature and 

'countryside on your doorstep' appeal of Ferry Meadows. 

• Where are the spectator facilities, or will these form part two of the plans to be submitted 

at a later date? Where will it end once the precedent is set? 

• Peterborough's population has doubled since Ferry Meadows was opened in 1978. With 

200,000+ people, Peterborough needs more attractive, accessible green spaces than is 

currently on offer. 

• Although the popularity of indoor climbing is increasing, it remains a very niche sport. 

• Has NPT sought the opinion of climbers?  An article on climbing.co.uk about the plans was 

met with dismay. 

• Why can you not build it (if necessary) behind the trees making use of the green space. 

• The application is completely at odds with the Local Plan. 

• A decision in favour would signal the beginning of the end for our local 'country' park - a 

park which is a haven holding back the urban sprawl of Peterborough. 

• Peterborough will not benefit from the climbing wall. 

• Peterborough City Council see no value in Ferry Meadows, other than as an opportunity 

for short term financial gain, at the expense of Peterborough residents enjoyment. 

• This wonderful parkland should be vigorously protected for future generations of 

Peterborians to enjoy. 

• Peterborough is a growing city and deserves better care to be taken of this precious "green 

lung" on behalf of all its citizens and visitors. 

• Granting permission to build this incongruous white elephant would only serve to cement 

the city's risible 'Peter-bog-horror' status for many years to come. 

• The start of the park's decent into commercialised theme park status. 

• The area is appreciated by many and indicated in the twenty eight pages of comments 

from the public. 

144



• This is not required and will destroy more of the park. Removing green areas for building 

and further car parks. 

• Covid19 has brought into cold, stark reality. Unlike the outdoors, climbing walls and 

indoor gyms are breeding grounds for germs, with their closure being recommended 

before other public spaces.  

• Is building a poorly-ventilated, indoor sports centre opportune and a priority when more 

accessible, outdoor spaces are in highest demand and of greater health benefits for 

everyone? 

• It is shocking to read that the proposal would need to be serviced by 31 staff indicating 

the proposal would be create far more than the minimum level of intrusion as originally 

suggested. 

Character and Visual Amenity 

• The idea of this permanent structure is horrid as it will look horrendous. 

• The proposal is totally out of keeping with its surroundings. 

• It will overshadow and demean Ferry Meadows Country park it will take away the feeling 

of freedom that currently exists at this location. 

• It will dominate the landscape similar to the Ski slope at Milton Keynes. Peterborough 

has spent years removing the brick and sugar beet chimneys from the skyline and is 

about to replace it with this monstrous obscene structure. 

• It's far too tall for a country park and will distort the beauty of the site. 

• It is a bulky building totally out of scale with the setting and character of the area. 

• The significant introduction of tarmac is out of keeping with Ferry Meadows and 

incongruous. 

• Additional changes/planning proposals which are significant and we would challenge that 

these are not just ‘tweaks’, but significant in there own right ! 

• The building will be at least 10m taller than the tallest of the surrounding trees. 

• The structure would be by far the tallest structure in the local area - it’s not a  place for 

an ugly sky scraping climbing wall! 

• The elevation gives a false sense of the size of the Building/Tower – show 5 people 

standing would be to the top of the tower in fact it is 18 people. Not in proportion.  

• The access road is threatened to be “improved” creating an urban landscape and 

destroying the safety of the wildlife in this beautiful location. 

• Why would you put a huge gym that will dominate the skyline of our only country park, 

dwarf and literally over-shadow its largest area of water and open space?  

• It still looks like someone has upended a stealth bomber in the middle of Ferry Meadows.  

• Negative impact on the natural, undeveloped look of the majority of Ferry Meadows. 

• The tallest climbing tower in the world - Klimcentrum Bjreks in Gronigen – has a slim 

sculptural tower standing alone weighing 50 tons with a one metre thick concrete wall -  

Shows the scale of such a building. 

Landscape Visual Impact 

• The height of the structure will stand out like an eyesore and degrade the visual aspect 

of our park. 

• The bright red illuminated trapezoid will be seen from within the park and its surroundings, 

along with the lighting well after dark. 

• The building will be seen for miles. 

• It will destroy the vistas and beauty of Nene Park 

• This large building is not appropriate for a conservation area.  

145



• The building of this monstrous tower which will blight the views across Gunwade lake will 

ruin the park for many visitors. 

• Have they learnt nothing from the old Thomas Cook building still an eyesore after all 

these years? 

• It will be an unwelcome distraction to our beautiful valley. 

• The Excalibur climbing wall in Holland is slightly taller at 37m but does give a more 

realistic comparison of the impact of the NPT build in our beautiful natural valley.  

• Further scaled drawings are necessary for you to evaluate fully the space lost and its 

true impact on our landscape. 

• In a country park you expect to see countryside not a 34metre structure. 

• The later opening hours will change the park after dark. 

• If you haven't stood up on the 'Mound' and looked around at the views seeing very little 

built environment you should before it's too late. 

• We are in one of the flattest parts of the country so it’s out of kilter with the surroundings. 

• Overall by virtue of its mass and density it will be too big for this attractive part of the 

Nene Valley. 

• This structure will be within 30ft of the Cathedral's height and therefore be visible for 

miles, and overpower the local countryside views. 

• No one inside will see those views. Everyone outside will see a 34 m tower, not a 

mountain. 

Heritage Asset 

• The revised Heritage Impact Statement (HIS) fails to answer criticisms by Milton Estates 

and the Conservation Officer. 

• The HIS fails to acknowledge or preserve Ferry Meadows and surrounds as a Heritage 

Asset. 

• The HIS states ‘the tower will not be lit at night and has no glazing in its sides’ – it is 

attached to a huge building with fully glazed windows facing the lake.  There will also be 

night climbing outside the building. 

• Lynch Farm is treated as a desk top study; there is no information regarding its position 

as a key entrance point by foot and bike, no photos of the wonderful vistas from the 

bridge. Underestimates the importance of this access point for wildlife, mental and 

physical health and well-being. 

• The published pictures of the future build are very “soft” whereas they will be a very hard 

ugly object in a beautiful landscape and totally out of keeping with their surroundings. 

Design and Appearance 

• The climbing tower is likely to be made of tacky materials – perhaps wood would be 

better. 

• The red material to be used is NOT in keeping with the setting.  

• The tower should, if built, use materials more in keeping with the stone dominant for the 

area and will better blend with the surrounding villages. 

• Everybody else suffers for an incongruous piece of urban design being dropped in a 

natural area. 

Flood Risk 

• Ferry Meadows has a dual purpose to provide parkland and to take excess water from 
the river Nene to help flood protection. 

146



• Where is this flood water going to be diverted to...into more people’s homes along the 
Nene? 

• The flooding in Nene Park has occurred nearly annually. This will increase with climate 
change - warmer summers and wetter winters. 

• No unnecessary building should be constructed in the flood plain. 

• All the area is needed as Flood Plain highlighted by recent flooding December 2020; 
there is no more land available for displaced water.  

• In the recent floods Ferry Meadows was absolutely sodden, Oak Meadow is unfit to 
support parking, the Lakeside car park was totally underwater and the undercroft of the 
Lakeside Cafe is submerged, the board walk built to give access during flooding was totally 
impossible, Ferry Bridge and others standing proud in total isolation from the surrounding 
thoroughfares. 

• Even the areas in the Park designated to take excess flood water are no longer able to 
cope.  

• Due to the regularity of flooding the site is not acceptable for the proposed building. 

• Further development will lead to more of the ground being covered which will inhibit 
drainage.  

• A surface membrane is to be laid over the Car Park area! The constant driving and 
parking on this will lead to compaction and drainage problems.  

• Due to flooding access would not be available all year round. 

• An element of the Waterside building sits at  5.45m to allow level access and does not  
meet EA criteria and has flooded.  EA advised 6m. 

• The building should be set at 6.70m – 700mm higher than the Watersports centre – 
elevations show to be the same level. 

• Because flood plain is 6m then the floor construction can only be 700mm. thick to meet 
criteria. 

• Details of the structure below platform level is essential before planning permission is 
granted. 

• Why build a public facility in a site that is known to be subject to flooding. 

• No details have been presented how access will be afforded to the wall during flood. 

• It is sheer lunacy to tamper with the Flood Plain. Based on what is hoped to gain a 
maximum return for Investors! 

• The statement made that removal of the existing tarmac car park will reduce the 
impermeable area is incorrect.  

• The statement that there will be an 85% reduction in impermeable area is misleading. 

• The proposed surface water runoff rate for the proposed development is 10 l/s, (two 
outfalls, each at 5 l/s) which is far in excess of the equivalent Greenfield runoff rate 
(estimated to be 0.33 l/s in the FRA), thereby increasing the risk of downstream flooding. 

• Section 8.2.1 and Appendix E: The indicative stormwater attenuation calculations use a 
climate change factor of +20%. Elsewhere in the FRA, a design life of 50 years is stated. 
According to the current GOV .UK climate change recommendations, the applicable 
Upper End climate change rainfall allowance for facilities with a design live in the years 
2070 to 2115 should be +40%. 

• Section 8.2.1 and Appendix E: The existing ground levels under the footprint of the 
proposed car park show a fall of approximately 300mm across the length of the car park. 
No information has been provided to demonstrate that the proposed means of surface 
water attenuation storage under the car park is viable without impact upon the Scheduled 
Monument that lies under the car park. 

• Section 8.2.1 and Appendix E: Consideration has not been given to the affect of 
submerged outfalls to the surface water drainage to the proposed building and car park. 

• Ferry Meadows park manager has quoted in the ET that flooding is the worst he has 
seen. 

 

147



Location 
 

• This is an inappropriate location for this type of business. 

• Several alternative sites have been suggested but all appeared to have been met with a 
silence. 

• There are lots of more suitable brownfield sites that could be better utilised with better 
parking and service facilities. 

• The Whitworth flour mill sale fell through – this could be an appropriate/viable site.  
Apparently there are other plans for it. 

• A plot on Alwalton Hill was recommended by Milton Estates – this site would be 
appropriate.  It is not Nene Park land, a deal could probably have been done. 

• Splash Lane site which is currently part of Nene Park has always been an obvious 
choice. 

• Why have none of the many local empty Industrial sites ever been considered? 

• Most other Climbing Walls are built on industrial sites. There isn’t one in a country park. 

• In Edinburgh there is one in an old Quarry thus affording buildings of such height to be 
as discreet as possible. 

• The obvious siting would be along the Embankment – parking is more accessible.  There 
is also the University Campus developments and better access for the students. 

• This is an urban sport and should be in an urban area with close access by bus, train, 
cycle as well as the car. 

• It would be better suited in a setting such as the Showground. 

• The rowing lake would be a more suitable location with superior road and public access. 

• Sequential Testing which eg brought up a site near Woodhall Spa , Lincs -approx 50-60 
miles away, this makes a mockery of this process. 

• Why not tack a climbing wall to the side of the new swimming pool? 

• This poor, lacking 2nd attempt at Sequential Testing demonstrates that NPT has always 
wanted this project in the heart of Ferry Meadows.  

• Revised Sequential testing has given no in depth reasons why other site are not suitable 
and sites omitted. We would question how seriously this legal requirement has been 
taken by NPT. 

• The sequential test states NPT is a charitable organisation, would be unable to justify the 
purchase of the required site… this is not a reason to justify suitability of a site. 

• The conclusions of Suitability/Viability rule-out virtually all of the main city and district 
sites. 

• Will your office be conducting their own Sequential Test or commissioning an 
independent one that truly gives an unbiased view regarding Alternative Sites? 

• There is a site WNW of Lynch Bridge, among the conifers. 

• There is an area immediate.SE of overflow car park at Orton Meadows NVR Station 

• There is a site NW of Dragonfly Hotel, NE of Thorpe Meadows car park. 

• One of the sequential test criteria is the site should include a "suitably attractive location" 
to attract a ”national scale operator in the leisure sector” - I question this as a consideration. 

• Clearly NPT and PCC have made statements about areas of land, owned by PCC. The 
intention is for NPT to look after some of these Lands on behalf of PCC.  This opens up 
opportunities of more appropriate sites for the Climbing Wall. 

 
Highways 

• The transport statement does not take in to account the increased traffic on Ham Lane 

and it's junctions at times when events take place in Ferry Meadows.  

• The figures for traffic entering Ham Lane took no account of traffic entering fom the slip 

road, only from the roundabout so are incorrect. 

148



• The audience they are seeking to attract from further afield will arrive by car or van into a 

venue unable to support that volume of traffic causing chaos to the surrounding area. 

• Ham lane provides the only road access to the park and not fit for purpose to handle the 

increase in traffic. 

• During events large volumes of traffic enter and leave the park on this narrow road for 

example the Bonfire Night fireworks display.  The road is not capable of handling the 

volume of traffic resulting from hosting competitions. 

• Ham Lane is not really big enough to take large lorries that will be used back and forth to 

the site. 

• On a busy day in summer the park and local infrastructure cannot cope with the traffic 

without extra visitors/spectators.  

• Trip generator information still limited. There is no inclusion of Caravan/ Motorhome site. 

• TA does not take account of parking on residential streets.  The impact on local roads 

has not been surveyed. 

• Local residents will be inundated by yet more parked cars causing dangerous hazards 

on the local streets. 

• Park users (runners, walkers, dog walkers, bird watchers) already park on the local side 

roads which is more of an issue since the higher parking charges were introduced.  

• The issues raised by local residents of increased road traffic over extended hours has 

not been addressed. 

• The road into Ferry Meadows itself, by the barriers, and to the proposed site is really 

only big enough for two cars to pass safely, but even then sometimes one has to give 

way. 

• Restricted access due to congestion for emergency services would be a concern. 

• Deterioration of the environment within the park for pedestrians. 

• There is concern is for traffic in and out of Cherryfields onto Ham Lane. 

• Concern for pedestrians crossing Ham Lane. 

• 100 Northgate Homes to be built, 650 new homes to be built on Showground, 94 Flats to 

be built on Business Park all to be built along Oundle rd , the only access Road to our 

Country Park. 

• We undertook our own traffic census on Oundle Rd which is on the Planning Portal and 

was accurate at the time of undertaking. This does not reflect the increased numbers 

from future developments. 

• The photo on the front cover of the TA  shows a cyclist and a Bus Stop , but not one 

Vehicle.  This is not on Oundle Rd, it is therefore misleading and portrays a highway that 

is vehicle free. 

• No public transport comes within a mile of the proposed location, in the middle of the 

park and is difficult to reach outside daylight hours. 

• The distance from the nearest bus stops to the proposed development by existing 

footpaths is approximately 1.8km, not 900m as stated in the revised TA Travel Plan. This 

would be to the Visitor Centre. 

• The TA does not include information or consideration of the transport implications and  

impact of "widening of current access track”. 

• The comparison with a climbing wall in Milton Keynes is not comparable in any form e g 

size , location etc.  and is unlikely to attract the same volume of traffic /spectator numbers. 

Access Road to Lakeside 

• The access road to Ferry Meadows would not cope with having the extra traffic all year 

round, it would be chaotic. 

149



• There is still no consideration given to the access road from the barriers at Ham Lane 

and the site. 

• The access road should be included in the red line area. 

• This is a narrow country style lane without kerbs, at dusk and into the evening it will be 

essential that car headlights are used. 

• So more local traffic is to be expected, using the existing minor roads, creating more 

traffic issues and possible congestion.  

• It is proposed to widen the access road presumably it will be wide enough for two cars to 

pass? 

• The access road will need widening adding further damage to the environment. 

Car Parking 

• Existing car parking is already under strain at times and inadequate. 

• The overflow parking area has already altered the freedom of users of the meadow. 

• The overflow car park will need to be moved; it will still be needed during summer 

season. 

• What material will be used? presumably of a tarmac nature? 

• We have no doubt the rest of Oak Meadow is planned to go the same way. 

• Parking in residential streets is likely to become a significant issue. 

• Cars are being left parked on the grass verges along Wistow Way and in the local 

streets. 

Landscape Implications 

• The proposal will necessitate the destruction of trees. 

• Planting saplings as a replacement is a joke and rare ‘unkept nature’ of scrub bushes 

much loved by the bats, a variety of small birds and nightingales who returned this year 

after 25 years. 

• New saplings will take time to afford the properties that this established area is currently 

undertaking. 

• Oak Wood and other areas of trees are in danger of being destroyed, habitats will be 

lost. 

• Car parking on Oak Meadow would in time, see the death of the Oak trees by driving 

over the roots. 

• Ancient oak trees that have already been cited as bat roosts being destroyed or 

disturbed! 

• How long before the car park extends as far as the veteran tree in the meadow and puts 

that under threat? 

• Oak Meadow has also been excluded from a wildlife study. Pollinators are so precious 

and for us to ignore is at our peril, we are being continually warned.  

• Oak Meadow is waterlogged in winter and is unsustainable as a car park, even with the 

new surface. 

• The mature, established trees/hedgerows to be removed are perfectly healthy - we are 

qualified to state this. 

• The trees/hedgerow are valuable assets; they clean the air, provide shelter and food for 

wildlife with so many other properties. 

• The road widening proposal will further chips away at the green space. 

 

 

150



Wildlife Implications 

• No mention of Dr Stebbings (Bat Expert) report on how crucial the lake and surrounding 

areas are to bats.  This should be acknowledged. 

• Dr Stebbings should be consulted as his expertise is crucial. 

• The facility will be open at night and lit when the park has been closed at night for 40 

years to protect nocturnal wildlife.  

• Natural darkness has protected the wildlife and park from anti-social behaviour that sadly 

is rife in parts of the Ortons and spreading.  

• Better parking and more function rooms will destroy nocturnal wildlife. 

• I was told by NPT that there were no protected species in the area when I showed 

concern about the Bats.  

• Bat protection in itself should stop this proposal as the evidence is clear that legally this 

area should be protected. 

• Lockhart Garrett state that rare bats feeding and foraging by Gunwade is less than the 

other lakes due to existing development – by law this should not be happening and NPT 

are culpable. 

• Bright lighting recently installed at Sailability is not appropriate for bat survival.  NPT 

have been assigned in the Covenant as protectors of wildlife.  

• The Pay Machines throughout the Park have been lit up – fails to protect nocturnal wildlife 

and Bats.  

• Failure to protect Flora and Fauna is against the ethos and has upset the PDC Chief 

Architect and others who were integral in this forward thinking protection. 

• Lighting has still not been addressed.  

• 0.5 Lux as proposed by NPT is 100 times too bright for Bat survival as stated in Dr 

Stebbings report. 

• Light spillage on the lake, meadow, scrub with lighting at floor level of under 0.005 Lux 

has still not been addressed. 

• How can the car park on oak meadow operate with this conflict?  

• NPT have been given more than the required time to address issues. 

• The eastern elevation has a tall glazed screen to eaves. This building sits a minimum of 

1.5m above the existing car park level, in the evening will cause excessive light. 

• Similarly the west entrance is glazed and south elevation has considerable glazing. 

• I consider that an independent accessor be appointed to monitor wildlife particularly 

Nocturnal wildlife and the access road should be included in the Red Zone. 

• I cannot see how this will benefit the community or wildlife holistically. 

• The Bat survey and other wildlife surveys are very poor (the Bat survey only being a 

desk top survey using remote sensors). 

• Otters have been plentiful over the last 2 months with sightings of 6 individuals being 

regular.  People doing desk bound reports won't have seen any of them for themselves.  

• Another survey must be done as there are a number of very recent photographs of 

Otters. 

• The report on Otters which states there are no otter in Gunwade Lake is a blatant 

untruth.  The last survey was in 2014 showed only one otter in Gunwade. 

• What will happen to the otters and who will be responsible for ensuring that work is 

suspended? 

• 2019/2020 photographic evidence and NPTs own Facebook site show a family of otters, 

2 rare nightingale in the trees/scrub to be removed for the proposal, osprey over 

Gunwade , Red Kites nesting. 

151



• Otters will be disturbed by months or years of building work, vibrations from hammering-

in of deep pilings, heavy vehicles, noise and light pollution? 

• The construction phase will deter wildlife and once constructed the increased numbers of 

visitors and the extended opening hours will deter the otters and other wildlife from visiting 

the lake. 

• It must show the extent of its urbanisation affecting the Wildlife Corridor between Oak 

Meadow, tree belts. 

• The extra road and lighting at night will cause a massive number of casualties to bat, 

hedgehog and similar protected species. 

• No wildlife/insect study on Oak Meadow has been carried out despite this being rich in 

insects and crucial feeding ground for bats..See Dr Stebbings report. 

• Bat numbers are low - a lot of bat boxes were removed before this application was 

submitted. Probably just a coincidence? 

• Their original Ecology report stated no protected species would be affected and there 

was little wildlife on the site. Claims from opposers including Dr Stebbings Bat Expert 

and info gained from Cambs Bat Group stated this was only true because only the site 

where the wall will be built was considered. 

• I still do not see any reference to the protection of the wildlife and the natural beauty of 

this park which has been of such importance to thousands of visitors especially during 

the lockdown. 

• It will discourage wildlife, Nene Country Park, having encouraged and promoted nature 

and wildlife since inception. 

• This building will require piling and the disturbance will be considerable during 

construction – the CEO terminated Firework Fiesta because of the effect on wildlife 

insisting that local habitats should be preserved. 

• The Lakes are crucial to bat survival especially with the effects of Global Warming of 

extreme wet and dry spells, becoming more pronounced. 

• The Badger Play Park eliminated the scrub barrier between the Park and the Hides. 

• Oak Meadow valued grasslands, the start of our food chain, has been allowed to decline 

- loss of swathes of cowslips. 

• Sand Martins - It has taken 30 years to get Sand Martins to Ferry Meadows they 

frequent the lake next to the proposed structure which will affect all wildlife at the park, 

including butterflies and insects. 

• How does this project do anything other than add to wildlife reduction, by taking out 

hedges and destroying a popular meadow? 

• The Climbing Wall will now be lit up to 300 Lux for the safety of Climbers. 

• Last year Nightingales were nesting in the scrubs adjacent to the area to be developed; 

they have not been reported anywhere else in Ferry Meadows. If this site is developed 

this rare bird will certainly not return. 

• Increased traffic after dusk will lead to light pollution and a threat to the nocturnal animals 

who undoubtedly will be at risk of getting run over. 

• The Trust are making statements about wildlife that are so wide off the mark. 

• BBC news article showing how common place British wildlife is disappearing fast yet the 

NPT and PCC are determined to put a 34,25m high building and huge attached shed in 

the deep heart of our Country Park; and important area for Bats. 

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/science-environment-56212195 

Environment and Pollution 

• The environmental impact would be devastating. 

152



• Why is an Environmental Impact Assessment not being carried out on both areas? 

• Peterborough is an Environment City and declared an Climate Emergency – if permitted 

this stance on the Environment will be nothing more than hot air. 

• If the council approve this they will signal their abandonment of any environmental 

qualities for the city. 

• Increased traffic will add significant vehicle pollution to Ferry Meadows and also to the 

surrounding Residential Area. 

• Increase in pollution  at a time when the World is looking at reducing Carbon Emissions. 

NPT and PCC and Investors only look at MONEY! 

• Stop increased traffic being given priority over hundreds of pedestrians entering the Park 

safely at Lynch Farm Bridge & keeping the carbon footprint low. 

• Paths will need to be lit during the evenings causing light pollution. 

• Light pollution which will adversely affect the dark skies enjoyed in Oak Meadow. 

• This development is an intrusion into a valuable natural green space and is the start of 

its environmental destruction by stealth. 

• Robert Jenrick stated that no EIA was required as NPT had provided him with relevant 

information but if there was a change to this then it would be re-examined.  Bat/Otter 

reports submitted fall short and show a very different picture. Bat need and lighting have 

still not been addressed. Traffic reports are not at busy times and have no regard for the 

imminent future developments. 

• Increase in vehicles will have a huge impact on health see news article 

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/science-environment-56013240 

Users of the Park 

• The car park was established at this location in order to give access to all to enjoy this 

unique vista.  

• Disabled people with both mental and physical problems will be unable to drive to sit in 

their cars and look at the water. Not everyone can get out to walk. 

• The new parking facilities would be too far for some, for whom walking is a challenge. 

• Only the fit and able would be able to relocate to other areas of the park. 

• The car park next to the lake is a joy to a lot of elderly and disabled visitors. They sit 

overlooking the lake as there is always life. 

• The disabled fishermen access will be barred. 

• The proposed monstrosity will cast a wind shadow for over three hundred and forty 

metres, or over one thousand feet. 

• We walk in the park everyday - this building will ruin what we have enjoyed for many 

years.  

• Further urbanisation of the park will have a detrimental effect on the well-being of the 

communities surrounding the park and that of the existing users. 

• Ferry Meadows provides a natural space for people to walk, run and cycle in the open 

air, why spoil it by erecting this huge monolith which will detract from the natural beauty 

of the park and be visible from most of the park and surrounding area. 

• The field which is used a lot by dog walkers, young families etc enjoying the open space 

and fresh air during the summer months will be lost to a car park. 

• the impact upon the local residents and visitors who use the park on a regular basis 

seems to have been completely ignored. 

• The footpaths are not wide enough and at busy times are crowded and unsafe due to 

cyclists, prams, dogs, etc; further visitors will exacerbate this problem. 

 

153



Health and Wellbeing 

• The park is a fantastic green space allowing Peterborough residents to escape the 

confines of work and latterly the impact of Covid19. 

• We are constantly told of the health benefits of getting out and enjoying open spaces and 

nature, so where is the sense in taking some of that away. 

• It is important for People’s Mental Health to just get away from man- made Entertainment 

• To be able to get OUT and walk, run, cycle and play has been vital for our wellbeing 

particularly during this pandemic and continues to be so as it's not going away. 

 

Neighbouring Amenity 

• The noise pollution from people leaving late at night would not be fair on those living 

alongside Ham Lane. 

• As a resident off Ham Lane I see no reference to how the increase of traffic is going to 

affect the ease of access, increased noise levels, light pollution of the local residents 

who are already having to deal with vehicles parked on the residential road restricting 

access to residents driveways and emergency services. 

• During the pandemic we’ve seen increased numbers visiting the park and it’s become a 

nightmare already for local residents’ safety. 

• It has been noticeable in recent months that visitors choose to park on Wistow Way and 

in adjacent roads instead of paying for parking at Ferry Meadows. It is highly likely that 

this will be exacerbated by these plans. 

• The proposals will lead to an increase in traffic and significantly so during planned 

competitions/events in what is primarily a residential area. 

Security 

• The report fails to address security issues – conflict between 0.05Lux lighting that 

Cambs Police say is necessary for face identification with CCTV and Dr Stebbings report 

that says no light spillage. 

• Who is going to police the area of an evening? Will Nene Park Staff be required to stay 

on duty to ensure that people leave the building? 

• It will also attract the antisocial behaviour of vandalism and drugs to the heart of our 

Park. 

• The Park would find it near impossible to keep people out. 

Precedent 

• The proposal would set a dangerous precedent allowing further developments at Ferry 

Meadows. 

• To pass these proposals opens the floodgates to further radical changes likely to follow 

that either do not require Planning Permission so will go ahead or would be seen as a 

natural progression by Nene Park Trust e.g. the widening of the access road 

• In years to come we will see the surrounding area dominated by living accommodation of 

equivalent heights. 

Public Consultation 

• NPT never consulted the Park Users on the climbing wall facility. 

• From the outset, their communication of their plan was covert. There were no obviously 

visible signs around the park nor on social media, no plans or requests for feedback.  

154



• NPT did not actively welcome or encourage its plans to be examined and debated. 

• When you ask park users even now about the proposed development, the majority, know 

nothing of the plans and are horrified when told about them.  

• Such a major development as this should not really be progressed in these difficult 

times. Previously we have been able to meet with neighbours and visitors to the Park to 

discuss the plans and now we cannot. 

• I ask that you suspend this application until the major Pandemic restrictions have ended. 

• If you continue with processing this application at the present time you will be in breach 

of Local Government Association guidance regarding handling planning matters during 

the COVID-19 Pandemic.  

• If there is such a local and national demand for the facility in Ferry Meadows, why did the 

plans not receive an overwhelming chorus of approval? 

• NPT should undertake a more open and extensive  Public Consultation Program based 

on their “true” Proposal to create an International Climbing Centre in the centre of 

Peterborough’s Country Park. 

• There are currently around the 6000 Objections on Change .org Petition  

• It is evident from the public who use the park and those who live locally that we don't 

want it but those views will no doubt not be considered. 

• This facility is not wanted by the locals who use the park on a regular basis. 

• The only comments I can see in favour are from climbers who do not live nearby and so 

have no concept of the outrage of people who actually live here, who love this place for 

its unspoilt space. 

• There is an online petition with 4000 name and a house to house petition with 1500 

names 

• All residents of the city should have been consulted. 

• The Change .org figures of objection should be accepted under these circumstances as 

how else are we as residents able to undertake to inform people in what effectively is a 

Public Consultation? 

 

Viability 

• The cost of this development is estimated to be in excess of nine million pounds without 

the requirement to carry out work to the access road. 

• Will enough people (from anywhere) actually use it to make a return sufficient to keep it 

running without continual financial support, to the detriment of the rest of the facilities of 

the park? 

• Can the Trust afford to build it without risking financial ruin? 

• There is not the slightest guarantee - or indication - that the development will be 

profitable. 

• What happens when the popularity wains it will fall into disrepair, you can hardly re-

purpose it. 

• The building is very purpose-specific. Should the facility turn out not to be economically 

viable in the future, the park will be left with an empty building that could not be 

practically used for another purpose. 

• The people of Peterborough will be left to foot bill when this White Elephant falls due to 

lack of patronage. 

• I do not think that climbing will be a profitable long term. 

155



• This is a niche sport and I suspect all those local families commenting positively will be 

unlikely to use it more than once or twice as I would be amazed if it was affordable for 

the majority of the Peterborough demographic. 

Conflict of Interest 

• The CEO for Nene Trust, Chair of new Town Planning Board and Independent director of 

BMC is seen by many as having a Conflict of interest and this needs investigating. 

• It is our understanding that a Committee was ‘ picked’ to put together a list of Projects for 

funding from the Town Fund Bid   On this ‘shopping list ‘ of Projects was the International 

Climbing Wall. 

• This goes against NPT ‘s own declaration “no expense to the Taxpayer" 

• It would appear that NPT and PCC have pre-empted the Planning process. 

• PCC Councillors are on this Board as representatives of PCC and the residents of 

Peterborough,  however as a resident I am unaware of any information relating to NPT 

that I have ever been able to access. How can our Councillors represent me on this 

Board to which I have no access whatsoever? 

• The project is being championed by a particular senior individual working for the trust 

who has a personal passion for this climbing activity. 

• The statements are hypocritical as they are asking for funding to help create a huge 

building, plonked in the middle of the biggest, best green, unpolluted space in the district. 

• Why would anyone give funding for a commercial business that is very likely to be closed 

due to flooding for several weeks every year? 

Construction 

• During the construction it will be noisy, dirty, dusty and an eyesore for months and 

months. 

• The fact that the area is going to be churned up for months on end will not help anyone, 

especially the Lakeside Bar and Restaurant and the Watersport's Centre. They will suffer 

further loss of revenue (as if they haven't lost enough in the past year owing to Covid). 

Misc 

• Surely you have enough information and have given the Trust adequate time for 

consideration of the application? 

• This proposal should not be passed and no further time allowance allowed due to the 

number and complexity of issues. 

• I cannot believe a Parish Councillor has supported this...have they not seen all the 

objections of Local people? 

• Natural England not objecting or Peterborough council does make one wonder who’s 

pulling strings to get this monster passed. 

• Also some of the councillors that are listed as contacts for this project are not interested 

in doing anything or listening to their constituents with one saying " nothing to do with her 

as she’s not on that committee”. 

• Long standing open hours of the park were amended to be "more suitable" for this 

commercial activity are all indicative sadly of NPTs lack of providing real facts just so this 

project can go through. 

• No doubt big business and forces unknown will win the day and the director will once 

again get his way, just as he did with the sailing centre. 

• The Towns Fund will fund this project. This is an inappropriate use of funds intended for 

the city centre. 

156



• I wish to draw notice of officers to the drawings that show the method of cleaning of the 

glazing at high level - wheeled vehicle with extending arm and platform similar to that 

used by street lighting engineers. Has the platform been designed for such a vehicle? 

• The park needs looking after properly, we local stakeholders need to find a more-

trustworthy guardian to look after the wildlife and habitats too.  

• The management of this huge, far reaching project should raise concerns for the public 

and residents of the local area. 

• We are not aware that the International and National status issues are referred are in the 

Planning Proposals. 

• The majority of comments supporting this monstrosity are from people who do not live 

locally, these comments should be disregarded as the knock-on effect of this 

development will have little impact on these people. 

• All their 'official report' responses fail to actually address the plans' fundamental flaws’, 

which feedback from the public has highlighted. 

• Towns Fund described as LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL CLIMBING CENTRE” .A 

somewhat different proposition and clearly intended to attract climbers and spectators 

nationally and internationally. 

• With all the objections -  the ET has reported that the New Town Fund money is paying 

for this, and NPT are already looking at renaming FERRY MEADOWS.  

• I have contacted numerous councillors and gotten no answers, but one who is listed as a 

contact on this portal said she can do nothing as she has nothing to do with the planning 

department. 

• So not only should this proposal be considered by the Planning Dept, but also by the 

whole of the Peterborough City Council  Councillors. 

• Some of the reports submitted are desktop exercises and are lacking. 

• We were surprised and quite shocked to hear £8m is being proposed for the climbing 

pyramid at ferry meadows. Does the council think this amount of money is substantiated 

under the current circumstances? 

• Councillors should think long and hard about this development as it will impact the 

likelihood of their re-election. The council should stop Nene park from committing rural 

vandalism. 

• My strong protests to save the park from Climbing Wall resulted in termination of my  

volunteering. 

• Statements in the press NPT are inaccurate. 

• It is very worrying that the Trustees supporting the proposal have recently stated the site 

was chosen so there was minimal impact on landscape and wildlife. 

• I notice all the trustees have suddenly woken up, and old members of the climbing wall in 

Peterborough that closed, supporting the proposal. 

• Most supporting the proposal do not live on door step or near our country park; climbing 

members not interested in the wildlife, trees meadows that are going to be lost, etc. 

• If  the New Town Fund are looking to pay for this then surely the Council can come up 

with a more appropriate site. 

• Supporters state no rationale as to why they 'support' this proposal.  

 

Comments in support: 

• Peterborough really needs this incredibly important project.  

• Great asset for Peterborough city and the whole Cambridgeshire area. 

• This facility will put Peterborough 'on the map'. 

157



• It will give the city another unique, iconic attraction.  

• It will be a significant boost to the Peterborough leisure scene – a superb new 

opportunity for recreation, leisure, sport and educational activities all year round.  

• This is particularly important for a rapidly growing population and will enable residents to 

lead more active and healthy lifestyles. 

• It must be the only city in the UK without a climbing wall; important for a university city, a 

lot of climbers start at university.  

• It will be a major enhancement to the visitor experience at our unique country park and to 

the wider community and heritage of Peterborough. 

• We need more places where people can go and try out new activities like climbing. 

• It will be of Olympic standard with a speed climbing wall; the only other centres with this 
offer are Sheffield and Edinburgh meaning this centre will could become a training centre 
for future Olympians! 

• With the loss of the only wall in Peterborough there is now a greater need than ever; this 
has been a big loss to the climbing community and we need a new and better facility. 

• The old wall at Bretton Gate was great but this will really help bring people in from all 

over East Anglia and further afield. 

• I was the joint owner of the Peterborough Climbing Wall that had to close; at the time we 

had over 20,000 registered climbers and visits from schools, colleges, etc who now have 

nowhere local to climb; the nearest decent climbing walls being over 45+ miles away. 

• Children are now denied the experience and thrill of climbing because schools do not 

have the time nor money to make a round trip of 90+ miles to visit another city. 

• The climbing wall offered many young people from all backgrounds the opportunity to 

participate.  

• The 200 member club is very supportive of this enhanced facility so that they can carry 

on their important work with young people.  

• Peterborough Mountaineering Club founded in 1954 will find new home. 

• A lot of climbers start off at a climbing centre. 

• The increase in participation over the last few years has been fantastic, especially as 

women's involvement has grown. 

• Our nearest options are at the peak district or indoors at Northampton, unfortunately this 

makes it quite inaccessible and only possible at weekends, and at a significant petrol 

cost. 

• After being safely shut up in houses for a year, people need activities to reawaken their 

adventure and fitness and this would be ideal! 

• With the pandemic and not being able to train and see friends, it's left me with a sport I 

cannot enjoy, ultimately affecting my mental health.  

• When we can have a local centre to climb within again will be hugely appreciated. 

• Northampton wall has kids clubs, youth groups, basically all age ranges using it, and it's 

great exercise for the body and mind. 

• People of all ages, classes and abilities can participate. I have taught people from Sense 

(deaf & blind), the disabled; sometimes managing to get wheelchairs up the wall. 

• Peterborough has a reasonably large BAME population and anything that encourages all 

children to try the outdoor life should be supported. 

• People already travel from afar to Ferry Meadows. 

• Whilst aware of the impact of more visitors, expansion of parking will aid the problem of 

vehicles parking in the surrounding streets. 

• Given proper management and regulation this development should be approved. 

• Climbing is an activity that can be enjoyed by a wide range of people.  

158



• The services planned will be inclusive and cater for all levels of ability from novice to 

expert.  

• Climbing is a great form of exercise combining strength, agility and flexibility. It also has 

mentally challenging and problem solving aspects which are key for a young person’s 

growth. 

• Indoor climbing is an extremely sociable and effective exercise and great fun.  

• Climbing is a sport for absolutely everybody; young and not so young.  

• I really hope this goes ahead. 

• There are very few sport which catapult youngsters to nature like climbing.  

• Teenagers and children could have a lifelong sport, exercise, and close friends. 

• I have recently tried climbing again and fallen in love with the sport. 

• There is something very natural and social to it of conquering fears, having something 

achievable for anyone, and trust in a companion. 

• Bring ferry meadows back to what it once was.  

• It will be of national significance and its situation by the lakeside next to other activity 

centres is ideal.  

• By having a centre within a country park will highlight the importance of nature to more 

and more people.  

• The climbing centre will also introduce the park to visitors who weren't otherwise aware 

of it's existence before visiting the climbing centre. 

• Those who take up climbing because of this amazing new facility will have their eyes 

opened to the surroundings and possibly would have never even thought about playing a 

part in cleaning up other peoples’ rubbish. 

• It will create new jobs and add a boost to the local economy. 

• This is another example of the way in which the Trust is using vision to improve the area.  

• The proposed Centre is a key element to the Trust's 2050 vision and 10 year masterplan.  

• We are fortunate to have an organisation like Nene Park Trust that has the money to 

make an investment like this.  

• We trust NPT to execute the task with sensitivity to the surrounding nature. 

• NPT is a registered charity and reliant of funds; it will generate much needed income 

which will be reinvested in the park. 

• NPT have gone to great lengths to minimize impact and improve biodiversity in the area. 

• Great care and attention has been given to identifying the right location to ensure the 

landscape and wildlife will be protected, preserved and enhanced. 

• If this project does not go ahead, other commercial companies will step in and fill the 

obvious gap with inferior centres, catering for far fewer people and contribute nothing to 

the desirability of Peterborough.  

• Climbers have a great respect for nature. We litter pick on our way to and from the crag, 

we are sensitive about how much noise we make and leave no trace. 

• We support full heartedly provided there is restricted parking on Cherryfields to avoid 

congestion on these roads. 

• As a disabled parent I would comment on the inclusive nature of the location which has 

fully accessible parking which can be paid for, online, once home; often such activities 

are located in city centres where parking is inaccessible for disabled drivers (with upper 

limb disabilities it is impossible to use parking meters, parking apps and negotiate 

automatic parking barriers).  

• These venues are often in isolated areas of the city away from other activities suitable for 

the other children in the family. 

159



• Ferry Meadows is accessible area and enjoyable for all age groups and abilities it will 

make for a very relaxing and enjoyable day out for all members of a family group 

whether disabled and not. 

• Climbers are a very respectful bunch in general and I do not agree with the comments 

voicing concerns over potential loitering and abusing of the beautiful surrounding area at 

Nene Park. 

• The council should grant planning permission as soon as possible and not delay any 

further. 

• If it does not go ahead it will be a great shame, leaving Peterborough very much stuck in 

the past.  

• Peterborough should be a city of development, not a city that is scared of change. 

• It is not a nature reserve, it is a man-made country park.  

• How many people were opposed to the plans for the park when they were first 

announced but have visited the park?  

• How many people were opposed to the lakeside centre when they were first proposed 

but now use these facilities?  

• How many people were opposed to the camping facilities when they were first 

proposed? 

• I don't see why anyone would be opposed. 

• Plenty of open spaces, Regents Park, Central Park, have large structures near them. 

• Ferry Meadows is missing an indoor area for days out when the weather isn't so great for 

outdoor activities 

• The site is ideal and complements the other sports enabling a school to have an 

'Activities Away day' and select from an 'a la carte' menu - an hour sailing, an hour 

cycling, and an hour climbing. 

• Being stuck out here in the Fens means there are no natural features to climb on so a 

decent climbing wall is important. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

160


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting Held on:
	210223 Draft Minutes

	5.1 19/00347/FUL - Ferry Meadows Country Park Ham Lane Orton Waterville Peterborough.
	Climbing Wall Report
	Appendix A- Climbing Wall


